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Strategic Report P Overview

utwv

We are an integrated producer broadcastet,
creating, owning and distributing high-quality
content on multiple platforms.
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maximising

We invest over £1 billion annually in our programming,
significantly more than our commercial competitors,
and have an unrivalled ability to deliver mass audiences
across all demographics for our advertisers.

@ See page 20 for more

growing

As an integrated producer broadcaster we create
value from world-class content that we develop,
own and distribute around the world.

@ See page 24 for more

building

As we grow our investment in content, we are
creating more windows to extend the reach of that
content and monetise It across more markets and
platforms, both free and pay.

@ See page 28 for more

Strategic Report

The Strategic Report explains in detail how we have performed this year and sets out a fair review of the business, a balanced and comprehensive analysis of our performance, the use of key

Serins 16 of I'm a Celebrity...Get Ma Out of Herel

launched n the UK with 12.7 million viewers
making it ITV's mast watched entertainment
programma in 2016. The serles averaged 10.4
million viewers and had a 50% share for the
16-34s demographic.

Poldark is produced

by Mammoth Screen
(part of ITV Studios UK)
for the BBC and has
been recommissioned
for a third series to be
delivered In 2017.

Vera Is a British based detective drama.
Thae sixth serles was broadcast on ITV
In 2016 and was the most watched to
date, averaging 7.2 milllon across the
series. it has had huga International
success, selling to over 150 countries.

yodey sibeyens |

performance indicators to explain the progress we have made, a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company, and an indication of potential future developments
The Strateqic Reportis prepared in line with the relevant provisians of the Companies Act 2006 snd the Cormpany has had regard to the guidanceTssued by the Financial Reporting Council.
Itis intend~d to provide shareholders with a better understanding of the Company, of its positionin the markets within which It operates, and of its prospects. In setting out the Company’s
main risks and uncertainties, anindication of potential future developments, and in other content, this report and accounts contains statements that are based on knowledge and

information available at the date of preparation of the Strategic Report, and what are believed to be reasonabie judgements, and therefore cannot be considered as indications of lkellhood

or certainty. A wide range of factors may cause the actual outcomes and results to differ matetlally from those contalned within, orimplied by, these various forward-looking staterments.

None of these statements should be construed as a profit forecast.

{ Front Cover
i Victoria, produced by [TV Studios UK.
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2016 Highlights

ITV delivered another strong performance in 2016 as we continued to

strengthen, rebalance and grow the business.

Group external revenue'sm Non-NAR revenue? £m Adjusted EBITA® £m
£3,066m £1,855m £885m
Adjusted EPS p Statutory EPS*p Dividend per share p (ordinary)
17.0p 1.2p 7.2p

Adjusted EBITA growth of Proposed an increase of

338% 20% inthe

since 2009 ordinal’\/
dividend

Online, Pay
& Interactive
revenue up

23%

Altarnative Perf\ M
We use both statutory and adjusted measures inour
Strategic Report, the latter of which, Inmanagement’s view
reflects the underlying parformance of the business and
provides a more meaningful comparison of how the business
[s managed and measured day-te-day. A full reconclliation
between our reported and adjusted results is provided inour
Alternative Performance Measures definitions on page 34.
Our KPIs are set out on pages 26 ta 39.
‘. The Strategic Reportalsc refers to total revenue which
includes all ITV revenue, both Internal and external..
2. Non-Net Advertising Revenue (Non-NAR} Includes all
ITV revenue, bothinternal and external, except Net

Advertising Revenue (NAR), Unforgotten is a detective drama produced by
3. EBITAbefore exceptionalitems has been adjusted Mainstreet Pictures :

to reflect the inclusion of production tax credits hasb . (-part of TV Studios LK) and

(adjusted EBITA). s been recomm;ssmr]ed for a second serles
4. Statutory profit before tax is £553 million to be broadcast on TV in 2017.

{2015; £641 million).

Good Morning Britain is broadcast on TV five
mernings aweek and reaches 5 milion viewers
across this period. Its biggest audience was 1.2
million following the EU referendum result.
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In 2016 we grew our share of
the UK television ad market to

474,

21.4%

share of viewing

for ITV Family,
up 1% since 2015

24%

increase in long-form video
requests in 2016 to

over 1bn

Britain’s Got Talent averaged 9.9 milllon
viewers across the series with two episodes
achieving ower T2 milllon viewers. 50% of
the audience was the 16-34s demographic.

Marcella was one of the top ten new dramas
in 2016, launching with 8.0 million viewers.
It averaged 6.8 millllon viewers across the
series and has been recommissioned.

Coronation Street was the most watched socap
in 2016 averaging 7.6 million viewers across the
year. It reached over 60% of the viewing
population whichis around 36 millon.

90%

increase

intotal ITV Studios hours
produced since 2010

80 mv

formats sold
in 2016

The England vs Iceland Euros football match
in June 2016 was watched by 15.2million
viewers and was the most watchad sporting
event of 2016.
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Investor Proposition

ITV continues to make
significant progress in
growing and strengthening
the business creatively,
commercially and financially.

i Pletured top to bottom:

i Myon-screenident;

i Multiscreening of a football
i matchbroadcast onITV.

A strong track record

for delivery

since 2009 we have grown adjusted earnings per

share by 844%. Even in 2016 when NAR declined + %
by 3% we delivered revenue and adjusted EBITA

growth as a result of the significant progress we
have made in rebalancing the business. We are

reducing our dependence on UK advertising and
driving new revenue streams to build a more 530
global and diversified organisation /0

increase in adjusted
EPS since 2009

of total revenue is from
sources other than spot
advertising

i Pictured left to right: JoannaLumley presented a three-part documentary

on Japan for ITV;{TV hosted the Six Nations Rugby Championships for the first
i timein 2016. England vs Ireland was the most watched match on ITV with an

i average of 6.6 million viewers.
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Strong market position

The Broadcast business remains robust. Our on-screen
and online viewing performance is strong and we
continue to deliver unrivalled audience scate and reach
for advertisers as well as more targeted demographics
on our digital channels and on the ITV Hub.

Online, Pay & Interactive is a material, fast-growing and
profitable part of the business and we are continuing to
build our digital business with the announced launch of our
Subscription Video on Demand (SVOD) service BritBox US

Our international content business is now a global player
of scale, creating, owning and managing rights and we

will continue to grow both organically and through

acquisitions in key creative markets

99,

of all commercial
audiences over 5 million
areonl|TV

50%

of total Studios revenue
is from outside the UK

42,

growth in ontine
viewing on the ITV Hub

£1.8bn

returned to shareholders
since 201 when the dividend
was restored

 Pictured: The Tour de France has
i beenbroadcast oniTV andiTV4
i fornine years.

Highly cash generative

We are a highly cash generative business and

our disciplined approach to cash, costs and capital
has strengthened our balance sheet and allowed
us to continue to invest across the business

Investment opportunities

As we continue to deliver our strategy we see
good investment opportunities to grow the
business and enhance shareholder value whilst
maintaining capital discipline

Compelling shareholder returns
The Board is committed to a long-term sustainable
dividend policy. Ordinary dividends will grow broadly
in line with earnings, targeting dividend cover of
around 2x adjusted earnings per share over the
medium-term

Jsoday nbayeays |
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ITV at a Glance

ITV, as an integrated producer broadcaster, creates, owns
and distributes high-quality content on multiple platforms.

ITV total revenue mcuremsrevewe
O Broadcast & Online £2,132m
QO TV Studios £1,395m

ITV adjusted EBITA
O Broadcast & Online £642m
©Q ITVStudios £243m

Broadcast
& Online

We operate the largest commercial family of channels in the UK
and deliver our content through traditional television broadcasting
as well as on demand via the ITV Hub.

474

largest
share

of the UK TV
advertising market

21.4%

share of
viewing
for the ITV Family
in 2016

17m

registered users

of the ITV Hub

ITV broadcasts a wide variety of content on its family of free-to-air channels.

Our investment in programming is primarily funded by television advertising revenue.
ITV has the largest share of the UK television advertising market, and we estimate that
this share of broadcast (SOB} is 474% in 2016.

The family of channels attracted a total share of viewing (SOV) of 21.4% in 2016, the
largest audience of any UK commercial broadcaster.

Qur main channel is the largest commercial channel in the UK, delivering 9% of
all commercial audiences over five million,

Our free-to-air digital channels provide more targeted demographics for advertisers
such as 16-34', ABC1 Men and Housewives with Children, and consist of ITV2 and ITV3,
the two largest digital channels in the UK, and 1Tv4, CITV and ITVBe.

We also have high definition versions of our digital channels available on pay
platforms along with ITV Encore, our pay only channel available exclusively on Sky.

In addition to linear broadcast, ITV delivers its content across multiple
platforms. Thisis either through our over-the-top (OTT) service the ITV
Hub, available on 27 platforms including ITV's website (itv.com), pay
providers such as Virgin and Sky, or through direct content

deals with services such as Amazon, Apple iTunes and Netflix,

Woe are partnering with the BBC to launch a new SVOD service in the US
during 2017 The streaming service will allow subscribers to access the
best of British television.
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Pictured left to right: Emmerdale was

i thesecond biggest soap in 2016 withan
{ average SOV of 32%. It reached 60% of
i the UK population, which is more than

i 35million viewers; Assault course game
¢ show Ninja Warrior UK produced by ITV

i Studios UK returned for a second seriesin

2016, with a third recommission for 2017,

3odey 3jbayeas |

ITV Studios

We have built significant scale in key creative markets around the
world, creating and producing programmes and formats that return

and travel, namely drama, entertainment and factual entertainment.

7800

hours

of original content
produced and
delivered in 2016

60 labels

in 10 different
countries

supplying over
234 channels

80

formats sold
in 2016

ITV Studios creates and produces content in the UK and internationally, while our
distribution business, Global Entertainment, selis finished programmes and
formats worldwide.

ITV Studios UK

ITV Studios UK is the largest commercial produ  erin the UK. We produce
programming across a diverse range of genres such as drama, entertainment and
factual for iTV's

own channels, as well as for other UK broadcasters such as the BBC, Channel 4,
Channel 5 and Sky.

ITV America

ITV America is the largest unscripted independent producer of content in the LS.
We have acquired a number of unscripted and reality producers and have grown

our presence in scripted content, using our strong cash flows to produce high-profile
dramas with the potential to travel and build international appeal.

ITV Studios Rest of World

ITV Studics also operates in the Netherlands (through Talpa Media), Germany, France,
Australia and the Nordics. Talpa produces and distributes entertainment formats while
the other bases produce content for local broadcasters in these regions. This content is
either created locally or are formats that have been created elsewhere by ITV, primarily
the UK and Talpa.

Global Entertainment

Global Entertainment, ITV's distribution business, owns the rights to ITV programmes
and formats and acquires third-party content and distributes this to other broadcasters
and platforms internationalty. Within this business we also finance productions both on
and off-ITV to acquire global distribution rights.
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Market Review

The market environment in which we operate is dynamic and constantly
changing. Consolidation of media and telecoms companies and the increasing
influence of technology brings both challenges and opportunities.

Global Content

i Pictured: The Good Witchis a scripted format
i produced by{TV Arnerica for the Hallmark

i channelin the US and will go into its third

i seasonin2017.

Key market trends

Global demand for content continues to
grow, with more channetls, more platforms
and new entrants increasing spend an
high-quality programming. We estimate
that the giobal content market is growing
at around 5% per annum, with some genres
such as drama growing faster than others.

This growth can be attributed to a number
of factors, including: alarger internationat
pay television market; the consolidation of
pay providers with content companies and
distributors coupled with the convergence
in the television market, where telecom and
new rmedia companies are competing with
traditional media companies for content and
viewers; online players such as Netflix and
Amazon investing heavily in new original
content and archive; and online advertising
driven platforms like YouTube and Facebook
creating a new market for short form and
digital content.

The US is by far the largest content market in
the world, dominating the global production
sector, with the UK the second largest
market. This represents a significant
opportunity for ITV Studios, which has

a strong presence in both regions.

Demand for drama, particutarly US drama,
has increased significantly in the last few
years. Original scripted content becomes
brand defining for broadcasters and OTT
players in an increasingly competitive global
environment. US studios continue to
dominate the market for drama in the US and
internationally. However, the rise of Netflix
and Amazon, who are investing heavily in
creating high-quality original scripted
content, has significantly increased
competition in the market.

This increased competition for high-quality
content has driven up the cost of production.
Deficit financing has therefore become
Increasingly importantin financing
productions, where distributors are often
funding the difference between what the
content buyer is paying for the original
broadcast and the cost of production, which
is then covered by global sates, second-run
windows and sales to OTT providers. [TV asa
distributor as well as a producerisin astrong
position to deficit finance its own productions
and therefore produce high-quality content
and retain therights toit.

Leveraging our network relationships and
international distribution network, we are
looking to expand our global scripted
business and develop a strong portfolio
of international and returning drama.

TV America has developed several scripted
programmes over the last few years and
has a healthy pipeline of content in
development. Our 2016 scripted deliveries
included The Good Witch and Aquarius and
scripted deliveries for 2017 are expected to
include Sun Records, Somewhere Between,
a pilot of Showpiercer and the third series
of The Good Witch.
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i Pictured: Come Dine With Me continues
i tosellwellinternationally with 13

i format sales in 2016, four of which

t were produced by [TV Studios.

Hodey 3)Benays |

Hell's Kitchen

Heil’s Kitchen has been a huge international
success with 34 format sales worldwide over
thelast tenyears.

inthe UK, there is stronger demand and
higher viewing figures for UK content over
imported series. We are a major producer of
scripted content and have further reinforced
this position through our acquisitions of
Mammoth Screen and Twofour Group in
2015, Our 20116 scripted deliveries in the

UK included Victoria, Cold Feet, Poldark

and witness for the Prosecution. Scripted
deliveries expected in 2017 include Prime
Suspect 1973, Fearless, the second series of
Victaria and the second series of Cold Feet,
all of which have international appealL

While not growing as quickly as scripted
content, demand for non-scripted cantent
remains strang as networks continue to
require lower cost, high volume popular
series. The UK rernains the dominant
producer of unique non-scripted formats.

ITV significantly strengthened its capability
in this area with the acquisition of Talpa
Media in 2015. Along with the established
entertainment and factual entertainment
genres, scripted reality programming, where
we have focused our US acquisitions, has
grown quickly with formats such as Pawn
Stars, Real Housewives and Fixer Upper.

TV is now a genuine global player in
non-scripted content, being a leading
unscripted independent producer in the US
and Europe as well a5 the largest commercial
production company in the UK. The large
independent production companies, such as
Endemol Shine Group and Fremantle Media,
continue to be ITV Studios’ main competitors
in non-scripted content.

66

The US is by far the largest content
market in the world, dominating
the global production sector, with
the UK the second largest market.
This represents a significant
opportunity for ITV Studios,

which has a strong presence

in both regions

{ Pictured: Behind-the-scenes on Victoria.
i The eight-part series has been a huge

i success for [TV Studios UK, selling

i toaround 190 countries Ithasbeen

i recommissioned for 2 second series.
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Market review continued

Broadcast & Online

! Pictured top to bottom: Family watching VoD
i via their television set; The ITV Hub togo.

Over recent years the number of ways to
watch TV has greatly increased with viewers
able to choose a variety of platfartms, bath
free and pay. Traditional linear television
viewing remains resilient despite significant
changes in the market and in the availability
and delivery of content. Viewing habits also
vary by demographic with younger viewers
watching more non-linear content than
older demographics.

in the UK linear television viewing remains the
most popular form of media entertainment
despite year-on-year fluctuations. UK average
television viewing in 20116 was 212 minutes per
day which is similar to 2015 (216 minutes)and
a similar level to ten years ago (Source: BARB),

Television viewing

SOV by broadcaster

QTv Famity 21.4%
O BBC Famnity 31.9%
Q channel 4 Famity 10.5%
O Flve Family 6.2%
O sky Family £3%
Q other nr%
Source: BARB*

Non-linear viewing, while currently only a
smail praportion of total viewing, is growing
fast, particularly via SVOD services such as
Netflix and Amazon, which have seen
exponential growth over the last few years.
We continue to invest in iTV's online offering,
the ITV Hub, along with rolling out our SVOD
service, BritBox in the US to enable us to
competein this market.

ITV competes for viewers with the BBC

and commercial breadcasters including
Channel 4, Sky and Channel 5. Over the last
few years, the number of available channels
has grown which has impacted the SOV of the
traditional broadcasters. SOV for the other
channelsincreased to 21.7% in 2016 from
21:1% in 2015. Despite anincrease in the
number of channels, ITV and BBC1 continue
to be the only channels consistently able to
deliver mass audiences as well as targeted
demographics, and in 2016 ITV delivered 99%
of all commercial audiences over five million
viewers and 95% over three million. In 2016
the ITV family of channels increased their SOV
to 21.4% (2015: 21.2%), second only to the
BBC's family of channels at 31.9% which lost
share during the year (2015: 32.7%) as a result
of BBC3 moving online,

*  Viewing datais based on Weeks 1-52 for 2016 compared
to Weeks 2-53 for 2015,

10
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¢ Pictured: This Morning continues
as one of the longest running
daytime programmes in the UK.
Its audience grew by 2%In 2016

i reaching 5.2 million viewers

i aweek.

3soday abanens |

Pay television Non-linear viewing Advertising revenue
Long-form content viewing Television's share of the

The platform advertising market

v 1 O Lve (iIncluding simulcast) 81% O Telewision 27.5%
!.n IX1n the U l(O Q Timeshifted (PVR) O Press 15.6%
IS I’Onghl\/ 50 A) up to 28 days 12% O Radio 3%

-2 Q vOD: Broadcaster O Cinema 1.3%

free tO oa": catch-up % Q outdoor 5.7%
and 50% linear O VoD Other -~ O internet “o.o%
pa\/ TV Source: 2015 Internal estimates Source: Advertlsing Association January 2017

Free-to-air television in the UK s delivered
through services including Freeview, YouView
and Freesat, whiie linear pay television is
delivered through operators such as Sky,

BT, Virgin and Talk Talk. The platform mix
between free-to-air and traditional linear
pay television has remained constant for a
number of years at around 50:50. Linear pay
television revenes continue to grow but the
market dynamics are changing rapidly as
established pay television providers such as
Sky and Virgin face increasing competition
from relatively new entrants to the market
such as BT, Netflix and Amazon.

Increasingly homes are supplementing their
free television with other forms of paid
content including SVOD services such as
Netflix, or by purchasing additional channels
through ‘no-contract’ praviders such as Now
TV or Talk Talk TV Store. Around 30% of homes
inthe UK have an SVOD service and thisis
weighted towards those hormes that have
linear pay TV (Source: BARB). ncluding SVOD
pay services, the platform mix in the UKis
roughly 40% free-to-air and 60% paid viewing.

ITV participates in the pay television market,
earning revenue frorm various third parties,
including Sky and Virgin, through the licensing
of channels and content. ITV also has its pay
only television channel, ITV Encore, on the Sky
platform along with our other pay channels,
ITV2HD, ITV3 HD and ITV4 HD.

TV also recently announced the creation of a
joint venture with the BBC to launch BritBox,
anew SVOD service in the US. The service
offers a significant armount of content from
both broadcasters and gives [TV access to
the fast growing SVOD market in the US.

Non-linear viewing of long-form content
includes recorded, or timeshifted viewing

(up to 28 days) and catch-up of live television
(tinear television — up to 7 days), and also
encompasses Video on Demand (VOD) and
OTT delivery of other long-form content such
as box sets and movies.

While non-linear viewing has grown fast it
still accounts for a small proportion of total
viewing time. In the UK we estimate 81% of
alt viewing of legal long-form content is live
(including simulcast), with a further 12%
tireshifted via a Personal Video Recorder
{PVR) and watched within 28 days of the
original broadcast date. Of the estimated
7% of content viewed on demand, 3% is
catch-up viewing of broadcaster content via
the television set or to other devices such as
tablets and mobiles. The remaining 4% of
content is other VOD viewing, where viewing
of box sets via services such as Netflixis
replacing viewing of DVDs, This is growing
quickly driven by increased availability of
devices such as smartphones, tablets and
connected televisions.

There is currently no industry measure for
online viewing. BARB are in the process of
developing a joint-industry, audited measure
of viewing online television.

66

Non-linear viewing, while currently
only a small proportion of total
viewing, is growing fast and we
continue to invest inITV’s VOD
and SVOD services

ITV generates revenues from advertising
through traditional broadcast, sponsorship
and online, and competes with commercial
broadcasters and other advertising media,
for its advertising revenues. In the UK,
television advertising (including vOD,
sponsorship and other television revenues)
continues to hold a significant share of the
overall advertising market with a share of
27.5% in 2016, (2015: 28.7%). Internet
advertising (search, classified and disptay)
has grown its share to 46.6% in 2016 (2015:
42 7%), making the UK one of the most
developed markets for online advertising.
This growth is at the expense of print
advertising, which declined to 15.6% in
2016 (2015: 18.2%).

The UK television advertising market

is extremely difficult to measure as all
broadcasters have different definitions.
We estimate ITV's SOB (which is based on
pure linear television advertising excluding
VOD, sponsorship and self promotion) to be
474% in 2016 (including UTV), up from
44.7% In 2009. This increase is because

of ITV's unique ability to deliver mass
audiences across multiple regions and

in key demographics.

n
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Our Strategy and Business Model

We remain focused on our original vision for ITV as an owner, producer and
broadcaster of content. We are confident that our strategy to maximise our
value as an integrated producer broadcaster, creating, owning and distributing
content around the world, is the right long-term path for ITV.

.. 0
Our strategy Our sources of competitive advantage

Our strateqy is focused The UK's biggest marketing platform delivering unrivatled
on three key priorities: commercial audiences

The scale of our channels and the significant investment we make in quality content

gives ITV unique scale and reach on our main channel and more targeted audiences

on our family of channels and the ITV Hub.
maximising
maximise audience %

and revenue share from
free-to-air broadcast
and VOD business

@ Sae page 20 for more

growing
grow an international
content business

@ See page 24 for mors

building
build a global pay and
distribution business

@ Sue paga 28 for mora

e

)

Our channels reach around 80% of the television owning
population each week

World-class content

At the core of ITV is our focus on creativity and content, whether selling unique
content around the world or investing in third-party content to broadcast across
multiple platforms. Internationally we have built production and distribution scale
in key global creative markets through erganic growth and selective acquisitions.

£1 bn

We invest over £1bn annually in content for our family of channels

Global distribution

ITV has built relationships globally, with major networks, platform owners and tocal
broadcasters, and owns the rights to a diverse portfolio of shows, particularly drama
and entertainment, for international distribution.

40,000:

Hours of television and film content

Our strategic assets

Our strategic assets underpin ITV’s competitive advantage

Creating and Our strong brand Our talented,
owning the rights creative people
to quality content

12
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i Pictured left to right: This Time Next Yearis a

i reality programme presented by Davina McCall
in the UK and produced by Twofour Group, part
of ITV Studios UK. The format has been sold to
six countries in 2016; Family Guy launched on

i ITV2In 2016. The Seth McFarlane collectlon

i reached 25 million viewers on ITV2 during
2016, 59% of which were 16-34s,

Our diversified revenue streams Creating value

By developing and managing the rights to content, ITV
is able to maximise the value of its programme brands
across a range of revenue streams, making ITV a more
balanced business and enabling it to drive value from
different revenue models.

Advertising

Our family of channels and the ITV Hub drive
significant advertising revenues from the mass
audiences and more targeted demographics it
delivers, which funds our investment in the

\ interactive

programme budget.

Commercial We work with advertisers and advertising agencies

partnerships to provide unigue commercial partnerships and
sponsorship opportunities that extend beyond
pure spot advertising.

Pay & We earn pay revenues primarily from licensing our

HD channels, our pay channel [TV Encore and our
online VOD services, In the first half of 2017 we >
are taunching a joint venture (JV) with the BBC,
BritBox US, a SVOD service offering the best of
British television.

ANy

We also monetise our consumer interaction with our
biggest shows through competitions and voting.

Original We produce original content commissions for
production broadcasters and platform owners internationally
from our production bases in the UK, the US, the
Netherlands, Germany, France, Australia and
the Nordics.
Distribution We own the rights to a significant catalogue of
revenues programmes and formats that we sell and license to

broadcasters and platform owners internationally.
The strong global demand for content provides a
significant opportunity for us.

M

growth in total revenue derived from sources
other than traditional spot television advertising

For advertisers

Through delivering unigue
scale and breadth of
demographics and new
innovative ways of engaging
with consumers around
quality programme brands

For audiences
Through a varied, high-quality
programming schedule

For broadcasters and
platform owners

Through delivering quality
programming that they can
then monetise through their
own business models

For sharsholders
Through a track record of
creating shareholder value
and delivering significant
shareholder returns

For our people

Investing in and developing our
creative, on-screen, commercial
and operational talent

Jodaybesnns I

13
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Chairman’s Statement

To be able to announce record results, even after a year in which television
advertising saw a small decline, is eloquent testimony to the health of

ITV’s business.

66

We have a clear
strategy in place
which the
management team
remains very
focused on
delivering

Sir Peter Bazalgette
Chairman

14

I This is my first annual report as Chair, and

it's a pleasure to observe how different ITV Is
compared to seven years ago or indeed since
| first joined the Board in 2013. To be able to
announce record results, even after ayearin
which television advertising saw a smali
decline, is eloquent testimony to the health
of ITV's business. It reflects the fruits of the
continued rebalancing of the Company,

with revenues other than spot advertising
representing more than half of the total.

In the business of television, it of course all
starts with superb programmes and they
aremade by a plethora of great talent:
performers, writers, directors, producers and
journalists, Both ITV's main channel and our
family of channels improved their SOV in
2016, a huge achievement in a multi-channel,
multi-platform era. This underlines the value
of one of our greatest assets: the ability to
deliver the only commercial, genuinely mass
audience in the UK and one which alsc offers
the key dernographics to advertisers,

Pivotal to our success is offering choice and
flexibility to our viewers, and within that the
ITV Hub which we launched just cver a year
ago continues to be highly demanded as we
further develop and enhance its service.
Significantly we have recently announced the
beginning of our SVOD service, BritBox, jointly
with the BBC. BritBox will offer the best of
British content in the US and itis our intention
to rollout our SVOD services further into
other international markets under the
BritBox umbrella.

Key to rebalancing ITV has been the
significant growth of ITV Studios in the UK
and internationally. Worldwide demand for
quality content continues to grow — from
broadcasters, from traditional platforms
and from the new VOD services. ITV, as an
increasingly scaled international producer
and distributor of high-quality content, is
well placed to take advantage of that. We'll
continue to seek opportunities to add scale
and value in the future, both organically and
through acquisitions, as we grow our global
content business and further diversify our
revenues away from our reliance on the UK
television advertising market.

Adam Crozier and Ian Griffiths lead a strong
management team, who took swift action
after last June's referendum to deliver
additionat cost savings to ensure ITV is

well placed to face the opportunities and
challenges that lie ahead. We have a clear
strategy which the team remains very
focused on delivering.

Our strong balance sheet and significant
cash flows will support this and enable
us to continue to invest in the business
as well as deliver sustainable returns

to our shareholders.

In 2014, the Board made a commitment to
grow the full year ordinary dividend by at
least 20% per annum to 2016 to achieve a
more normal dividend cover of between 2.0
and 2.5x adjusted earnings per share. in line
with this policy, and reflecting ITV’s good
performance in 2016, the Board is proposing
afinal dividend of 4.8p which equates to a
full year dividend of 7.2p.
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Reflecting ITV's strong cash generation and
the Board's confidence in the business, the

Board is also proposing a special dividend of
5.0p per share, worth just over £200 million.

{am proud to be leading a focused Board
of non-executives to which  am pleased to
welcome a new member, Salman Amin, the
Chief Operating Officer of 5C Johnson, who
brings extensive experience of advertising
and marketing and who works in one of our
key territories, the US.

On behalf of the Board, I'd like to take this
opporturity to thank all colleagues for the
creative and commercial achievements

of 2016 as we look forward to 2017

with enthusiasm.

Sir Peter Bazalgette
Chairman

! Pictured: Loose Women has been

{ broadcast as part of the ITV daytime

i schedule for 17 years, It grew its audience
i byB% in 2016 and reached 3.9 million

i viewersaweek
Dividend
Dividend per share p (ordinary)
7.2p

5p Special dividend, worth just over

£200m

Pictured left to right: Fixer Upperis produced by
i HighNoon in the US and was the highest rated

i programme on the network HGTV in 2016; The
i Durrells was commissioned for ITV and was the
i most watched new drama launchiof 2016.
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Chief Executive’s Review

In more uncertain markets, ITV has delivered a good performance
in 2016 as we continue to rebalance and strengthen the business
creatively, commercially and financially.

66

The continued
growth in revenue
and adjusted profit
despite a decline

in the advertising
market is clear
evidence that our
strategy is working

Adam Crozier
Chief Executive
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" ITV delivered a good performance in

2016 as we continue to rebalance and
strengthen the business creatively,
commercially and financially, External
revehues grew 3% and adjusted earmings
per share (EPS} increased 3% despite a 3%
decline in net advertising revenues (NAR),
which was clearly impacted by the wider
political and economic uncertainty.

We measure performance through arange
of metrics, most particularly through our
alternative performance measures and KPI's,
aswell as our statutory results, all of which
are set out in more detail later in the report.

Our good performance in 2016 is a result of
TV continuing to deliver on our strategy to
diversify the business and grow new revenue
strearns, thereby reducing our reliance on UK
spot advertising and making ITV a stronger
and more resilient business. Total revenues
from sources other than traditional spot
advertising {non-NAR) were up 11% in the year
and 53% of total revenues came from sources
other than traditional spot advertising.

Our gltobal production business, ITV

Studias, continues to grow in the UK and
internationally, delivering around 7,800 hours
of content in 2016.ITV is now a global player
of scale, with 50% of total revenues coming
from outside the UK. We have a strong
creative pipeline and continue to perform
well across the key genres that retum

and travel

Qur Broadcast & Online business is robust.
We performed strongly on-screen with share
of viewing (SOV) up 3% on our main channel
and again delivered unrivalled audience reach
for advertisers. Onling, Pay & Interactive
revenues grew significantly up 23% as we
continued to grow our audiences and
dernand from advertisers online.

We remain committed to our original vision
of TV as an owner and producer of world-
class content that travels. Our strategy of
maximising our value as anintegrated
producer broadcaster, making our content
famous on multiple platforms, both free and
pay and distributing it globally, is clearly the
right one for ITV.

As we continue to execute our strategy we
remain facused on delivering against our
three strategic priorities:

maximising

maxirmise audience and revenue
share from free-to-air
broadcast and VOD business

@ See page 20 for more

growing
grow aninternational
content business

@ See page 24 for more

bullding
build a global pay and
distribution business

® See page 28 for more

We will continue to strengthen the business
and grow new revenue streams both
organicatly and through acquisitions, and we
see further investment opportunities across
ITV. There will be an increasing emphasis on
building cur digital assets throughout the
business as we seek opportunities to drive
further value from the content we own by
expleiting and managing it online,

Rebalanced ITV delivers continued
revenues and profit growth

In 2016 we grew external revenues by 3% to
£3,064 million (2015: £2,972 million) driven
by £191 million growth in non-NAR to £1,855
million (2015: £1,664 miltion) including the
benefit of acquisitions, while ITV Family NAR
was down 3%. With our continued focus on
cash and costs we delivered 2% growth in our
adjusted EBITA to £885 million (2015: £865
miltion), which corresponded to a2 29% margin,
in line with 2015. Adjusted EPS grew 3% to
17.0p (2015: 16.5p). Reported profit before tax
declined by 14% to £553 million (2015: £641
million) and reported EPS declined 10% to
1.2p {2015:12.4p) primarily due to higher
operational exceptional iterns and
amortisation of acquired intangibles which

is explained in more detail in the Financial
and Performance Review.
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Group external revenue growth £m
£3,064m

Adjusted EPS p
17.0p

We have a strong balance sheet and

the business continues ta be highly cash
generative. Profit to cash conversion (@s
reconciled in the Finance and Performance
Review) was 97% and we ended the year with
net debt of £637 million after acquisitions

of £97 million, dividend payments of £663
millicn and pension deficit contributions of
£80 million.

In 2014, the Board made a commitment to
grow the full year ordinary dividend by at
least 20% per annum to 2016 to achieve a
more hormal dividend cover of between 2.0
and 2.5x adjusted earnings per share. Inline
with this policy and reflecting ITV's good
performance in 2016, the Board is proposing
a final dividend of 4.8p which equates to a full
year dividend of 7.2p. This is a dividend cover
of 2.4x and delivers on the commitment the
Board made three years ago.

Reflecting ITV’s strong cash generation and
the Board's confidence in the business, the
Board is proposing a special dividend of 5.0p
per share, worth just over £200 million.

i Picturedright: The 13th series of

i Saturday Night Takeaway launched

i withitsbiggest audience in aver a

i decade. The series averaged 7.7 miilion
i viewers, with a quarter of the audience

i being16-34s.

Looking ahead, the Board is committed to
along term sustainabile dividend policy. The
ordinary dividend will grow broadly in line
with earnings, targeting dividend cover of
around 2x adjusted earnings per share over
the medium-term.

Maximise audience and revenue share
from free-to-air business

The media environrent in which we operate
is constantly changing but our Broadcast &
Online business remains strong and is
evolving to take advantage of the significant
opportunities for growth.

Wwhile the current economic uncertainty is
impacting the demand for advertising, the
traditional broadcast market is robust with
overatl commercial viewing up in the year and
with television advertising continuing to bein
high demand. ITV has maintained its strong
position within this market with its unique
reach and scale. ITV's SOV was up 3% on the
main charnel, up 1% across the ITV famity.
We delivered 99% of all audiences over five
million, which enabled ITV to again grow its
share of broadcast (SOB) which is our share
of television advertising spend to 47.4%.

We are also performing strongly online
through the ITV Hub, the digital home for

all our channels and services, which hetps ITV
reach younger audiences. Online consumption
{viewing), which measures how long viewers
are spending online, was up 42% and long-
formvideo requests were up 24% driving a
33% increase in online revenue. We atso
delivered significant growth in our pay
revenues as we increase the reach of

our broadcast content digitally.

In 2016, Broadcast & Online revenues were
down 1% at £2,132 million (2015: £2,146
million) with adjusted EBITA down 3% at £542
million (2015: £659 million) which reflects 3%
decline in highly geared NAR and 23% growth
in Online, Pay & Interactive.

Grow aninternational content business
Growing a scaled international content
business in the key genres that travel is centrat
to our strategy as an integrated producer
broadcaster. AsITV creates, owns and

manages more content, our channels

and digital services provide a platform

to showcase our programmes before
distributing therm across multiple platforms
in the UK and internationally.

Global demand for high-quality content

from both broadcasters and platform owners
remains strong. Capitalising on this demand,
we continue to strengthen our position as the
UK's largest commercial production company,
as well as creating an increasingly
international business with production bases
in America, the Nethertands, France, Germany,
the Nordics and Australia. Half of our revenues
are generated outside the UK and we have
become a top independent praducer in the
Us andEurope.

Overall, ITV Studios performed strongly,
although ITV America was impacted by the
phasing of deliveries. We continue to build

a large portfolio of successful series and
formats across the key genres that return
and travel internationally, namely drama,
entertainment and factual entertainment.
ITV detivered around 7,800 hours of content
in 2016 including many new and returning
scripted programmes, such as Victoria,
Poldark, Vera and The Good Witch selling to
over 100 countries. ITV also had 80 formats
sold internationally including The Voice, Hell's
Kitchen and The Chase. We are also making a
number of selective investments in digital
content creation as we look to develop our
expertise in 'digital first’ content.

ITV Studios delivered 13% growthin total
revenues to £1,395 million (2015: £1,237
million) and 18% growth in adjusted EBITA

1o £243 miltion (2015: £206 million) driven

by acquisitions. Organic revenues (excluding
prior year acquisitions and foreign exchange
movements) were down 7% driven
predominantly by ITV America which was
impacted by the lurmpy nature of programme
deliveries. However, we have a strong creative
pipetine of new and returning programmes
with 228 new commissions and 188
recommissions, which will help drive areturn
to good organic revenue growth in 2017,

17
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Chief Executive’s Review continued

Building a global pay and

distribution businass

As a creator, owner and distributor of
high-value sought after programmes, ITV is
well positioned to expleit the opportunities
that arise from the changes in digital media
and consumer behaviour, With over 40,000
hours of content, ITV is continually exploring
and experimenting with new ways to
distribute our content to broadcasters and
platform owners, both free and pay, while
also seeking new opportunities to extend the
reach of our content directly tc the consumer.

We have recently announced the creation of
ajoint venture with the BBC to create BritBox
Us, an ad-free subscription service offering

the very best content from both broadcasters.

BritBox US will launch in the first half of 2017
and will feature recent series and classics.
BritBox gives ITV access to the fast growing
Subscription Video on Demand (SVOD)
market in the US. In time we will look to
rollit out further internationally.

We are also increasingly distributing
near-to-broadcast or first broadcast rights
to aver-the-top (OTT) platforms across
territories and currently have arcund 200
programme supply agreements with Netflix,
Amazon and Hulu.

18

Global Entertainment, the distribution arm
of ITV Studios, delivered 14% revenue growth
to £179 million (2015: £157 million) as we
continue to drive value from the investment
we have made in creating and owning the
rights to quality content with international
appeal. We are building a strong and balanced
portfotio of scripted and unscripted
programmes and formats in the key genres
that travel internationally and we are using
our strong cash flows not only to create and
fund new content but also to acquire
third-party rights.

Outlook for 2017 and bayond

While the economic outtook remains
uncertain, ITVis new a much maore balanced
and resilient business and we expect to see
good growth in nan-NAR in 2017 with our
Online, Pay & Interactive and ITV Studios
businesses performing well ITV Farnily NAR
is expected to be down 6% in the four months
to the end of April,impacted by the ongoing
eccnomic uncertainty, however over the full
year we expect to outperform our estimate
of the television advertising market.

We continue our tight controlon costs to
ensure we are operating as efficiently as
possible and maximising investment in our
high-quality programming. We are on track to
deliver £25 million of overhead cost savings in
2017, and due to the absence of any major

5 Gold Rings is a new entertainment
programme produced by Talpa Media. The
format is selling well internationally and will
be broadcast on ITVin 2017

sporting event, the network programme
budget (NPB) will be £25 miltion lower in 2017
whilst maintaining the strength and depth of
our schedule.

We remain committed to our strategy

of rebalancing and strengthening [TV and
building a globat content business of scale
and we see clear opportunities to invest for
further growth across the business bath
organically and through acquisitions. We will
continue to invest behind our core Broadcast
& Online business, further developing the

ITV Hub, and the launch of Britbox US willbe a
significant step forward in growing our digital
distribution assets, We will increase our
investment in ITV Studios, particularly our US
scripted business, to strengthen further and
grow our creative capabilities.

Our robust balance sheet and strong
underlying cash flows allows us to do

so while at the same time delivering
sustainable returns to our sharehalders.

; Pictured: Behind-the-scenes on
i returning drama Cold Feet, produced

by ITV Studios UK.
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Pictured left to right: The Jeremy Kyle Show is a dally
¢ talk show and has been on ITV for over ten years, it

! reaches 5.5 million viewers a week; Coronatian Street
i isinits57thyear onITV andis Britain’s longest running
i soap driving huge audiences weekly.
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Our responsibility

Building a responsible business that benefits all stakeholders

The success of our strategy depends not just on our operational
efficiency, but also on the way we interact with our stakeholders,
the environment and the wider community. ITV's social purpose is
to grow our business in a responsible way, using the reach of cur
channels to create change for good. As well as complying with our
legislative and regulatory requirements we recognise that our

Our responsibitity priorities

Our responsibility strategy focuses on three priorities: people,
planet and partnerships. Each of our pricrities highlights the risks
and opportunities that are most relevant to us, and we have made
four commitments under each, that incorporate our main assets
and business operations.

actions can have an impact and our reach can positively influence
society. We therefore work to identify issues that are material to
ITV and matter to our stakeholders.

Priority Leveraging Leveraging Responsible business How we work
our reach our people day-to-dzy with othars
N A4 N A

People inclushve programming Inclusive workforce Inclusive culturs Inclusive access to
To ensure our programmes To ensure our workforce To build awareness and programmes and services
portray the diversity of reflects the diverse make-up capacity and create a culture To work with our supply chain
modern soclety by thepeople  of modern society. that attracts, develops and to encourage inclusivity
on-screen and the editorial retains the best talent standards and to make sure
content. possible and enables our services are accessible.

everyone to be their best,

Planet Greener programming Gresnar workforce Greenaer footprint Grasner partners
To ensure our programmes To build the awareness and Tominimise our direct To work with our value chain
communicate responsible capacity of our workforce to environmental footprint te encourage
environmental messaging have a positive impact onthe of energy, water and waste environmentally responsible
through the editorial content,  environment. inour operations. standards and behaviours.
directly orindirectly.

Partnarships Empowering charities Empowering our workforce  Empowering our viawars Empowering communities
and causes Toempower ourworkforceto  To use our programmes at Toinspire and engage our
To use our mass audience give back, through time and the heart of popular culture local communities to make
reach and infilence to raise skills, to support kocal to raise awareness of pressing a positive difference.
awareness or donations for communities and causes. social topics and inspire
national and international change.
causes.

Paople Planat

Reflecting the diversity of modern society is the right thing to do,

it helps give our programmes mass appeal by attracting the largest
possible audiences which is essential to our success as an integrated
producer broadcaster. We strive to ensure diversity in our on-screen
programming and in our workforce, ensuring that we're relevant
and accessible to all.

Gender split
Board of Directors

6
75%

$
Senior management®
83 é 63

56.8%

All ernployees?

48.1%

é 51.9%
3741 3,390

We have a respeonsibility to understand and minimise our own
impact on the environment and an opportunity to influence
positively our industry and audiences. Through our reach and value
chain, we have the chance to create long-term change by bringing
environmental awareness and sustainable behaviour into the heart
of popular culture, See page 101 for our greenhouse gas disclosures.

Partnerships

We believe partnerships mean collaborating with others to make
a positive contribution to society. Through a combination of our
on-air appeals and campaigns, along with local community
engagement, were committed to inspiring, engaging and
empowering our stakeholders to make a difference.

Further information

We aim for continuous improvement in our Responsibility strategy,
actions and performance. More information on our responsibility
initiatives can be found online.

@ ttvresponsibility.com

1 Anemployee who is a director of a subsidiary of the Company or who has responsibility for
planning, directing or controlling the activities of the entity or a strategically significant part of it

2. Employee gender splitis based on total headcount at 31December 2016
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Pictured: Cold Feet retumed to [TV
after a 13 year hiatus and was the most
watched drarma on [TV in 2016 with an
average of 8.2 million viewers across
the series,
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Strategic
Priority 1:
Maximise audience and revenue

share from free-to-air broadcast
and VOD business

The media environment in which we operateis
constantly changing and our Broadcast business remains
strong, adaptable and ready to take advantage of the
opportunities that arise. [TV, through its commercial
channels, offers unique scale and breadth reaching
around 80% of the television owning population every
week. At the same time, the ITV Hub, the digital home
for all our channels and services, is growing rapidly
helped by the significant growth in audience appetite
for Video on Demand (VOD).

@ See page 22 for more
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Strategic Priority 1 continued

As a result there continues to be significant
demand for advertising on our family of
broadcast channels and on the [TV Hub,
which generates substantial profit and cash
toreinvest across [TV, Additionally, as an
integrated producer broadcaster, our
channels provide animportant platformto
showcase ITV Studios content, providing it
with a proven track record before exploiting
it internationally.

Remaining responsive to a changing
madia environment

Traditional linear television viewing remains
resilient despite significant changes in the
market and in the availability and delivery
of content. On average viewers watch 212
minutes of television a day, which is a simitar
level to 216 minutesin 2015. The majority of
television viewing is live at an estimated 81%
as television continues to have the power to
bring audiences together. VOD is growing
rapidly although it still onty accounts for 7%
of total viewing. Meanwhile, PVR viewing, at
12%, has remained relatively constant over
the iast few years,

Three key attributes lie at the heart of
ITV's successful Broadcast proposition:
its first class distribution and reach across
broadcast and OTT platforms; owning the
rights to high-quality, must have content,

23m+

mobile

downloads

1/

istered
re('alus.er‘:, .

for all key audiences; and providing
advertisers with creative access to the
biggest and most effective marketing
platformin the UK.

Strong viewing and online parformance
TV performed strongly on-screen in 2016
with main channel SOV up 3% and {TV family
SOV up 1% with programmes supplied by both
ITV Studios and independent producers. We
aired seven out of the top ten new dramas;
the most watched soap in Coronation Street;
the most watched sporting event in England
vs. Iceland, during the 2016 European Football
Championships and the most watched
current affairs programme with our coverage
of the EU Referendum Debate. On-screen
successes included a range of new dramas,
such as Victoria, The Durretls, Marcella and
the return of Cold Feet. Qur sporting schedule
has performed strongly, particularly the Six
Nations Rugby Championships and the
European Football Championships, as has our
daytime schedule inctuding Good Morning
Britain, This Morning and Loose Women. We
also continue to drive significant audiences
with Coronation Street and Emmerdale,
which are the two largest scaps, and with

our returning brands such as Vera, Endeavour,
Britain’s Got Talent, I'm a Celebrity... Get Me
Out Of Herel, Saturday Night Take Away,

The Chase and Tipping Point.

Available on

27

platforms

Hub

O
over50% One \/ear on viewingup
of the UK's 16-24 A

yearolds are A:l
registered gt
users
Delivered

1bn+

video requests
in ?@IS

We continue to target key demographics
through our digital channels and the ITV Hub
and have seen a very significant increase in
our younger audiences, with 16-34 SOV up
25% on ITV2 helped by the successful launch
of American Dad and Family Guy as well as
the return of Love Island.

ITV3 and ITV4 have not performed as well
as we had hoped. ITV3 was impacted by the
launch of new free digital drama channels
and the allocation of some of aur
programming exclusively to ITV Encore,
and ITV4 was affected by the loss of the
Europa League and the Champions League.
Impraving their performance is a focus

for 2017,

Looking ahead we believe that around
£1billionis the appropriate programme
budget for ITV's family of channels to ensure
we continue to deliver standout content that
drives the scale and breadth of the audiences
that advertisers demand.

The programme budget will be £25 million
lower in 2017 than 2016 at around £1,025
million due to the absence of a major sports
tournament. We have a strong slate across
key genres including new programmes The
Halcyon, Good Karma Hospital, Prime Suspect
1973, Lethal Weapon, Little Big Shots, The
Voice, The Voice Kids, Dance Dance Dance,

5 Gold Rings, The Nightly Show and horse
racing, and returning programmes including
Victoria, Cold Feet, Broadchurch, Unforgotten,
Safe House, I'm A Celebrity... Get Me Out Of
Herel, Britain's Got Talent, Saturday Night
Takeaway, The Chase and the Six Nations
Rugby Championships.

The ITV Hub ona year on

ITV’s online business has grown rapidly

over the last few years and is contributing
meaningful revenue to the Group, growing the
overall [TV audience and advertising revenues.
The ITV Hub, which was launched last year,
was a major step forwardin the quality,
innovation and ease of use of ITV's online
services. It is now available on 27 platforms,
the app has been downloaded over 23 million
times and it has 17 million registered users.

It drives very significant volurnes of viewers
both for simulcast viewing and catchup and

is growing faster than the BBC iPlayer.
Long-form video requests continue to grow
strongly up 24% with over 1 billion requests
made in 2016. Online viewing consumption,
which rneasures how long viewers are
spending cnline, increased 42%.
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! Pictured left to right: Celebrity Juice is a celebrity
{ comedy programme inits 16th series on ITVZ;

i When Ant & Dec Met the Prince was watched by
i 77 million viewers and had a 28% SOV.

The ITV Hub also helps ITV reach valuable
younger audiences. Over 50% of the UK's
16-24 year old population are registered
users of the {TV Hub as younger audiences
increasingly use it for simulcast viewing as
well as catch up. Programmes such as ITV2’s
very successful Love Island, delivered record
VOD viewing via the [TV Hub.

The iTV Hub Is more thana catchup TV
service, In 2016, it featured previews and
premmieres, such as Marcella and The Secret,
as well as original commissions around the
European Football Championships. Looking to
2017, there will be more short and long-form
original content, including The V Room, The
Voice's switchover show as well as content
frorn AwesomenessTV, the global youth
brand we have formed a partnership with
for exclusive UK television and VOD rights.

We will also be using the insight we gain
from our 17 million registered users to
develop more targeted advertising on the
ITV Hub and to increasingly drive viewing
through personatisation.

ITV's strong advartising proposition
driven by our unique offering

While political and economic uncertainty has
led to more cautious behaviour by advertisers,
ITV’s unique ability to deliver mass audiences,
as well as more targeted demographics
across the family of channels and the ITV Hub,
has enabled us to again increase our SOB to
47.4%. In 2016 ITV delivered 99% of all
commercial audiences over five millionand
95% of all audiences over three million. SOV
provides an overall measure of viewing
performance, but because advertisers are
buying scale and breadth of audience, SOV

is not necessarily a direct indicatar of
advertising performance.

1TV Commerciat Audiences

Televisicn remains the most efficient and
effective advertising medium for advertisers
to achieve mass simultaneous reach and,

as viewing and advertising becomes more
fragmented, the scale of advertising that
television, and particularly ITV, delivers
becomes increasingly valuable, The cost

of advertising is similar to 2004 levels and,
compared to many other advertising media,
it remains good value, especially given the
reach and scate it delivers.

Maximising the value of our sirtime and
our brands

ITV is also focused on maximising the value
ofits airtime and driving new revenue
streams through sponsorship, interactivity
and branded content.ITV utilises the core
assets of its strong brand and reputation,
unique commercial relationships and quality
production capability to deliver a wide variety
of marketing solutions. We have developed
many innovative sponsorship and licensing
deals including: Aunt Bessies forrm A
Celebrity... Get Me Out Of Herel; Domino's
Pizza for The Voice and William Hill for ITV
Racing. We have also produced branded
content solutions with our new service

ITV AdVentures for a number of customers,
including Suzuki in Saturday Night Takeaway,
Matalan and | Am TeamGB.

Developing ITV's digital broadcast assets
Live television continues to demonstrate

a growing relevance as viewers increasingly
connect through social media. To drive
viewing and enhance engagement with our
content, we are further developing our social
media assets across our international
portfolio of programmes. We have 147
YouTube branded channels delivering over

14 billion views, 32 million Facebook
followers, 22 million Twitter followers and
28 programme apps including Love Island,
Dance, Dance, Dance, I'm A Celebrity... Get Me
Out Of Here!, horse racing and The Voice. Our
digital engagement has grown significantly
and in 2016 we received around 100 million
votes across our entertainment shows
primarily via our programme apps.

2017 and beyond

We remain committed to our integrated
producer broadcast model, and key to that

is maintaining the strength and scale of our
Broadcast & Online business. We have started
the year well with main channel SOV up 4%
and ITV family SOV up 3% for the first six
weeks of 2017,

As the viewing and advertising landscape
continues to fragment, the scale of our linear
audiences become increasingly valuable.and
we will also continue to drive significant and
growing value from our digital assets, most
significantly the ITV Hub.

We expect [TV NAR to be down 6% over
the first four months of 2017, impacted
by the current economic uncertainty,
although over the full year we expectto
again outperform our estimate of the
television advertising market.

Hodey djiniens I
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! Pictured: The Voice from Talpa Media, is one of the

biggest selling entertainment formats in the world.

{ Itis broadcastin mare than 180 countries with the

i

i format produced lacally in 63 countires.
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Strategic
Priority 2:

Grow an international
content business

Growing a scaled international content business is also
central to our strategy as an integrated producer
broadcaster. As ITV creates and owns more content,
our channels provide a platform to showcase our
programmes before distributing them across multiple
platforms in the UK and internationally.

@ See page 26 for more
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Strategic Priority 2 continued

Grawing global demand for cantent

The strong global demand for content

from broadcasters and platform owners
provides a significant opportunity for TV
Studios. We estimate that the global content
market is growing at about 5% per annum,
with some genres such as drama growirtg
more rapidly than others. To capitalise on this,
our strategy remains to develop, own and
manage content rights in genres that return
and travelinternationally — namely drama,
entertainment and factual entertainment.

As well as strong demand from broadcasters,
we are seeing significant demand from a
variety of OTT platforms who want library
and close-to-broadcast content rights as
well as ‘'digital first’ content.

Studios revenue growth £m
£1,395m

Studios adjusted EBITA growth fm
£243m
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Fast growing, international producer
of scale

Since 2010 we have almost doubled the
number of hours of content we produce.

In 2016 we produced around 7,800 hours
of content, through our 60 labels, supplying
over 234 channels in 10 countries. ITV is
becoming an increasingly scaled and
international business: we are the number
one commercial producer in the UK and a
leading producer in Europe and the US, with
50% of total Studios revenues coming from
outside the UK,

In 2016 {TV Studios total revenues grew 13%
to £1,395 million (2015: £1,237 million) and
adjusted EBITA increased 18% to £243 million
{2015: £206 million), driven by the acquisitions
we have made.

ITV Studios has three production divisions
1TV Studios UK, ITV America and ITV Rest
of World (RoW) and across these businesses,
TV agreed 228 new commissions and 188
recommissions in 2016.

The US and UK are the dominant creative
markets, with the US the largest exporter of
scripted content and the UK the world leader
for exported formats. Over the Last few years
we have buitt scale in these key markets,
organically and through acquisitions, and we
now have a significant portfolio of successful
series and formats that travel.

ITV Studios UK performed strongly with
overall revenues up 14% at £626 million
(2015: £547 million) and with good growth
insales to ITV and to other UK Broadcasters.
Our of f-ITV revenues have grown by 20% as
we have continued to strengthen and grow
the business. Our deliveries to other UK
broadcasters included Poldark, NW and
Witness for the Prosecution for the BBC,
The Jump and Come Dine with Me for
Channel 4, Hotel inspector for Channel 5
and Agatha Raisin for Sky.

Overall, we have seen 13% growth in revenues
to ITV with programmes such as Victoria, Cold
Feet, Tutankhamun, Saturday Night Take
Away, The Chase, The Next Great Magician
and I'm A Celebrity... Get Me Out Of Here! all
delivered in 2016. We have again grown ITV
Studios UK's share of original content
commissions on TV main channel to 63%.

ITV America's revenue was down year-on-year
by 27% to £235 million (2015: £320 million),
predominantly as a result of three shows we
hadin 2015 which have not returned in 2016.

They are Hell's Kitchen, which has been
commissioned for two series in 2017 and
Texas Rising and Best Time Ever, which are
not returning. We delivered the second series
of two US dramas, The Good Witch and
Aquarius. We have also benefited from the
delivery of a high volume of programmes
from our stable portfolic of unscripted series,
including Pawn Stars, American Restoration,
Alone, Rich Kids of Beverly Hills and First 48
and new commissions, including American
Grit, Killing Fields and Millionaire Matchmaker.

Across ITV Row, we have seen very significant
growth with revenues up 67% to £355 million
{2015: £213 miltion) driven by Talpa Media.
Our production bases in Australia, Germany,
France, the Netherlands and the Nordics
produce original content as well as local
versions of ITV Studios formats, We now
produce 14 different formats in three or
more of our production territories, for
example; Corme Dine With Me, The Chase,
The Voice from Talpa Media and Love Island.

Talpa Media is performing well and continues
to develop many new formats including
Dance, Dance, Dance, CannonBall and 5 Gold
Rings which are all seiting well. it has also had
the benefit of a four-year licensing
agreement for The Voice of China.

Acrass ITV Row, we have delivered a number
of new and returning commissions including
The Voice in the UK and USA, The Chase in
Australia, I'm A Celebrity... Get Me Out Of
Herelin Australia and Germany, Come Dine
With Me in Denmark, Sweden and Germany
and The Price of Beauty in Denmark and
Sweden. In Norway ITV has delivered its first
drama, Aber Bergen, with the second series
already commissicned. In Australia, ITV has
had a particularly successful year with a new
management team in place and now
produces for atl the major television channels.

Investing in content with

international appeal

To continue growing internationally we must
keep expanding our portfolio of successful
series and formats that return and can be
distributed globally. We have a strong mix of
programmes across genres and also across
their content life cycle, which balances our
risk and financial exposure. Since 20110 our
total hours produced has increased by 90%,
our drama hours have increased by 370%,
entertainment hours by 109% and factual
hours by 189%.
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Demand for drama is growing strongly, as
standout, original content becomes brand
defining for both broadcasters and OTT
players. To capitalise on this, we are looking
to expand our global scripted business and
develop a strong portfolio of international
and returning drama, particularly in the US.
We are strengthening our development and
creative capabilities internally and have
invested in a number of producer
development relationships — we now have
around 20 projects in development in the US
with broadcast networks, cable networks and
OTT platforms.

Recent successes include anumber of US
drama commissions which will deliver in 2017
- aten part drama Somewhere Between, for
ABC, Sun Records for TNT and a pilot for ABC,
Snowpiercer, through Tomorrow Studios.

With the acquisition of Talpa Media we have
significantly strengthened our capability in
entertainment and formats. Acrass cur
businesses we have grown a solid portfolio
of high volume and high margin forrmats that
travel internationally and which we produce
in many of our production bases. These
include The Voice, The Voice Kids, Pawn Stars,
Come Dine with Me, I'm A Celebrity... Get Me
Out Of Here!, Hell's Kitchen, Keeping the
Nation Alive, The Chase, 5 Gold Rings, This
Time Next Year, Big Star's Little Star and

Love Island.

Key new and
returning scripted
programmes

Key new and
returning
entertainment
programmes

Pictured left toright: Poldark has been sold to
around 90 countries; The Chase is aninternaticnally
popular gameshow. It is the biggest daytime
programme ir the UK and is produced by

{ ITV studios in five countries with 31 format
i sales since It launchedin 2009.

Investing in our digital

contant capabilities

Through building our digital assets and
content we are increasingly able to engage
with younger audiences.

While demand from traditional broadcasters
continues to be strong we are also seeing an
increasing demand from OTT platforms for
original long-form content, secondary rights
and short form digital content.

We are distributing more content to OTT
players through Global Entertainment as well
as co-producing and jointly commissioning a
number of programmes with OTT platforms.
We currently have over 200 programme
supply agreements in place with the major
OTT platforms, including co-producing
Robozuna, an original kids cartoon for Netflix
and Harlots, which we are co-producing for
Hulu inthe US and [TV Encore in the UK.

To further expand our digital assets we are
increasing our exposure to new types of
content, particularty youth focused
programming, and new types of distribution.
in 2016 we made aninvestment with Sky in
Ginx TV, an eSports channel for the UK and
international markets. We also agreed a
partnership with global youth content
company AwesomenessTV and made
rninority investments in two ‘digital first’
youth content studios in the US, New Form

and RocketJump, all of which helps to
improve [TV Studios content capability as well
as provide new programming for the ITV Hub.
This s as welt as our existing investments

in US digital content companies Believe
Entertainment Group and indigenous Media,

2017 and beyond

We have a strong international pipeline

of new and returning programmes and
brands. Our UK and US pipeline of scripted
programmes has never been stronger and we
have a very good slate of new entertainment
shows coming through this year. This gives us
confidence thatin 2017 we will deliver good
organic revenue growth and we have already
secured over £150 million more revenue than
at this point last year. However, with increased
investment, particularly in US scripted and the
reversal of the one-off benefit of the The
Voice of China in 2016, ITV Studios profits in
2017 are likely to be broadly in line with 2016.

ITV is now a global business and going
forward we aim to use our scale to grow
our market share and expand the number
of networks and OTT players we work with,
particularly in the US. We will further
strengthen our creative capability, both
organically and through partnerships and
acquisitions, as we continue to reduce our
reliance on the UK market.
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Pictured: Love Island is a reality programme produced by
TV Studios UK. It had huge success on-screen and online,
averaging 1.3 million viewers on (TV2 across the series
and around 1 million requests on the ITY Hub per episode.
64% of the linear audience were 16-34s. Internationally,
Love Island has been broadcast in 15 countries with the
format being produced by ITV Studios in three countries.
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Strategic
Priority 3:

Build a global pay and
distribution business

The environment in which we operate is constantly
evolving and we are seeing significant changes in
digital media and consumer behaviour.

ITV, as a creator, owner and distributor of sought
after content, is well positioned to take advantage
of the opportunities that arise from these changes as
we seek to further monetise our content.

ITV continues to explore and trial new ways, both free
and pay, to distribute content to broadcasters and
platform owners as well as directly to consumers.

® See page 30 for more
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Strategic Priority 3 continued

Building our pay offering in the UK

and internationally

As we look to build our pay offerings we

are developing a range of SVOD services

to target direct to consumer pay revenues.
We have recently announced the creation
of ajoint venture with the BBC, through 88C
Worldwide, to create BritBox US, an ad-free
SVOD service offering unrivalled content from
both broadcasters. ITV already has a strong
advertising VOD propositionin the ITV Hub
but the launch of BritBox gives us access to
the fast growing $VOD market in the US.

BritBox US, which s a direct to consumer
service, willlaunch in the first hatf of 2017
with the most comprehensive SVOD
collection of British content available in the
US. The service will feature drama premieres
never seen before in the US, a selection of
soaps and series that will be available

24 hours after their UK broadcast,and a
collection of British ctassics. ITV and BBC
each have a 40.5% voting share, while US
cable network AMC has a 19% non-voting
minority interest.

Qver the last few years we have also
established a number of smaller pay
propositions. We now own a controlling

stake in Cirkus, a best of British SVOD service
in Sweden, Norway, Finland and Iceland which
will shortly launchin Gerrnany on Amazon.
Cirkus has developed a second SVOD service,
Curio, due to launchin Norway in 2017, which
is focused on high-quality documentaries.
We have also set up {TV Essentials, an online
service for expats available In 13 countries
and TV Choice, a general entertainment
channel for emerging markets available

in 100 countries,

We are continuing to develop ITV Hubs+, cur
ad-free subscription version of ITV Hub, In
2017 we will roll out ITV Hub+ onto more
platforms and we have already added new
functionality, such as download oni05
devices for off-line viewing.

Locking ahead it is our intention to roll out our
best of British SVOD services internationally
through BritBox and our other SVOD services,
taking advantage of the significant global
demand for UK content and changing

viewing habits,

Further developing our pay revenues
ITV's pay revenues again grew strongly as we
continue to earn revenue from pay television
through licensing our channels and content
across multiple platforms.

In the UK our pay business includes deals with
Sky and Virgin for our HD digital channels and
catch-up VOD, ITV Encore for Sky and a deal
to make ITV's content available through Sky's
connected platforms. We also agreed a new
deal with Vodafone to carry ITV's free-to-air
(FTA) channels and VOD for their customers,
as well as with TV Player to carry ITV's

FTA channels.

Expanding our global distribution network
Global Entertainment, the distribution arm
within ITV Studios, delivered revenue growth
of 14% to £179 million in 2016 (2015: £157
million) as we continue to drive value from
the investment we have made in creating

and owning rights to quality content with
international appeal. Excluding the benefit

of foreign exchange, Global Entertainment
grew 6% to £166 million.

Global Entertainment revenue growth £m
£179m

ITv’s distribution business has over 40,000
hours of television and film content that we
distribute globally to over 3,500 broadcasters
and platforms. In 2076 we continued to
enhance our distribution network, benefiting
from TV Studios’ continued growth,
increased rights ownership both within ITV
Studios and with third parties and strong
network relationships, selling to around 190
countries around the world, Through our
ongoing investment in ITV Studios, we are
building an extensive and balanced portfolio
of scripted and unscripted programmes in
the key genres of drama, entertainment

and factual entertainment. We are using our
strong cash flows not only to fund and create
new content from 1TV Studios, but also to
invest in third-party producers and their
content from alt over the world, such as
Harlots and Schitt's Creek.
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Our scripted programmes such as Victoria,
Poldark, Endeavour, Vera and The Good Witch,
are all selling to over 150 countries. Our
entertainment and factual entertainment
programmes also continue to sell well,
including titles such as Come Dine With Me,
The Voice, The Voice Kids, The Chase, Hell's
Kitchen, Autopsy and River Monsters.

In 2016 we sold 80 different formats around
the world, 24 of which were produced by
ourselves or other producersin three or
more countries.

We are increasingly doing multi-year and
multi territory deals with OTT platforms
including Netflix, Amazon, Hulu and a range
of smaller platforms. As well as library deals,
we are distributing close-to-broadcast or first
broadcast rights to these OTT platforms
across territories. We currently have over 200
content supply agreements in place, including
Thunderbirds Are Gol series one and two for
Amazon in the UK, US, Germany and India, as
well as The Good Witch, Mr Selfridge and
Poldark for Netflix.

We are also co-producing and jointly
commissioning a number of programmes
with OTT platforms, inciuding Robozuna
for Netflix and Harlots for Hulu.

Pictured left to right: Big Star'sLittle Staris a
primetime entertainment programme on ITV.
The format is selting well internationally with six
format sales in 20116; Endeavour is a detective
based drama produced by Mammoth Screen,

it has been sold to 180 countries internationally.

Retransmission fees

We are continuing to drive the debate around
the implementation of retransmission fees

in the UK to ensure that we are fairly
compensated for our investment in content
for the main channel when it is carried on pay
TV platforms. We see the publication of the
Digital Economy Bill proposing the repeal of
Section 73 as an important step forward in
achieving retransmission fees.

2017 and beyond

As we continue to rebalance ITV and
diversify our revenue streams, we are
further developing our pay and distribution
business to drive more value from our
investment in content and refiecting the
changes In the way people are consuming
content. We are exploring new ways

i Picturedright: Thunderbirds Are Go! has been
¢ sold to over 100 countries which includes a
¢ pan-territory deal with Amazon.

to package and sell our content to take
advantage of demand for quality content in
the UK and internationally from consumers,
broadcasters and platform owners.

A particular focus for 2017 will be the

launch of BritBox US and in time we will

look to further roll out our SVOD services
internationally as we cantinue to expilore even
more ways to drive value from our content.

N
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Performance Dashboard

Demnonstrating continued progress against our strategic priorities.

Key )
Performance This section focuses on the results and performance of the Group. * Adjusted EBITA
Indicators On the following pages you will find disclosures explaining the i Adjusted EPS .
Group’s results for the year, segmental information, exceptional { - Profitto cash conversion

across all /] items, taxation and earnings per share, i - Non-NAR revenue
three { « Employee engagement
priorities
Strategic priority 2016 performance

+ Share of broadcast up to 47.4% In 2016
1 - ITV main channelup 3% and ITV Family SOV up 1%

+ [TV delivered 39% of commercial audiences over five million and 95% of audiences
Maximise audience over three million
and revenue share from » Delivered most watched soap, factual programme and sporting event
free-to-air broadcast - Aired seven of the top ten new dramas
and VOD business - ITV2andiTV3 largest digitat channels in the UK

.

Long-form video requests up 24% and online viewing up 42% on the ITV Hub

Over 23 million downloads of ITV Hub app and 17 million registered users, including over 50%
of 16 to 24 year olds

Significant digital engagement with around 100 million votes across our big entertainment
shows primarily via our programme apps

2

Grow an international
content business

ITV Studios again delivered good growth with total revenue up 13% including acquisitions

« Produced and delivered around 7,800 hours of original content, almost double since 2010

ITV Studios' share of ITV main channel output increased to 63%
20% growth in Off-ITV production revenue in the UK
Continued investment in creative pipeline with 228 new commissions and 188 recommissions

= 50% of ITV Studios total revenue generated outside the UK

A topindie producer in Europe and the US
Co-producing and jointly commissioning a number of programmes with OTT platforms

- Selective investments in ‘digital first' content businesses including New Form, RocketJump

and Ginx

3

Build a global pay and
distribution business

« Announced new joint venture with the BBC, BritBox, our SVOD service in the US
= Cirkus expanded to Germany on Amazon
- ITV Essentials and ITV Choice SVOD platforms continue to deliver our content to expats

and emerging markets
Development of the ITV Hub+, ITV's ad-free subscription version of the ITV Hub
Aleading European distributor of content with over 40,000 hours of content

- Strong drama content including Victoria, Poldark, Endeavour and The Good Witch all selling

to over 100 countries

» 80 different formats sold around the world, including 24 formats made in three or more

countties, 1 of which are produced by [TV Studios in three or more countries

Multi territory and multi year content deals with OTT platforms, with over 200 programme
supply agreements in place
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! Pictured left to right: 24 Hours in ARE is a medical

i documentary produced by The Garden, part of

i ITV Studios UK, for Channel 4 and s inits eleventh series;
i Grantchesteris a returning drama for ITV averaging

i Z1imiltion viewers across series two In 2016,

Focus for 2017

Key Performance Indicators

- Continue to strengthen on-screen viewing in key demographics

Further invest in our content, channels and brands to maintain our unique scale

Grow our share of total television and VOD advertising

Continue to maximise the value of our programme brands through sponsorship,

interactivity and brand extensions

Further invest in the quality and distribution of the ITV Hub to drive valuable
online audiences

Develop new and more targeted advertising opportunities

Enhance engagerment with our shows online with social media

and programme apps

Further expand our digital assets and capabilities to increase our exposure
to youth focused content and distribution

= ITV Family SOV

« [TV Family SOCI

« [TV Family share of broadcast

« Percentage of commercial audiences
over three million and over five miltion

- Total long-formvideo requests

@See page 20 for more on
Strategic Priority 1

Build further scale internationally

Continue to develop intellectual property in key creative markets to expioit
growing worldwide demand

Build a pipeline of programmes across key genres, particularly scripted
Develop more 16 to 24 focused content

Attract and retain key creative talent

Continue to look at acquisitions, investments and talent deals

= Number of new commissions for ITV Studios
«» Percentage of ITV output from ITV Studios

@ See page 24 for more on
Strategic Priority 2

Modey sinens |

Launch of BritBoxin the US

= Focus an the further roll out of BritBox internationally
Launch Curio SVOD service in Norway

« Further enhance the capabilities and distribution of ITV Hub+
Continue to trial direct to consumer pay opportunities

Further grow our international distribution network with high-quality content

- Maximise the use of our strong cash flows to finance the production of
high-profile dramas that return and travel internationally

« Invest in developing third-party distribution deals
Secure retransmission fees in the medium term

= Total long-form video requests
= Number of new commissions for iTV Studios

@ See page 28 for more oh
Strategic Prority 3
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Alternative Performance Measures

The Strategic Report includes both statutory and adjusted measures,the latter of
which, in management's view, reflects the underlying performance of the business
and provides a more meaningful comparison of how the business is managed and
measured on a day-to-day basis.

Our APMs and KPIs are aligned to our strategy and together are used to measure the performance of our business and form the basis of the
performance measures for remuneration.

Adjusted results exclude
certain itams bacause if
included, thess items could
distort the understanding of
our parformance for the year
and the comparability
batween periods.

Key adjustments for Adjusted EBITA, profit before taxand EPS

Adjusted EBITA is calculated by adding back exceptional items and high end production tax credits to
EBITA. Further adjustments, which include amortisation of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations and net financing costs, are made to remove their effect from adjusted profit before tax
and EPS. The tax effect of all these adjustments is reflected to calculate an adjusted tax charge. These
adjustments are detailed below.

Production
taxcredits

The ability to access tax credits, which are rebates based on production spend, is
fundamental to our Studios business when assessing the viability of investrnent in
green-lighting declisions, espedally with regards to high-end drama. ITV reports tax
credits generated in the US and other countries (e.g. Ireland, Hungary, Canada and
South Africa) within cost of sales, whereas in the UK tax credits for high-end drama
must be classified as a corporation tax item. However, in our view all tax credits relate
directty to the production of programines. Therefore to align treatment, regardless
of production location, and to reflect the way the business is managed and measured
oh a day-to-day basis, these are recognised in adjusted EBITA.

Exceptional
hems

This inctudes acquisition related costs {further detail betow), reorganisation and
restructuring costs, non-recurring legal costs, gains or losses on disposal of hon-core
assets and impairment of intangible assets. These items are excluded to reflect
performance in a consistent manner and are in line with how the business is
managed and measured on a day-to-day basis, They are typically gains or losses
arising from events that are not considered part of the core operations of the
business or are considered to be one-off in nature. We also adjust for the tax

effect of these items. Note 2.2 includes further detail on exceptional items.

Acquisition related costs

We structure our acquisitions with earnouts or put and call options, to allow part of the

consideration to be based on the future performance of the business as well as lock in

creative talent. Where consideration paid or contingent consideration payable in the

future is employment linked, it is treated as an expense (under accounting rules) and ‘
therefore on a statutory basis is part of our reported results. However, we exclude all ‘
consideration of this type from adjusted profit after tax and adjusted EPS as, in our

view, these items are part of the capital transaction. Page 44 of the Financial and

Perfarmance Review explains this further.

Restructuring and reorganisation costs

These arise from Group-wide initiatives to reduce the ongoing cost base and improve
efficiency in the business. They are non-recurring costs and because of their size and
nature, are excluded from our adjusted measures,

Amortisation
and
impairment
of intangible
assets

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations is not included within adjusted earnings. As these costs are acquisition-
related, and in line with our treatment of other acquisition-related costs, we consider
them to be capital in nature and they do not reflect the underlying trading performance
of the Group. Amortisation of software licences and development is included within
our adjusted results as management consider these assets to be core to supporting
the operations of the business.

Net financing
costs

Net financing costs are adjusted to reflect the underlying cash cost of interest for the
business providing a more meaningful comparison of how the business is managed and
funded on a day-to-day basis. The adjustments made remove the impact of mark-to-
market on swaps and foreign exchange, imputed pension interest and other financial
gains and losses, which do not reflect the relevant interest cash cost to the business.

A full reconciliation between our adjusted and statutory results is provided on the .
following page.
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Reconciliation between statutory and adjusted results

yodey 3jbeayung |

2016 2016 2016 2075 2015 2015
Twelvemonths to Statutory Adjustments Adjusted Statutory Adjustments Adjusted
31December - on a continuing basis £m £m £m £m £m £m
EBITA" 857 28 885 B42 23 865
Exceptional itemns {operating)? (164) 164 - (109) 109 -
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets? (89) 77 {12) (67) 58 (9)
Operating profit 604 269 873 666 190 856
Net financing costs* {51) 25 {26) (31) 18 {13}
Gain on sale of non-current assets and subsidiaries
{non-operating exceptional items) - - - 6 (6) -
Profit before tax 553 294 847 641 202 B43
Taxs {100} (60} (160} {135) (38) (177)
Profit after tax 453 234 687 502 164 666
Non-controlling interests (4) - (&) {7} - (7)
Loss from discontinuing operations {net of tax) (U] 1 - - - -
Earnings 448 235 683 495 164 659
Shares (million), weighted average 4,010 - 4,010 4,006 - 4,006
EPS {p) M.2p 17.0p 12.4p 16.5p

1. £28miltion adjustment relates to production tax credits which we consider to be a contribution to production costs and working capital in nature rather than a corporate tax item.

2. Exceptional [tems Llargely relate to acquisition costs, primarily employment Linked consideration, as well as restructuring costs and pension curtaiiment cost.

3. £77 million adjustment relates to amortisation on acquisition related Intanglble assets. We include only amortisation on purchased intangibles such as software within adjusted PET,
4. £25million adjustment Is primarlly for non-cash Interest cost. This provides a more meaningful comparison of how the business is managed and funded on a day-to-day basis.

5. Tax adjustments are the tax effects of the adjustments made to reconcile PBT and adjusted PBT.

Other alternative Performance Measures

Total revenue Adjusted net debt

As anintegrated producer broadcaster, we look at the totat revenue Net debt (as defined in Note 4:1}is adjusted for all our financial
generated in the business which includes internal revenue, whichisthe  commitments. This better reflects how credit rating agencies ook at
sale of ITV Studios programmes to Broadcast & Online. Our broadcast  our balance sheet. A reconciliation between net debt and adjusted net

channels are a significant customer for ITV Studios and seiling debt is provided below.
programmes tc Broadcast & Online is an important part of our
strategy as it ensures we own all the rights. 2016 2015
Twelve months to 31 Decermber £m £m
A reconciliation between external revenue and total revenue is Net debt (637) (319)
provided below. Expected contingent payments on
acqguisitions (328) (303)
2016 2015 Net pension deficit (328) (176)
Twelve months to 21 December £m £m -
External revenue (Reported) 3,064 2972 OP_E rating leases (344) (346)
Internal supply 463 prr Adjusted net debt {1,637) {1,144)
Total revenue (Adjusted) 3527 3383 Adjusted net debt to adjusted EBITDA 1.8x 1.3x
Reported net debt to adjusted EBITDA 0.7x 0.4x%
Net pension deficit

This is our defined benefit pension deficit under 1AS 19 adjusted for other pension assets, mainly gilts, over which the pension scheme
holds a charge, held by the Group as security for future unfunded pension payments of four former Granada executives.
A full reconciliation is included within Note 3.7.

Profit to cash conversion

This is our measure of cash generation used for working capital management, It is calculated as adjusted cash flow as a proportion of
adjusted EBITA. Profit to cash conversion is based on adjusted measures to reflect the cash generation of our underlying business after
operating capex, excluding the effect of exceptional items, non-cash expenses such as depreciation and share based payments.
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Key Performance Indicators

We have defined our KPIs to align our performance
and accountability to our strategy.

Thase KPis are the key ,
maasures of success and 2 | Adjusted Definition N )
cover all three strategic B EBITA Thisis the key profitability measure used across the whole business.
H Earnings before interest, tax and amortisation (EBITA) is befare exceptional
priorities. Our KPis have n, '
not changed over the yaar. [} items and has been adjusted toinclude the benefit of production tax credits.
It reflects our performance in a consistent manner and in line with how the
Our strategic priorities business is managed and measured on a day-to-day basis.
Maximise audience
and revenue share from
free-ta-air broadcast and
vOD bu5|-ness ) Adju Ste d Definition
Grow aninternational EPS Adjusted EPS represents the adjusted profit for the year attributable to
content business equity shareholders. Adjusted profit is defined as profit for the year
Build a global pay and attributable to equity sharehalders befare exceptional items, impairment of
distribution business intangible assets, amortisation of intangible assets acquired through

business combinations, net financing cost adjustments and tax adjustments
relating to these items. It reflects the business performance of the Group in
a consistent manner and in line with how the business is managed and
measured on a day-to-day basis.

Profit Dafinition
to cash Profit to cash conversicn represents the proportion of adjusted EBITA
. converted into a measure of adjusted cash flow (defined as cash generated
conversion from operations before exceptional items less cash related to the
acquisition of operating property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets).

This primarily reflects the effectiveness of our working capital management
and capital expenditure control. Our aim is to keep profit to cash conversion
as high as possible,

Non-NAR Definition
revenue Non-NAR reflects all ITV revenue, bothinternal and external, except NAR

(spot advertising revenues). Online, Pay, Interactive, Sponsorship, SDN and
ITV Studios revenues are all Included within Non-NAR, with the key drivers of
growth being Online, Pay and ITV Studios.

Growing non-NAR is key to the strategy as we aim to rebalance the business
away fromn our reliance on television advertising revenue.

Employee Definition _ . -
engagement Continuing to develop a creative, commercial and global organisation

requires high-quatity employees who are engaged in the work that they do,
and are committed to the strategy.

YenuRu-UoN |

Employee engagernent measures pride in the work we do, pride in working
for ITV and also what we say about our programmes and services.
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Our strategic priorities
Maxirmising
Growing
Building

Purformance

In 2016 adjusted EBITA increased by £20 million or 2% as a

result of a 3% increase in total external revenue and our continued focus on costs.
Revenue growth was primarily a result of a 23% increase in high margin Online, Pay &
Interactive revenues and a 13% increase in ITV Studios revenue driven by acquisitions,
the UK business and Global Entertainment. This was partially offset by a decline in
NAR of 3%.

Group EBITA margin remained flat at 29%.

Performance

Adjusted EPS Increased by 3% from 16.5p to 17.0p. This is higher than the
corresponding increase in adjusted EBITA of 2% as a result of a lower adjusted
effective tax rate in the year of 19% (2015: 21%).

Performance

Profit to cash has increased in the year to 97% and reflects our continued tight
management of working capital balances and our disciplined approach to cashand
costs.

Performance

Non-NAR revenue increased by 11% In 2016 as we continue to rebalance the business
away from a reliance on NAR. We delivered strong growth in ITV Studios revenues and
in Online and Pay revenues. Non-NAR revenues were 53% of total revenue which has
increased significantly since 2009 when it was 40%.

Performance
Employee engagement was once again high at 90% which is above the benchmark
score for companies of a similar size and nature to ours of 83%. The participation rate

was 80%.
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Key Performance Indicators continued

ABojeays

ITV Family
Share of
viewing

Dafinition

To help deliver Strategic Priority 1 through maintaining a strong and healthy Broadcast & Online
business, ITV Family SOV is a key indicator of this, ITv Family SOV is the total viewing audience over
the year achieved by ITV's Family of channels as a proportion of total television viewing, including
the BBC Family. ITV aims at least to maintain the ITV Family SOV.

ITV Family Share of
commercial impacts

Dafinition

Part of delivering Strategic Priority 't and maintaining our position as a leading cormmercial
broadcaster is to have a strong ITV Family share of commercial impacts (SOCI). SOC! is the trading
currency in the television advertising market, and since it only covers commercial television it does
not include the BBC. This is the share of total UK television commercial impacts which is delivered
by ITV's family of channels. Animpact is one viewer watching one 30 second commercial. We aim
to maxirnise our 50CI. SOCi provides an overall measure of viewing performance, however because
advertisers are buying scale and breadth of audience, 50C1is not necessarily a direct indicator of
advertising performance.

ITV Family Share
of broadcast

Defnitlon

ITV's share of UK television spot advertising revenue is known as its share of broadcast.

To maximise revenue from our free-to-air business, which is a key component of Strategic
Priority 1, we aim to continue to maximise our share of broadcast and to outperform the UK
television advertising market.

It isincreasingly difficult to measure the total television advertising market as all broadcasters
have different definitions and include other sources of revenue, such as sponsorship and VOD in
their estimates of television advertising. Our 50B has zlways been based on cur estimate of the
pure spot advertising market, excluding sponsorship, VOD and for 2016 going forward, we also
exclude all broadcaster’s self promotion revenues on their own channels because this year has
seen asignificant increase which further distorts the external spot market.

Total long-form
video requests

Definition
Akey part of our strategy is to maximise audience share from our free-to-air broadcast and
increasingly from our VOD business.

Long-forrn video requests is a measure of the total number of our videos requested across all
platforms onwhich the ITV Hub is available and therefare provides a key measure of how much
of our content is being viewed ontine. A long-form video is a programme that has been broadcast
on television and is available to watch online and on demand in its entirety.

Number of new
commissions for
ITV Studios

Definition

To deliver Strategic Priority 2 tracking the performance of the creative renewal pipeline and the
number of new commissions won is a key indicator. This figure includes programmes shown both
on [TV and on ather broadcasters, and both in the UK and internationatty.

Percentage of
ITV* output from
ITV Studios

* ITVmain channel only.

Definition

As anintegrated producer broadcaster, part of our strategy is to use our broadcast channels as a
platform for [TV Studios content where we aim to make them famous and then sell them around
the world.

The proportien of the total spend on original comimissions on ITV transmitted in the year, delivered
by ITV Studios demonstrates this and our aim is to increase ITV Studios’ supply of programmes to
ITV to allow us to deliver against alt three of our Strategic Priorities.

j——
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Our stratagic priorities
Maximising
Growing

Building

Performance

[TV Family SOV grew 1% in 2016 to 21.4%. Within this, the ITV main channel saw

an increase of 3% benefiting from the Six Nations Rugby Championships and the
European Football Championships along with strong performances in Drama,
Entertainment and Daytime. The digital channels were down 4% in the year mainly
across ITV3 and ITV4, ITV2 viewing amongst 16-34s continues to grow, up 25% in the
year and it remains the most popular digital channel in the UK based on SOV.

ITV also continues to deliver mass audiences and in 20116 delivered 99% of all
commercial audiences over five million and 95% over three million,

Performance

ITV Family SOCI declined by 1%, with the main channel up 3%. The digital channels SOCI
was down 6% and was impacted by the launch of a number of new free-to-air digital
channels at the end of 2015 and first half of 2016. In addition, ITV2 is now more
targeted towards younger viewers with SOCI arnongst 16-34s up 24% in the year,

Performance

in 2016 we gained market share again, increasing our share of broadcast to 47.4%
which includes UTV and excludes self promotion by alil broadcasters. 2015 share of
broadcast exciuding seif promotion, would have been 46.8% rather than 46.1%.

We have again gained share as a result of our unigue ability to deliver mass audiences
across the key demographics to our advertisers and mare targeted demaographics on
our digital channels, as well as the benefit of UTV.

Performance

Long-form video requests were up 24% in 2016 to 1,025 million views supported by our
continued investment and focus on the ITV Hub, mobile apps and simulcast offering.
Online consumption, which is the measure of how long viewers are spending onling, is
an important indicator of online performance and this increased by 42% in 2016.

Performance

There was strang growth in the number of new commissions for ITV Studios in 2016,
up 37% to 228. 102 of these new commissions have come from the UK business, with
the remaining 126 coming from our international businesses.

We continue to invest in our creative pipeline building on our existing portfolio of
programmes and formats. We are particularly focused on the genres that can return
and travel, namely drama, entertainment and factual entertainment.

Parformance

The percentage of ITV output from ITV Studios increased to 63% in 2016 driven
by new dramas in the year. Many of these ITV Studios programmes broadcast in
2016 have now been distributed around the world including Victoria, Cold Feet,

Thunderbirds Are Gol, The Chase and I'm A Celebrity... Get Me Out Of Herel

wodey 3jEsynns |
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Financial and Performance Review

The benefit of rebalancing the business is evident in these results with
growth in non-NAR revenue delivering a good performance and making

{TV a more resilient business.

66

We continue to be highly
cash generative which,
together with our ongoing
focus on costs, places usin

a strong position to continue
to invest in opportunities

to grow the business and
deliver sustainable returns
to shareholders

' The strategy we set out a number of years ago was to rebalance

the business and reduce our reliance on spot advertising. This
strategy is the right strategy for ITV and the progress we have
made s clearly evident In our performance for 2016, delivering
3% external revenue growth and 3% increase in adjusted EPS, in
a year where spot advertising revenue declined 3%. We continue
to be highly cash generative which, together with our ongoing
focus on costs, places us in a strong position to continue to
invest in opportunities to grow the business and deliver

returns to shareholders.

Twelve months to 31December-ocna 216 2015 Change Change
continuing basis £m £m £m %
NAR 1,672 1,719 (47} (3)
Total non-NAR 1,855 1,664 191 1
Total revenue 3,527 3,383 144 4
internal supply (463) {al1) 52 13
Group external revenue 3,064 2972 92 3
Adjusted EBITA 885 865 20 2

Group adjusted EBITA margin 29% 29%

Adjusted EPS 170p 165p Q.5p 3
Adjusted diluted EPS 17.0p 16.3p 0.7p 4
Dividend per share 7.2p 6.0p 1.2p 20
Special dividend 5p 10p - -

Net debt as at 31 December {637) {319) {318) -

The statutory profit before tax and EPS from the Consolidated
Income Statement is below. A full reconciliation between cur
statutory and reported results is included in the Alternative
Performance Measures section.

2016 2015 Change Change
Twelve months to 31 December £m £m £0m %
Profit before tax . 553 ea (89 (14
EPS M2p R4p  (12p (10
Diluted EPS Mnip 123p (1.2)p (10)

13n Griffiths
Group Finance Director

40

Total ITV revenue increased 4% to £3,527 million (2015: £3,383 million),
with external revenue up 3% at £3,064 million (2015: £2,972 million).
NAR declined by 3% to £1,672 million (2015; £1,719 million) offset by

a 1% growth in non-NAR revenue to £1,855 million (2015: £1,664
million). Non-NAR now accounts for 53% (2015: 49%) of total revenue.

Growth in high margin Online, Pay & Interactive revenue combined with
the growth iniTV Studios and our continued focus on costs, delivered a
2% increase in adjusted EBITA to £885 million (2015: £865 million) with
the adjusted EBITA rnargin maintained at 29%. Adjusted £PS grew 3%
1o 17.0p (2015: 16.5p) while statutory EPS declined by 10% to 11.2p
(2015: 12.4p). Statutory EPS declined due to higher exceptional costs,
principally employment linked consideration for our acquisitions
(primarily Talpa Media) which is included within reported eamings.

In addition there were higher restructuring costs associated with

our 2017 cost savings and higher amortisation of acquired intangible
assets as a result of owning Talpa Media for a full 72 months. These
adjustments are explained aver the fallowing pages.
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We remain focused on batance sheet efficiency and working capital
management. Our profit to cash ratio remained strong at 97% and

we ended the period with net debt of £637 million (31 December 2015:
net debt of £319 million) after the acquisition of UTV, the ordinary and
special dividend payments and pension deficit contributions.
Increasing net debt is in line with our objective of gradually increasing
our balance sheet leverage over time whilst maintaining the financial
flexibility to continue to invest in the business.

Cost management remains a key priority and we are on track to
deliver the previously announced £25 million reduction in overheads in
2017 across the business. This together with our strong batance sheet,
our clear strategy and a more balanced business gives us the flexibility
to meet the opportunities and challenges ahead.

Broadcast & Online revenue tracker

Adjusted EBITA tracker
Against a backdrop of uncertainty created by the EU referendum,
ITV Family NAR decreased by 3% to £1,672 million (including UTV}
(2015: 1,719 million). This decline was less than the decline in our
estimate of the television advertising market which excludes
broadcaster's self-promotion, sponsorship and VOD revenue, and
therefore we again took market share to increase our SOB to 474%.
Despite the overall fall in NAR we have seen a number of categories
hold or increase spend year-on-year, such as Entertainment & Leisure,
with increased bookmakers spend around the European Football
Championship, Cars, Cosmetics and Toltetries, and Publishing and
Broadcasting. Digital brands continue to spend on television to build
brand awareness. Retail, Finance and Food have seen declines with
supermarkets and traditional banking decreasing spend across the
year. Excluding supermarkets, Retail was up 4% year-on-year.
2016 advertising category analysis

Broadcast & Online ® Retail 20%

Twelve months to 31 December - ona 2016 2015 Change Change ® Entertainment & Leisure 10%

continuing basls £m £m £m % ® Finance 9%

NAR 1672 1719 “7) (3) eFooda%

Online, Pay & Interactive ® Cosmetics & Toiletries 7%

revenue 231 188 43 23 & Cars & Car Dealers 6%

SDN external revenue 67 64 3 5 e puyblishing & Broadcasting 6%

Other commercial income 162 175 (13) {7) @ Airlines, Travel & Holidays 5%

Broadcast & Online ® Telecommunlcatlons &%

non-NAR revenue 460 427 33 8 @ Household Stores £%

Total Broadcast & Online ® Other 21%

revenue 2132 2146 (14) e ausae s resa s ansr e ereee RS RRR ARt e -

Total schedule costs (1,050) (1,045) (5) -

Other costs {440) (442) 2 -

Total Broadcast & Online

adjusted EBITA 642 659 {17) (3}

Adjusted EBITA margin 30% 31%

Broadcast & Online revenue declined by 1% to £2,132 million (2015:
£2146 million) with the decrease in NAR largely offset by strong
growth in Online, Pay & Interactive.

i
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Financial and Performance Review continued

As expected, the phasing of NAR was different in 2016 reflecting the
timing of major sporting events and a backdrop of uncertainty driven
by the EU referendum. The first and second quarter were both flat
with strong comparatives in Q1 2015, with a weaker April and May
being offset by a strong June as a result of the Euro Football
Championships, The third quarter was down 4% impacted by the
Rugby World Cup comparatives in 2015 with the fourth quarter down
6% as increased political and economic uncettainty caused advertisers
to behave more cautiousty.

Looking to 2017 we expect the first four months to the end of April to
be down around 6% and as ever the phasing of NAR will be different
across the year, Over the full year we again expect te outperform the
television advertising market.

On-screen we performed strongly with ITV Family SOV up 1% and

a 3% increase in ITV main channel SOV. Going forward we remain
focused on our viewing performance and continuing to detiver both
mass audiences and key demographics which are highly demanded
by advertisers.

Online, Pay & Interactive revenue continued to show strong growth,
up 23% to £231million (2015: £188 million) reflecting further growth in
both our online advertising and pay businesses. Audience demand for
VOD remains strong as does the dermand for online advertising, which
supported by our strong on-screen proposition, helped drive a 24%
increase in long-form video requests and a 42% increase in
consumption on our OTT service the ITV Hub. Interactive revenue

was broadly flat, with daytime competitions and entertainment
programmes performing well.

As we continue to build our digital business we will be launching our
SVOD service BritBox in the US in the first half of 2017, The service is
ajoint venture with the BBC to provide the Best of British content to
subscribers, BritBox US is expected to break even within a couple of
years. [TV's share of total joint venture losses/profits will be
recognised within results from Jvs and Associates.

SDN external revenue, whichis generated from licence sales for DTT
Multiplex A, increased 5% to £67 million (2015: £64 million). This was
driven by the full year impact of the 15th strearmn which was launched
in August 2015 and the 16th stream launched in May 2016.

Other commercial income includes revenue from programme
sponsorship, media sales, which relates to commission earned by ITV
on sales of airtime for the non-consolidated licensees {UTV until
acquisition and STV), as well as revenue from these licensees for ITV
content. Other commercial income was down year-on-year at £162
million (2015: £175 million) as a result of a reduction in airtime sales
commission and revenue from UTV following ITV's acquisition of the
business in Februaty 2016.

Schedule costs were broadly flat year-on-year at £1,050 million (2015:
£1,045 million) with higher spend on drama offset by lower spend on
sports rights with the absence of the Champions League. Looking into
2017 we expect our total annual programming budget to be around
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£1,025 million which inctudes the previously announced £25m
reduction as there is no major sporting event. We expect the
programime budget to be weighted to the first half of 2077 driven by
the timing of spend on entertainment and drarma programmes and
will be broadly flat year-on-year for the first half.

Other costs in Broadcast were flat year-on-year as we continue to
maintain a tight control on costs across the business.

Overall Broadcast & Online adjusted EBITA was down 3% at £642
million (2015: £659 million) with the strong growthin Online, Pay &
Interactive more than offset by the decline in the advertising market.
This has led to a 1% reduction in the adjusted EBITA margin to 30%
(2015: 31%).

ITV Studios

2016 2015 Change Change
Twelve months to 31 December £m £m £m %
Studios UK 626 547 79 14
ITV America 235 320 {85) (27}
Studios Row 355 213 142 67
Global Entertainment 179 157 22 14
Total Studios revenue 1,395 1,237 158 13
Total Studios costs {1,152y (1,0310) (121) (12
Total Studios adjusted
EBITA* 243 206 37 18
Studios adjusted EBITA margin_ 17% 17%
*Includes the benefit of production tax credits.

2016 205 Change Change
Tweive months to 31 December £m £m £m %
Sales from [TV Studios
to Broadcast & Online 463 41 52 13
External revenue 932 826 106 13
Total Studios revenue 1395 1237 158 13

ITV Studios total revenue grew strongly up 13% to £1,395 million (2015:
£1,237 million) driven by Studios UK, Global Entertainment and our
acquisitions, as we continue te build scale in creative content markets
and strengthen our international portfolio of programmes that return
and travel. Total organic revenue, which excdudes our current and pricr
year acquisitions, was down 3%, and excluding foreign exchange
movements as well, it was down 7%, This was primarily due toITV
America beingimpacted by two large shows not returning and the
timing of one of our key shows. Good performances by the UK and
Global Entertainment helped offset some of this organic decline. Our
results include a full 12 months of our prior year acquisitions, Twofour
Group, Mammoth Screen and Talpa Media all of which have delivered
key programmes during the year.

It is in the nature of our business that not all programmes will return
for another series and the timing of programme deliveries will vary.
However, since 2070 [TV Studios has shown good arganic growth
(excluding all currency and all acquisitions) at 4% compound annual
growth rate.
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Reflecting our growth and increasing scale in key production markets
in Europe and the US, 50% of ITV Studios total revenue in 2016 was
generated outside the UK. As our Studios business grows
internationally, foreign currency movements have anincreasing
impact on our results. On a constant currency basis, which assumes
exchange rates remained consistent with 2015, TV Studios revenue
for 2016 would have been £75 million lower and adjusted EBITA would
have been £12 million lower as a result of a stronger US dollar and euro
during the year,

Total Studios UK revenue was up 14% to £626 million (2015: £547
riltion) with 13% growth in internal revenue and 20% increase in
external revenue driven by organic growth of 6% and the acquisition
of Twofour Group and Mammaoth Screen in 2015, Programming sales
to ITV Broadcast benefited from new drama deliveries including
Victoria, Cold Feet and Tutankhamun along with returning
entertainment programmes Saturday Night Takeaway, Love Island
and I'm A Celebrity... Get Me Out Here! Off-ITV revenue grew strongly
with successful deliveries including The Jump, The Job Interview and
Raised by Wolves all for Channel 4, Poldark, Moorside and Witness for
the Prosecution for BBC and Agatha Raisin for Sky.

ITV America's total revenue declined 27% to £235 mittion {2015: £320
million) with organic revenue, excluding acquisitions and foreign
exchange, down 35%. This decline was predominantly driven by three
shows — Texas Rising and Best Time Ever not returning and the phasing
of Hell's Kitchen which did not deliver in 2016 but will return for two
series in 2017, Our acquisitions continue to deliver new and returning
programmes, including Alone, Killing Fields, Pawn Stars and Fixer
Upper. Other successful non-scripted deliveries within ITV America
during the year included American Grit, Tiny House Nation and The
Real Housewives of New Jersey. Our returning scripted dramas, The
Good Witch and Aquarius also aired during 2016 with The Good Witch
already recommissioned for a third series in 2017. Aquarius has not
been recommissioned for 2017, but we are confident we can replace it
with our upcoming slate of new programmes, including three dramas;
Sun Records, Somewhere Between and a pilot of Snowpiercer, as we
build our US scripted business.

Studios RoW total revenue was up 67% to £355 million (2015: £213
million), with organic revenue down 1%. We benefited from 12 months
of Talpa Media, which was acquired on 30 April 2015 and has
significantly strengthened our position as a leading international
producer and distributor. Talpa Media performed strongly in 2016 and
also benefited from a four-year licensing agreement for The Voice of
China, We also saw good growth in Australia and Denmark from
producing UK formats. 2016 deliveries included fm A Celebrity... Get
Me Out Of Herel and The Chase in Australia and Germany and The
Voice Kids and Came Dine With Me in Denmark. We have a strong
pipeline of new and returning formats, many of which have been
produced by our acquisitions Talpa Media and Twofour Group, which
we will be producing in a number of our key production territories
including; The Voice, This Time Next Year, Love Island, 5 Gold Rings
and Big Star’s Little Star.

Global Entertainment revenue increased 14% In the: period to £179
million {2015: £157 millicn), with revenue excluding foreign exchange
up 6% as we continued to grow our portfolio of programmes and
formats to distribute internationally. Revenue growth was supported
by our strong programme slate including Victoria, Poldark, Mr
Selfridge, Coronation Street, Thunderbirds Are Gol, Aquarius, Hell's
Kitchen and The Chase. We have 10 programimes sold to over 100
countries and 80 different formats we sell internationally. We have
also increased distribution of our content to OTT providers including
Amazon, Netflix and Hutu both in the UK and internationally.

Reflecting the strong revenue growth in ITV Studios, adjusted EBITA
increased 18% to £243 million (2015: £206 million). The adjusted EBITA
margin remains unchanged at 177%. In 2016 we invested £160 million in
scripted content, which is a similar level to 2015. We finance our
larger-scate scripted projects through our strong underlying cashflows.
The production cost is partly funded by the initial sale of the seriesto a
broadcaster, while the deficit (the difference between the cost and
what the broadcaster pays), is recovered through distribution revenue
from selling the finished product globally to other broadcasters and
platforms. We batance our financial exposure through building a
pertfolio of programmes, with successful international dramas
offsetting the risk that we will not recover the full deficit on

every show.

Overall, ITV Studios continued to deliver many creative successes

in the year. The ongoing investment we are making in our creative
pipeline will build upon our existing strong pertfolio of prograrmrnes
and formats and help manage the fluctuations we experience
because of the phasing of deliveries. 2017 will see the delivery of many
new and returning entertainment and drama programmes andas a
result we expect to return to good organic revenue growth over the
full year, although the first half wilt be Impacted the timing of
deliveries. ITV Studios currently has over £150 mitlion more revenue
secured for 2017 than it did this time last year. Adjusted EBITA will be
broadly flat year-on-year due to our ongoing investment in scripted
content and the reversal of the one-off benefit of The Voice of China
in 2016.

ITV Studios total revenue tracker
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Financial and Performance Review continued

Acquisitions — 2012 to 2016 (undiscounted)

Additional Expected Total Total
Initial consideration future expected Expected maximum
consideration paidin 2016 payments*  consideration** payment conslderation*
Company Geography Genre Em) £m) ([Em) (£m) perod (£m)
2016
uTtv UK & Ireland Broadcast TV 100 - - 100 100
Total for 2016 100 - - 100 100
Tatal for 2012-2015 Content 760 3 328 1,091 2016-2021 1,805
Total 860 3 328 1,191 1,905

* Undiscounted and adjusted for foreign exchange. All future payments are performance related. Of £328 million expected future payments, £158 milllon has beenrecorded

on the balance sheet to date.

+ Undiscounted and adjusted for foreign exchange, induding the Inttiat cash consideration and excluding working capital adjustments

Acquisitions

On 29 February 2016 the Group acquired a 100% controlling interest
in UTV Limited, which owns the television assets of the former UTV
Media PLC, for £100 million. This further strengthens ITV's free-to-air
business and, as we have integrated itinto [TV it enablesus toruna
more efficient network. On 30 Novermber 2016, TV cormnpleted the
€10 million sale of UTV ireland to Virgin Media Limited.

We continue to look at potential acquisitions and partnerships as we
further build scale in our international content business, Since 2012
we have acquired a number of content businesses in the UK, US and
creative locations across Europe, developing a strong portfolio of
programmes that return and travel. As we have grown in size and
expanded our network relationships and distribution capability, this
has helped to strengthen our creative talent and build our reputation
as a leading European producer and distributor and leading unscripted
independent production company in the US.

We have strict criteria for evaluating potential acquisitions. Financially,
we assess ownership of intellectual property, earnings growth and
valuation based on return on capital employed and discounted cash
flow. Strategically, we ensure an acquisition target has astrong
creative track record and pipeline in content genres that returnand
travel, namely drama, entertainment and factual entertainment, as
well as succession planning for key individuals in the business.

We generally structure our deals with earnouts or with put and
call options in place for the remainder of the equity, capping the
maximum consideration payable. By basing a significant part of
the consideration on future performance in this way, not onty can
we lock in creative talent and ensure our incentives are aligned, but
we also reduce our risk by only paying for the actual, not expected,
performance delivered over time. We believe this is the right way
to structure our deals as we shoutd nat pay upfront for future
performance and should incentivise and reward delivery by the
business over time.

The majority of earnouts or put and call options are dependent on

the seller remaining within the business, the most significant of which
is for Talpa Media whereby the total maximum consideration, including
the initial payment, is up to €11 billion which is contingent on Talpa
Media continuing to deliver significant profit growth to 2022 as well
as John de Mok's continued commitment to the business during

this time. Under the deal structure, because all future payments
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and €150 rnillion of the initfal consideration are directly related to
John de Mol remaining with the business, these payments are treated
as employment costs and therefore on a statutory basis are part of
our reported results. However, we exclude themn from adjusted profits
and adjusted EPS as an exceptional item, as in our view for the reasons
set out above, these items are part of capital consideration reflecting
how we structure our transactions, This is consistent with our
treatment of all costs of this type.

The table above sets out the initial consideration payable on our
acquisitions, our expected future payments based on our current view
of performance and the total maximum consideration payable which
is only payable if exceptional compound earnings growth is delivered.

We closely monitor the forecast performance of each acquisition and
where there has been a change in expectations, we adjust our view of
potential future commitments,

Total expected consideration for all our acquisitions has increased

by £128 million since 31 December 2015, primarily as a result of our
acquisition of UTV Limited and future payments denominatedin
foreign currency. As at 31 December 2016 the amount recorded on the
batance sheet was £158 mitlion of our total expected future payments.

In 2017, around £120 mitlion will be payable on our acquisitions,
primarily relating to Talpa Media of which €100 millionis due, subject
to audit, in March 2017,

Forelgn Exchange Sansitivity

As our Studios business grows internationally, the performance of
the business becomes increasingly sensitive to mavements in foreign
exchange rates, primarily with respect to the US doitar and euro.

The following table highlights [TV's sensitivity to translation resulting
from a 10% appreciation/depreciation in sterling against the US dollar
and euro, assuming all other variables are held constant. An
appreciation in Sterling has a negative effect on revenue and adjusted
EBITA, a depreciation has a positive effect.

Adjusted
Currency Revenue (Em) EBITA {Em)
US Dollar +50-60 +8-10
Eurc +25-30 13-4
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Net financing costs Exceptionat items

2016 2015 2016 2015
Twelve months to 31 December £m £€m Twelve months to 31 December £m £m
Financing costs directly attributable Operating exceptional items:
to loans and bonds (22) {(10)  Acquisition related expenses (131) (88)
Cash-related net financing costs (3) (3) Reorganisation and restructuring costs (14) {(13)
Amortisation of bonds W) —  Pension curtailment (19) -
Adjusted financing costs {26) {13) Other - (8)
Mark-to-market on swaps and (164) (109)
foreign exchange 3 (9 Non-operating exceptional items - 6
Imputed pension interest (O] (10)  Total exceptional items (net) (164) (103)
Unrealised foreign exchange and other
het financial losses {17) {4) ) ) ) -
Net financing costs (57) (31) Total exceptional items in the year were £164 million (2015: £103

Adjusted financing costs increased to £26 million (2015: £13 million}
primarily due to 12 months of the seven year €600 million Eurobond
issued in September 2015 and new facility fees,

Net financing costs were £20 million higher in 2016 at £51 million
(2015: £31 million) primarily due to £17 million increase in the expected
future payments on our acquisition portfolio. These relate to those
deals structured with a put and call option for the remainder of the
equity which are not dependent on the seller remaining within the
business. The imputed pension charge decreased as a result of lower
interest rates.

Profit bafore tax

Adjusted profit before tax, after amortisation and impairment of
intangibtes and financing costs, was broadly flat at £847 million (2015:
£843 million). Statutory profit before tax decreased by 14% at £553
million (2015: £641 mitlion), primarily a result of the exceptional iterns
described below, an increase in net financial losses within net financing
costs and a full 12 months amortisation of the intangible assets
acquired in the purchase of Talpa Media, particularly The Voice.

million). Gperating exceptional items principally relate to acquisition
related expenses which are mainly performance based employment
linked consideration, primarily £99 million for Talpa Media which .
has delivered in line withits first earnout hurdle and wiil receive
€100 million, subject to audit,in March 2077. Reorganisation and
restructuring costs includes £14 million of restructuring and
redundancy costs across the business in relation to our £25 million
overhead cost savings for 2017 The pension curtailment is as a result
of the dlosure of the defined benefit pension sections of the ITV
Pension Scheme to future benefit accrual.

Tax

Adjusted tax charge

The total adjusted tax charge for 2016 was £160 mittion (2015: £177
million), corresponding to an effective tax rate on adjusted PBT of 19%
(2015: 21%) which is broadly in line with the standard UK corporation
tax rate of 20% (2015: 20,25%). We expect this effective taxrate to

be sustainable in the medium term. The adjustments made to
reconcile the tax charge with the adjusted tax charge are the tax
effects of the adjustments made to reconciie PBT and adjusted PBT,
as discussed earlier.

2016 2015
Profit before tax (PBT) Twelve months to 31December £m £m
pr o Taxcharge (109) (139)
Twelvemonths to 31 December — on a continwing basis £m £m Production tax credits {28) (23)
Profit before tax 553 641 Charge for exceptional itemns {15) {8)
Production tax credits 28 23 Chargeinrespect of amortisation of
Exceptional items {net) 164 103  intangible assets* {1) {4)
Amortisation and impairment of Charge in respect of adjustments to net
intangible assets* 77 58 financing costs {6) {3)
Adjustments to net financing costs 25 18 Adjusted tax charge {160) (177)
Adjusted profit before tax 847 843  Effective tax rate on adjusted profits 19% 21%

* Inrespect of intangible assets arising from business combinations,

* Inrespect of Intangible assets arising from business combinations Alsoreflects the cash
tax benefit of tax deductlons for US goodwill
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Financial and Performance Review continued

Cash tax

Cash tax paid in the year was £90 million (2015: £117 miltion), the
majority of which was paidin the UK. The cash tax figure is net of
production tax credits received in the year. The cash tax payable is
lower year-on-year because of the timing of the receipts of tax credits.
A reconciliation between the tax charge for the year and the cash tax
paid in the year is shown below.

2016 2015
Twelve months to 31 December Em £€m
Tax charge (100} (139)
Temporary differences recognised
through deferred tax {13) 29
Prior year adjustments to current tax {10) 9
Current tax, current year {123) (119)
Phasing of tax payments — UK 5 {1)
Phasing of tax payments - overseas 5 (1)
Production tax credits - timing
of receipt 7 (14)
Cash tax impact of allowable UK
pension payments 16 18
Cash tax paid (90) (117)
Tax strategy

ITVis aresponsible business, and we take a responsible attitude to tax,
recognising that it affects all of our stakeholders. In order to allow
those stakeholders to understand our approach to tax, we have
published our Global Tax Strategy which is available on our

corporate website,

(8) www.tvpic.com
We have four key strategic tax objectives:

1. Engage with tax authorities in an open and transparent way in
order to minimise uncertainty

2. Pro-actively partner with the business to provide clear, timely,
relevant and business focused advice across all aspects of tax

3. Take an appropriate and balanced approach when considering
how to structure tax sensitive transactions

4. Manage ITV's tax risk by operating effective tax governance
and understanding our tax control framework with a view 1o
continuously adjusting our approach to be compliant with our
tax obligations

Our tax strategy is aligned with that of the business and its
commercial activities, and establishes a clear Group-wide approach
based on openness and transparency in all aspects of tax reporting
and compliance, wherever the Company and its subsidiaries operate.
Within our overall governance structure, the governance of tax and
tax risk is given a high priority by the Board and Audit and Risk
Committee, including through the operation of the Tax & Treastiry
Committee. The ITV Global Tax Strategy as published on the [TV ple
website is compliant with the UK tax strategy publication requirement
set out in Part 2 Schedule 19 Finance Act 2016.
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EPS - adjusted and statutory

Overall, adjusted profit after tax was up 3% at £687 million (2015:
£666 million). After non-controlling interests of £4 million (2015: £7
million), adjusted basic earnings per share was 17.0p {2015: 16.5p), up
3% which is higher than the growth in adjusted EBITA of 2% due to a
decrease in our adjusted effective tax rate in the year to 19% (2015:
21%}. The weighted average number of shares was broadly inline at
4,010 million (2015: 4,006 millicn). Diluted adjusted EPS in 2016 was
17.0p (2015: 16.3p) reflecting a weighted average diluted number of
shares of 4,029 (2015: 4,035).

Adjusted EPS p

Statutory EPS declined by 10% to 11.2p (2015:12.4p) primarily as

a result of higher employment linked consideration {largely Talpa

Media}, which is included within reported EPS but as in prior years,

is excluded from adjusted EPS as in our view these costs are part of

capital consideration. In addition there were higher restructuring costs i
associated with our 2017 cost savings and higher amortisation of

acquired intangibles assets from a full 12 months of Talpa Media.

A full reconciliation between statutory and adjusted EPS is included
within the Alternative Performance Measures section.

Statutory EPSp

Dividend per share

In 2014, the Board made a commitment ta grow the full year ordinary
dividend by at least 20% per annum to 2016 to achieve a more normal
dividend cover of between 2.0 and 2.5x adjusted earnings per share.

In line with this policy and reflecting ITV's good performance in 2016,
the Board is proposing a final dividend of 4.8p which equates to a fufl
year dividend of 7.2p, which gives a cover of 2.4x. We have delivered
average annual growth of 27% in the ordinary dividend over the last
three years.
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Reflecting ITV's strang cash generation and the Board's confidence in
the business, the Board is proposing a special dividend of 5p per share
worth just over £200 miltion, bringing the total special dividends since
2012 to almost £1.2 billion.

Looking ahead the Board is committed to a long-term sustainable
dividend policy. Ordinary dividends will grow broadly inline with
earnings, targeting dividend cover of around 2x adjusted earnings
per share over the medium term. ITV has £1.7 billion of distributable
reserves at 31st December 2016 avaitable immediately to support
the dividend paolicy.

Dividend per share p (ordinary)
Cash genaration
Profit to cash conversion
2016 2015

Twelve months to 31December £m €m
Adjusted EBITA ass 865
Working capital movement (20) (72)
Depreciation )l 27
Share-based compensation and

pension service costs 10 7
Acquisition of property, plant and

equipment and intangible assets (44) {49)
Adjusted cash flow 862 788
Profit to cash ratio 97% 1%

Note: Except where disclosed, management views the acquisition of operating property,
platit and equipment and Intangibles as hecessary ongoing investment in the business.

ITV continues to be highly cash generative reflecting our ongoing
tight management of working capital balances and our disciplined
approach to cash and costs. This is particularly important when there
is wider palitical and economic uncertainty and places us inagcod
position to continue to invest across the business and deliver
sustainable returns to our shareholders.

In the year we generated £862 million {2015: £788 million) of
operational cash from £885 million {2015: £865 million) of adjusted
EBITA, which equates to a strong profit to cash ratic of 97%
(2015:91%).

To facilitate our working capital management, we have agreed a
£100 million non-recourse receivables purchase agreement (free of
financial covenants) which gives us the flexibility to access additional
liquidity when required. At the 31st December, £35 million of
receivables were sold under the purchase agreement.

Free cash flow

2016 2015
Twelve months to 31December £m £m
Adjusted cash flow 862 788
Net interest paid {20) {9)
Adjusted cash tax (126) (127)
Pension funding {80) {90)
Free cash flow 636 562

Note: Adjusted cash tax of £126 million 15 total cash tax paid of £90 million excluding receipt
of production tax credits, which are included within adjusted cashflow from operations, as
these production tax credits relate directly to the production of programmes.

After payments for interest, cash tax and pension funding, our free
cash flow remained strong in the period, up 13% to £636 million
{2015: £562 million).

Overall, after dividends {ordinary and special}, acquisition related costs,
debt repayments and strategic investments, particularly into ‘digital
first’ businesses, we ended the year with net debt of £637 million,
compared to net debt of £796 million at 30 June 2016 and net debt of
£319 miltion at 31 December 2015. Our cash generation was weighted
towards the second half of 2016 due to the payment of the special
dividend and the acquisition of UTV, both of which were paid in the
first half of 2016,

Net debt tracker
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Financial and Performance Review continued

Funding and Uquidity

Debt structure and liquidity

Our balance sheet strength, together with our strong free cash flow,
enables us to continue to invest in opportunities to grow the business
and make returns to our shareholders. To preserve our financial
flexibility we have put a number of new facilities in place. We have
increased our Revolving Credit Facility (RCF) from £525 million to £630
million and extended it for a further five years to 2021 (with the option
to extend to 2023). We have alsoincreased our bilateral financing
facility from £175 million to £300 million, which is free of financial
covenants. This, along with our two bilateral loans which total £250
mitlion and mature in 2017 (but may be extended until 2018 at ITV's
option), provides us with sufficient liquidity to meet the requirements
of the business in the medium to long-term, The RCF and bilaterals
have the usual financial covenants for these type of financing which
are detailed in note 4. Of the total £1,180 million facilities in place,
£250 million was drawn down at 31 Decemnber 2016,

Our policy is to maintain at least £250 million of available liquidity at
any point.

Leverage

Our objective is to run an efficient balance sheet. We believe
maintaining leverage below 1.5x reported net debt to adjusted EBITDA
will optimise our cost of capital. At 31Decemnber 2016, reported net
debt to adjusted EBITDA was 0.7x {2015: 0.4x). Our prigrity is to invest
to drive organic growth and make acquisitions in line with our strategic
priorities as we find the right opportunities to do so. We will balance
this investment with attractive returns to shareholders where we
have surplus capital.

We also look at an adjusted measure of net debt, takinginto
consideration all of our ather debt-like commitrments including

the expected, undiscounted contingent payments on acquisitions,
the pension deficit under IAS 19 net of gilts held as security against a
proportion of those liabilities and the undiscounted operating lease
commitments which mainly relate to broadcast transmission
contracts and property. This adjusted leverage measure better
reflects how the credit rating agencies look at our balance sheet.

At 31 December 2016 adjusted net debt was £1.637 million (31
December 2015: £1144 million) and adjusted net debt to adjusted
EBITDA was 1.8x (31 December 2015: 1.3x).

Financing

We are financed using debt instruments and facilities with arange of
rnaturities. In December 2016 we issued a new €500 million Eurobond
at a coupon of 2.00% which was swapped into sterling using a number
of cross currency interest rate swaps. The net sterling interest rate
payable on these swapsis ¢ 3.5%. The net sterling proceeds from the
bond of £425 million were primarily used to refinance existing debt,
including the £161 miltion bond that matured in January 2077, and will
be used to pay the first tranche of the Talpa Media earnout due in 2017.

Net debt

2016 2015
At 31 Decemnber £m £m
Gross cash 561 294
Gross debt (1,198) (613)
Net debt {637) {319)
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Borrowings at 31 December 2016 were repayable as follows:

Amount repayable £€m Maturity
£161 million Eurobond 161 Jan 2017
£100 million Bilateral Loan 100 Jun2017/20M18
€600 million Eurobond 508 Sep 2022
€500 million Eurobond* 425 Dec 2023
Finance leases 4 Various

Total debt repayable on maturity**

*  Netof £2millioncross currency swaps
™ Inaddition to above we have a £150 million bilateral loan which was drawn down at 31
December but was offset by depasit on account.

1,198

At 31st December, the £630 million RCF was undrawn.

Ratings

We are rated investment grade by two ratings agencies: BBB- (positive
outlook) by Standard and Poor's and Baa3 (stable outlook) by Moody's
Investor Services. The factors that are taken into account in assessing
our credit rating include our degree of operational gearing, exposure
to the economic cycle, as well as business and geographical diversity.
Continuing to execute our strategy will strengthen our position
against all these metrics.

Foreign exchange

As TV continues to grow internationally, we are increasingly exposed
to foreign exchange on our overseas operations, We do not hedge our
exposure to revenues and profits generated overseas, as this is seen
as aninherent risk. We may elect to hedge our overseas net assets,
where material. To date we have hedged a significant portion of the
euro net assets arising from the Talpa Media acquisition.

ITVis also exposed to foreign exchange risk on transactions we
undertake in a foreign currency. Our policy is to hedge a portion of
any transaction that is either a firm commitment for up to five years
forward or a highiy probabie forecast for up to 18 manths, depending
on the level of certainty we have on the final size of the transaction.

Finally, ITV is exposed to foreign exchange risk on the retranslation

of foreign currency loans and deposits. Qur policy is to bedge such
exposures where there is an expectation that any changes in the value
of these items wilt result in a realised cash movement over the short
to medium term.

The fareign exchange and interest rate hedging strategy is discussed
and approved by the ITV plc Board and implemented by our internal
Tax and Treasury Committee who oversee governance and approval

of Tax and Treasury related policies and procedures within the business.

Pensions

The net pension deficit for the defined benefit schemes at
31December 2016 was £328 million (31December 2015: £176 million
excluding UTV pension scheme). The increase reflects a rise in pension
liabilities following a significant decrease In corporate bond yields
along with an increase in market expectations of long-term inflation.
The overallincrease in liabilities has more than offset the deficit
funding contribution and increase in asset values, The net pension
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deficit includes £39 million of gilts which are held by the Group
as security for future unfunded pension payrments of four former
Granada executives. A full reconciliation is included within Note 3.7.

Following the acquisition of UTV Limited in February 2016, the assets
and liabilities of the UTV defined benefit pension scheme (whichisin a
surplus of £1 miltion) are included within the Group net pension deficit
at 31 December 2016.

Actuarial valuation

The last actuarial valuation was undertaken in 2014. On the basis
adopted by the Trustee, the combined deficits as at 1 January 2014
amounted to £540 million.

The Trustee is in the process of undertaking a full actuarial valuation
of all sections of the Scherme as at 1 January 2017 which we expect to
agreein late 2017 or early 2018.

Net pension deficit tracker

Closure to future accrual

InDecember 2016, following a member consultation, the Group
decided to close the defined benefit sections of the ITV Scheme to
future benefit accrual with effect from 28 February 2017, The benefits
of these members will become subject to statutory increases from
the date of closure until retirement, rather than the capped
pensionable salary that previously applied. This change has resulted in
a one-off £19 million non-cash curtailment charge which is included
within exceptionals.

Deficit funding contributions

The Group continues to make deficit funding contributions in line
with the most recent valuationin order to eliminate the deficits in
each section.

The total deficit funding contribution for 2016 was £80 million, a £10
million reduction on 2015. This contribution is expected to remain at
£80 million in 2017. Further details are included within Note 3.7.

Subsequent events
Eurobond repayment: On 5 January 2017 ITV repaid the £161 million
Eurcbond as it matured.

Gurney Productions LLC: On 6 February 20117, the Group exercised
the call option to acquire the remaining 38.5% interest of Gurney
Productions LLC.

London Property Strategy: On 21 February 2017, [TV announced that
following an extensive review of its London property requirements,
it intends to seek planning permission to redevelop its South Bank
site and build a new London horne. The teams currently located in
the South Bank site will be relocated to varicus sites during the
redevelopment period. As aresult of the review, ITV is also proposing
to close The London Studios (TLS) business and use studio capacity
in the external market to meet our future business needs.

Acquisitions: On 28 February 20117, we announced the acquisition of
65.05% of Tetra Media Studios SAS, the French production business.

lan Griffiths
Group Finance Director
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Risks and Uncertainties

As a producer and broadcaster ITV’s business carries a number of
risks which we manage through our risk management framework.

This risk management framework sets out
our processes for identifying, reviewing
and managing our risks and is regularly
assessed and adapted as the Company,
industry and macro environment evolves.
Our continuing success is dependent on
how weill we understand and manage

our risks.

Our approach, which is consistent with
previous years, covers risks at all levels of
the organisation:

« Principal risks:

- HighImpact, Low Likelihoad (HILL)
risks — of low inherent likelthood but
where there would be major
consequences were therisk to
materialise

- Strategic risks - would impact the
successful execution of the strategy

- Operational or process level risks
- embedded into everyday activity within
the organisation

Risks are primarily cortrolled through the risk
mahagement process. The Board has carried
out arobust assessment of the Principal risks
facing the Company and details of these are
set on out on the following pages. Mitigating
actions have been identified for all of the
Principal risks. Each Strategic risk has been
mapped to at least one of the three key
Strategic Priorities and, where possible,
assigned key risk indicators. Where
appropriate, the key riskindicators are
aligned to our key performance indicators
(KPIs) on pages 36 ta 39. All Principal risks
are owned by at least one member of the
Management Board,

In line with our Risk Management Framework,

the Management and Divisional Boards have
reviewed ITV's Principal risks and
uncertainties. While these potential risks are
predominately unchanged, the Board feels
the potentiat risk of a sustained cyber/viral
attack should be viewed as a HILL risk rather
than a Strategic risk. The Board believes that
this better reflects the nature of this risk
because media companies in particular have
faced increased frequency and sophistication
of cyber-attacks.

Risk appetite

The Board is responsible for setting the level
of risk the Company is willing to take in line
with our strategy. There are clear approvals
frameworks in place and we continue to
develop our approach to ensure that the
business understands the Board's risk
appetite and ensure they understand
tolerance levels and track the key risk
indicators to help manage eachrisk.

Three Unes of defence

We continue to enhance our three lines of
defence model and develop our approach to
managing risks. The business divisions own
their risks and the shared service functions
support themin managing the risks. internal
Audit provide assurance as to the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems, in areas which face
day to day operational risk, we are continuing
to develop owr three lines of defence maodel
and to move our approach to risk away from

a rules and process driven system to a cultural
people driven solution which we believe
encourages a focus on prevention rather than
reaction to failure. A new Leading Risk training
programme is now in place for ITV Studios

production nmanagement which wilt continue
to be developed and intreduced to other
areas of the business.

Risk cultura

Throughout the year we have continued to
focus on and strengthen our risk culture. The
Operational Risk Steering Group considers
ethical behaviours, governance and
compliance with our Code of Conduct. we
aim to have an open communication culture
where information is shared and issues are
escalated as appropriate.

Assurance

Internal Audit provide objective assurance as
to the effectiveness of the Group’s systems
of internal control and risk management,
reporting to the Management Board,
Divisional boards and the Audit and

Risk Committee.

The internal audit plan is driven from iTV's

risk managernent framework. Internal Audit
review the auditable elements of the HILL,
Strateglc and operational risks and this review
inforrns the areas and topics that internal
Audit focus on.
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Risk management framework
Our ongoing process for risk identification, review and management is set out below.

Board

Sets strategic objectives
Identifies and evaluates Principal risks and uncertainties
Sets our strategy on tisk and establishes tolerance levels and risk appetite

Ensures a robust and appropriate risk management framework is in place
Continually monitors the risk management and internal controt systems

Management and Divisional
Boards

Opaerational Risk
Steering Group

Auditand
Risk Committee

With support from the Divisional
Boards the Management Board has
responsibility for

the development and operation of the
risk management framework and for
the operation of our systems of internal
control This includes:

- risk identification and assessment and
establishing controls and procedures
to monitor and mitigate risks.

- assessment and review of financial
controls, policies and procedures to
ensure risks are identified and the
processes and procedures are in
accordance with and aligned to
the strategy.

- reviewing and monitoring the
effectiveness of internal controls and
putting in place remedial plans where
controls are weak or there are
opportunities for improvement.
Serious control weakness (if any) is
reported to the Board and action
taken as appropriate.

routinely reviewing and challenging
risks and mitigations.

The Operational Risk Steering Group has
responsibility for:

» considering and setting actions for pan

ITV risks and for ongoing moniteting of
those actions.

reviewing incident reports and other
statistics.

reviewing policies and processes to
ensure they remain fit for purpose.
identifying and reporting emerging risks,
identifying and resolving issues.

Risk areas in scope of the group and sub
committees that deal with specific risk
areas are set out in the governance
framework on page 72.

The Chairman of the Audit and Risk
Committee attends meetings of the
Operational Risk Steering Group
periodically.

The Audit and Risk Committee has

responsibility for:

« overseeing and advising the Board on
strategic risk exposures and future
mitigation strategy.

» reviewing internal controts and their
effectiveness.

- reviewing the effectiveness of the
risk management framework.

+ conducting in depth reviews of high
risk business areas or processes.

« reviewing internal audit actions
and management responsiveness
to the findings.

Details of risk reviews undertaken during
the year are set out in the Audit and Risk
Committee report on page 68.

Operation and Assurance - three lines of defence

1 Business divisions

2 Shared service functions

3 Internal audit

wodeyd)beiens I

The business divisions own the
management of their risks and are
responsible for:

- Identifying and reporting local risks.

- maintaining risk registers and business

continuity ptans where appropriate.
- reviewing and implementing
mitigating actions

+ Support the business divisions in

managing risks.

- Provide assurance as to the effectiveness

of the internal control and risk
management systems.
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Risks and Uncertainties continued

High Impact, Low Likelihoad Risks (HILL)

Patantial Risk

Key Drivers

Mitigating Factors and Risk Directlon

ITV loses its credit status
or lines of funding with
existing lenders or there
is an event that impacts
financial arrangements/
availability of credit.

1enueuld

There is a major collapse
ininvestment values or
a material changein
liabilities leading to an
impact on the pension
scheme deficit.

« Thereis a repeat of the
2008/09 financial crisis asa
result of a major bank coliapse,
or there is a similar financial
outcome as a result of an
unexpected world event.

As a result of macreeconomic
changes there can be material
movernents in the Group’s
defined benefit pension
scheme.
= For example if the Bank of
England announces further
Quantitative Easing this may
change gilt vields and corporate
bonds rates, increasing the
scheme's liabilities.
- Orif there is an unexpected
world event that impacts
property values and/or
impacts share prices.

+ The business is cash generative and working capitat
managerment remains a key facus.

» {TVhas abalance sheet policy to maintain adjusted net
debt below 1.5x adjusted EBITDA and have available
liquidity headroom of at least £250 million.

= [TV has a £630 million Revolving Credit Facility with a
number of core relationship banks and £250 million of
financial covenant free facilities.

= Therelatively low levels of ITV debt and our two
investment grade ratings mean ITV continues to have
good access to both bank and bond financing.

+ There is regular communication between TV and the
pension trustees,

+ The pension scheme’s assets are invested in a diversified
portfolio, with a significant amount of the fund held
in bonds.

» [TV has worked with the pension trustees to limit
the potential deficit by a series of asset backed
arrangements. Further, it has taken sorme mortality risk
out of the scheme with a longevity swap and hedged a
portion of inflation and interest rate variability.

A significant event removes
anumber of the key
management team from
the business on a long-term
or permanent basis.

jeuoneladp

There is a sustained
cyber/viral attack causing
prolonged system denial
or major reputationat
damage, for example the
ability to broadcast our
channels or the availabitity
of ITVHub or TV ioses a
significant volume of
personal or sensitive data.

«+ Inthe ordinary course of
business activities there will be
times when the Management
Board are in one location or
travel together as a group.

« Withincreasingly sophisticated
technology, the risk of a cyber/
viral attack has increased
across the world.

- We are higher risk as aresult
cf operatingina public
envirpnment.

« Thereis abusiness resilience plan in place which includes
succession plans or nominated replacements for all key
positions within the Company.

» We continue to improve our ability to monitor, detect
and respond to cyber threats internally and through
partnerships with specialist security organisations,

- Mandatory online training modules, awareness
campaigns and simplified information security policies
have been implemented for employees.

» There are disaster recovery and incident management
plans in place for high-risk areas of the business to help
deliver arapid and flexible response. These are kept
under review by the Audit and Risk Committee,




ITV plc Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Our strategic priorities Risk direction (after mitigation)
Maxirnising Increased risk
Growing Risk stayed the sarme
Building Reducedrisk

High Impact, Low Likelihood Risks (HILL)

Potential Risk Key Drivers Mitigating Factors and Risk Direction
A | Anevent with public = Through the Broadcasting + [TV has a crisis management policy and process in
% interest that causes and Studios businesses, the place andis increasing emphasis on its development
£ | significant reputational Company operates in a public and application.
% | andbrand damage. environment.
=
=

There is amajor healthand ¢ -
safety incident that results
in a significant loss of
human life.

As the Company expands this
may resultin anincreasein
production hours, and the
Company could produce certain
types of programming which
have higher inherent risks.

A major incident results in - {TV's broadcast technology

1TV being unable to continue chainis complex and risk can
with scheduled broadcasting materialise within ITV or with
for a sustained period. third parties respansible for
servicing the broadcast
supply chain.
There is a significant » ITV could be affected if there is
or unexpected change in achange in UK media or
regulation or legislation. intellectual property regulation

or legislation; for example if
thereisa changein advertising
restrictions in key categories.
Highlighted below are key risks
as aresult of European Union
membership referendurm.

-

« [TV has a central health and safety team and health
and safety policies and procedures are in place, with
appropriate training for employees where required.
As we continue to expand internationally these will
be kept under review.

= Regular inspections are undertaken at all sites alongside
a programme of appropriate health and safety audits.

Arisk register of broadcast operations, including key
outsourced functions, isin place and reviewed on a
regular basis.

« Major incident scenario testing takes place bi-annually.
- Anincident management process has been agreed and
full disaster recovery plans are in place,

+ ITVregularly communicates with appropriate groups
and its legal panet and Ofcom to monitor potential
policy, legal and regulatory developments.

Impact of exiting the European Union

As a result of UK European Union membership referendum, any
macro uncertainty may have a knock on impact to the overall
health of the UK television advertising market.

Further there could be wider changes in regulation or legisiation
within the markets in which we operate. While the potential
changes and the impact of any such changes will remain unknown
for a while, ITV could, for exarnple, be affected by changes to:

- EUbroadcasting legislation andfor rules around EU market
access, for example potential barriers against UK companies
selling programming to, or investing in, EU companies;

« indirect taxation, direct taxation or transfer pricing requlation;

- restrictions to free movement of our staff.

In addition, given the reciprocal nature of worldwide trade deals,
there could atso be knock on changes to UK legislation affacting
broadcasting and intellectual property laws. For example, there
may be pressure to weaken obligations to purchase original
content made in the UK or to broaden exceptions from intellectual
property protection.

The tikelihood or extent of any impact is currently unknown but
going forward we will closely monitor and evaluate any potential
areas of risk.
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Risks and Uncertainties continued

Strategic risks

Potential Risk

Key Drivers

Mitigating Factors and Risk Directlon

3oxdew ayL

There is a major decline in
advertising revenues and
ITV does not build
sufficient non-NAR revenue
streams to mitigate the
financial impact of this
decline.

The television market
moves significantly
towards pay television as a
preferred model,
negatively impacting ITV's
free-to-air revenua.

A faster than expected
shift to VOD or other new
technologies, such as
internet enabled TVs or
online only services, causes
a sustained loss of
advertising revenue.

= The current economic
environment is uncertain
which may impact demand for
advertising, However [TV has
made significant progressin
rebalancing the business and
53% of our total revenue
comes frorn sources other
than TV spot advertising.

= The current platform mix
between free-to-air and linear
pay television is around 50%
each and has remained at this
level over recent years.

+ The way people are consuming
television is changing and
viewetrs are spending more
time watching ontine. However
it remains a small percentage
of total viewing at around 7%
(2015 internal estimates).

= Growing non-NAR in areas such as ITV Studios and
Online, Pay & Interactive, remains a key part of the
strategy.

= ITV continues to focus on cash and costs, ensuring the
Company has adequate financial liquidity and balance
sheet flexibility to continue toinvest,

= [TV continues to support free platforms, including
YouView, to keep free-to-air strong.

= ITViooks at and evaluates the opportunities for
expanding its existing pay services and other pay
offerings.

- ITV explores other platforms to understand viewing
habits and what people are prepared to pay for.

+ The business continues to develop the ITV Hub vOD
services, maximise the distribution of the ITV Hub and
grow its VOD advertising business.

« |ITV monitors the market for new technology and where
appropriate explores how ITV can participate.

= {TV continues to invest around £1 billion inits
programme budget.

$8553304d pue 3.n3on43s ‘uonesiuebio

ITV fails to evolve its
organisational structure
and culture to ensure that
itls capable of delivering
continued growth from
new businesses or revenue
streams and fails to attract,
develop and retain key
creative, commercial and
management talent with
the skills required for the
ongoing business.

« Empiloying the best creative,
commercial and management
talent is key to our success.

» Failing to create the right
culture to attract and retain
this talentincreases this risk.

- Employee engagementis
critical and we continue to
monitor it through our
employee survey. This once
again showedvery high
engagement at 90%, up on
the previous year (2015; 89%).

« ITV constantly reassesses the business to create a
fit-for-purpose organisation.

» Strategic focus on working across the business to embed
and strengthen the culture of ‘One ITV' way of working.

+ ITVinvestsin training and development for allkey
colleagues in the business.

» Succession plans are in place for all key pesitions within
the Company.
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Our strategic priorities Risk direction (after mitigation)
Maximising Increased risk
Growing Risk stayed the same
Building Reduced risk
Strategic risks
Potential Risk Kay Drivers Mitigating Factors and Risk Direction
© | There is significant loss of + Thereisincreased cormnpetition | « [TVis focused on both protecting and exploiting existing
& | programme rights or ITV for high-quality programme rights and ensuring that future rights generated accrue
g fails to identify and obtain rights as broadcasters and tolTV,
@' | the optimai rights platform owners demand + [TV has a detailed model to evaluate the value of
o | packages. brand defining content. third-party rights to ensure it anly buys rights that make
g « Asanintegrated producer economic sense.
s broadcaster, TV produces a - ITVinvests in creating and owning quality content
o significant proportion of the through ITV Studios.
s broadcast schedule itself. In
= 2016 this increased to 63% of
o the main channet's original
o commissions.
3_ + ITVmaintains good
v relationships withindependent
o producers to ensure it has
3 oppartunities to acquire quality
ﬂ content,
a
ITV fails to createand own | « Our ability to create and own « ITV maximises opportunities for ITV Studios to create
asufficient number of hit hit programmes depends on successful shows by investing in the creative pipeline and
programmes/formats the quality of our content focusing on programmes and genres that can return and
across its international business. travelintermationally, ie drama, entertainment and
portfolio of content « ITVis the largest commercial factual entertainment, as evidenced by our increased
companies. producer inthe UKand a investment in scripted content.
teading independent non- + ITVisfocused on hiring and retaining the right key
scripted producer in the US creative talent.
and Europe.
ITV fails to properly » OQur strategy is clear and we « Talent management plans have been developed and
resource, financially, rernain focused on delivering reviewed to ensure adequate succession planning
creatively and against our three strategic acrossITV.
operationally, the new priarities in the areas where « ITV continues to embed and strengthen the culture of
growth businesses, in we can deliver most growth ‘One ITV' way of working,
particular online as we continue to rebalance « Lessons from recent investments are captured through
and international content. the business. post-acquisition reviews.
ITV remains heavily reliant | + Our system requirements « Systern requirements are kept under review with
on legacy systems, which change as we continue to business growth and system modernisation projects
could potentially restrict rebalance the business, grow implemented as appropriate.
the ability to grow the new revenue streams and + Amodernisation plan is in place for the legacy systems
business. These systems become increasingly which rernains under constant review and development
and processes may not be international. to ensure technology systems meet the needs of the
appropriate for non- business.
advertising revenue or « Cyber risk mitigations in relation to all of our systems are
international growth. set out on page 52.
» Thisis kept under review by the Audit and Risk
Committee.

odeybanns |
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Risks and Uncertainties continued

Our strategic priorities Risk direction (after mitigation)
Maximising Increased risk
Growing Risk stayed the same
Building Reducedrisk
FStrateg ic risks
Potential Risk Key Drivers Mitigating Factors and Risk Direction
51 A significant high-profile + Asabroadcaster ITV has - ITV has angoing modernisation projects to ensure
incident or series of events significant prominence and transmission and distribution technolegies are fit-for-
g- e.g. a system failure, a therefore Is exposed to the risk purpose.
% technology issue, or a of a high-profile incident. . There are disaster recovery and incident management
@ | major regulatory breach plans in place in high risk areas of the business to help
~< | that causes significant detiver a rapid and flexible response.
reputational and/or » ITV proactively manages its broadcast chain partners and
commercial damage. suppliers to ensure the risk of incidents and regulatory
breach is minimised.
ITV fails to ensure « The key to business continuity - Disaster recovery plans are in place with tests conducted
appropriate business is having an appropriate risk periodically on business critical systemns.
continuity planning and management framework and
resilience within its core the right plans and procedures
systems, processes, in place. This is taken very
platforms and technology seriously at ITV and the
infrastructure, adequacy and robustness of our
plans are reviewed and tested.
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Viability Statement

Annually the Board assesses ITV's prospects and risks at its June
strategy day. Amongst other topics, the Board reviews the five
year financial plan which is based on our Strategic Priorities.

Howevet, in its assessment of viability the Board reviewed the
planning horizon and is of the view that a three-year period to
31Decamber 2019 continues to be most appropriate. The factors
the Board considered in adopting this timeframe are as follows:

- Visibility over ITV's broadcast advertising business is relatively
short term, as advertising remains cyclical and closely linked to
UK economic growthy;

« The commissioning process and life cycle of programming gives
ITV Studios division more medium-term outlook. However, while
non-returning brands are replaced with new commissions, over
time there is less visibility as programmes can experience
changes in viewer dermand or come to a natural expiration;

= Technology in the media industry continues to change the
demand for content and also how itis consumed;

- Pension funding, which is one of ITV's key funding obligations,
is also agreed triennially with the Trustees of the pension schems;
and

= [TV's business model does not necessitate investmentin
large capital projects that would require a longer-term
planning horizon.

The Strategic Report was approved by
the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Adam Crozier
Chief Executive

When considering the longer term viability of ITV, the Board has
reviewed each of ITV's Principal risks and uncertainties and, taking
into account current operational and financial performance, has in
particular analysed the impact of:

- Broadcast & Online experiencing a significant and sharp
downturn, similar to the 2008/09 financial crisis, with regards to
advertising revenues, butin this case with noc immediate recovery.
This scenario is cautious as recessions in the advertising market
have historically not exceeded a two-year period and have
recovered following the downturn;

« A number of key prograrmme brands within ITV Studios
are not recommissioned. While the scheduling decisions of
commissioners are made in advance, a number of key shows
could come to an end at the same time; and

« Asignificant change inITV's pension funding obligations,
following the triennial valuation in 2017 resulting in doubling
the deficit funding payments.

The review involved flexing the underlying strategic forecast for the
above impacts, both individually and concurrently and no specific
mitigations were assumed. The underlying strategic forecast
assumed: business as usual capital spending, the ongoing availability
of the financing facilities (as ITV remains within the covenants,
current bank facilities have more than three years maturity
remaining and all bond repayrments due in this period have been
refinanced); and that the Group maintains the stated dividend policy.

Based on the results of this review, the Board has a reasonable
expectation that ITV wili be able to continue in operaticn and
meetits liabilities as they fall due over the three-year petiod ending
31Decernber 2019. The assessment has been made with reference
toITV's strategy and the current position and prospects.
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Chairman’s Governance Statement

in the Governance section

This section of the Annual Report contalns a statement from your
Chairman and information about the Directors and Management
Board. it explains our governance structure and corporate
governance compliance and includes reports from the Audit and
Risk and Remuneration Committees and the Directors' Report.

Sir Peter Bazalgette
Chairman
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‘ Dear shareholder,

1was delighted to be appointed your Chairman in May 2016 and1am
particularly pleased that governance at [TV is strong as thisis essential
to protect shareholders' Interests and ensure that we can build and
sustain the long-term success of the Company.

The Board continues to work closely with the executive team

and offers support and robust challenge conducted in a spirit of
openness, trust and transparency. The Board s a relatively small but
has talented, high-perfarming and experienced members who are
close to the business.

Over the past few years we have undertaken a continuous evatuation
process carefully considering the Board's compaosition so that there

is a balanced and diverse combination of creative, commercial and
financial tatent and experience enabling the Board to add the right
value as the business strateqy is executed. Across ITV, we work to
ensure that the diversity of modern society is reflected at all levels

of the business including on the Board so that we have an appropriate
balance of skills and experience. Further details about diversity are set
out on page 66 and page 99 and further information about the
evaluation process s set out on page 66.

lam very pleased that in January this year the Board was Uthanirmous
inits decision to appeint Salrman Amin as a Non-executive Directar,
Salman has considerable expertise and knowledge in marketing,
advertising and media planning having worked for S C Johnson,
PepsiCo and Procter & Gamble and as such will broaden the

Board's perspective of the wider international market. He Is

currently undertaking a comprehensive induction programime.

It Is our policy to appoint Non-executive Directors for a three-year
period and then consider reappointment on an annual basis following a
robust performance evaluation. At the AGM in May 2017 John Ormerod
will reach the ninth anniversary of his appointment. The Board has
deliberated carefully and has decided te ask John to continue as
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee for an additional year

to enable us to ensure an appropriate successor is in place who has
sufficient time as a member of the Committee before he steps down.

66

We are proud of our culture
and that our colleagues enjoy
working at and are proud to
work for ITV and are fully
engaged with the business
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Andy Haste will be stepping down as Chairman and a member of the
Remuneration Committee following the AGM in May. He will rerniain
a Non-executive Director and Senior Independent Director. We are
pleased that Mary Harris has agreed to become Chair of the
Remuneration Committee, having served on the Committee since
May 2016. As a consequence Mary will be locking to reduce some

of her existing commitments over the coming months.

We carefully review Directors’ other commitments to ensure

that they have sufficient time to dedicate to our business. Details

of appointment dates and length of tenure for each director can

be found on page 65. All Directors are required by the Company's
Articles of Association to be elected by shareholders at the first AGM
following their appointment by the Board. Subsequently, all Directors
are subject to annual re-election by shareholders as recommended by
the UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code).

ITV Is a diverse business and to ensure appropriate governance it is
important that we have the right culture with the right people and
attitudes that encourages integrity and transparency. ITV is a talent
business and ensuring that we employ great people and allow them
creative freedom in the context of tight financial discipline is crucial
0 our success.

There are various ways that we as a Board consider and gauge the
culture of the business, We undertake anumber of site visits and have
reqular formal and informal meetings and discussions with senior
executives and other colleagues across the business. Since becoming
Chairman | have visited the majority of the regional news rooms, our
production centres in Salford and Leeds and our businesses in New
York and Paris. in addition, | hold regular round table discussions with
colleagues and engage regularly with Senicr Exacutives. This continues
regularly as patt of our annual board and committee programme. This
helps the Board understand the cultural strengths and any weaknesses
in the business that may need to be addressed with management,

The Audit and Risk Committee also keep compliance with internal
control processes under review to help assess behavioural culture
across the business.

We are proud of our culture and that our colleagues enjoy working

at and are proud to work for ITV and are fully engaged with the
business. This is borne out through rigorous, regular surveys designed
to gauge employee morale and attitudes. In addition, we have a robust
process that enables colleagues to speak up if they have any concerns.
We know that coltleagues trust this process and are not concerned
about using it.

The Board meets regularly for scheduled Board and Committee
meetings and has a number of informal meetings to consider specific
issues. Each year we hold a two-day off-site strategy meeting where
we consider recent and upcorming changes in our business
environment, the risks and impacts of such changes on our business
and how we might meet these challenges. A brief surnmary of the
matters considered by the Board during the year and our focus for
2017 is set out on page 65.

BoUBUIsADD |

Our shareholders are important to us and we remain committed to
maintaining regular open dialogue and effective communication with
you. We betieve that continued engagerment is highly beneficial to all
parties as it helps to build a greater understanding of our investors’
views, opinions and concerns.

As a listed company, ITV is required to report on how it has complied
with the principles of governance set out in the Code. The Board
considers that during 2016 the Company has complied fully with the
provisions of the Code. Further information en corporate governance
and a schedule setting out how we comply with the Code can be found
on our website.

@ www.itvplc.com/investors/governance

A copy of the Code is available on the FRC website.

(2) www.fre.org.uk/Our-Work/Codes-Standards/Corporate-govetnance

Sir Pater Bazalgette
Chairman

1March 2017
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Board of Directors

Committea mambership
(&) General purpose

(%) Audit and Risk

(®) Namination

(® Remuneration

@ Full biographies can be found on our website:
www.itvplc.com/about/board-of-directors

®®

Sir Peter Bazalgette, Chairman

Appointed: June 2013 (Chairman from May 2016)

Key areas of prior experience: Media consultant, digital media investor and former television producer.
Cuwirent external appointments: Member of Advisory Board for YouGov plc and Bartle Bogle Hegarty.
Previous experience: President of the Royal Television Society; Chairman of the Arts Council of England;
Nen-executive Director of Nutopia; Non-executive Director and Chairran of the Remuneration Committee
and member of the Audit Committee of YouGov plc; Non-executive Director of Mirriad Ltd, DCMS, Rightster,
Critical information Group ple and Channel Four Television Corp; Trustee of DebateMate; Chairman of the
ENO and Endemol UK; Deputy Chairman and Director of the National Film and Television School; Adviser to
Sony Music’s television division; Chairman of the UK production business of Sony Pictures Television Inc;;

. Chief Creative Officer at Endermnol Group BV and Endemnol Entertainment UK Limited.

Adam Crozier, Chief Executive

Appointed: April 2010

Key areas of prior experience: Business turnaround and change management, advertising.
Current external appointments: Non-executive Director of Whitbread PLC from April 2017,
Previous expetience: Non-executive Director of G4S plc, Debenhams plc and Camelot Group plg;
Chief Executive of the Royal Mail Group; Chief Executive of the Football Association; Joint Chief
Executive of Saatchi & Saatchi Advertising.

lan Griffiths, Group Finance Director

Appointed: September 2008

Key areas of prior experience: Corporate finance and financial restructuring.

Current external appointments: Non-executive Director of DS Smith Plc.

Previous experience: Group Finance Director and other senior finance roles within Emap plc;
Manager in audit and corporate finance at Ernst & Young.

Salman Amin, Non-executive Director

Appointed: January 2017

Key areas of prior experience: General management, marketfng, advertising and media planning.
Current external appointments: Chief Operating Officer, Global Commercial Division,

5 C Johnson and Soninc.

Previous experience: Chief Operating Officer, North America, SC Johnson and Son Ing; various positions
at Pepsico including: Chief Operating Officer, Purchase; President, PepsiCo UK and Ireland; other marketing
and various positions within brand managerment, personal care, paper products and food in the US, Saudi
Arabia, Germany and Switzerland at Procter & Garmnbile.
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® Roger Faxon, Non-executive Director
Appointed: October 2012
Key areas of prior experience: Broad commercial, digital and media rights experience, development of
business strategy and finance.
Current external appointments: Chairman of Mirriad Advertising Ltd; Non-executive Director of Pandora
Media Inc; Director of The John Hopkins University.
Previous experience: Director of EMI Group Global Limited and EMI Group plc; Chief Executive Officer of
EMI Group Limited; Chairrnan and CEO of EMI Music Publishing; Director of the Songwriters Hall of Famne; L.—
other appointrments at the American Society of Composers and Authars and Lancit Media Entertainment
Ltd in the US; Chairman of VIVA Television in Germany and Channel V Networks in Asia.

SIUIBADD |

Mary Harris, Non-executive Director

CIONC Appointed: July 2014
Key areas of prior experience: Business management consulting, sates and marketing, mergers and
acquisitions, media, television and interactive media investments and digital rights management.
Current external appointments: Non-executive Director of Reckitt Benckiser Group PLC; Non-executive
Director and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee for J.Sainsbury pltc; Member of the supervisory
board of Unibail Rodamco SE.
Previous experience: Member of the supervisory board of TNT Express NV, TNT NV, Scotch and Soda NV
and Irdeto BV; Partrer at McKinsey & Company, Amsterdam; various positions worldwide with McKinsey &
Company, Maxwell Entertainrnent Group, Pepsi Cola Beverages and Goldman Sachs & Co.

PE® Andy Hastae, Senior Independent Director, Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
Appointed: August 2008
Key areas of prior experience: international and emerging markets, change management,
restructuring and business turnaround.
Current external appointments: Chairman of Wonga Group Limited; Senior Independent Deputy
Chairman of the Coundil of Lloyd's.
Previous experience: Group Chief Execttive of RSA Insurance Group plc; Chief Executive of AXA Sun
Life plc; Director of AXA UK plc {life and pensions); President and Chief Executive Officer of GE Capital
Global Consumer Finance UK, Western Europe and Eastern Europe; President of the US Consumer Credit
Business and Senior Vice President and Head of the US Consurmer Loan Products Division of National
Westminster Bank.

@ @ Anna Manz, Non-executive Director
Appointed: February 2016
Key areas of prior experience: Strategy and finance and financial planning.
Current external appointments: Group Finance Director at Johnson Matthey plc; Governor
at Haberdashers' Aske's School Elstree,
Previous experience: Various appointments at Diageo plc including; Group Strategy Director, Regional
Finance Director Asia Pacific, Group Treasurer, Finance Director Global Marketing, Sales and Innovation;
other finance roles at Quest International, Unilever and ICI.

®E® John Ormered, Non-executive Director, Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee
Appointed: January 2008
Key areas of prior experience; Finance, developing strategy and growth.
Current external appointments: Non-executive Director of Constellium NV; Non-executive Director
and Chairman of the Audit Cornmittee of Gemalto NV.
Previous experience: Non-executive Chairman of First Names Group Limited, Tribal Group plc, Mertin
Claims Service Holdings Limited; Senior independent Director of Misys plg; Trustee of The Design Museum
and The Roundhouse Trust; Non-executive Director and Chairman of Audit Committee of Computacenter
plc; Non-executive Director, Negative Equity Protection Holdings Limited, Millen Group Limited and BMS
Associated Limited; Member of Audit and Retail Risk Control Committees of HBOS pic; Chairman Wallbrook
Group; Chairman of the Audit Committee for Transport for London; Practice Senior Partner at Deloitte &
Touche; Regional Managing Partner at Arthur Andersen.
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Management Board

@ Full biographies can be found on our website:

www.itvplc.com/about/board-of-directars

Jutian Bellamy, Managing Director, ITV Studios

Appointment to the Board: February 2016

Previous experience: Julian joined ITV in 2014 as Managing Director of the Studios business in the UK

and was promoted to Managing Director of ITV Studios in February 2016, Julian’s previous roles included
Creative Director and Head of Cormmissioning at Discovery Networks International, Head of Programming
at Channel 4 and prior to that he ran BBC3 and E4. He also spent time as Channel 4's Head of Factual
Entertainment and was a commissioning editor of Channel 4 News and Current Affairs.

Mary Fagan, Group Communications and Corporate Affairs Director

Appointment to the Board: January 2011

Previous experience: Mary joined ITV from the Royal Mail Group, where she was Corporate and
Government Affairs Director from December 2003. A senior ¢ity and business journalist with more than
20 years' experience, Mary's previous roles included Deputy City Editer of the Sunday Telegraph, Industrial
Correspondent for the Independent and City Reporter at the Evening Standard.

Andrew Garard, Group Legal Director and Company Secretary

Appointment to the Board: November 2007

Previous experience: Andrew joined ITV as Group Legal Directer in 2007 and took on the additional role
of Company Secretary in 2009, He is also on the board of ITN, and responsible for rights management, the
ITV archive and Corporate Responsibility. Previously Andrew was a Partner in the corporate department of
LeBoeuf Lamb's London office. Prior to this, Andrew was Group General Counsel and Company Secretary at
Cable & Wireless plc where he was armember of the Group Executive responsible for Global Legal. Prior to
that he was Global Head of Legal and Deputy General Counsel of Reuters Group plc in the UK, and before
that, General Counsel Asia.

" Kavin Lyge, Director of Television

Appointment to the Board: August 2010

Previous experience: Kevin joined TV as Managing Director, iTV Studios in 2010 and became Director
of Television in February 2016. Kevin's previous roles included Director of Television and Content at
Channel 4, Director of Programmes at Channel 5 and a number of positions at the BBC, including
Head of Independent Commissioning for Entertainment.
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David Osborn, Group HR Director

Appointment to the Board: October 2014

Previous experience: David joined ITV as the HR Director for ITV Studios in May 2011, and was appointed
to the Management Board in Octaber 2014 as Group HR Director, responsible for delivering the Group's
People Strategy. David gained previous experience in both the UK and internationally whilst working in

a variety of businesses including EMI Music, Vodafone, Visa Europe and Marks & Spencer.

' Simon Pltts, Managing Director, Online, Pay TV, Interactive and Technology

Appointment to the Board: January 2011

Previous experience: Simon joined ITV in 2000 and has held a range of roles across corporate strategy,
general management, digital redia, policy and requlation, and public affairs. He took on his most recent
rote in December 2014 with a remit to grow ITV's Online, Pay TV and Interactive businesses alongside
continued leadership of the Technology team. He also has responsibility for SDN, sits on the boards of ITN
and YouView and is a Trustee of the Royal Television Society. Before ITV Simon worked in the European
Parliament in Brussels where he specialised in media issues.

. Kally Willlams Managing Director, Commercial

Appointment to the Board: December 2014

Previous experience: Kelly joined ITVin August 2011 as Group Commetcial Director and jeined the
Management Board as Managing Director, Commercial in December 2014. He is also Chaitrman of Thinkbox,
sits on the BARB Strategy board and is Vice Chairman of the Advertising Association. Before joining ITV,
Kelly was the Sales Director at Channel 5 and prior to that held various positions at UKTV, Sky and

Thames Television.
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Corporate Governance

Our Governance structure

Board

ANy

Audit and Risk Committee
See the Audit and Risk Committee report
on page 68.

Disclosure Committes

Executive Directors and other

senior managers

Meets to ensure compliance with the
continuing obligations under the Disclosure
and Transparency Rules.

N

Remuneration Committee
See the Remuneration Report on page 75.

Genaral Purpose Committea

Executive Directors

Meets as required to conduct business within
clearly defined limits set by the Board.

Nomination Committas

Chairman and Non-executive Directors
Meets to review the structure, size, and
composition of the Board, including skills,
knowledge and experience. Identifies and
norminates for Board approval candidates
to fill Board vacancies, and considers
succession planning for Directors and other
Senior Executives. Considers and reviews
any conflicts of interest that may be
reported by the Directors,

Tax and Traasury Committes
Group Finance Director and
other senlor managers

Meets to consider and approve tax and
treasury related mattersin respect of
corporate transactions or other activities.
Monitors compliance with tax and treasury
related policies and procedures.

Matters reserved for the Board and Committee terms of reference are available on our website: www.itvplc.com/investors/governance

Management Board

and assesses and manages risk.

Meets to consider and approve strategy and operational plans, monitors operating and financial performance,

ANy
N
ITV Studios Board ITV Broadcast Board Oparationat Risk Business Resilience
Executive Directors Executive Directors and Steering Group Responss Team
and Senior Executives Senior Executives of Manages and considers Acts as tactical response
of divisional business. divisicnal business. anumber of existing and teamin the event of an
emerging operational risks incident, supporting the
Meets to consider and Meets to consider and and ensures that the business Management Boardin
approve operational matters, approve operational matters, addresses them appropriately dealing with a crisis. Develops
and assesses and manages and assesses and manages Including in relation to: business area response plans,
riskin relation to the risk in relation to the Health & Safety, Chitd testing programmes and
Studios business. Broadcast business. Protection, Business Resilience, incident reporting.
Data Protection, insider Dealing,
Whistleblowing, Anti-Bribery
& Corrupticn, Information
Security, Fraud, Technology
and Cyber risk.
ANy N 2
N N
Programme Compliance Corporate Responsibility
Advisory Group Board
Manages and considers issues Manages the direction and
andrisks in relation to the delivery of ITV's Responsibitity
programme compliance Strategy including in relation
framework, the interactive to: diversity and inclusion,
business and regulation. environment, communities
and social causes. See page 19.
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Board and Committee meetings

The number of meetings held during the year and attendance of Directors is set out in the table below. The Board agrees an annual schedule of
matters it wishes to consider at each of its meetings and those of its committees. The schedule ensures that all relevant matters are considered
and receive appropriate attention, Meetings are normally held at one of the London sites or one of the regional or international offices. Board
rneetings are structured around the following areas:

+ Operational and functional updates

= Financial updates

+ Strategy and progress against Strategic Priorities

« Risk management framework, key risk areas and risk appetite
= Other reporting and items for approval

Senior Executives and other colleagues are regularly invited to attend meetings for specific items. In addition to formal Board and Committee
meetings, meetings take place between:

+ Board members and Management Board members
- Chairman and Non-executive Directors
- Senior Independent Director and Non-executive Directors (without the Chairman present}

Our focus during 2016 and some of our plans for 2017 are set out below:

2016 2017
Eurcpean Union Referendum issues International expansion of ITV Studios
Broadcast strategy and changes to commissioning International roll-out of SVOD strategy
Development of creative talent pipeline Impact of exiting the European Union
Review of the North American market London property strategy

Digital platform markets and strategy
Viewing trends, inciuding younger viewers
International content strategy

Online, Pay and SVOD strategy

Board and Committee mambership and attandance
Board and Committee membership and attendance at scheduled meetings in 2016 is set out below.

Nomination Remuneration Audit
Board Committee  Committee  Cormimittee
Dateof Tenure at
appointment  31December Contract
Status Notes to the Board 2016 YIM renewal date 10 1 6 [
Independent
Sir Peter Bazalgette Chairman 1 1June 2013 317 1 June 2019 10 1 6 -
Adam Crozier Executive 2 26 April 2010 6/8 n/a 10 - - -
Roger Faxon Independent 310ctober 2012 4/2 31 October 2017 10 1 - -
lan Griffiths Executive 2 9 September 2008 B8/4 n/a 10 - - -
Mary Harris Independent 3 28 July 2014 2/5 28 July 2017 10 1 4 6
Independent
Andy Haste 5ID 11 August 2008 8/5 1 August 2017 10 1 6 6
Anna Manz Independent 5  1February 2016 0/11 1 February 2019 9 1 - 5
Independent
Archie Norman Chairman 4 S January 2010 n/a n/a 3 1 2 1
John Ormerod Independent 18 January 2008 8/11 18 January 2017 10 1 6 6

1. SirPeter Bazalgette was appolnted as Chairman with effect from 12 May 2016.

2. Executive Directors have rolling service contracts that provide for 12 manths’ notice on either side

3 Mary Hartis was appointed to the Remuneration Committee with effect from 12 May 2016 and two of the scheduled meetings were held prior to her appointment

4. Archie Norman stepped down as Chairman and from the Board on 12 May 2016,

5. Anna Manz was appointed to the Board with effect from 1February 206 and one of the scheduled Board meetings was held prior to her appointment, She was also appointed te the
Audlt Committee with effect from 1 May 2016 and one of the scheduled meetings was held prior to her appolntment.

6. During 2016 there was full attendance of Directors and Committee members at Board and Committee meetings.
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Corporate Governance continued

Termns of engagement for the Non-executive
Directors are available on cur website,

@ www.itvplc.com/investors/governance

During the year the appointments of John
Ormerod, Andy Haste and Roger Faxon were
extended for a further 12 months.

During the year the Board used executive
search firm Zygos to assist with the search
process for a Non-executive Director with
experience in the advertising industry and
with an understanding of the future dynamics
in the advertising sales and broader digital
arenas. Following a rigorous search process
Salman Amin was appointed as a Non-
executive Director with effect from

9 January 2017

Board sffectiveness

Experience and independence
Biographical details for the Directors are set
out on pages 60 and 61 with more detailed
biographies available on our website.

@ www_itvplc.com/about/board-of-directors

The Board is of the view that the Non-
executive Directors are independent in both
character andjudgement. They constructively
challenge and help develop proposals on
strategy, scrutinise the performance of
management in meeting agreed goals

and objectives, and monitor the reporting

of performance.

The Board warks well together,

bringing strong, independent, balanced
judgerment, knowledge and experience to its
deliberations. Each Non-executive Director
has appropriate skills and experience so that
their views carry significant weight in the
decision making.

There are job descriptions in place for each

of the Chairman, the Chief Executive, and the
Senior Independent Director which have been
agreed by the Board. These are available on
our website.

(@) www itvplc.com/investors/governance

Evaluation

Internal

The work of the Board Committees is
reviewed annually with the support of Group
Secretariat. The evaluation takes the form of
interviews with Board and Cornmittee
members eliciting feedback on a wide range
of topics. In addition input is sought from the

Executive Directors, other relevant senior
executives and external advisers.

Qutput is reported to the relevant Chairman
and a report of actions is submitted to the
Committees and actioned as appropriate.

External

During 2016 the Board continued its
ongoing effectiveness review facilitated

by the external firm YSC. The review was
aimed at evaluating progress and identifying
how the Board can best add value as our
strategy develops. The evaluation comprised
the following:

« Individual interviews

= Observation of Board sessions

+ Discussions with Senlor Executives

« Interview with the Company Secretary
« Access to key Board papers

In interviews the Board members were
asked to give their views on the challenges
facing ITV and what this means for the Board.
They were also asked to comment on the
strengths and weaknesses of the Boardin
relation to these needs. Board members
who had participated in the earlier review
were also asked to reflect upon any changes
since then.

Areport detailing analysis and
recomrnendations was cornpiled which
was discussed with the Board as a whole
and feedback was provided to individual
Board members together with additionat
development sessions.

It was noted that despite ITVs recent
success there was aneed to ensure that the
factors underpinning this success continued
to work productively. The Board needs to be
sensitive to creating conditions for keeping
and attracting talented senior executives to
ensure stability and continuity. In view of the
dynarnic nature of the external environment
and the impact of technological change on
the industry the Board needs to maintain
perspective on opportunities and chaltenges
whilst deveioping a clear view of its risk
appetite and the extent to which successin
the next phase will require the exploration
of new paths and a greater appetite for risk.

Overall the Board was percelved to be
extremely strong and composed of seasoned
and experienced individuals who operateina
professional and disciplined manner. The
culture of the Board was felt to be openand
positive but also challenging. Board members

feel they have a great connection with the
business and are used effectively outside
of Board meetings.

The Board is perceived to handle regulation
and governance in an effective and efficient
manner as well as creating time for the
discussion of broader strategic and

cultural matters.

Board tenure
The current board tenure is shown in the
diagram below.

Succession planning and diversity
Succession planning

The Board has agreed a succession planning
framework which it reqularly reviews to
ensure that:

- Board tenure is appropriate and
encourages fresh thinking and new ideas

+ TheBoard is sufficiently diverse but most
importantly has the appropriate mix of
generalist and specialist skills

+ Non-executive Directors have the
appropriate level of independence, from
the executive and each other

This year both John Ormerod and Andy Haste
will have served more than six years on the
Board. The Board continues to believe that
they bring a wealth of knowledge and
experience to their deliberations and provide
a valuable contribution within their roles. At
the AGM in May 2017 John Ormerod will reach
the ninth anniversary of his appointment.
The Board has deliberated carefully and has
decided to ask him to continue as Chairman
of the Audit and Risk Committee foran
additional year to enable us to ensure an
appropriate successor is in place and has
sufficient time as amember of the
Committee before he steps down.

Diversity

Itis our policy to retain a strong but relatively
small board bringing a balance of in-depth
commercial and creative experience.

The Company has an Equal Cpportunities
policy whichis foliowed throughout the
organisation ~ further informationis set out
on page 99, It continues to be the Board'’s
intention to increase the diverse make-up
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and representation of its members as
opportunities arise, but given the size of
the Board specific formulaic targets are
not appropriate.

Induction, training and development

The Company has a policy and programme
for induction and continuing professional
development of Directors. On appointment,
each Director takes part in a comprehensive
induction programme,

During their period in office, the Directors
are continually updated on the Group’s
businesses and the competitive and
regulatory environments in which they
operate. Thisis done through:

« Updates and papers which cover changes
affecting the Group and the marketin
which it operates meetings with senior
executives across the Group and
key advisors

- Regqular updates on changes to the legal
and governance requirements of the
Group and in relation to their own
position as Directors

« Presentations given at Board and
Committee meetings on business
matters and technical update
sessions from external advisors
where appropriate

Key stages of the inducticn programme are:

Staget

Provision of documents

Duties of a Director, Board pracedures,
Board and strategy papers and corparate
governance.

Stage2

Meetings with Chief Executive and
Group Finance Director

Business overview, strategy, current
trading and key commetcial issues

Stage 3

Visits to UK and intemational locations
and meetings with colleagues at ail
tevels of the business as appropriate.

During 2016 the Directors visited a number
of different sites. Sir Peter Bazalgette and
Roger Faxon visited the ITV Studios office
in the US, and Sir Peter Bazalgette visited a
number of news rooms across the UK and
the ITV Studios office in Paris.

As part of the YSC board effectiveness
process individual development is considered
and plans put in place. Executive Directors
may accept external appointments as Non-
executive Directors of other companies and
retain any related fees paid to thern. Details
of positions held and fees received by
Executive Directors in 2016 can be found

on page 87

Relations with shareholders

The Board attaches a high priority to effective
communication with shareholders and has
reqular and open dialogue with investors. The
Board believes that continued engagement
with shareholders is beneficial to both TV
and its stakeholders as it helps to builda
greater understanding of investors’ views,
opinions and concerns. Adam Crozier, lan
Griffiths and the Director of Investor
Relations meet with many institutional
investors throughout the year to keep them
updated on the Company's performance
against our strategy. These range from
one-to-one meetings to group presentations
including the Full Year and interirn results

and the AGM. Specifically, following the Full
Year and Interim results one-to-one meetings
are held with our largest institutional
investors. The Board is kept up to date with
regular feedback as part of the wider
reporting programme,

The Chairman and Senior Independent
Director also respond to shareholder queries
and hold meetings where appropriate.

The Company maintains a programme

of engagement with the investment
community, including results presentations,
briefings to brokers and other sales forces
and attendance at a number of investor
conferences. Presentations given to the
investment ccmmunity are availabie to
download from our website.

@ www.itvplc.com/investors

We regularly seek feedback on the perception
of the Company amongst shareholders and
the investor community more broadly via
our corporate brokers. Investor comments
are fed back to the Board and its committees
reqularly and the Investor Relations team
provides the Board with monthly updates
which include details on stock market
movements, shareholder register, analyst
forecasts and selected news on the

media sector.

Private shareholders represent more than
93% of our sharehelders holding 3% of our
shares, We encourage shareholders to
register their email addresses to receive
information from us in a timely manner.

The AGM will be held on Wednesday,
10 May 201/ (further details can be found
on page 189).

At the AGM shareholders are invited to meet
the Directors prior to and after the formal
proceedings. At the meeting the Chairman
and Chief Executive will review the Group's
current trading which is fotlowed by a question
and answer session. Separate resolutions are
proposed on each substantially separate issue
and all resolutions are taken on a poll. Voting
can be done online or using a form of praxy.
The level of votes lodged on each resolution is
rmade avallable on a Regulatory Information
Service and on the Company’s website as soon
as possible after the meeting. In 2016 the
meetingwas attended by 125 shareholders.
Details of voting at the 2016 meeting

is available on our website.

{& www.ltvple.com/investors/shareholder-

information/agm
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Audit and Risk Committee Report

In the Audit and Risk Committee section
The purpose of this report is to highlight
areas that the Committee has reviewed
during the year. We report to shareholders
on the significant firanclal reporting issues
and judgements made in connection with
the preparation of the Company’s finandal
statements. Also highlighted is how the
Committee has assisted the Boardin
reviewing the Company’s internal control
and risk environment. We explain what
the Committee has done to review

the effectiveness of ourinternal and
external auditors.

John Ormerod
Chairman,
Audit and Risk Committee

" Dear shareholder,

On the following pages we set out the Audit
and Risk Committee’s report for 2016 which
provides an guerview of the areas considered
by the Committee during the year.

During the year the Board reviewed and
refreshed its thinking on the Company's
approach torisk management. The Board
decided that it would be useful for the
Committee to provide greater input on the
risk management process. As a result, the
Board has expanded the remit of the
Committee to include risk and changedits
terms of reference accordingly.

The Committee received detailed updates
from a number of executives who own key
business risks which enabled us to understand
how risks which could impact our strategic
objectives are being managed and mitigated
within the business.

In line with our Auditor Independence policy
we have changed our external audit partner.
Whilst there is no requirernent to do so we
have as a matter of good governance also
had a change in lead partner for aur
outsourced internal audit function.

Looking ahead, with a change In audit
partners, we have an opportunity to review
our overall assurance and risk management
processes. In addition, as our strategy evolves
and the business diversifies we will continue
to develop our approach to new revenue
streams and our international operations.
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During the year the FRC's Audit Quality
Review team reviewed our external auditor's
(KPMG) audit of our 2015 financial
statements. We have discussed the report
with KPMG and the Audit Quality Review
team. The review identified three areas for
improvement in the audit which KPMG will
make in future years. Overall we found the
results of the review reassuring with no issues
identified which we considered cast doubt on
the fundamental quality of our audit or which
raised issues about our financial reporting.

We were delighted that Anna Manz joined
the Committee on 1 May 2016. Anna takes
our membership to four independent
Non-executive Directors. She brings broad
financial and commercial experience from
her executive roles. The skills and experience
of the members of the Committee remain
strong and we have had a productive and
effective year.

Further informaticn on corporate governance
and a schedule setting out how we comply
with the Code can be found on our website
www.itvplccom. We seek to respond to
shareholders’ expectation of audit committee
reporting and welcome feedback from themn,

John Ormarod
Chairman, Audit and Risk Committee

1March 2017

ITV continues to develop its control
environment in response to the
increasingly international nature

of its business
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Who is on the Committee

The Committee is composed entirely
of Non-executive Directors.

The current members are:

« John Ormerod (Chairman}

- Mary Harris

- Andy Haste

+ AnnaManz (@ppointed 1 May 2016)

\/The Committee members have between them a wide range of
business and financial experience. The Committee considers that
John Ormerod and Anna Manz have recent and relevant financial
experience for the purposes of the Code. Anna Manz is Group
Finance Director of Johnson Matthey and brings executive finance
skills to the Committee deliberations.

the table on page 65.

Full details of attendance at Committee meetings can be found on

Our role

The main role of the Committeeis to:

» monitor the integrity of published
financial information and review
significant financial reporting issues
andjudgements;

« provide advice to the Board on whether
the Annuali Report and Accounts are fair,
balanced and understandable and the

- review the risk identification and assessment

advise the Board on strategic risk exposures
and mitigations;

processes and undertake deep dives of high
risk business areas or processes;

review the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management processes;

monitor and review the effectiveness and

remnuneration performance objectives;
and

review the quality and effectiveness of
the external audit and the procedures
and controls designed to ensure auditor
independence.

Following each meeting the Committee
communicates its main discussion points

?ﬁ;ﬁzﬂ:ﬂ%ﬁﬁ:g’fﬁg fr?cigizﬁty |ndePenden_ce of the internal aud_lt function; and findings to the Board.
staternent: - provide advice to the Remuneration
. ' . i Committee on financial reporting matters
- assist the Board to establish and articulate and related judgements and risk
overall risk appetite and oversee and management as they affect executive
L ]
Meetings
February } May } July } Septamber } Novamber
+ Year-end financial = Half-year financial - Half-year report - Emerging and business « Year-end planning
reporting issues reporting issues « KPMG review specific risk reviews . Distributable reserves
and judgements andjudgements conclusions planning
- Fair,balanced and + External Audit strateqy and findings . KPMG interim controts
understandable reviews || . internal Audit review findings
- Vlabllrtv Statement independence . Review effectiveness
verification and evaluation of internal audit and
« KPMG audit following years plan
conclusions and findings
« Audit opinion

In addition to Committee members the Chief Executive, Group Finance Director, Group Financial Controller, Group Legal Director, Head of
Internal Audit, Director of Treasury, Director of Tax and the external audit partner regularly attend meetings. The Committee members meet

regularly with the external auditor and internat audit without executives present.

SOURLIBAGD I

Annual review

An annual review of the performance of the Comimnittee
was conducted for the year. In addition to feedback from
members of the Committee, input was sought from the
Chief Executive, Group Finance Director, Group Financlal
Controller, external auditors, Internal Audit and

the Chairman of the Board.

Overall, the review concluded that the Committeeis
responding appropriately to its terms of reference and

hvd

our website.

will continue to develop its role. Priorities for this year
will include appointing a successor to John Ormerod,
developing our risk management processes and
streamlining some of our administration procedures to
free up time to cover awider agenda.

The Committee’s terms of reference can be accessed on

@ www.itvplc.com/investors/governance
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Audit and Risk Committee Report continued

Gurfocus in2016

Inplanning its own agenda, and reviewing the audit plans of the internal and external auditor, the Cormmittee takes account of significant issues
and risks, both operational and financial, likely to impact on the Company's finandial statements. The Committee also addresses specific queries
referred to it by the Board or Remuneration Committee.

During 2016 there were no topics where there was significant disagreement between management, our external auditor and the Committee,
or unresolved issues that needed to be referred to the Board. Set aut in the tables below is information on the key matters considered during

the year.

Regular reviews and recurring transactions
The following table summarises the regular reviews and activities undertaken by the Committee. Some of these areas may require the

application of judgement by management or have underlying complexity.

» Anti-bribery controls

Treasury policy and reports

» Taxand Treasury, and Disclosure

Committee review

Further information on our risk
management framework canbe
found on pages 50 to 57.

Financial + Financial results announcements - Auditor engagement and fees External
disclosure + Annual Report and Accounts = Auditor independence and objectivity audit
and - Accounting judgements and estimates = Auditor Independence policy
judgements + Developmentsin financial reporting (including non audit fees)
« Fair, balanced and understandable + Auditplans
« Viability Statement (page 57) - Auditer performance and effectiveness
- Significant failings and weaknesses » Key areas of judgement
» Going concern
+ Goodwillimpairment
{note 3.3, page 140)
« Tax(note 2.3, page 126)
+ Deal debt (see below)
- Pension accounting (note 3.7, page 148)
+ Deficit financing (see below)
» Revenue recognition (IFRS15)
« Appropriateness of Alternative
Performance Measures (page 34)
internal + [nternal Audit independence and = Principal risks and uncertainties Risk
control effectiveness andrisk mitigations
» Internal Audit plan 2017 - Effectiveness of the
» Effectiveness of internal controls risk management process
- Post acquisition reviews = Cybersecurity (page 52)
(Talpa MediaB.V) = Technology modernisation (page 56)
- Whistleblowing process « Health and Safety risk management
- Material litigation {page 53)
« Insurance programime
« Fraud controls
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Most of the topics mentiohed above are relevant to all businesses. However, matters specific to ITV include:

« Deal debt: this is where management reviews the over and under delivery of advertising value to agencies. The Committee reviews
management’s approach and method of determining the provisions required for under delivery.

« Deficit financing: as part of our strategy to expand our content portfolio, significant investment in high end drama is made.
The Committee reviews the accounting implications, including revenue recognition and recoverability of the amounts invested.

In both cases the Committee agreed with management's approach and their conclusions.

Complex discrete transactions
The Group completed certain transactions during the period that were in tine with strategy but could have been considered outside the

normal course of business. The Committee carefully reviewed these transactions to ensure that the judgements applied by management
were reasonable and any complex accounting quidance followed correctly.

URHIAOD |

Tatpa signed a four year deal to
license ‘The Veice of China’ in
January 2016.

Whilst {TV has done similar
multi-year deals for Intellectual
Property (IP) and content, this
was by far the most material,
and therefore the accounting
treatment was examined
indetail

See also note 2.1, page 120.

had been met.
The following points were noted:

» The format IP was delivered, and
is fully available for exploitation,
and

- Nomaterial performance
obligations are expected of
Talpain future years.

As aresult of the above key points,
together with the fulfilment of all
other revenue recoghition criteria,
management considered it most
appropriate for the format revenue
for all four years (the life of the
contract) to be recognised in full

in 2016.

Area of focus Financial reporting and Judgement Action taken by Committee Outcome
Revenue Talpa: contract for The Committee assessed whether  The Cornmittee considered
recoghition The Voice of China'. the revenue recognition criteria management’s report on the

accounting and agreed with the
assessment that revenue was
recogrised appropriately, in
accordance with IFRS and ITV
accounting policies.

KPMG also presented their view
on the matter to the Committee,
noting consistent conclusions on
the appropriate revenue
recognition for this contract.

4l
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Audit and Risk Committee Report continued

Other matters

In addition to financial reporting matters the following topics were reviewed:

Area of focus Issue Actlon taken by Committee Qutcome

cvber security Cyber security is an increasing risk The Committee undertook a Completed and planned mitigations
as our business develops new review of the cyber security risks were reviewed and assessed. The
revenue streams and direct to and strategy and changes to Committee was content with progress
consumer propasitions, reflect the ever changing and will continue to monitor and review

cyber threat. this area,

Technology Legacy business systems arebeing  The Committee reviewed the Completed and planhed mitigations

modernisation | modernised toreduce anumberof  programme of work to modernise were reviewed and assessed. The
key business risks, legacy business systerns, Committee was content with progress

and will continue to monitor and review
this area.

Health and Following an internal audit of site The Committee has kept the In areas which face day-to-day

Safety specific health and safety mitigation actions under regular operational risk we are continuing
managernent a number of review and is satisfied with the to develop our three lines of defence
mitigating actions were progress to date. model and to move our approach to
recommended and considered. risk away from a rules and process

In addition a generat group wide driven system to a cultural people
health and safety risk assessment  driven solution which encourages
was requested and was considered  and focuses on prevention rather
in January 2017, thanreaction to failure.
The Committee willcontinue to
monitor and review this area.

Tax Strategy In accordance with Finance Act The Committee has reviewed ITV's Tax Strategy was approved by
2016 the Company is required to the strategy produced by the board on 26 January 2017 and is
publishits Tax Strategy. management and recommended available to view on our website at

it for adoption to the Board. www.itvplc.com,

Bond Issue The Company proposed issuinga The Committee reviewed the The bond was successfully issued in
€500 million Eurobond for general  bond issue docurments and related  December 2016 and was hedged in
corporate purposes and financing disclosures. In addition they accordance with agreed policies.
activities such asrepayment of the  discussed the related treasury
£161 million bond issue in January policy decisions such as foreign
2017, and earn cut payments due exchange hedging.
on acquisitions, primarily Talpa.

Gurney Productions LLC, a subsidiary of the Group: Before the Group initiated legal proceedings against the sellers, who held a 38.5%
membership interest in Gurney Productions LLC, the Board considered advice received from US Counsel and the evidence supporting the
alleged breaches of contract and their fiduciary duties, as well as self-dealing and fraudulent concealment, and agreed with the conclusions
drawn and proposed actions suggested by management. In 2017 the Committee plans to consider whether any improvements in procedures
and controls might have identified and mitigated the issues sooner and how any lessons learned can be applied to other acquired companies.
Further informaticnis in Note 5.3, page 172),

Risk management and Internal Controls

Risk management

The Committee continued to consider the process for managing risk within the business and assisted the Board in relation to compliance with
the Code and development of the risk appetite framework, During the year the Committee terms of reference were extended so that the
Committee coutd provide greater input on the Company's approach to risk management. Further information on our risk management
process and details of our Principal risks and uncertainties is included in the Strategic Report on pages 50 1o 56.

Internal controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's systems of internal control and for reqularly reviewing the effectiveness of those systerns.
The Committee assists the Board in reviewing the systems of internal control. The primary responsibility for the operation of these systemsis
delegated to management. Such systems can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstaternent or loss. Key
control procedures are designed to manage rather than eliminate risk.
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As part of our internal control process the strategy is reviewed and approved by the Board. The Group perforins a comprehensive annual
strategy review and a rolling five-year financial planning exercise. The five-year plan feeds into the annual budget cycle. The Executive Directors
review formal forecasts, detailed budgets, strategies and action plans and the Board approves the overall Group budget as part of its normatl
responsibilities. The results of operating units are reported manthly, along with an update of the Group’s performance against strategic KPIs
and cash. Actual results are compared to budget and forecasts, and key trends and variances are explained and analysed.

Assurance

The Committee satisfies itself that internal controls are operating throughout the year principally based on a programme of internal audit
reviews, reviews of the effectiveness of internal controls including fraud and anti-bribery and through a suite of automated analytics which
monitor financial transactions in our systerns. In addition to the internal audit programime, there are a number of exception reports that cover
transaction processing. For those subsidiaries not covered by exception reporting software, amonthly self assessment takes place which s

subject to independent internal review.

Our Auditors
Internal auditor

The Group's internal audit activity is outsourced to Deloitte who report directly to the Commmittee. The Committee continues to believe that
outsourcing offers access to the wide range of skills and resources in the various geographies required and endorses its continuing use. The
Committee keeps under review the internal audit relationship with Deloitte and the procedures to ensure appropriate independence of the
internal audit function is maintained. During the year there was a change to the lead partner to bring a fresh perspective and approach and
continue to bring robust challenge, The effectiveness of internal audit is assessed over the year using a number of measures that include (but

are not limited to):

+ an evaluation of each audit assignment completed using feedback from the part of the business that has been audited; and
« ahigh ievel annual review that is completed by obtaining feedback from senior management in each division.

At the start of the year the Committee considered and approved theinternal audit plan, that inctuded audits acrass the Group as well as
assurance over live projects. During the year the Committee reviewed findings from these internal audit reports, the actions taken to
implement the recommendations made in the reports and the status of progress against previously agreed actions. Allinternal audit reports

are available to the Committee,

External auditor

The Group’s external auditor is KPMG. The table below summarises the process followed to manage the relationship and audit process.

U———

Engagement % Audit tendering and rotation

, Independence, objectivity
and fees

Reappointment

The Committee considers We undertook a competitive

carefully the scope of planned
work and the assessment of risk
and materiality on whichit is
based. In particular, through
the Committee Chairman, the
Committee participatesin

the negotiation of the audit fee
to ensure that there is an
appropriate balance between
the scope of work and the cost
of assurance. The Committee's
aimis to support a robust and
effective audit and strong
raporting lines to the
Committee.

The Committee agrees the
terms of engagement, audit and
non audit fees and reviews
progress and results throughout
the year.

tender in 2012 and applying

the BIS guidance on the EU Audit
rules the next mandatory
tender would be for the 2023
financial year.

The Committee continues to
monitor audit quality to ensure
arobust and effective audit.

During 2016 there was a rotation
of audit partner. Following a
robust selection process by
management and the
Committee, our new partner is
Paul Sawdon.

We comply with the provisions
of the Statutory Audit Services
for Large Companies Market
investigation {Mandatory Use

of Competitive Tender and Audit
Processes and Audit Committee
Responsibitities) Order 2014,

The Committee seeks to ensure
the objectivity and independence
of our auditar through:

« focus on the assignment and
ratation of key personnel;

- the adequacy of audit
resource; and

- policies in relation tonen
audit work.

During the year we updated our
Auditor Independence policy to
comply with EU legislation. A
copy of the policy is available on
our website at www.itvplc.com.

Fees paid to KPMG for 2016 are
set out in Note 2.1 on page 124.
Non-audit fees amounted to
34% of the audit fee. Significant
advice relatec to employment
taxin the UK.

During the year the Cornmittee
considered the performance
and audit fees of our auditor,
and the level of non-audit work
undertaken, and recommended
to the Board that a resolution
for the reappointment of KPMG
for a further year as the
Company’s auditor be proposed
to shareholders at the AGM

in May 2016. The resolution
was passed and KPMG was
reappointed.

The Committee has
recommencded the
reappointment of KPMG at
the AGM on 10 May 2017
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Audit and Risk Committee Report continued

External Audit effectiveness and quality
The Committee follows the review programme below to satisfy itself of externat audit effectiveness and quality.

February

{ v

|
[

November

« Audit scope and materiality

- Independence and objectivity

- Confirmation of work
performed and other
significant risks

« Re-appointment

« Audit Plan and Strategy
+ Engagement

+ Feesand independence
= Audit Quality Review focus
areas

« Auditor Independence policy
{reviewed every two years)
+ Audit fees - final

Audit quality is reviewed throughout
help structure Its review of audit qual

the year and in 2016 the Committee used the Financial Reporting Council’s (FRC) Audit Quality Practice Aid
lity. When making its assessment of audit quality, the factors the Committee focused on included:

« their audit methodology and its effective application to ITV;
« their robustness of challenges and findings on areas which require rmanagement judgernent;

+ whether there had been an internal peer review of the ITV audit and what the findings were; and
+ the experience of the senior members of the audit team.

External audit quality reports The audit strategy for the year addressed thematic concerns that the FRC had highlighted.

Audltor intecaction with Reviewing the auditor's understanding of business progress against the strateqy and emerging industry
management thermes, as well as the auditor's discussion with management on key carporate transactions.

Auditors own view of Enquired with regards to:

effectiveness

Further in its assessment of audit quality the Committee took into account:

+ the detailed audit strategy for the year, including the coverage of emerging risks;

- Group materiality and component

materiality;

« how the auditor communicated any key accounting judgements and conclusions; and

. feedback from management of the performance of the auditor.

There were no significant findings from the evaluation this year and the Committee considers the external audit to have been robust

and effective.

The Committee also considered the FRC Audit Quality Review feedback from their review of our 2015 audit and agreed with KPMG the
changes in audit procedures they will make and how we will support their implementation.
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Remuneration Report

In this report

The purpose of thisreport is to set out for shareholders the
proposed revised policy relating to directors’ pay required to be
submitted to shareholders for approval at least every three years
and to update you on how we have applied the current policy for
the financial year ended 31 December 2016. The report also aims
to demonstrate how our Remuneration Policyis aligned to our
strategy, supports the retention of the Executive Directors and
rewards them for strong performance.
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ITV continues

to make significant
progress in growing,
strengthening and
rebalancing the business
away from its reliance on
television advertising

Andy Haste
Chairman,
Remuneration Committee

sIURLIAACS I

Dear shareholder,
On the following pages we set out:

+ the Annual Report on Remuneration (pages 75 to 88) which includes
this letter and will be subject to an advisory vote at our Annuat
General Meeting (AGM) on 10 May 2017; and

+ our revised Remuneration Policy {pages 89 to 97) which we will
be asking our shareholders to formally approve at the AGM.

2016 performance

As discussed in the Strategic Report, ITV continues to make significant
progress in growing, strengthening and rebalancing the business away
from its reliance on television advertising. We continue to believe that
this is the right strategy for the business. Adjusted EPS has grown by
844% since 2009 and although 2016 has seen a softening in the
advertising market as aresult of the economic uncertainty we have
delivered revenue growth of 3% and adjusted EB!TA of £885m (2015:
£865rn}. in addition, 53% of our total revenue now cormes from sources
other than traditional spot advertising.

While uncertain external economic factors will clearly have an impact
on our business, we remain focused on our originat vision and are
confident that our strategy, focused on three key Strategic Pricrities,
remains appropriate for the long-term.

Perfotrmance measures for our Annual Bonus Awards and Long-Term
Incentive Plan (LTIP) are closely aligned to our KPis (set out on pages
36 to 39) and Alternative Performance Measures (APMs). Our KPls
have been defined to align our performance and accountability to our
strategy. The KPIs are the key measures of our success and cover all of
our Strateqgic Priorities, Details of our APMs and the reconciliation
between statutory and adjusted results is set out on pages 34 to 35.

Performance against KPIs which are aligned to our Bonus and LTIP is
set outbelow:

2016 2015
Adjusted EBITA £885m £865m
Profit to cash conversion 97% 9%
Adjusted EPS ___170p 1&5p
Family SOV 4% 21.2%
Total non-NAR growth 1% 25%

In addition, over the past few years we have included a cost-saving
target in our Annual Bonus Awards to ensure that management
focuses on streamlining the business.

2016 remuneration outcomes

While the Company has continued to perfarmwell, particularty
in a challenging external environment, we did not achieve the
ambitious profit target set internally at the start of the year.
However, the targets for cost savings and profit to cash
conversion were achieved in full.
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As reported last year the weighting of the personal performance
target was reduced from 40% to 25% of the bonus opportunity.
When considering the bonus payout levels for the Executive Directors
the Committee took account of the excellent delivery against targets
whichincluded the cost saving target that was fully achieved, the
increase in Family SOV demonstrating the underlying health of the
brand and the strength of the main channel and strong growth in
non-NAR.

As a result, the Committee agreed the total bonus payout level

for both Executive Directors at 40%, 15% on financial and 25%

on personal performance opportunity which paid out in full. This
reflected the excellent delivery against the individual targets which
were set to balance the financial targets. The Committee was
conscious that this out-turn was higher than the out-turn for the
financial element, but felt it was appropriate given the overall results
and good performance in delivering cost savings, managing cash,
viewing performance and rebalancing the business. The Committee
concluded that the out-turn produced a result which was, overall, fair
and did not apply any discretion tc adjust it. Further information and
details of the bonus targets for 2016 are set out on page 81.

During the year, awards made under the LTIP in 2014 reached the end
of their performance period and will vest at 80% with the Family SOV
element not vesting despite the improvement in 2016. in line with our
phased approach to the introduction of helding periods 50% of the
vested amount becomes exercisable in May 2017 and the remainder
in May 2018, Details are set out on page 82.

The Committee considers the total pay of the Executive Directors to
be a fair reflection of their overall contribution to the success of the
business. The Committee has not exercised any discretion during the
year or felt it appropriate to call on malus and claw-back provisions.

Remuneration Policy review

During 2016, we undertook a review of the Remuneration Policy for
the Executive Directors in preparation for the AGM in 2017 when the
existing policy will reach its third anniversary and require resubmission
to shareholders.

Objective of the review

The principal objective of the review was to ensure that the
remuneration framework remains aligned with the strateqy of
the business and continues to incentivise the Executive Directors
to deliver exceptional performance for shareholders.

We believe that our existing remuneration framewaork remains fit for
purpose, is aligned with the strategy of the business and islinked to our
key KPIs. The Committee therefore does not consider it appropriate to
make significant changes to our policy at this stage as we are satisfied
that our remuneration framework promotes long-term alignment with
shareholders and does not encourage undue risk taking. We will keep
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under review emerging best practice in the light of the Executive
Remuneration Working Group final report (which proposed replacing
traditional LTIPs with non-performance restricted stock awards) but
do not, currently, consider this appropriate.

Summary of key changes
The proposed adjustments to the remuneration framework for
Executive Directors include the following:

+ Base salary and benefits cap - we are introducing a formal cap
on base salary and on the overall cost of benefits. These do not in
any way form an aspiration and we do not envisage any change
in practice as a consequence; they simply reflect the latest
regulatory guidance,

» Performance measures - we will continue to ensure that
performance measures are closely aligned with our strateqy.
The measures continue to be appropriate but the nature of our
business continues ta change which may require us to consider
the measures in future. To ensure we can retain the iink to our
strategy as it evolves we have included more flexibility to change
performance measures for new awards. This is in Line with existing
market practice.

Remuneration policy implementation in 2017

Details of how the Committee proposes toimplement the policy,
if approved, in 2017 are set out on page 94. Bonus targets and
performance conditions for LTIP awards to be made in 2017 have
been setin line with the proposed Remuneration Policy and have
been aligned closely with our strategy.

The Executive Directors did not receive an increase to base salary
from 1 January 2017, This is in line with the approach taken for the
wider employee population.

Principles considered when setting remuneration

The media market in which ITV operates is particularly competitive.
We aim to balance the need to attract and retain high-quality talent
essential to the Company's success with the need to be cost-effective
and to reward exceptional performance. The Remuneration Policy
balances these factors, while taking into account the prevailing best
practice and a fair outcome for investors.

A significant proportion of the remuneration package is tied

to the achievement of stretching performance conditions, that
align remuneration with our strategy to deliver strong business
performance and create shareholder value. Individuals should
be rewarded for success and performance measured over clear
timescales. The remuneration package is focused on rewarding
sustained tong-term performance and aligning executives with
the shareholder experience.
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When considering the cut-turn for annual bonus awards

the Committee ensures that bonuses do not lead to adverse
environmental, social or governance issues or encourage bad
behaviour. ITV takes these issues seriously and further information can
be found on our Responsibility website at www.itvrespensibility.com
and in the Strategic and Governance reports.

Shareholder views

Details of voting on remuneration resolutions at the AGM in May 2016
are set out on page 84 for which we were pleased to receive strong
investor support. We will make available the results of the voting at
the AGM to be held in May 2017 shortly after the meeting.

We seek to respond to sharehalders' expectations of remuneration
reporting and would welcome feedback. Where we are proposing
to make any significant changes to the ongoing operation of the
Remuneration Policy we shall seek shareholders’ views and take
these into account.

After just over six years as Chairman of the Committee | will
be stepping down following the AGMin May 2017 and lam
very pleased that Mary Harris will succeed me as Chair. | will
remain as a Non-executive Director and Senior Independent
Director for the time being.

Andy Haste
Chairman, Remuneration Committee

1March 2017

VUBLIIACY I

Throughout this report we make reference to Strategic Priarities.
For reference these are as detailed in the tables below.

For awards made in 2016 and 2017
Target
Maximise audience and revenue from free-to-air

and VOP business
Grow an international content business

Build a globzl pay and distribution business

Further information on each of the above is set outin the
Strategic Report on pages 21to 33.

For awards made up to andincluding 2014
Target
(1) Create alean, creatively dynamic and fit-for-purpose

organisation
(@ Maximise audience and revenue share from our existing

free-to-air Broadcast business
(3 Drive new revenue streams by exploiting our content

across multiple platforms, free and pay
(@  Build a stronginternational content business

Further information on each of the above is set out in the 2016
Strategic Report available on our website.

(@ www.itvplc.com/investors
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Remuneration Report continued

Who is on the Committee

The Committee is composed entirely of
Non-executive Directors, The current members are:
+ Andy Haste (Chairman)

- Sir Peter Bazalgette

- MaryHarris

« JohnOrmerod

Full details of attendance at Committee meetings can be
found on page 65.

Our role

The main role of the Committee is to:

- review the ongoing appropriateness, relevance and effectiveness of the
Remuneration Policy including in relation to retention and development;

+ propose to shareholders changes to the Remuneration Policy and approve
Its implementation for the Executive Directors, Management Board and
other Senfor Executives (together the Senlor Executive Group) taking into
account arrangements for the wider employee group. Details on
employee remuneration can be found on page 123.

+ approve the design of the Company's annual bonus arrangements
and Long-Termincentive Plans, including the performance targets that
apply for the Senior Executive Group; and

« determine the award levels for the Senior Executive Group based on
performance agalnst annual bonus targets and long-term incentive
conditions.

Foliowing each meeting the Committee communicates its main
discussion points and findings to the Board. Regular discussion topics
are set gut below.

Meetings

January > Fabruary > May m/s.ptumbor } October } Novembar
. Financial performance ||+ Bonustargetsagreed {| - Market update » Reward framework || - Bonus payout + Bonus framework and
update for current year + Financial performance|] and current trends forecasts targets
+ Indicative bonus = LTiP awards and update - Consideration of + Intermal Audit process ||« Termsof reference
outcomes and payout targetsagread for remunerationinthe review review
levels current year wider employee + Review of
« Indicative LTIP « Remuneration report group remuneration
performance and review consultants
vesting levels . Compliance with the « Annual pay review
« Payreview gutcomes Remuneration policy
andchangestoSenior || . Compliance with
Executive Group shareholding
. Advisor independence guldelines
« Internal Audit review
of cutcomes

In addition to Committee members the Chief Executive, Group Finance Director, Group HR Director, Director for Pensions and Reward
and independent advisor FIT Remuneration Consultants reg ¥ d ‘

gs.

Annual review

conducted for the year. In addition to feedback frorn members
of the Committee input was also sought from the Chief
Executive, Group Finance Director, Group HR Director and

FIT Remuneration Consultants, the independent advisor to
the Committea.

Overall the review concluded that the Comimittee is responding
appropriately to its terms of reference and will continue to

An annual review of the performance of the Committee was hVd develop its role. Prigrities for this year will include a smooth

transition of Committee Chairman and consideration of
wider membership.

The Committee’s terms of reference can be accessed on
our website,

(@ www.itvplc.com/investorsigovernance
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Annual Report on Remuneration

The sections of the Annual Report on Remuneration that have been audited by KPMG are pages 80 to 84, and page 86 (from and including
Directors' Share Interests) to page 88.

Remunaeration Policyin 2017
The following section provides details of how the Remuneration Policy will be implemented in 2017.

Executive Directors
Salary
There has been no change to Executive Directors’ base salaries with effect from 1 January 2017 and these remain as follows.

1January 1 Jahuary

2017 2016
£000 £000 % Change
Adam Crozier 941 41 0
lan Griffiths 575 575 0

Salary increases for Executive Directors followed those of the wider empioyee population. Far 2017, an increase of 1.5% was paid to employees
earning less than £100,000 per annum.

Taxable benefits and pension
These will be provided in line with the Remuneration Policy and no changes are envisaged.

Bonus (cash and shares)

Awards made to Executive Directors through the bonus will be paid two-thirds in cash and one-third deferred into shares under the Deferred
Share Award Plan (DSA). The proposed performance measures and weightings for awards are detailed below and remain unchanged from 2016.
The Board considers the actual targets for 2017 to be commercially sensitive at this tirne and we envisage including equivalent disclosures to
those included in respect of the 2016 bonus in next year's report.

Performance measire Strategic target Maximum
Adjusted ITV plc EBITA (before exceptional items) 60%
Profit to cash conversion 10%
Cost savings 5%
Individual targets 25%
Share awards

The proposed performance measures and targets for awards to be madein 2017 are detailed below.

Under the LTIP rules, the maximum annual award that can be granted in any financial year is 350% of salary. This is to allow the Committee
flexibility when recruiting Executives and to ensure the longevity of the plan. There is currently no intention to grant awards at this ievel.
Awards in 2017 will be made to the Executive Directors with a value of 225% of salary.

Threshold vesting for all targets is 20% with vesting between threshold and maximum (100%) on a straight-line basis. Family SOV has an
additional vesting threshold of 75% for performance of 21.36%. When assessing performance against this target, the Committee will also
have regard to the health of the main ITV channel. Each measure is also subject to an underpin that the cumulative EPS is at least 56.3 pence.

Performance measure Strategic target Welghtings Threshold Maximum
Cumulative adjusted EPS 50% 56.3p 64.2p
Famnily SOV 20% 20.2% 21.6%
Total non-NAR growth 10% 5% growth pa 10% growth pa
International production revenue 10% 5% growth pa 15% growth pa
Cnline, Pay & Interactive revenue 10% 5% growth pa 18% growth pa

Shares that vest will be subject to a two-year holding period.
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Non-executive Directors
There was no increase to Non-executive Director fees from 1 January 2017 as set out below.
1January 1January
2017 2016
£ £ % change
Chairman {all-inclusive fee)? 450,000 500,000 0
Board fee 65,054 65,054 0
Additional fees for:
Senior Independent Director 25,000 25,000 0
Audit and Risk Committee Chairman 20,000 20,000 0
Audit and Risk Committee member 5,371 5,371 0
Remuneration Committee Chairrman 20,000 20,000 0
Rernuneration Committee member 5,371 5371 0
1. Sir Peter Bazalgette was appointed Chalrman on 12 May 2016. 2016 total is for the previous Chairman.
2. Details of Committee rmembership can be found in the Governance section on page 55.
Remuneration policy application in 2016
The following section provides details of how the current Remuneration Policy was implemented in 2016.
Executive Directors
The table below sets out in a single figure the total remuneration for both Executive Directars for the financial year.
Bonus
Salary Taxable benefits {cash and shares) Share awards Penslon Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2005 20167 2015° 2016 2015 2016 2015
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Adam Crozier 941 918 19 19 677 1586 1,571 1,129 235 229 3443 3881
lan Griffiths 575 561 14 15 380 879 960 619 144 140 2,073 2,24
1,516 1,479 34 34 1,056 2465 2,531 1,748 379 369 5516 6,095

=

. Inthe 2075 Annual Report and Accounts part of the amount shown was the indicative vesting value of the 2013 PSP awards that were subject to performance conditions measured to

31December 2015. The figures shown in the table above represent the subsequent value received on the vesting date of 29 March 2016 using the share price on that day (240.98 pence),

atotal decraase of £141,625.

N

average share price for the final quarter of 2016 (178 pence). 50% of these shares are subject to a one year holding period,
3. The aggregate emoluments for all directors as required under Schedule 5 (51 2008/410) [s the total remuneration shown in the table abova less share awards, plus the total emolument

figures for Non-executive Directors showi on page 83, £3,908k.

. The amount shown is the indicative value of the 2014 LTIP awards that were subject to performance conditions measured to 31 December 2016 The value was calculated using the

Further information in relation to each of the elements of remuneration for 2016 set out in the table above is detailed below. An explanation
far 2015 is set out in detail in our 2015 Annual Report and Accounts, which can be found on our website.

@ www.itvplc.com/investors
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BUNISAOD |

Salary
Executive Directors’ base salaries were increased by 2.5% with effect from 1 January 2016 in line with those of the wider employee populaticn,

Taxable benefits
The benefits provided to the Executive Directors include the cost of private medical insurance and car-related benefits.

Bonus (cash and shares)

Annual incentives are provided to Executive Directors through the bonus, with one-third of any award deferred into shares under the
Deferred Share Award Plan (DSA). The performance conditions that apply to the bonus are set on an individual basis and are linked to the
Company's corporate, financial and strategic priorities. This enables the Committee to reward both annual financial performance delivered
for shareholders, and performance against specific financial, operational or strategic objectives set for each Executive Director, which are
closely linked to the strategic priorities of the business. As stated in last year's report, the weighting on personal performance was reduced
for 2016 from 40% to 25% of the total bonus opportunity. Payments and deferrals in respect of the financial year are set out below,

%ofmaximum  Valite deferred

bonus into shares Value paid
opportunity  under the DSA In cash Total value
earned
Adam Crozier 40% £225828 £451,656 £677,484
{an Griffiths 40% £126,506 £253,0M £379,517

Percentage of maximum bonus oppartunity earned for 2015 was 96% and 55% for Adam Crozier and lan Griffiths respectively
When considering performance outcomes, the Committee looks to ensure the cutcomes align with overall business performance.

The majority of the bonus (75%) was based upen the achieverment of corporate and financial targets, with payout determined in accordance
with pre-set target ranges subject only to the usual adjustments to exclude the impact of material in-year acquisitions and disposals, significant
unbudgeted initiatives and currency movements.

The remainder of the bonus (25%) was based upon the Committee’s assessment of the contribution each Executive Director has made to the
overall strategy through the delivery of specific targets. Both Executive Directors had a number of common objectives aligned to our Strategrc
Priorities. The Strategic Report sets out more detait of the Company's achievements in the year.

In a year which brotight the EU referendum result, the subsequent market uncertainty and a 3% decline in NAR the Executive Directors
responded swiftly and robustly to the resulting business impact. They instigated prompt cost savings and provided strong leadership which has
resulted in a record adjusted profit for the Company. The Executive Directors delivered well on their original objectives and also on some new
ones developed inresponse to the changed market conditions;

» Adam Crozier oversaw a refreshed broadcasting strategy, resutting in SOV growth both for the Company’s main and family of channels,
There was once again strong growth in ITV's Online, Pay and Interactive businesses. The Group’s global business was driven forward, with
vertical integration of value from the Talpa acquisition and the announcement of BritBox in the USA.

« lan Griffiths supported ITV Studios and ITV Broadcast to develop their international businesses and creative performance and secured
agreement to ITV's London property strategy.

In the circumstances and noting that all of these targets were fully achieved along with full delivery of other personal measures, the Committee
agreed that a100% pay out against personal measures was appropriate as exptainedin the Chairman’s letter on page 75. The Committee also
confirms that, where relevant, it also considered environmental, social and governance factersin considering the overali outcome.

81



Governance P Annual Report on Remuneration

Annual Report on Remuneration continued

In order toreflect best practice, the Committee has provided disclosure of the corporate and financial targets used for 2016, together with

performance against those targets and the resulting level of payout as set out below.

Performance required Performance Payout level Strategic
Performance measure Weighting Threshold Target Max achieved target
Adjusted ITV plc EBITA (before exceptional items) 60%  £906m £941m £971m  £885m 0%
Profit to cash conversion 10% 78.5% B83.5% 88.5% 97% 100%
Costsavings 5% £16.2m £18.2m £20.2m £28.9m 100%

Performance against the personal targets as noted above (25% weighting), resuttedin payouts of 100% of the maximum against these targets for Adam Crozier and lan Griffiths. Up to 20%

Is payable for threshold and up to 60% for target performance.

Share awards

We are required to show share awards in the remuneration table on page 80 according to the year in which the performance period for each
performance condition came to an end. 100% of the awards made in 2014 under the LTIP were subject to performance conditions measured to

31December 2016. The indicative value of these awards is set out below.

Value at
Value at Number 3 Dec:m?):r Changein
Number of award date of shares 20167 share price since
shares awarded £ vesting’ £ award date
Adam Crozier 1103,543 2,025,000 882,835 1,571,448 {3.00%
lan Griffiths 674,387 1,237,500 539,510 960,327 {3.0)%

1. Thevesting figurey showninthe table above reflect B0% of the total award that met performance conditions oh 31December 2016. 50% wilt become exercisable on 30 May 2017,

and the remaining 0% will become exerclsable after a one year holding perlod on 30 May 2018.

2. The share price used tovalue the shares at 31Decernber 2016 is the average share price for the final quarter of 2016 (178 pence) The share price used to calculate the number of shares

under award was 183.5 pence (the average of the share price on each of the 27,28 and 23 May 2014).

When considering performance outcomes the Committee locks beyond formulaic results to ensure the outcomes align with overall business

performance. In the circumstances, the formulae were applied without adjustment.

Details of the performance achieved for the 2014 LTIP awards are below. A gateway condition of minimum cumulative adjusted EPS (371 pence)

was met before any portion of the award could vest.

Performance

Petformahce . Strategic target Weighting  Targets achleved Payout level
Cumulative adjusted EPS @ 50% 371p = 20% vesting

42.3p =100% vesting

Vesting on a straight-line basis between 471p 100%
Family SOV @ 20% _ Maintain at 23.05 = 20% vesting

23.51% (+2% growth) = 100% vesting

Vesting on a proportionate basis between 21.36% 0%
Totalnon-NAR growth O] 10% 5% growth pa = 20% vesting

10% growth pa = 100% vesting

Vesting on a straight-line basis between 15.27% 100%
International production
Revenue for 2016 ® 10% 5% growth pa = 20% vesting

15% growth pa = 100% vesting

Vesting on a straight-line basis between 31.52% 100%
Online, Pay &
Interactive Revenue ® 10% 5% growth pa = 20% vesting

18% growth pa = 100% vesting

Vesting on a straight-line basis between 25.13% 100%
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Pension

The Executive Directors are hot part of an ITV pension scheme but receive a cash allowance in lieu of pension with a value of 25% of base salary.
Payments were reviewed and increased in 2013 to ensure they were market competitive. The cash allowance does not form part of the base

salary for the purpose of determining incentives.

Non-executive Directors

The table below sets out in a single figure the total remuneration for Non-executive Directors for the financial year.

sIumnLsA0n l

Fees Taxable benefits' Total

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Sir Peter Bazalgette 2 312 69 2 2 314 71
Roger Faxon 65 63 8 5 73 68
Mary Harris 3 74 66 8 7 a2 73
Andy Haste 15 T4 1 2 M5 16
Anna Manz 4 63 - 1 - 63 -
Archie Norman 5 184 500 - 3 184 503
John Ormerod 90 89 2 92 91
903 201 22 21 923 922

Y

The value disclosed is Inclusive of tax arising on the expense, which 1s settled by the Company.

. Peter Bazalgette was appeinted Chairman on 12 May 2016,

L ]

. Archie Norman stepped down from the Board on 12 May 2016

LTIP awards mada in 2016

Mary Harris was appointed to the Remuneration Committee on 12 May 2016,
. Anna Manz was appointed to the Board on 1 February 2016 and to the Audit and Risk Committee on 1 May 2016.

. The amounts disclosed in the table above relate to the reimbursement of taxable relevant travel and accommaodation expenses for attending Board meetings and related business.

On 29 March 2016 awards were made under the LTIP to both Executive Directors in the form of nil-cost options, subject to performance over

the period to 31 December 2018.

% salary Number of Value at Performance
Award date awarded options award date period ends Vesting date Release date
Adam Crozier 29 March 2016 225 878,481 £2117138 31December2018 29March2019 29 March 2021
lan Griffiths 29 March 2016 225 536,850 £1,293,806 31December2018 29 March 2018 29 March 2021

The number of nil-cost options was calculated using the average share price over the three-day penod prior to the award date (241 pence)

The LTIP was introduced in 2014 following a remuneration review and subsequent approval by shareholders at the 2014 AGM. The holding
periods were phased in over the first two anntial awards made in 2014 and 2015, with 100% of the awards made in 2016 subject to a two-year
holding period. The shares that vest under the 2016 award will not release until March 2021,

The Committee sets targets for the LTIP taking into account external forecasts, internal budgets, business priorities, and risks and uncertainties.
Targets are set to be appropriately stretching in this context, with maximum perfarmance set at a level which is considered to be the delivery of
exceptional performance. The awards made in 2016 are subject to performance measures and targets as set out below. Awards will be subject

to aninitial curnulative adjusted EPS performance gateway equal to that required for threshold performance (54.6 pence) before any portion of

the award can vest.

Performance measure Strategic target Weighting Threshold Maximum
Cumulative adjusted EPS 50% 54.6p 62.4p
Family SOV 20% 20.2% 21.6%
Total non-NAR growth 10% 5% growth pa 10% growth pa
International production revenue 10% 5% growth pa 15% growth pa
Online, Pay & Interactive revenue 10% 5% growth pa 18% grcwth pa
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Threshold vesting for all targets is 20% with vesting between threshold and maximurm (100%) is on a straight-line basis. Family SOV hasan
additional vesting threshold of 75% for performance of 21.2%. When assessing performance against this target, the Committee will also have
regard to the health of the main (TV channel.

Other Disclosures
Payments to past Directors or for loss of office
No payments were made during the year.

Committee membership and advisors
The Directors who were members of the Committee when matters relating to the Executive Directors' remuneration for the year were
considered, are set out on page 65.

The Committee obtains advice from various sources in order to ensure it makes informed decisions. The Chief Executive and Group Finance
Director are invited to attend Committee meetings as appropriate. No individual is involved in decisions relating to their own remuneration.

The Group HR Director is the main internal advisor and provides updates on remuneration, employee relations and human resource issues,

FIT Remuneration Consultants acted as the independent advisor on remuneration policy and the external remuneration environment during
2016 and provided advice on benchrnarking, shareholder consultation and long-term incentive arrangements. Total fees for the advice provided
to the Committee during the year amounted to £103,154 (exclusive of VAT and expenses) which were charged on their normal terms.

The Committee has formally reviewed the work undertaken by FIT for the Committee and is satisfied that the advice they have received has
been objective and independent. FIT is a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and abides by its Code of Conduct.

Shareholder voting
At the AGM held on 12 May 2016, votes cast by proxy and at the meeting in respect of the Executive Directors’ remuneration were as follows:
Voting for Voting against
Number of Number of
Rasolution shares % shares * Total votescast Votes withheld
Annual Remuneration Report 3,002,101,203 9615 120,053,675 3.85 3122154878 51,538,304

The Remuneration Policy was approved at the AGM held on 14 May 2014 for a three-year period., Votes cast by proxy and at the meeting were as
follows:

Voting for Voting against
Numbaer of Number of
Resolution shares % shares % Total votescast  Votes withhald
Remuneration Poticy 2,272,594,109 96.04 93,825,641 396 2,366,419,750 366,266,825
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Historic performance

The graph below shows the TSR performance of the Company against the FTSE 100 index over the eight-year period to 31 December 2016.

Chief Executive remuneration

The table below provides a summary of the total remuneration received by the Chief Executive over the last eight years, inctuding details of the

annual bonus payout and long-term incentive award vesting level in each year.

Lohg-term
Incentive

Total award

remuneration Bonhus % of vesting % of

£000 maxkmm maximum

2016 Adam Crozier 3,443 40 80
2015 Adam Crozier 3,881 96 75
2014 Adam Crozier 4,842 94 75
2013 Adam Crozier 8,399 a3 87
2012 Adam Crozier 2915 91 12
20M Adam Crozier 2158 88 -
2010 Adam Crozier {for the eight month period served) 1,350 a5 -
2010 John Cresswell (for the four month period served) 661 83 -
2009 Michael Grade 2,583 94 -

The long-term incentive award vesting percentage relates to the proportion of the award that met performance conditions in the relevant

financial year. The 2015 numbers have been amended to reflect the actual value of the LTIP on vesting.

The table below provides details of the percentage change in the base salary, benefits and bonus of the Chief Executive between 31 December

2015 and 31December 2016 compared to the average percentage change for other employees.

% change

% changein % change In inbonus

Notes base salary benefits payment
Chief Executive 1 2.5% {1.66} (57.29)
All employees 2,3 51% (3.6%) (13.37)

1. Benefits include the cost of redical Insurance and car-related benefits.
2. Asthemajority of employees are based in the UK, overseas employees have not been included.

3. Thepercentage change in benefits is the average change for all employees (excluding the Chief Executive) with any of the same benefits as the Chief Executive
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Spend on pay
The table below shows pay for all employees compared to other key financial indicators.
2016 2015

Notes £m £m % Change
Employee pay 1 419 400 475
Ordinary dividend 261 208 2548
special dividend 402 251 6015
Employee headcount 2 6121 5,558 1013

1. Employee payIs the total remuneration pald te all colleagues across ITV on a full-time equlvalent basis. More detail is set out on page 123,

2. Employee headcount is the monthly average number of colleagues across ITV on a full-time equivalent basis. More detail is set out on page 123

3, There were no share buy-backs during either year.

Directors’ share interests

shareholding guidelines

The Committee continues to recognise the importance of Directors being sharehotders so as to align their interests with other shareholders.

shareholding guidelines are in place, which encourage Executive Directors ta build up a holding of ITV plc shares based on a percentage of base
salary. 50% of the requirernent must normally be abtained within three years of appointment and the remainder normally within five years.

% of salary % of salary
hald at

required under
shareholding 31December
guidelines 2me
Adam Crozier 400 446
jan Griffiths 200 473

The share price used to value the shares as at 30 Decernber 2016 was 206 pence, The shares included in the calculation are shares held In the indnadual's own name and the net of
tax shares held under the 2014 DSA which are not contingent on continued employment (awards made from 2015 are contingent on continued smployment and will not form a part
of the requirement.

where the value of shares required to be held increases as a result of a salary increase (or an increase in the relevant percentage), the Executive
Directors will have three years from such increase to achieve compliance. The Committee may change the guidelines so long as they are not,
overall, in the view of the Committee, less onerous.

Non-executive directors are currently required to use 25% of their annual fees, after statutory deductions, to acquire shares in the Company.
The shares are purchased quarterly and held untit they retire from the Board. From 2017 it is propesed that this will change s¢ that (untess they
are unable to retain their fees) they are all required to build and then maintain a holding of 100% of their base fee over the six years from the
date of appointment to the Board.

interestsin shares
The figures set out below represent shareholdings in the ordinary share capital of ITV plc beneficially owned by Directors and their family
interests at 31 December 2016.

31 December IMDecember

2016 2015
Sir Peter Bazalgette 197,108 13,685
Adam Crozier 1,909,263 2,241,233
Roger Faxon 21,910 15,835
lan Griffiths 1,254,554 1,754,554
Mary Harris 12,028 6,138
Andy Haste 125,446 109,222
AnnaManz 31,588 -
John Ormerod 168,407 153,898

Anna Manz was appointed to the Board on 1February 2016,

There were no changes in Directors’ interests in shares between the end of the finandial year and 1March 2017.
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Executive Directors’ non-executive directorships
With specific approval of the Board, Executive Directors may accept external appointments as non-executive directors of other companies
and retain any related fees paid to them.

During the year the Executive Directors retained fees for the directorships set out below.

2016

Company £000

Adam Crozier G45 plc 25
lan Griffiths DS Smith ple 55

Adam Crozler stepped down from the board of G4S plc on 27 May 2016

Service contracts and loss of office
Executive Directors
Executive Directors have rolling service contracts that provide for 12 months notice on either side. There are no special provisions that apply in

the event of a change of control.

Notice period from Notice period from Compensation provisions

Date of appointment Nature of contract Company Director for early terminatlon

Adam Crozier 26 April 2010 Rolling 12 months 12 months None
fan Griffiths 9 September 2008 Rolling 12 months 12 months None

A payment in lieu of notice, induding base salary, contractual benefits and contractual provision for an income in retirement, may be made if:

« the Cormnpany terminates the employment of the Executive Director with immediate effect, or without notice; or
« termination Is agreed by mutual consent.

With the exception of termination for cause or resignation, Executive Directars will be eligible for a borws award prorated to reflect the
proportion of the financial year for which they were employed and subject to performance achieved, provided they have a minimum of
three- months service in the bonus year.

Non-executive Directors

Each Non-executive Director, including the Chairman, has a contract of service with the Company. Non-executive Directors witl serve for
aninitial term of three years, subject to election and annual election and re-election by shareholders, unless otherwise terminated earlier by
and at the discretion of either party upon one month's written notice (12 months for the current Chairman). After the initial three-year term
reappointmentis on an annual basis.

All Non-executive Directors are subject to election or re-election at the AGM in 2017 Details of unexpired terms are set out in the table on
page 65.

The Directors' service contracts and letters of appointment are avaitable for inspection at the Company's registered office.

az
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Outstanding interests under share schemes
The following tables provide details of Directors’ interests in outstanding share awards.

Share  Share price
Ar At price used atdate of Date of
‘1January Awarded Vested Exercised Lapsedin  31December for award vesting release/exercise
Notes 2016 Inyear inyear inyear inyear 2016 {pence) {pence) In year
Adam Crozier
D5A
29 March 2016 3,6 - 219,406 - - - 219,406 241.0
27 March 2015 197,741 - - - 197,741 2567
286 March 2014 240,534 - - - - 240,534 194.5
28 March 2013 346,228 - 346,228 346,228 - - 129.5 24098 29 March 2016
LTIP
29 March 2016 6 - B78481 - - - 878481 241.0
27 March 2015 804,636 - - — 804,636 256.7
30 May 2014 4 1,103,543 - - - - 1,103,543 183.5
PSP
1 March 2013 5 624 647 - 468485 468485 156,162 - 1211 240.98 29 March 2016
lan Griffiths
DSA
29 March 2016 3,6 - 121628 - - - 121,628 241.0
27 March 2015 12186 - - - 112,186 256.7
28 March 2014 122,269 - - - - 122,269 194.5
28 March 2013 175,891 - 175891 175,891 - - 129.5 24098 29 March 2016
LTIP
29 March 2016 6 - 536,850 - - - 536,850 241.0
27 March 2015 491,722 - - - 491,722 2567
30 May 2014 4 674,387 - - - - 674,387 183.5
PSP
1March 2013 5 342,549 - 256,912 256,912 85,637 - 1211 24098 29 March 2016

1. Noawards are outstanding that have vested but have not been exercised.

2. There are no performance conditions attaching to the DSA.

3, DSAawards made [n 2016 for 2015 performance are included In the remuneration table on page 80.

&, LTIP performance conditions were met in 2016 (80%) 50% will become exercisable on 30 May 2077, the remalnder on 30 May 2018 The indicative value at 31Decesmber 2016
[s included in the remuneration table on page 80 and is descnbed on page B2,

Ly

PSP performance conditions were met in 2015 (75%) and the value is included in the remuneration table on page 80,

6, The face value of awards granted in the financial year were £2,117,138 and £1,293,806 under the LTIP for Adam Crozier and lan Griffiths respectively, and £528,768 and £293,122

under the DSA.

7. Performance conditions that apply to the outstanding awards under the LTIP are set out in the table below.

2014 LTIP 20M15LTIP 2016LMe
Threshold
Strategrc target Weightlng vesting Threshold Maximum Threshold Maximuym  Threshold Maximum
£P5 Gateway @ 371p 43.7p 54.6p
Cumulative adjusted EPS @ 50% 20% 37p 42.3p 45.7p 52.2p 54.6p 624p
Farnily SOV @ 20% 20% 23.05% 23.51% 2% 2244% 20.2% 21.6%
Annualnon-NAR growth O® 10% 20% 5% 10% 5% 10% 5% 10%
International production revenue growth @ 10% 20% 5% 15% 5% 15% 5% 15%
Qnline, Pay & Interactive revenue growth @  10% 20% 5% 15% 5% 18% 5% 18%
Cumulative adjusted Curnulative adjusted Cumulative adjusted
EPS years 2014 to 2016 EPSyears 2015 to 2017 EPS years 2016 to 2018

Vesting between threshold and maximum (100%) is on a straight-line basis for all targets except SOV which vests at 75% with a
straight-line vesting from each threshold and maximum.
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Remuneration Policy

The tables below summarise the rmain elernents of the remuneration package for Directors and will be effective from the date approved

by sharehoiders in 2017 and will apply until shareholders next consider and vote on the policy.

Executive Directors
Purpose and link Maximum potential
Fixed slaments to strategy Operation payment Performancs matrics Proposed changes
Base Reflects the individual's Reviewed annually Ordinarily satary None, although Introduce a formal cap
salary skills, responsibilities and paid monthly in increases wilt bein overall individual and on salaries; thisisa cap
and experience. cash. Consideration line with the average business performance and not an aspiration.
h is typically givento a increase awarded to Is considered when
f:gm:;ﬁ tean d range c_f factors when other employeesin the setting and reviewing
retention of Executive determining salary Company. Increases salaries.
. levels, including: rmay be made above
Directors of the calibre this level to take
required to deliver the + Personaland account of individual
business strategy within Company-wide . )
= ! circumstances, which
the competitive media performance. may include:
market. « Typical pay levelsin
relevant markets for « Increaseinsize or
each executive whilst scope of the role or
recognising the need responsibility.
for an appropriate + Increase toreflect
premium to attract the individual's
and retain superior development and

talent, balanced
against the need

to provide a cost-
effective overall
remuneration
package.

The wider employee
pay review.

performance inrole,

Mo salary will exceed

€113 million (being 120%

of the CEO's current
salary) as further
increased by RPI over
the life of the policy.
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Remuneration Policy continued

Purpose and link Maximuem potential

Fixed elements to strategy Operation paymant Performance matrics Proposed changes

Provision To provide competitive Executives can choose The maximurm None No change.

for an post-retirement toparticipateintheITV  contributions or cash

income in penefits or cash defined contribution allowances for the

by allowance asa scheme, receive a cash Executive Directors are

retirement framework to save altowance or receive 25% of base salary.

for retirement. paymentsintoa
personal pensionor a

Supports the combi nat?on thereof.

recruitrment and

retention of Executive Contributions are set

Directors of the calibre as a percentage of

required to deliver base salary.

the business strat .

within the compe;?ivve Post-retirement

rnedia market. benefits donot form
part of the base salary
for the purposes of
determining incentives.

Benefits Ensures the overall The Company provides Set at a level which the None Introduce a formal cap
package is competitive arange of market Committee considers on benefits; thisis acap
and provides financial competitive benefits to be appropriately and hot an aspiration.
protection for including travel related positioned taking into N
employees and their benefits, private medical  account typical market Permit felevant
families. insurance and other levels for comparable protEC.tIOH for R

Insurance benefits. roles, individual expatriate executives.
Additional benefits crcumstances and the
may also be provided in overall n_:ost to
the business,
certain clrcumstances,
Ifrequired for business The overall cost of
need. For example benefits will not exceed
(but not Limited to), £100,000 {€300,000In
relocation expenses, the case of a director
housing allowance and required torelocate
education support. between countries)
inany year,
Inaddition, the
Company may
reimburse relocation
expenses and/ or
provide for tax
equalisation
arrangements.
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Purpose and Uink Maximum potential
Variable elements  to strategy Operation payment Performance matrics Proposed changes
Bonus and Incentivises executives Measures and targets The maximum bonus Performancemeasures  Nomaterial changes.
DSA and colleagues to are set annually based opportunity for any and targets are setby
achieve key strategic on business plans at the Executive Director will the Committee each
outcomesonan start of the financial not exceed 200% of year based on corporate
annual basis. year and pay-out levels salary. The current objectives closely linked
fi ial are determined by the bonus opportunities to the Strategic
E:’:t"'r ?Czr;rﬁvot'pa'lc.'a Committee following are 180% of salary for Priorities and individual
N jectives the year-end based Adam Crozier and 165% contributions The
to deliver the business on performance of salary forlan Griffiths.  majority of the bonus
strategy. against abjectives. Increases above the opportunity will be
The element . current opportunities, based on the corporate
compulsorily deferred ::Lde%r::eent::drlizzls up to the maximum and financial measures.
into shares rewards Annual bors ) limit, may be made The remlainder of the
delivery of sustained calculations that are to take account of bonus will be based on
long-term perforrmance, based on the financial individualdircumstances, performance against
provides alignment ased o which mayinclude: individual and/or
h the shareholder resu_lts for the year are " ) strategic objectives.
wit L audited by Internal Audit - Increase In size or
experience and . and reviewed by the scope of the role Up to 20% of the
supports .the retention Audit and Risk or responsibility. maximum opportunity
of executives. Committee before « Increasetoreflect will be received for
consideration by the individual's threshold performance.
the Committee. development and
The Committee tP:;f::oT:nce "
has the discretion
to amend the bonus
pay-out should any
formulaic assessrment
of performance not
reflect a balanced view
of averall business
performance for
the year,
Not more than

two-thirds of the bonus
is deliveredin cash with
the balance deferred
into shares under the
DSA normally fora
period of three years.

During the deferral
pariod share awards
may be reduced or
cancelledin certain
clrcumstances. Further
detail Is provided on

page 96.

Dividends are paid to
participants onthe
defertred shares during
the defetral period.
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Remuneration Policy continued

Purpose and link Maximum potential
Variable elements to strategy Operation paymasnt Performance metrics Proposed changes
LTIP Incentivises executives Awards are madeunder  Qurcurrent operational ~ The Committee may Consistent with market
todetiver performance the LTIP rules. practice is to make set such performance practice, greater
which is aligned to the Awards are normalls awards of 225% of conditions on LTIP flexibility to set relevant
business strategy over v salary each year. awards as it considers performance conditions
the longer term and the mad}e annually with appropriate (whether for new awards.
creation of shareholder vesting dependent on Undgr the LTIPrules, the finandial or
value. business performance maximumannualaward o Lo
duting the performance  that may be grantedin whether corporate,
Acts as aretention tool perlod. The any financial year is divisional of ingivi d,u al)
to retain the executives performance periodwill ~ 350% of salary. ’
required to dellver the be not less than three The Committee has
business strategy years, ctherthanin sought to set measures
exceptional which are closedy tinked
circumstances. to the Company's
. financial and strategic
;2:;2:!:&?;;&;’ amend priorities and will
the final vesting levet continue to do so.
shiould any formulaic The proportion of
assessment of each elernent of the
performance not reflect award that will vest for
abalanced view of the threshold performance
business perforrmance against a metric will be
during the performance not more than 20%.
period. Performance
Awardswill be required periods may be over
tobe held foran such periods as the
additional two-year Committee selects at
holding period after the grant, which will not be
end of the performance Less (but may be longer)
period. than three years.
Dividends are earned on
deferred shares during
the holding period.
During the holding
period awards may be
reduced or cancelled in
certain circumstances.
Further detailis
provided on page 96.
SAYE Provides all Executive Directors are Participation limits are None No changes.
employees, including entitied to participate as per the rules of the
Executive Directors inthe pianonthe plan and in accordance
the opportunity to sarne basis as other with HMRC limits.
voluntarily invest in employees.
Company shares.

Should the Company choose to implement a tax efficient all-employee share participation plan (for example a SIP) the Executive Directors would be eligible to participate in accordance with
any shareholder approved plan rules and HMRC limits.
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Legacy arrangements

The Committee may make any remunetation payments and payments for loss of office (including exercising any discretions available toitIn
connection with such payments) notwithstanding that they are not in line with the Remuneration Policy set out above. This would apply where
the terms of the payment were agreed before the policy came into effect or at a time when the relevant individual was not a director of the
Company and the payment was not in censideration for the individual becoming a director of the Company.

Malus and claw-back

Malus and claw-back provisions may be operated at the discretion of the Committee in respect of any cash and deferred share elements of
the bonus and awards made under the LTIP. Under malus, unvested share awards (including any LTIP shares subject to a post vesting holding
period} can be reduced {down to zero if considered appropriate) or be made subject to additional conditions. Claw-back allows for repayment
of bonuses previously paid and/or shares previously received following vesting. Malus/ciaw-back can be operated up to four years following
the start of the relevant bonus year for bonuses, and up to six years from the relevant date of grant for LTIP awards. The circumstances in
which the operation of these provisions may be considered from time to time and currently include material misstatement of results, gross
misconduct or fraud.

Performance measures and target setting

The annual bonus is assessed against both financial and individual targets determined by the Committee. This enables the Committee to
reward both annual financial performance delivered for shareholders, and performance against specific financial, operational or strategic
objectives set for each director, which are closely linked to the Strategic Priorities of the business.

The Committee sets targets for the long-term incentive plans taking into account external forecasts, internal budgets and business priorities.
Targets are set to be appropriately stretching in this context with maximum performance being set at a level which is considered to be the
delivery of exceptional performance.

When considering performance outcomes the Committee will lLook beyond formulaic resuits to ensure the outcomes align with the averail
business performance.

Non-executive Directors
The table below summarises the main elements of remuneration for Non-executive Directors:

BIUTUIOACDH |

Component Approach of the Company Maximum potential payment
Chairman fees The Committee determines the fees of the Chairman and The aggregate fees (together with any shares and/or
sets the fees at a level that is considered to be appropriate, benefits Including the reimbursement of travel and other
taking into accowunt the size and complexity of the business expenses - if subject to taxation - and an amount to meet
and the expected time commitment and contribution of any tax arising on such expenses) of the Chairman and of
therole. Non-Executive Directors will not exceed the Umit from
time to time prescribed within the Company's Articles
of Association {currently £1,500,000 p.a).
Non-executive The Board determines the fees of the Non-executive As above,
fees Directors and sets the fees at alevel that is considered to
be appropriate, taking Into account the slze and complexity
of the business and the expected time commitment and
contribution of the role,
Fees are currently structured as a basic fee with additional
fees payable for membership and/or chairmanship of a
committee or other additional responsibilities but may
be restructured within the overall limits.
Benefits Additional benefits may also be provided in certain As above,
circumstances, if required for business purposes. This
includes the reimbursement of any travel expenses
{and associated tax on those expenses).

a3
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Remuneration Policy continued

Application of the Remuneration Policy
The chart below provides an indication of the level of remuneration that would be received by each Executive Director under the following three
assumed perfarmance scenarios,

Below threshold | Fixed elements of remuneration only - base salary, benefits and pension
performance
On-target Assumes 60% pay-out under the annual bonus
Perfomance Assumes 20% pay-out under the LTIP (aligned with threshold performance)
Maximum Assumes 100% pay-out under the annual bonus
Performance Assumes 100% pay-out under the LTIP

Notes:

1. The scenatios do nat include any share price growth assumptions or take into account any dividends thatmay be paid

2, Fixed pay s the salary as at 1 January 2017, pension is 25% of salary, and the value of benefits Is equivalent to thatincluded in the remuneration table on page 80.
3. Annual bonus is based on 180% of salary for Adam Crozier and 165% of salary for lan Griffiths

4, LTIP amount is based on 225% of salary for both Executive Directors.




Imv ple Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Recruitment Remuneration
When agreeing the components of a remuneration package for a new Executive Director, the Committee will apply the principles

detailed below.
The package will be competitive to attract and retain the most suitable candidate for the job.

Whetre passible, the Committee will always seek to align the remuneration package with the Remuneration Policy outlined above.
However, where appropriate, elements of the package may be outside of this policy to meet the circumstances of the individual upon
recruitment. The Committee will ensure that the arrangements are in the best interests of both ITV and its shareholders and remain
subject to the overall variable pay limits set out below.

Ongoing In determining an appropriate remuneration structure and levels, the Committee will take into account all relevant factors to
remuneration ensure they are able to recruit the most appropriate candidate for the job and that the arrangements are In the bestinterests of

both ITV andits shareholders. The Committee will typically seek to align the ongoing remuneration package with the ongoing
Remuneration Policy outlined on pages 89 to 97,

Consistent with the DRR Regulations, the caps contained within the Remuneration Policy for fixed pay do not apply to new recruits
(whether internal or external), although the Committee does not currently envisage exceeding these caps in practice.

The maximurmn level of variable remuneration which may be granted to a new director upon appointment {excluding any buy-out
awards for forfeited remuneration) will not be greater than 550% of salary (the sum of the maximum bonus and maximum new

LTIP opportunities).

BI.IV-OI.It awards | TheCommittee may make awards to buy out' a candidate’s remuneration arrangements that are forfeited as a result of leaving

for forfeited their previous employer.

remuneration In doing so, the Committee will take account of relevant factors including any performance conditions attaching to the forfeited
awards, the likelihood of the awards vesting and the form and timing of the awards. The Committee will typically seek to make
buy-out awards on a comparable basis to those that have been forfeited but, particularty where the performance period is
substantially complete, may refiect such conditions in some other way such as through a significant discount to the face value
of awards forfeited. Exceptionally, where necessary, this may include

a guaranteed or non-prorated annual bonus in the year of joining.

In exceptional circumstances, the Committee may grant a buy-out award under a structure not includedin the
policy but that is consistent with the principles set out above {any may rely upon Listing Rute 9.4.2 In structuring
such a buy-out).

The Committee will take all relevant factors into account (including the candidate’s tocation, the calibre of the individual, external influences,
internal relativities and the overall business context) when determining the new remuneration package and seek to ensure that no more is

paid than necessary.

In the Remuneration Report following the appointment, the Committee will fulty explain to the shareholders the remuneration package for
the appointed individual and the rationale for such arrangements and will display such information on the ITV plc website and announce via
aregulatory information service as soon as practicable following the appointment.
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Remuneration Policy continued

Service contracts and loss of office
Executive Directors

Executive Directors have rolling service contracts that provide for 12 months notice on either side. For a new joiner, the contract may
commence with a notice period of up to two years reducing to the standard 12 months cver time. There are no special provisions that apply
in the event of a change of control.

A payment in lieu of notice, including base salary, contractual benefits and contractual provision for an income in retirement may be made if:

- the Company terminates the employment of the executive with immediate effect, or without due notice; or

- termination is agreed by mutual consent.

The Company may also make a payment in respect of outplacement costs, legal fees and the cost of settling any potential claims where

appropriate.

With the exception of termination for cause or resignation (unless the Committee determines otherwise), Executive Directars will be eligible for
a bonus award prorated to reflect the proportion of the financial year for which they were employed and subject to the performance achieved,
provided they have a minimum of three months service in that bonus year.

The treatment of shares awarded under the DSA and LTIP on termination are set out below.

Good leaver Mutual agreement Other circumstances Change of control
DSA Injury, ill health, disability The Committee has the right Awards lapse. Awards release in full at

or transfer of undertakings. to exercise its discretion as to effective date of change.

Awards release in full at the the extent to which awards, If

leaving date. any, may release, for example

where someane Is asked to

For other goad leaver reasons leave because of a change in

awards release ‘_ft theend of drcumstances outside of

the defetral period unless the their control.

Committee decides to release

the shares earlier.
LTIP Injury, ill health or disability, The Committee has the right Awards lapse. Outstanding awards would

redundancy, retirement or to exercise its discretion to normally vest and become
During the transfer of undertakings, or apply good leaver treatment, exercisable subject to
perf ance otherwise at the discretion for example where someone satisfaction of performance

N of the Committee. is asked to leave because of conditions and capped based

period I ed achange in circumstances on the time in the performance

?:Zﬁiﬂ'j;g;ﬁ:ﬁ outside of their controtl. period since grant, subject

to the discretion of the

to achlevernent of the Committee

performance conditions during ’

the performance period.

Awards become exercisable at

the end of the holding period

untess the Committee decides

torelease the shares earlier.
LTIP Awards become exercisable at Awards become exercisable at For resignation, awards Awards become exercisable at
During the the end of the holding period the end of the holding pericd become exercisable attheend  the effective date of change.
additional unless the Committee decides unless the Committee decides of the holding period unless the

torelease the shares earlier. torelease the shares earlier. Committee decides to release
holding period the shares earlier.

Inthe case of misconduct
awardswill lapse,
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Non-executive Directors

Each Non-executive Director, including the Chairrman, has a contract of service with the Company. Non-executive Directors will serve for an
initial term of three years, subject to election and annual re-etection by shareholders, unless otherwise terrminated earlier by and at the
discretion of either party upon one month’s written notice (12 months for the Chairman).

The director’s service contracts and letters of appointment are available for inspection at the Company’s registered office.

External appointments
With specific approval of the Board, Executive Directars may accept external appointments as non-executive directors of other companies and

retain any related fees paid to them.

Employment conditions elsewhere in the Company
When setting the policy for directors’ remuneration, the Committee considers the pay and employment conditions of employees elsewhere in

the Company.

The Company does not consult directly with employees in respect of determining the Directors’' Remuneration Policy. However, the Committee
does receive general feedback from employees via the HR function as part of the output frorm the employee engagement survey and receives a
report on employment practices elsewhere in the Company.

Shareholder views

The Committee maintains regular and transparent communication with shareholders. We believe that it is important to reqularly meet with our
key shareholders to understand their views on our remuneration arrangements and what they would like to see going forward. We welcome
feedback from shareholders at any time during the year.

Where we are proposing to make any significant changes to the cngoing operation of this Remuneration Policy we shall seek major
shareholders’ views and take these into account.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2016, The Directors’ Report required under
the Companies Act 2006 comprises this report and the entire Governance section including the Chairman's Govetnance Statement.

Articlas of Association
Unless expressly specified to the contrary, the Articles of Assocdiation may only be amended by special resolution of the shareholders.
The Articles are available on our website.

@ www.itvplc.com/investors/governance

Auditor

During the year the Audit and Risk Committee considered the performance and audit fees of the external auditor, and the level of non-audit
work undertaken. They recommended to the Board that a resolution for the reappointment of KPMG LLP for a further year as the Company's
auditor be proposed to shareholders at the AGM in May 2017,

Change of control
No person holds securities in the Company carrying special rights with regard to control of the Company.

All of the Company’s share schemes contain provisions relating to a change of control. Outstanding awards and options would normally
vest and become exercisabte on a change of control, subject to the satisfaction of any perfarmance conditions and proration for time
where appropriate.

Certain of the Group's bonds/borrowing facilities have change of control clauses whereby the issuer can require ITV to repay/redeem bonds
in the event of a change of controL The Company is not aware of any other significant agreements to which it is party that take effect, alter
or terminate upon a change of control of the Company.

Directors
Appointments: A table showing Directors who served in the year can be found on page 65. Biographies for Directors currently in office can
be found on pages 60 and 61and on our website.

@ www.ltvplc.com/about/board-of-directors

Non-executive Directors are appointed for an initial three-year period and annually thereafter. In accordance with the UK Corpoarate Governance
Code, each Director will retire and submit himself or herself for election or re-etection at the AGM on 10 May 2017,

Detail on compensation for loss of office can be found in the Remuneration Report on page 84.

Conflicts of interest: The Board has delegated the authorisation of conflicts to the Nomination Committee and has adopted a Conflicts
of Interest Policy. The Board has considered in detail the current external appointments of the Directors which may give rise to a situational
conflict and has authorised potential conflicts where appropriate, This authorisation can be reviewed at any time but wilt always be subject
to annual review. The Board is confident that these procedures operate effectively.

Contracts of significance: No Directar had any interest in any contract with the Company or its subsidiary undertakings.

Powers: The powers of the Directors are set out in the Articles of Assaciation. The Articles and a schedule of Matters Reserved for the Board
can be found on our website.

(2) www.itvplc.com/investors/governance
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Dividends
The Board has proposed a final dividend and a special dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016. Details of these and other dividends paid

for the year are as follows:

2016 2015
Interim dividend 2.4p 1.9p
Final dividend 4.8p 4p
Total ordinary dividend 7.2p 6.0p
Special dividend 5.0p 10.0p
Total dividend payment 12.2p 16.0p

The final dividend and special dividend for 2016 will be paid on 25 May 2017 to shareholders on the register on 28 April 2017 The ex-dividend
date is 27 April 2017.

Employees
Disability: The Company has been certified a ‘Disability Confident’ ernployer by the Department for Work and Pensions and gives full and

fair consideration to the employment of people with a disability or long-term heatth condition in accordance with the Equality Act 2010.
Our employment and recruitment policies are basad on equal opportunities and non-discrimination. ITV is a member of ‘Diversity Jobs,
which connects people to employers who place high importance on a diverse staff population. The Company provides tailored measures
to ensure colleagues are fully supported and that reasonable adjustrnents are made. We are committed to ensuring that all training, career
development and promotional opportunities are accessible and inclusive to all colleagues with a disability.

The Company's commitment around the disability agenda extends beyond our legal obligations and we partner with a variety of specialists
to drive best practice. Further information can be found on our Responsibility website,

(@ www.itvresponsibility.com

Diversity: Our goalis to reflect medern society through our programmes, channels, workforce and services, ensuring we are relevant and
accessible to all. It's integral to our business aims to reflect, represent and appeal to the breadth of communities that characterise modern
society. The Company has four strategic commitrments to diversity: inclusive programiming, inclusive workforce, inclusive culture and inclusive
access to programmes and services. The Company has a number of policies to support this, for example the Code of Conduct, Equal
Opportunities Policy and Social Partnership framework for programme-makers, The Corporate Responsibility Board is responsible for

the implermentation plans to deliver on these commitments and embed practices into the business.

Further information can be found on our Responsibility website.

(2) www.itvresponsibility.com

Engagement: Attracting and retaining talent is critical to our success. It is therefore in our interest to ensure that we provide the appropriate
rewards and opportunities for development so that colleagues feel engaged with the Cormpany.

In 2016 the Management Board led a seties of roadshows across the business. This gave colleagues an opportunity to feed back their thoughts
and concerns about the business. Engagement was reinforced through forums such as the intranet, requtar soft and hard-copy newsletters
and briefings between management and their teams. These channels enabled colleagues te understand the financial and economic factors
affecting the Company's performance, how their role contributed towards the execution of the strategy and how they could benefit from
Caompany success through involvernent in employee share schemes and infermation on their rights and benefits.
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To further prormote colleague engagement, the Company has a network of Ambassadors who are nominated and elected by their colleagues
to represent each part of the business. These Ambassadors share the views of colleagues with the business, enabling us to understand ways to
make ITV abetter place to work. The Ambassadors also keep colleagues up to date with what is going on across the business,

We have continued to measure and listen to colleagues through employee surveys. This year, in line with best practice, we changed the way we
measured engagement globally by including additional questions in order to capture a more rounded picture. 90% of employees said they were
proud to work for ITV (2015: 89.33%), and the score for total engagement was 83%.

Remuneration: When the Company reviews pay it takes a number of factors into consideration, including the need to stay competitive.
Qur focus on cash and costs remains incredibly important for the future health of our business. We need to batance our business and financial
commitments with our continuing investment in our programming and people.

The Company continues to be committed to ensuring colleagues earn at least the Living Wage or greater. Where appropriate we have agreed
additional increases. On 1st January 2017, all eligible colleagues received a pay increase of 1.5% (2016: 3.0%), with all those on a full-time
equivalent basic salary of £100,000 or above receiving no salary increase, including the Executive Directors.

In addition a bonus arrangement extends to all our colleagues, providing a comprehensive incentive framework which rewards everybody
when the Company is successful. The all-colleague bonus award for 2016 was paid at £1,300 (2015; paid in full at £1,500).

The Company also operates a successful and popular Save As You Earn scheme that encourages voluntary investment in Company shares and
a package of voluntary benefits, which provides valuable cost savings for both colleagues and the Company.

Information about remuneration for the Directors is included in the Remuneration Report on pages 75 to 88.
Succession planning: When planning succession within the Company consideration Is given to emergency cover together with medium

and fong-term succession and this is reviewed annually by the Nomination Committee. There is particular emphasis on growing the internal
leadership pipeline through the launch of the following key programmes:

Executive Next generation potential Management Board successors, giving them an opportunity to develop thelr management potential
Development and gain a greater understanding of the business.

Programme

Developi ng Delegates setected from across the business identified as a result of the performance review process. Content

Future Leaders includes understanding what it means to be a leader at ITV, how to manage performance effectively, coaching skills

PI’Og ramme and change management.

A comprehensive partfolio of development courses and workshops is in place for all colleagues which address common development needs.

Greenhouse Gas amissions
The Company is required to report annually on the quantity of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions in tonnes emitted as a result of activities for
which itis responsibile.

All data for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 is disclosed below for direct and indirect {electricity consumption) emissions. More
information on how we minimise our environmental impact can be found on our Responsibility website.

(&) www.itvresponsibility.com

Indicator 2016 2015
Total gross CO,e emissions 26,984 (tCO.e) 31196 (tCO,e)
Scope 1: Direct ernissions 7,793 (tCO,e) 8294 (tCO.e)
Scope 2: Indirect emissions 19,191 (tCOe) 22,902 (tCO,e)
Total revenue £3,527m £3,383m
Emissions per unit/£m revenue 7.7 (tCO,e) 9.2 (tCO.e)

Source: Mitie Energy analysis of [TV data.
The emissions data covers our global operations. The latest conversion factors fram the Department for Business, Energy & industrial Strategy were used to calculate emissions in tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalents. 34% of our data setis based on estimated data Estirnates are calcutated from previous cansumption trends and published benchmarks,
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As 90% of our greenhouse gas emissions are generated within our UK operations we have concentrated our efforts this year in our oldest
buildings by starting to replace the ageing infrastructure with more efficient plant, In the last year we have seen a 12% reduction in energy

use at our main site in Leeds as the replacement programme has delivered benefits. We have been able to reduce energy use in our Birmingham
studio by almost 20% by replacing the air conditioning with a more efficient system and have reduced our gas consurmnption in London by 10%
by conducting a review of building operations and varying the operating hours of the heating plant. Further investment in 2017 should deliver
continued steady reductions.

Health and safety

The health and safety of our colleagues, contractors and those participating in our productions is always a high priority. The significant ioss of
human life as the result of a major incident has been identified as a Principal risk to the organisation. The Company’s professionat Health and
Safety team continue to develop and refine our management system to ensure it meets the specific risk profile of the business and embeds
the ownership of risk with business owners.

in 2016 we rolled out a Leading Risk programme with the leadership teams in ITV Studios UK, supported by a research project being undertaken
in collaboration with the London School of Economics to give us a greater understanding of risk taking beliefs and behaviours within our
production business.

We will build on this in 2077 across our International business and we and wilt continue to underpin our Health and Safety Management system
with three key principles:

= People are the solution.
- Safety is about positive outcomes.
- Safetyis a moral responsibility.

Performance indicators - UK

2016 2015
Non Non

statf Staff Total Staff Staff Total

Lost time accidents reported under RIDDOR! 4 1 5 7 12

Specified injuries reported under RIDDOR? 2 2 4 1 B 9
Performance indicators - international

Australla France Germany Talpa USA Finland Norway  Sweden Denmark

Serious injuries sustained at work by staff 2016 4] 0 0 0 3 o 0 o o

or people directly involved in our activities? 2015° 0 0 1 - 1 0 0 ] 0

1. Thisindicates accldents that have led to people being unable to undertake their norral rote for seven days or longer

2. Specified Injuries In this context means injuries such as broken bones (not fingers or toes), amputation, serious bumns, loss of consciousness caused by a head injury or Inpatient
hospitalisation These are reported If they were caused by our work activity.

3. Reported data excludes Mammoth, TwoFour and Talpa as these were not Integrated into the [TV Health and 5afety Management system [n the year ended 31 Decembert 2015,

Due to differing local {egislative reporting requirements figures for lost time accidents have not yet beenintegrated into the ITV Health and Safety Management System.

Insurance and indemnitles
The Company maintains liability insurance for its Directors and officers that is renewed on an annual basis. The Campany has also entered into
deeds of indemnity with its Directors and other Senior Executives, A copy of the indemnity canbe found on our website.

() www.itvplc.com/investors/governance

The Company operates a pension scheme that provides retirement and death benefits for colieagues. Qualifying pension scheme indemnity
provisions, as defined in Section 235 of the Companies Act 2006, were in force for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 and rernain in
force for the benefit of each of the directors of ITV Pension Scheme Lirmited. These indemnity provisions cover, to the extent permitted by
law, certain losses or liabilities incurred as a director of ITV Pension Scheme Limited.
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Listing rule 9.8.4 disclosures
There are ho disclosures to be made other than that the trustee of the ITV Employees’ Benefit Trust (EBT) waived their rights to receive
dividends on shares held by them which do not relate to restricted shares held under the TV DSA.

Political contributions

Itis the Company's policy not to make cash contributions to any political party. However, within the normal activities of the Company's national
and regional news-gathering operations there may be occasions when an activity might fall within the broader definition of ‘political
expenditure’ contained within the Companies Act 2006. Shareholder authority for such expenditure was given at the 2016 AGM, However,
during 2016 the Group made no payments falling within this definition (2015: nil).

Report and Accounts disclosiires

Financial risk management: The Directors have carried out a robust assessment of the Principal risks facing the Company, including in
relation toits business model, future performance, sclvency and liquidity. Details of our risks and associated mitigations together with details
of our approach to risk management are set out on pages 50to 57.

Note 4.3 to the accounts on page 161 gives details of the Group's financial risk management policies and related exposures. This is deemed to
form part of this report.

Future developments: Our strategy is set aut in the Strategic Report.

Going concern: The going concern statement is set out on page 116. This note is deemed to form part of this report.

Subsequent events: Details of post balance sheet events are set out in the Strategic Report on page 49 and in Note 5.3 onpage 172.
Research and Development: Relevant information s set out in the Strategic Report.

Share capital

Issued: At the date of this report there were 4,025,409,194 ordinary shares of 10 pence eachin issue, all of which are fully paid up and quoted

on the London Stock Exchange.

Purchase of own shares: The Directors have the authority to purchase up to 402.5 million of the Company's ordinary shares. The authority
remains valid until the AGM in 2017 or 10 August 2017, if earlier.

Restrictions: There are no restrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company other than those which may be imposed
by law from time to time. in accordance with the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules (OTRs), Persons Discharging Managerial
Responsibility are required to seek approval to deal in ITV shares. The Company is not aware of any agreements between shareholders that may
result in restrictions on the transfer of securities and/cr voting rights.

Rights: The rights attaching to the Company’s ordinary shares are set out in the Articles of Association.
Share Schemes: Details of employee share schemes are set out in note 4.7. The Company's EBT is funded by loans to acquire shares for the
potential benefit of employees. Details of shares held by the EBT at 31 December 2016 are set out on page 171, During the year shares have been

released from the EBT in respect of share schemes for emplayees. The trustee of the EBT has the power to exerdise all vating rights in relation
to any investment {including ordinary shares) held within the EBT.
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Substantial shareholders
information regarding interests in voting rights provided tc the Company pursuant to the DTRs is published on a Regulatory Information Service
and on the Company’s website.

As at 1 March 2017, the informationin the table below had been received, in accordance with DTR5, from holders of notifiable interests {voting
rights) in the Company’s issued share capital It should be noted that these holdings may have changed since notified to the Company. However,
notification of any change is not required until the next applicable threshold is crossed.

% Interest
% interest Nature of in financial Total numbet of shares
in shares Interestinshares  instruments Nature of interest in financial instruments  orinterest inshares
Liberty Global Incorporated Limited 990 Direct - - 398,515,510
Ameriprise Financial, Inc. anditsgroup 495 Indirect 0.01 Equity swap 201,233,569
Blackrock Inc. 341 Indirect 308 Securities lending 284,240,487
0.56 Contract For Difference
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. 0.07 indirect 0.27 Stock Loan (physical) 826,553,051
2019 Swap (cash) Contract
For Difference {cash)
Over The Counter option
(physical or cash)

The number of shares is based on announcerments made by each retevant shareholder using the Company’s issued share capital at that date.
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Directors’ Report continued

The Directors consider that the Annual
Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides
the information necessary far shareholders
to assess the Company’s and the Group's
position and performance, business model
and strategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names and
functions are listed on pages 60 and 61,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge:

» the Group accounts, which have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view
of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and profit of the Group; and

» the Strategic and Directors’ Reports include
afair review of the development and
performance of the business and the
position of the Group, together with
a description of the Principal risks
and uncertainties that it faces.

In accordance with Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006, the Directors confirm
that, so far as they are each aware, there s
no relevant audit information of which the
Company’s auditor is unaware; and each
Director has taken all steps that they
ought to have taken as a Director in order
to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that
the Company's auditor is aware of

that information.

The Board has conducted areview of

the effectiveness of the Group’s systems

of internal controls for the year ended
31December 2016. n the opinion of

the Board, the Company has cormplied with
the internal control requirernents of the UK
Corporate Governance Code throughout the
year, maintaining an ongoing process for
identifying, evatuating, and minimising risk.
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and Accounts in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and parent company financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law they are required to prepare the Group
financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law
and have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance
with UK Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and parent company and of their profit or loss for that period. In preparing each of the
Group and parent company financial statements, the Directors are required:

+ toselect suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. tomake judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» for the Group financial staterents, to state whether they have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU;

. for the parent company financial staternents, state whether applicable UK Accounting
Standards have been foilowed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the parent company financial statements; and

- toprepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it isinappropriate
to presume that the Group and the parent company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient
to show and explain the parent company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent company and enable them to
ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006, They have
general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard
the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

Under appticable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for prepating
a Strategic Report, Directors’ Report, Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance
Staternent that comply with that law and those regulations.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and
financial information included on the Company’s website. Legislation in the UK governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislationin
otherjurisdictions.

By order of the Board

lan Griffiths
Group Finance Director

1March 2017

ITV plc
Registered number 4967001
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Financial Statements

in this The financial statements have been presented in a style that attempts to make them less complex
section and mare relevant to shareholders. We have grouped the note disclosures into five sections: ‘Basis of
Preparation’, ‘Results for the Year’, '‘Operating Assets and Liabilities’, ‘Capital Structure and Financing
Costs’ and ‘Other Notes’. Each section sets out the accounting policies applied in producing the relevant
notes, along with details of any key judgements and estimates used. The purpose of this format is to
provide readers with a clearer understanding of what drives financial performance of the Group.
The aim of the text in boxes is to provide commentary on each section, ot note, in plain English.

In this Notes to the financial statements provide information required by statute, accounting standards or Listing
section Rules to explain a particular feature of the financial statements. The notes which follow will also provide

explanations and additional disclosure ta assist readers’ understanding and interpretation of the Annual
Report and the financial statements.

&
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Financial Statemants

Independent Auditor’s Report to the

Members of ITV plc Only

Opinions and conclusions arising from our audit

1. Our opinion on the finandial statements is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of ITV plc for the year ended 31 Decernber 2016 set out on pages 110 to 188. In cur opinior:

= the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company's affairs as at 31 December 2076

and of the group's profit for the year then ended;

= the group finandal statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted

by the European Union;

« the parent company financial statements have been property prepared in accordance with UK Accounting Standards, including FR5 101

Reduced Disclosure Frarnework; and

= the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirernents of the Companies Act 2006; and, as regards the group

financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation,
2. Our assessmant of risks of material misstatement

In arriving at our audit opinion above on the financial statements the risks of material misstatement, in decreasing order of audit significance,

that had the greatest effect on our audit, were as follows:

The risk

Our response

Net Advertising Revenue (NAR" £1,672 million (2015: £1,719 million) Risk vs 2015: 4 »,
Refer to page 71 (Audit Committee report), page 120 (accounting policy) and pages 121 and 122 (financial disclosures)

The majority of ITV's advertising revenue (NARY) is subject to regulation
under Ofcom’s Contract Rights Renewal system ('CRR"). CRR works by
ensuring that the annual share of TV advertising that will be placed
with ITV by each advertising agency can change inrelation to the
viewing figures for commercial television that it delivers. The CRR
systemn, the pricing of the annual contractual arrangements with
advertising agencies and the details of each advertising campaign,
together with the related processes and controls, are complex and
invotve estimation.

In particular, the pricing mechanism means it is possible for a
difference to arise between the price received by ITV for an advertising
campaign and the value it delivered, mainly as a result of the actuat
viewing figures being different from the agreed level. Where the
Group has over-delivered viewers this is referred to as a ‘deal credit’,
or a‘deal debt’ where delivery has fallen short. Rather than the price
paid for that campaign being adjusted, these differences are noted for
each agency and then taken account of when agreeing either future
campaligns or the annual contract. A net deal debt position with an
agency is recorded in ITV's accounts, as a liabitity. Net deal credit
positions are not recognised.

NAR is therefore considered a significant risk due to:

= The number and complexity of contractual agreerments with
advertising agencies;

= The complexity of the systems and pracesses of control used to
record revenue; and,

» The level of estimation involved in determining the deal debt liability
at the period end.

Our procedures included:

» Testing of controls, assisted by our own IT specialists, including those
over: segregation of duties, input of annual deal terms with agencies,
input of individual campaigns’ terms and pricing, comparison of
those terms and pricing data against the related contracts with
advertising agencies; linkage to transmission/viewer data; and the
system generated calculation of deat debt for each campaign;

» Analysing revenue based on our industry knowledge and external
market data, following up variances; and

+ Challenging the year-end deal debt position based on comparison
with customers' correspondence and agreed terms of business.

We also assessed the adequacy of the group's disclosures in respect
of the accounting policies on revenue recognition.
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The rigk

Our response

Other revenue streams {Non-NAR revenue’) £1,392 milllon (2015: £1,253 miltion) Risk vs 2015: ¥
Refer to page 71 (Audit Committee report), page120 {accounting policy) and pages 121 and 122 (financial disclosures)

Non-NAR revenue includes revenue from: programme production,
the sale of programme rights, transmission supply arrangements and
the Online, Pay & Interactive division within the Broadcast segment.

Recognition of revenue is driven by the specific terms of the related
contracts and is considered to be a significant risk as the terms of
the contracts are varied and can be complex, with the result that
accounting for the revenue generated in any given period can require
individual consideration and judgement. Due to the contractual
nature of these revenue streams, the focus of our work Is on the risks
associated with significant one-off contracts.

Our procedures included:

* We considered the Group's revenue recognition policies against the
relevant accounting standards; and

» For higher value revenue contracts entered into during the year,
we considered whether revenue had been recognised in accordance
with the contractual terms in the correct accounting period, given
the requirements of the relevant accounting standard.

We also assessed the adequacy of the group's disclosures in respect
of the accounting policy on revenue recognition.

Defined benefit pension scheme obligations £367 million {2015: £176 million) Risk vs 2015: o

Refer to page 70 (Audit Committee report), page 148 (accounting policy

and pages 148 to 156 (financial disclosures)

Significant estimates are made in determining the key assumptions
used in valuing the group's post-retirement defined benefit
obligations. When making these assumptions the Group takes
independent actuarial advice relating to their appropriateness.

Following an analysis of the membership data carried out for the
related longevity swap, the Group updated its mortality assumptions
in the year which had an impact on the obligations at the year-end.

The Group also closed the ITV Pensions Scheme for future benefit
accrual with effect from 2B February 2017.

The valuation of the defined benefit obligations is considered a significant
risk given the quantum of the pension deficits, the developments related
to the schemes in the year, and given that a small change in assumptions
can have a matetial finandialimpact on the Group.

Our procedures included:

= Challenging the key assumptions applied in determining the Group's
pension obligations, being the discount rate, inflation rate and
mortality/life expectancy, with the support of our own actuarial
specialists;

« Thisincluded a comparison of these key assurnptions against
externally derived data; and

Testing the methodology applied in determining the revised
mortality expectation by comparing the conclusions of the Group's
analysis with our own analysis formed using extemnatly derived data.

We also considered the adequacy of the group's disclosures in respect
of the sensitivity of the deficits to these assumptions,

We continue to perform procedures over acquisition accounting and royalty accruals. We have not assessed these as risks that had the greatest

effect on our audit for the reasons explained below and, therefore, they

are not separately identified in our report this year:

Acquisition accotinting Is not separately identified in our report this year as the Group did not enter into any complex transactions in the year.

Royalty accruats are no longer considered a significant risk reflecting further improverment in controls in the year and the overall size of the

balance by comparison with the Group's Net Asset position.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Members of ITV plc Only continued

3. Qur application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

Materiality for the group financial statements as a whole was set at £35 million (2015: £29 million), determined with reference to a benchmark
of group profit before tax normalised to exclude the one-off pre-paid employment linked remuneration charge and pension curtailment cost
disclosed in note 2.2, £623 million, of which materiality represents 5.5% (2015: 4.6% of group profit before tax),

We reported to the Audit Comrmnittee any corrected or uncorrected identified misstatements exceeding million £1.7 million (2015: £1.5 million),
in addition to other identified misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

Scoping and coverage

The Group’s principal operations are in the United Kingdom. The Group audit team performned the audit of the core UK operations (comprising
Broadcast and Online, the UK Studios, Global Entertainment and the central functions) as if they were a single aggregated set of financial
information using materiality of £25 rillion {2015: £25 million). The group team performed procedures on the items exduded from normalised
group profit before tax. This year Talpa Media BV, in the Netherlands, was also scoped in for Group audit purposes as a full scope audit The work on
Talpa Media BV, was performed by a component auditor as instructed by the Group, induding the assessment of relevant risks and determination

of the information to be reported bade The Group audit team set the materiality of £5 miltion for this component.

The Group team visited the component in Netherlands, including to assess the audit risk and strategy, and held several telephone conference
meetings with the cormnponent audit team. At this visit and in these meetings, the findings reported to the Group team were discussed in more
detail, and any further work required by the Group team was then performed by the component auditor.

Although not in-scope for Group reporting purposes, in agreement with the Audit Committee, specified risk-based audit procedures were also
performed on two entities in the US by compenent auditors simultanecusly with the audit of the in-scope operations, The Group audit tearm
set the materiality for specified audit procedures at £5 million for these US components. Together the above audit and these specified audit
procedures covered 90% (2015: 92%) of group revenue, 89% (2015: 34%) of group profit before taxation; and 90% (2015: 88%) of total

group assets.

4. Our opinion on other matters prescribad by the Companias Act 2006 is unmodified
In our opinicn:

= the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006; and

= the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
is consistent with the financial statements.

Based solely on the work required to be undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and from reading the Strategic
Report and the Directors’ Report:

= we have not identified material misstatements in those reports; and

= in our opinion, those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.
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5. We have nothing to report on the disclosures of principal risks
Based on the knowledge we acquired during our audit, we have nothing material to add or draw attention to in relation to:

= the Directors’ viability statement on page 57, concerning the principal risks, their management, and, based on that, the Directors' assessment
and expectations of the group’s continuing in operation over the 3 years to 31 December 2019; or

+ the disclosures in note 1 of the financial staternents concerning the use of the going concern basis of accounting,

6. We have nothing to report in respect of the matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under ISAs (UK and Ireland) we are required to report to you if, based on the knowledge we acquired during our audit, we have identified other
information in the annual report that contains a material inconsistency with either that knowiedge or the financial staterments, a material
misstatement of fact, or that is otherwise misleading.

In particular, we are required to report to you if:
+ we have identified material inconsistencies between the knowledge we acquired during cur audit and the Directars' statement that they

considet that the annual report and financial statements taken as a whole Is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the group’s position and performance, business model and strategy; or

= the Audit Committee Report does not appropriately address matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee.
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

+ the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and retumns; or

« certain disclosures of Directars’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review:

+ the Directors’ staternents, set out on pages 104 and 57, in relation to going concern and longer-term viability; and

= the part of the Corporate Governance Statement on pages 64 to 67 relating to the company’s compliance with the eleven provisions of the
2014 UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review.

We have nothing to repart in respect of the above responsibilities.

Scope and responsibilities

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 104, the Directors are responsible for the preparation

of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. A description of the scope of an audit of financial
statements is provided on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate. This report 's made solely

to the company's members as a body and is subject to important explanations and disclaimers regarding our responsibilities, pubtished on our
website at www.kpmg.com/uk/auditscopeukco2014a, which are incorporated into this report as if set out in full and should be read to provide
an understanding of the purpose of this report, the work we have undertaken and the basis of our opinions.

Paul Sawdon (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London

E14 5GL

1 March 2017
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Financial Statements

Consolidated Income Statement

216 2015
For the year ended 31 December Note £m £m
Revenue 21 3,064 2972
Operating costs (2460) (2306)
Operating profit 604 666
Presented as:
Earnings before interest, tax, amortisation (EBITA) before exceptional iterms 21 857 842
Operating exceptional items 22 {164) (109}
Amortisation of intangible assets 33 {89) {67)
Operating profit 604 666
Financing in¢orme 4.4 2 [
Financing costs 4.4 (53) 37}
Net financing costs 4.4 {51) (31
Gain on sale of non-current assets (exceptional items) 22 - 5
Gain on sale of subsidiaries and investments (exceptional items) 22 - 1
Profit before tax 553 641
Taxation 23 (100) {139)
Profit from continuing operations 453 502
Loss after tax for the period from discontinued operation 25 (1) -
Profit for the year 452 502
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company 448 495
Non-controlling interests 4.6.6 4 7
Profit for the year 452 502
Eamings per share
Baslc earnings per share 24 M2p 12.4p
Diluted eamings per share 24 11.1p 123p
Eamings per share from continuing operations
Basic earnings per share 24 12p 124p
Dituted eamings per share 24 11.9p 12.3p
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

2016 2015
For the year ended 31 December Note £m Em
Profit for the year 452 502
Other comprehensive income:
ttems that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Revaluation of available for sale financial assets 464 1 U]
Net loss on cash flow hedges 463 (2 -
Exchange gain on transtation of foreign operations (net of hedging) 46.3 46 10
Items that will never be redassified to profit or loss
Remeasurerment (losses)/gains on defined benefit pension schemes 37 (248) 91
income tax charge on items that will never be reclassified 23 40 {19)
Other comprehensive (cost)/income for the yeat, het of income tax {163} 81
Total comprehensive income for the year 289 583
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company 285 576
Non-controlling interests 46.6 4 7
Total comprehensive income for the year 289 583

m
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Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2016 25
As at 31 December Note £m £m
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 32 244 239
Intangible assets 3.3 1,624 1500
Investments in joint ventures, associates and equity investments 35 76 30
Derivative financial instruments 4.3 1 8
Distribution rights 312 n 29
Other pension asset 37 38 -
Deferred tax asset 23 17 -
2,032 1806
Current assets
Programme rights and other inventory 311 406 373
Trade and other receivables due within one year 313 526 531
Trade and other receivables due after more than one year 313 39 33
Trade and other receivables 565 564
Current tax receivable i 13
Derivative financial instruments 43 8 1
Cash and cash equivalents 4.1 561 294
1,551 1245
Current liabilities
Borrowings 42 {165) ()
Derivative financial instruments 4.3 3) {5)
Trade and cther payables due within one year 314 (960) (786)
Trade payables due after more than one year 3.15 {57) {48)
Trade and other payables 1,019 (834)
Current tax liabilities (5) (69)
Provisions 36 {(19) {28}
{1.280) (947
Net current assets 7 298
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 4.2 {1,035) (602)
Derivative finandial instruments 43 () {6)
Defined benefit pension deficit 37 (367) (176)
Deferred tax liabilities 23 70) 79
Other payables 315 (63) (89)
Provisions 36 (4) 5
(1,548) (957)
Net assets 755 1147
Attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company
Share capital 461 403 403
Share premium 4,61 174 174
Merger and other reserves 462 p7y) 221
Translation reserve 463 79 35
Avallable for sale reserve 464 7 6
Retaihed earnings 46.5 {162) 275
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company 722 M4
Non-controlling interests 33 33
Total equity 755 1,147

The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 1 March 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

lan Griffiths
Group Finance Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company

Merger Availabte Non-
Share Share  andother Translation forsale  Retaned controlling Total
capital premium reserves reserve resarve eamings Total Interests equlty
Note £m £m £m £€m £m £m £m £m €m
Balance at 1 January 2016 403 174 prq) 35 6 275 w4 33 1147
Total comprehensive income for
the year
Profit - - - - - 448 448 4 452
Other comprehensive income/(cost)
Revaluation of available for sale
financial assets - - - - 1 - 1 - 1
Net loss on cash flow hedges — - - 2 - - @ - 2
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations (net of hedging) - - - 46 - - 46 - 46
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit
pension schemes 37 - - - - - (248) (248) - (248)
Income tax charge on other
comprehensive income 23 - - - - — 40 40 — 40
Total other comprehensive income - - — 44 1 (208) (163) - {163)
Total comprehensive income for
the year - - - 44 1 240 285 4 289
Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity
Contributions by and distributions
to owners
Equity dividends - - - - - (663) {663) {4) (667)
Movements due to share-based
compensation 47 - - - - - 10 10 - 10
Tax on items taken directly to equity 23 - - - - - ()] {4) - {4)
Purchase of own shares via employees’
benefit trust 47 - - - - - (20) (20} - 20)
Tatal contributions by and distributions
to cwners - - - - — &77) (677) (4} {681)
Total transactions with owners - - - - - {677) {677) (4) {681)
Balance at 31 December 2016 46 403 174 pry] 79 7 {162) 722 33 755
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity continued

Attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company

Merger Avallable Non-
Share Share andother Translation for sale Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves reserve reserve earnings Total Interests equity
Note £m £m £m £m £fm £€m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2015 403 174 228 25 7 177 1,014 50 1064
Total comprehensive income for
the year L
Profit - - - - - 495 495 7 502
QOther comprehensive income/(cost)
Revaluation of available for sale
financial assets - - - - M - 1) - m
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations (net of hedging) - - - 10 - - 10 - 10
Remeasurement gains on defined
benefit pension schemes 37 - - - - - 91 91 - 1
Reclassification of revaluation reserve
on disposal of property, ptant and
equipment - - {4) - - 4 - - -
Income tax charge on other
comprehensive income 23 - - - - - (19) {19) - (19)
Total other comprehensive income - - (4} 10 {1 76 81 - 81
Total comprehensive income for
the year - - (4) 10 {1 571 576 7 583
Transactions with owners, recorded
directlyinequity . . _
Contributions by and distributions
to owners
Equity dividends - - - - - (459) (459) (5) {464)
Movements due to share-based
compensation 47 - - - - - 14 14 - 14
Tax onitems taken directly to equity 23 - - - - - 5 5 - 5
Purchase of own shares via employees’
benefit trust 4.7 - - - - - (33) {33) - 33)
Total contributions by and distributions
to owners - - - - - {473) {473) (5) (478)
Total transactions with owners - - - - - {473) {473) {5) (478)
Changes in non-controlling interests™ 34 - - @ - - - 3) (19) @2
Balance at 31 December 2015 46 403 174 7yl 35 6 275 1,114 33 1,147

(a) Movements reported in merger and other reserves include a put option for the acquisition of non-controlling interests.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2016 2015
For the year ended 31 December Note Em £m £m £m
Cash Rlows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations before exceptional items: PA 870 827
Cash flow relating to operating exceptional items:
Operating exceptional items 22 (164) (109)
Prepaid employment linked consideration 34 - (109)
Increase in exceptional payables Fal 60
Decrease In exceptional prepayments and other receivables 66 36
Cash outflow from exceptional items {27} {122
Operating cash flow from discontinued operation 25 {6) —
Cash generated from operations 837 705
Defined benefit pension deficit furding {80) {90)
Interest received 38 25
Interest paid on bank and other loans (58) (34)
Net taxation paid (90) (117}
(190) 216)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 647 489
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiary undertaking, net of cash acquired 34 {(97) (406)
Prepaid employment linked consideration 34 - 109
Net consideration paid (97) {297
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 28
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (29) (33
Acquisition of intangible assets {15) (16)
Acquisition of investments (41) (14)
Loans granted to associates and joint ventures 2 @
Net proceeds from sale of assets held for sale 25 10
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries, joint ventures and available for
sate investments - 1
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities {174) (333
Cash flows from financing activities
Bank and cther loans — amounts repaid {655) (447)
Bank and other loans - arnounts raised 1177 797
Capital element of finance lease payments (6} (1]
Equity dividends paid {663) (459)
Dividend paid to minority interest (4) (5)
Purchase of own shares via employees’ benefit trust {20} (33)
Net cash outflow from financing activities {(171) (154)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 302 2
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 Jahuary 4.1 284 297
Reclassification of gilts to other pension assets 37 (39) -
Effects of exchange rate changes and fair value movements 4 (5)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 4.1 561 294
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 1: Basis of Preparation
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in this This section sets out the Group's accounting policies that relate to the financial
section statements as a whole. Where an accounting policy is specific to one note, the poticy
is described in the note to which it relates. This section also shows new EU endorsed

accounting standards, amendments and interpretations, and whether they are
effective in 2016 or later years. We explain how these changes are expected to
impact the financial position and performance of the Group.

The financial statements consclidate those of TV plc (the Company) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the ‘Group’) and the Group's interests in associates and jointly controlled entities. The Company is domiciled in the
United Kingdom.

As required by European Union law (IAS Regulation EC 1606/2002) the Group's financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adepted by the EU (IFRS?), and approved
by the Directors.

The financial statements are principally prepared on the basis of historical cost. Where other bases are applied these
are identified in the relevant accounting policy.

The parent company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework {FRS101).

Going concern

At 31 December 2016 the Group was in a net debt position. The Group's strong balance sheet and continued generation
of significant free cash flows has enabled further investment as well as the payment of a special dividend. The Group
has also sought to gain further effidencies in the balance sheet and maintain the flexibility to invest in the business by
issuing a new Eurobond (see section 4 for details on capital structure and financing).

The Group continues to review forecasts of the television advertising market to determine the impact on ITV's liquidity
position. The Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes in trading performance,
show that the Group will be able to operate within the level of its current available funding.

The Group also continues to focus on development of the non-advertising business, and evaluates the impact of
further investment against the strategy and cash headroom of the business.

After rmaking enqguiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue
in operation for at least twelve months from the date of this report. Accordingly, the Group continues to adopt the going
concem basis in preparing its consotidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and available for sale investments

Subsidiaries are entities that are directly or indirectly controlled by the Group. Control exists where the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the entity in order to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are taken into account.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement in which the Group helds an interest under a contractual arrangement where
the Group and one or more other parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint control. The Group
accounts for its interests in joint ventures using the equity method. Under the equity method the investment in the
entity is stated as one line item at cost plus the investor’s share of retained post-acquisition profits and other changes
in net assets.

An associate is an entity, other than a subsidiary or joint venture, cver which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in, but not control or jointly control, the financial and operating
decisions of an entity. These investments are also accounted for using the equity method.

Investments where the Group concludes it does not have significant influence are deemed ‘available for sale’, These
investments are held at fair value unless the investment is a start-up business, in which case it is valued at cost and
assessed for impairment.
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Current/non-current distinction

Current assets include assets held primarily for trading purposes, cash and cash equivalents, and assets expected to be
realised in, or intended for sale or use in, the course of the Group’s operating cycle. Alt other assets are classified as non-
current assets.

Current liabilities include liabilities held primarily for trading purposes, liabilities expected to be settled in the course
of the Group's operating cycle and those liabilities due within one year from the reporting date. All other liabilities
are classified as non-current liabilities.

Classification of financial instruments
The financial assets and liabilities of the Group are classified into the following finandal statement captions in the
statement of financial position in accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments:

» Loans and receivables - separately disclosed as cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables;

= Available for sale financial assets — measured at fair value through other comprehensive income;

» Financial assets/liabilities at fak value through profit or loss - separately disclosed as derivative financial instruments in
assets/liabilities and induded in non-current other payables (contingent consideration); and

» Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost - separately disclosed as borrowings and trade and other payables.

Judgement is required when determining the appropriate classification of the Group’s financial instruments.
Details on the accounting policies for measurement of the above instruments are set out in the relevant note.
Where unconditional rights to set off financial instruments exist, the Group presents the relevant instruments
net in the statement of financial position.

Recognition and derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

The Group recognises a financial asset or liabitity when it becomes a party to the contract. Financial instruments
are no longer recognised in the statement of financial position when the contractual cash fiows expire or when
the Group ho longer retains control of substantially all the risks and rewards under the instrument

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits with a maturity of less than or equal to three months
from the date of acquisition and cash held to meet certain finance lease commitments. The carrying value of cash and
cash equivalents is considered to approximate fair value. Cash and cash equivalents that has a charge executed over it
is excluded from cash and cash equivalents.

Foreign curvancies
The primary economic environment in which the Group operates is the UK and therefore the consolidated financial
statements are presented in pounds sterling ('£).

Where Group companies based in the UK transact in foreign currencies, these transactions are transtated into pounds
sterling at the exchange rate on the transaction date. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated
into pounds sterling at the year end exchange rate. Where there is a movement in the exchange rate between the date
of the transaction and the year end, a foreign exchange gain or loss is recognised in the income statement.

Hedge accounting is implemented on certain foreign currency firm commitments, which allows for the effective
portion of any foreign exchange gains or losses to be recognised in other comprehensive income {note 4.3).

Where a forward currency contract is used to manage foreign exchange risk and hedge accounting is not applied,
any movement In currency is taken to the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost are translated into pounds sterling at the exchange rate
on the date of the transaction.

The assets and liabilities of Group companies outside of the UK are translated into pounds sterling at the year end
exchange rate. The revenue and expenses of these companies are translated into pounds sterling at the average
monthly exchange rate during the year. Where differences arise between these rates, they are recognised in the
translation reserve within other comprenensive income.

"7
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 1: Basis of Preparation continued

Exchange differences arising on the transtation of the Group's interests in joint ventures and associates are recognised
in the translation reserve within other comprehensive income.

On disposal of a foreign subsidiary, an interest in a joint venture or an associate, the related translation reserve
is released to the income statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to exercise judgement in applying the Group’s
accounting policies. it also requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, with revisions recognised in the period
in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity are set out below and in more detail in the related notes:

= Revenue recognition (note 2.1)
+ Business combinations (note 33 and note 3.4)

In addition to the above, the areas involving the most sensitive estimates and assumptions that are significant to the
financial statements are set out below and in more detail in the related notes:

« Defined benefit pension (note 3.7)
* Taxation (note 2.3)
« Testing of goodwill impairment (note 3.3)

New or amended EU endorsed accounting standards
The table below represents new or amended EU endorsed accounting standards relevant to the Group’s results that
are effective in 2016:

Accounting Starxlard Requirement

iAS 38 Intangible The armendments clarify acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation introducing
Assets and a rebuttable presumption that the use of revenue-based amortisation or depreciation

IAS 16 Property, Ptant methods is inappropriate. This presumption can be overcome when revenue and the

and Equipment consumption of the economic benefits of the asset are highly correlated.

IAS 27 Separate The amendments allow the use of the equity method in separate financial statements, and
Financial Statements _ apply to the accounting not only for asscciates and joint ventures, but also for subsidiaries.

IAS 11 Joint The amendments require business combination accounting to be applied to acquisitions of
Arrangements interests in a joint operation that constitutes a business.

IAS 1Presentationof  Amendments to clarify various standards including IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale

financial statements  and Discontinued Operations, IFRS 3 Business Combinations, IFRS 8 Operating Segments,
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, |AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, IAS 24 Related Party
Disclosures and tAS 38 Intangible Assets.

Annual Improvements  Amendments to clarify various standards including IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
to IFRS 2012 - 2014 and Discontinued Operations, IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures, IAS 19 Employee
cyde Benefits and IAS 34 Intetim Financial Reporting.

Based on the Directors’ analysis the amendments outlined above do not have a material impact on the Group’s
financial position or performance for the year ended 31 December 20116.

The Directors also considered the impact on the Group of other new and revised accounting standards, interpretations
or amendments that are currently endorsed but not yet effective. There are none that are effective for periods
beginnirg on or after 1 January 206 that are expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s results.

m8
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IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers is effective 1 January 2018. IFRS 15 will require the Group to identify
distinct promises in contracts with customers that qualify as ‘performance obligations’. The price receivable from
customers must then be allocated between the performance obligations identified.

Aninitial assessment of impact on the Group’s performance has been performed on material revenue streams.

The impact is not expected to be material for Broadcasting revenues. Studios revenues are mainty comprised of
production and distribution revenue streams. No material impact is expected on the production revenues. Further
detailed analysis on licensing and merchandising revenues is ongoing to assess whether contracts include dynamic

(e.g. continued obligation to update content over the license period) or static performance obligations, which will aid

in determining whether revenue should be recognised over the license period or at a point in time. The impact on those
revenue streams is expected to be limited.

The Directors anticipate adopting IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018. When it is adopted, IFRS 15 can be applied either on a fully
retrospective basis, requiring the restatement of the comparative periods presented in the financial staternents, or
with the cumulative retrospective impact of the standard applied as an adjustment to equity on the date of adoption.
When the latter is applied disclosure of the impact of IFRS 15 on each line item in the financial statements is required.
The Directors currently intend to apply the cumulative effect method,

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments is atso effective 1 January 2018. Based on the initial assessment of the impact,
the Directors are currently not expecting the application to significantly impact the Group's current accounting
or hedging activities.

IFRS 16 Leases is effective 1 January 2019 and has not been endorsed by the EU. IFRS 16 will change lease accounting
for lessees under operating leases, Such agreements will require recognition of an asset representing the right to use
the leased itern and a liabitity for future lease payments. Lease costs {such as property rent) will be recognised in the form
of depredation and interest, rather than operating cost. The detailed assessment of impact on the Group's performance

is ongoing, the adoption is likely to have a material impact on the presentation of the Group's assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Section 2: Results for the Year

2.1Profit
before tax

120

In this
section

Keeping
it simple

=

Accounting policies
Revenue recoghnition

This section focuses on the results and performance of the Group. On the
following pages you will find disclosures explaining the Group’s results for
the year, segmental information, exceptional items, taxation and earnings

per share.

This section analyses the Group's protit before tax by reference to the activities
performed by the Group and an analysis of key operating costs.

Adjusted earnings before interest, tax, amortisation (EBITA) is the Group's key profit
indicator. This reflects the way the business is managed and how the Directors assess
the perfarmance of the Group. This section thercfore also shows cach division's
contribution to total revenue and EBITA.

Revenue is stated exdusive of VAT and equivalent sales taxes, and comprises the sale of products and services

to third parties. Judgernent is required when determining the appropriate timing and amount of revenue that can

be recognised, specifically around whether there s a firm contract and that the service has been provided, and if so,
whether there is a fixed or reasonably determinable price that is reasonably certain will be collected. Complexity in
advertising revenue recognition is driven by intricate automated and manual processes involved in measuring the value
delivered to the customer.

Revenue is recognised when the Group has transferred both the significant risks and rewards of ownership and control,
and the amount of revenue can be measured relfably. Revenue recegnition criteria for the Group's key classes of
revenue are recognised on the following bases:

Applicable segment Class of revenue Recognition critetfa
Broadcast & Online Advettising (NAR) on transmission
Video on Demand (VOD) as audience targets are met
$ponsarship across period of transmission of the sponsored
programme or series
Pay over the term of the contract or for the expected
revenue per subscriber or download
Participation (nteractive & as the service is provided or event occurs
Brand Extensions)
Studios Programme production on delivery of episcde and acceptance by the

customer

Programme distribution rights

when the contract is signed and content is available
for exploitation

Format and licences

at the point in time when the license is transferred
and the custormer is able to use and benefit from
the licence; over the license peried if continued
involvernent of the Group is required

Digital: Archive

on delivery of content (one-off} or over the contract
period in a manner that reflects the flow of content
delivered (top-up)
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The results for the year aggregate these classes of revenue into four significant categories:

BUSWINYS TRPUSULY |

2016 2016 2015 2015
£fm % oftotal £m % of total
NAR
Broadcast & Online 1,672 47% 1,719 51%
Non-NAR
Broadcast & Online 460 427
{TV Studios: Productions 1,089 1,045
IV Studios: Distribution 306 192
Total Non-NAR 1,855 53% 1,664 49%
Total revenue from continuing operations 3527 100% 3383 100%
Segmental information

Operating segments, which have not been aggregated, are determined in a manner that is consistent with how the business
is managed and reported to the Board of Directors, The Board is regarded as the chief operating decision maker.

The Board considers the business primarily from an operating activity perspective. The reportable segments for the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are therefore Broadcast & Online and ITV Studios, the results
of which are cutlined in the following tables:

Broadcast
&Online  MVStudios*  Consolidated
2016 2016 2016
£m £m £m
Total segment revenue 2143 1395 3538
Intersegment revenue - (463) (463)
Revenue from extemnal customers including discontinued operations 2143 932 3,075
Less: Discontinued operations {note 2.5) (W] - (11}
Revenue from external customers 2,132 932 3,064
Adjusted EBITA including discontinued operations** 636 243 879
Less: Operating loss from discontinued operations (note 2.5) (6) - (6)
Adjusted EBITA®® 642 243 885
Broadcast
& Ondine TV Studios* Consolidated
2015 2015 2015
£m £m £m
Total segment revenue 2,146 1,237 3,383
Intersegment revenue - G ()]
Revenue from extetnal customers including discontinued operations 2146 826 2972
Less: Discontinued operations - - -
Revenue from extemal customers 2,146 826 2,972
Adjusted EBITA including discontinued operations** 659 206 865
Adjusted EBITA from discontinued operations* - - -
Adjusted EBITA** 659 206 865

* Revenue of £320 million {2015: £389 million) was generated in the US during the year; the US represented £346 million
{2015: £314 million) of non-current assets at year end.

= Adjusted EBITA is before exceptional ftems and Includes the benefit of production tax credits, It is shown after the elimination
of intersegment revenue and costs. This measure represents the continuing operations.

Intersegment revenue, which is earned on army's length terms, is generated from the supply of ITV Studios programmes
10 Broadcast & Online for transmission primarily on the ITV Network. This revenue strearn is a measure which forms
part of the Group’s strategic priority of building a strong internationat content business, as producing and retaining
rights to the shows broadcast on the [TV Network benefits the Group further from subsequent international content
and format sales.

In preparing the segment information, centrally managed costs have been allocated between reportable segments
on a methodology driven principally by revenue, headcount and building occupancy of each segment. This is consistent
with the basis of reporting to the Board of Directors.

21

[



Financial Statemants

Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 2: Results for the Year continued

122

The Group's principal operations are in the United Kingdom. Revenue from external customers in the United Kingdom
is £2,370 millicn (2015: £2,275 million), and revenue from external customers in other countries is £694 million
(2015: £697 million). The Firancial and Performance Review provides further detail on ITV's international revenues.

There is one media buying agency (2015: two) acting on behalf of a number of advertisers that represent the Group's
major customers, This agency is the onty custorner which individually represents over 10% of the Group's revenue,
Revenue of approximately £552 million (2015: £576 million) was derived from this customer. This revenue is attributable
to the Broadcast & Online segment.

Broadcast & Online

The Group operates the largest commercial family of channels in the UK and delivers content through multiple
platforms. In addition to Linear television broadcast, the Group delivers its content on the ITV Hub, pay platforms,

and through direct content deals. Content commissioned and scheduled by this segment is funded primarily by television
advertising, where revenue is generated from the sate of audiences for advertising airtime and sponsorship.

Other sources of revenue are from: online advertising; HD digital channels on pay platforms (e.g. Sky and Virgin); SDN
revenue (which generates licence sales for DTT Multiplex A); and participation revenue (which includes interactive sales
from competitions) and the [TV Cheice subscription service in other countries.

ITV Studios
ITV Studios is the Group's international content business, creating and producing programmes and formats that retumn
and travel, namely drama, entertainment and factual entertainment.

ITV 5tudios UK is the largest commercial producer in the UK and produces programming for the Group’s own channels,
accounting for 63% of ITV main channel spend on commissioned prograrnming. Programming is also sold to other UK
broadcasters such as the BBC, Channel 4 and Sky.

iTV America is the leading unscripted independent producer of content in the US and is growing its scripted presence
by increasing investment in high-profile dramas straight to series.

ITV Studios also operates in five other intemational locations being Australia, Germany, France, the Netherlands (prirmarily
Talpa) and the Nordics, where content is produced for local broadcasters. This content is either locally created IP or formats
that have been created elsewhere by ITV, primarily in the UK and the Netherlands.

Global Entertainment and Talpa Global, ITV's distribution businesses, license ITV's finished programmes and formats
and third-party content internationally. Within this business we also finance praductions both on and off ITV to acquire
global distribution rights.

Adjustad EBITA

The Directors assess the performance of the reportable segments based on a measure of adjusted EBITA. The Directors
use this measurement basis as it excludes the effect of transactions that could distort the understanding of the Group’s
performance for the year and comparability between periods. See the Financial and Performance Review on pages 34
to 35 for the detailed explanation of the Group's use of adjusted performance rmeasures.

A reconciliation from adjusted EBITA to profit before tax is provided as follows:

2016 2015

£m £m

Adjusted EBITA 885 865
Production tax credits (28) 23)
EBITA before exceptional items from continuing operations 857 842
Operating exceptional items (164) {109)
Amortisation of intangible assets (89) 67)
Net financing costs {51) [E1)]
Gain on sale of non-current assets (exceptional items) - 5
Gain on sate of subsidiaries and investments (exceptional tems) - 1
Profit before tax from continuing operations 553 64
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Cash generated from operations
A reconciliation from profit before tax to cash generated from operations before exceptional items is as follows:
2016 2015
£m £m
Cash flows from operai:ing acﬁvitie-gu " o L
Profit before tax ~ ) - o . 553 641
Gain on sale of subsidiaries and investments (exceptional items) L - ()]
Gain on sale of non-current assets {exceptional items) o o - ()]
Net financing costs ) 7 o 51 3
Operating exceptional items o o 164 109
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment .. n 27
Amortisation of intangible assets B9 67
Share-based compensation and pension service costs 10 7
(Increase)/decrease in programime rights and other inventory, and distribution rights (35) 4
| {(ncrease) in receivables {56) ) 1
Increase/(decrease) in payables 63 (42 |
Movement in working capital (28) (59
Cash generated from operations before exceptional items 870 827
Operating costs
Staff costs
Staff costs before exceptional items can be analysed as follows:
2016 2015
£m £m
Wages and salaries 336 318
Social security and other costs 46 43
Share-based compensation (see note 4.7) 10 14
Pension costs 27 25
Total staff costs 419 400
Less: staff costs ailocated to productions (147) (137)
FTEE staff costs {non-production) 272 263
Exceptional staff costs are disclosed separately in note 2.2
The number of full-time equivalent employees (FTEE) (excluding short-term contractors and freelancers who are
predominantly allocated to the cost of productions), calculated on a weighted average basis, during the year was:
2016 2015
Broadcast & Online 2,087 2109
TV Studios 4,034 3,449
6,121 5,558

The increase in full-time equivalent ernployees in ITV Studios is primarily driven by the full year effect of acquisitions

completed in 2015.

Details of Directors’ emoluments, share options, pension entitlements and long-term incentive scheme interests are
set out in the Remuneration Report. Listed Directors’ gains on share options for 2016 are set out in the ITV plc entity

financial statements,

Depreciation

Depreciation in the year was £31 million (2015: £27 millicn), of which £13 million (2015: £14 million) relates to Broadcast

& Online and £18 rnillion (2015: £13 miillion) to ITV Studios.
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Operating leases
The total undiscounted future minimum lease payments under non-cancellabte operating leases are due for payment
as follows:

2018 Transponders Property Total
Within one year 28 19 47
Later than one year and not later than five years 129 59 188
Later than five years 92 17 109

249 95 344
2015 Transponders Property Total
Within one year 34 17 51
Later than one year and not later than five years m 48 159
Later than five years 115 21 136

260 86 346

The Group's operating leases relate to transponder assets, offices and studio properties. The Group holds transmission
supply agreements that require the use of transponder assets for a period of up to ten years with payments increasing
over time, limited by specific RPI caps. These supply agreernents are classified as operating leases, in accordance with
the Group's policy on leases detailed in note 3.2,

Property teases run for terms ranging from five to twenty years, depending on the expected operational use of the site. Leases
may include break clauses or options to renew (options to renew are not included in the commitments table). Lease payments
are generally subject to market review every five years to reflect market rentals, but because of the uncertainty over the
amount of any future changes, such changes have not been reflected i the table above. None of the lease agreements
indude contingent rentals,

The total future minimum sublease payments expected to be received under non-cancellable subleases at the year end
are £1 million {2015: £1 million).

The total operating lease expenditure recognised during the year was £47 million (2015: £51 million) and total sublease
payments received were £1mitlion {2015: £2 million).

Audit fees
The Group engages KPMG LLP (KPMG) on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties where their expertise
and experience with the Group are important and are In line with Group’s policy on auditor independence.

Fees paid to KPMG and its associates during the year are set out below:

2016 2015
£m £m

For the audit of the Group's annual accounts 0.6 0.6
For the audit of subsidiaries of the Group 0.6 0.4
Audit-related assurance services 02 0.2
Total audit and audit-related assurance services 14 1.2
Taxation advisory services 02 0.1
Other assurance services 01 0.3
Total non-audlt Services 03 0.4
Total fees paid to KPMG 1.7 1.6

Thetre were no fees payable in 2016 or 2015 to KPMG and assodiates for the auditing of accounts of any assodiate
or pension scheme of the Group, internal audit services, services relating to corporate finance transactions entered
into or proposed to be entered into, by or an behalf of the Group or any of its associates.

Fees paid to KPMG for audit and other services to the Company are not disclosed in its individual accounts as the Group
accounts are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis.
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22 Keeping Exceptional items are excluded from management's assessment of profit because
Exceptional it simp[e by their size or nature they could distort the Group’s underlying quality of earnings.
items They are typically gains or losses arising from events that are not considered part of
! the core operations of the business {e g. costs relating to capital transacticns, such as

% professional fees on acquisitions). These items are excluded to reflect performance in
a consistent manner and are in line with how the business is managed and measured
on a day-to-day basis.

Accounting policies
Exceptional items as described above are disclosed on the face of the income statement.

Subsequent revisions of estimates for items initially recognised as exceptional are recorded as exceptional items
in the year that the revision is made. Gains or losses on disposal of hon-core assets are also considered exceptional
due to their nature and impact on the Group's underlying quality of earnings.

Exceptional Items
Operating and nor-operating exceptional items are analysed as follows:

2016 2015
{Charge)/credit Ref. £m £m
Operating exceptional items:
Acquisition-related expenses A {137) (88)
Reorganisation and restructuring costs B (14) (13)
Pension curtailment cost C {19) -
Legal related costs - {8)
Total net operating exceptional items (164) (109)
Non-operating exceptional items:
Gain on sale of non-current assets D - 5
Gain on sale and impairment of subsidiaries and investments E - 1
Total non-operating exceptional items - 6
Total exceptional items before tax (164) {103)
Tax on exceptional items 15 8
Total exceptional items net of tax (149) {95)

A - Acquisiion-related expenses

Acquisition-related expenses of £131 million indudes £110 million (2015: £78 million) relating to performance-based,
employment linked costs to former ownets mainly in relation to Talpa Media. The remaining £21 million (2015: £10 million)
is primarily comprised of integration costs and professional fees {mainly finandal and legal due diligence). See note 3.4 for
further details on acquisitions.

B - Reorganisation and restructuring costs
In 2016 £14 million {2015: £13 million) of costs were incurred as a result of a Group-wide commitment to reduce the
overhead cost base by £25 million. This cost was primarily comprised of redundancy.

€ - Curtailment cost
In 2016, following a member consultation, the Group decided to close the ITV Pension Scheme to future benefit accrual,
resulting in a one off non-cash curtailment cost of £19 million (see note 3.7 for further detail).

D - Gain on sale of non-current assets
In 2015 a £5 million gain on sale of non-current assets arose primarily as a result of the sale of a freehold property and
related assets in Manchester.

E — Gain on sale and impairment of subsidiaries and investments
The gain of £1 million in 2015 relates to a historical disposal.
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Keepin This section sets out the Group's tax accounting policies, the current and deferred tax

ping p 9p

Taxation it SiITIplE charges or credits in the year {which together make up the total tax charge or credit
in the income statement), a reconciliation of profit before tax to the tax charge for

the period and the movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

&

Accounting policies

The tax charge for the period is recognised in the income statement, the statement of comprehensive income and
directly in equity, according to the accounting treatment of the related transactions, The tax charge comptises both
current and deferred tax. The calculation of the Group's tax charge invaolves a degree of estimation and judgernent in
respect of certain items whose tax treatment cannot be fully determined until a resolution has been reached by the
relevant tax authority,

Current tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable incorme or loss for the year and any adjustment
in respect of previous years.

The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of the additional taxes that are likely

to become due, which require judgement. Amounts are accrued based on management's interpretation of specific tax
law and the likelihocd of settlement. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made,

Deferred tax
Deferred tax arises due to certain temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and those for taxation purposes.

The following temporary differences are not provided for:

» the initial recognition of goodwill;

= the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other than in a business
combination; and

« differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the catrying
amount of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is calculated using tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit wil be available
to utilise the temporary difference. Recognition of deferred tax assets, therefore, involves judgement regarding the
timing and tevel of future taxabte income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are disclosed net to the extent that they relate to taxes levied by the same authority
and the Group has the right of set-off.
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Taxation - Income statement
The total taxation charge in the income statement is analysed as follows:

2016 2015
£m £€m
Current tax:
Current tax charge on profit before exceptional items (134) {125)
Current tax {charge)/credit on exceptional iterns T 6
(123) (M9)
Adjustments to prior periods 10 9
(113) ("19)
Deferred tax: L
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 18 (20)
Deferred tax (charge)/credit on exceptional items o 4 2
Impact of change in the statutory tax rate 1 (2)
. 3 (20
Adjustrnents to prior periods {10) (9)
13 (29)
Total taxation charge in the income statement {100) (139)

In order to understand how, in the income statement, a tax charge of £100 rillion (2015: £139 million) arises on a profit

before tax of £553 million (2015: £641 million), the taxation charge that would arise at the standard rate of UK
corporation tax is recondiled to the actuat tax charge as follows:

016 2015
£m fm
Profit before tax 553 641
Notional taxation charge at UK corporation tax rate of 20% (2015: 20.25%) on
profit before tax mnn {130}
Non-taxable income/non-deductible expenses (25) (23)
Other taxes ) -
Current year losses not recognised @ -
Impact of overseas tax rates 10 )]
Impact of changes in tax rates 1 2
Production tax credits 28 23
Total taxation charge in the income statement {100) (139)

Non-deductible expenses are expenses that are not expected to be allowable for tax purposes. Similarly non-taxabie

income is income that is not expected to be taxable.

Adjustments to prior periods primarily arise where an outcorne is obtained on certain tax matters which differs from
expectations held when the related provision was made. Where the outcome is more favourable than the provision

made, the difference is released, lowering the current year tax charge. Where the outcome is less favourable than our
provision, an additional charge to current year tax will occur, This year there is no net impact of prior year adjustments
in the total tax charge. The current tax charge includes a £10 million credit relating to prior years, and the deferred tax
credit includes an equal and opposite £10 million charge.

The impact of overseas tax rates reflects the fact that some of our profits are earned in territories cther than the UK,
and taxed at rates different to the UK corporation tax rate. This year losses arising in higher taxed jurisdictions, which
we recognise through deferred tax, give rise to a reconciling benefit.

The UK corporation tax rate has been enacted to fall to 19% from 1 April 2017 and 17% from 1 April 2020 (this
supersedes the originally enacted reduction to 18%). The carrying value of UK temporary differences at the balance
sheet date has been adjusted accordingly. This has given rise to a charge of £5 million (2015: £1 million) of which
£1million is recognised as a credit in the income statement and £6 million as a charge in other comprehensive income.

The Production tax credits included within the reconciliation above are UK High-End Television (HETV) tax credits and
Children's Television tax credits, which are part of a group of incentives provided to support the creative industries. The
ability to access these tax credits is fundamental when assessing the viability of investment decisions in the production
of high-end drama and children’s programmes. Under IFRS these praduction tax credits are reported within the total
taxation charge in the income statement, however [TV considers them to be a contribution to production costs, and
therefore working capital in nature, and excludes them from its adjusted tax charge, including thern instead within
Adjusted EBITA.
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The effective tax rate is 18.1% (2015: 21.7%), and is the tax charge on the face of the income statement expressed

as a percentage of the profit before tax. In the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the effective
tax rate is comparable to the standard rate of UK corporation tax (20% in 2016 and 20.25% in 2015). As explained

in the Financial and Performance Review, the Group uses an adjusted tax rate to show how tax impacts total adjusted
earnings in a way that is more aligned with the Group's cash tax position.

This year the current year movement on origination and reversal of temporary differences {exduding exceptional items)is a
aredit of £18 mitlion, compared with a charge of £20 million in 2015. The main reasons for this change are the recognition of
tax losses in our overseas businesses, and the unwinding of deferred tax liabilities as intangible assets are amortised.

Taxation — Other comprshensive income and equity

As analysed in the table below, a deferred tax credit of £40 million on actuarial movements on pensions has been
recognised in other comprehensive income. A deferred tax charge of £6 million has been recognised in equity in respect
of share based payments.

A current tax credit of £2 mitlion has also been recognised in equity in relation to share based payments,

Taxation — Statement of financial position
The table below outlines the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) that are recognised in the statement of finandial position,
together with their movements in the year:

At Recognised in At

1 January the income  Recognised In Business Foreign 31 December

2016 Reclassification statement OCl and equity acqulsitions Exchange 06

£m £m £m £m £m fm £m
Intangible assets (10%H 14 15 - (10} (12) (94)

Programme rights 1 - - - - - 1

Pension scheme deficits 1 1 {8) 40 - - 34

Tax losses 4 - 23 - - 3 30
Share-based compensation 1 (5) (4) {6} - - (4)
Other temporary differences 5 (10) (13) - - {2) (20)
(79) - 13 34 (19 {1 563

At Recognised in At

1 January theincome  Recognised n Business 31 December

2015 statement OCland equity acquisitions 2015

£m £m £m £m £em

Property, plant and equipment 1)} 1 - - -
Intangible assets (15) (10) - {76) (0%

Programme rights 1 - - ~ 1

Pension scheme deficits 36 (16) (19) - 1

Tax losses 7 €] - - 4

Share-based compensation 14 ()] @ - Al

Other temporary differences 1 - - 4 5
43 (29) @0 73 9

At 31 December 2016, total deferred tax assets are £65 millicn 2015: £22 milllon) and total deferred tax liabilities
are £118 rnillion (2015: £107 miltion). After netting off batances within countries, there is a deferred tax liabitity of
£70 million and a deferred tax asset of £17 million (2015: net deferred tax liability of £79 millicn) recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

The deferred tax balances relate to:

* property, plant and equipment temporary differences arising on assets qualifying for tax depreciation
= temporary differences on intangible assets, including those arising on business combinations

= programme rights - temporary differences on intercompany profits on stock

» pension scherme deficit temporary differences on the IAS 19 pension deficit

* temnpaorary differences arising from the timing of the use of tax losses

« share-based compensation temporary differences on share schemes and

= other temporary differences on provisions and other itemns
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2.4
Earnings
per share

The deferred tax balance associated with the pension deficit has been adjusted to reflect the current tax benefit

obtained in the current year following the employer contributions of £93 million to the Group's defined benefit pension
scheme. The adjustment in other comprehensive income to the deferred tax balance primarily relates to the actuarial

loss recognised in the period.

A deferred tax asset of £377 million (2015 £399 million) in respect of capital losses of £2. 215 million (2015: £2 215 million)
has not been recognised due to uncertainties as to whether a capital gain will arise in the appropriate form and relevant
territory against which such losses could be utilised. For the same reasons, deferred tax assets of £19 million (2015: £15 million)
in respect of overseas losses that time expire between 2017 and 2027 have not been recognised.

eepi arnings per share {EPSY) is the amount of post-tax profit attributable to each share.
K n E gs per st EPSYisth f post-tax profit attributabl h st
it simp[e I 2016 we present EPS for the continuing business and the discontinued operation,

UTV Ireland Limited (see note 2.5 for further details).

Basic EPS is calculated on the Group profit for the year attributable to equity
% shareholders of £448 million (2015: £495 million} divided by 4,010 million (2015:

4,006 million) being the weighted average number of shares inissue during the year.

Diluted EPS reflects any commitments made by the Group to issue shares in the
future and so it includes the impact of share options.

Adjusted EPS is presented in order to show the business performance of the Group
in a consistent manner and reflect how the husiness is managed and measured on

a day-to-day basis. Adjusted EPS reflects the impact of operating and non-operating
exceptional items an Basic £EPS. Other items excluded from Adjusted EPS inciude
amortisaticn and impairment of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations; net financing cost adjustments and the tax adjustments relating to
these items. Each of these adjustments are explained in detail in the section below.

The calculation of Basic EPS and Adjusted EPS, together with the diluted impact on each, is set out below:

Earnings par shars
2016 2015
£m £m
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of ITV pic 448 495
Less: Loss for the year from discontinued operations N -
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of ITV pic
from continuing operations 449 495
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue — million 4,010 4,006
Eamings per ordinary share and from continuing operations 1.2p 12.4p
Loss per ordinary share from discontinued operations - -
Diluted earnings per share
2016 2015
£m £m
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of ITV pic
from continuing operations 449 495
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue — million 4,010 4,006
Dilution due to share options 19 29
Total weighted average numbetr of ordinary shares in issue — million 4,029 4,035
Diluted earnings per ordinary share and from continuing operations 11.1p 123p

Diluted loss per ordinary share from discontinued operations
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Adjusted earnings per share
2018 2015
Ref £m £m
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of ITV plc 448 495
Exceptional items {net of tax) A 149 95
Less: Loss after tax for the period from discontinued operations {1 -
Profit for the year before exceptional items
from continuing operations 598 590
Amortisation and impairment of acquired intangible assets B 66 54
Adjustments to net financing costs C 19 15
Adjusted profit from continuing operations 683 659
Total weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue — million 4,010 4,006
Adjusted earnings per ordinary share and from continuing operations 17.0p 16.5p
Adjusted loss per ordinary share from discontinued operations - -
Diluted adjusted earnings per share
2016 015
£m £m
Adjusted profit from continuing operations 683 659
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue - million 4,010 4,006
Dilution due to share options 19 29
Total weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue — million 4,029 4,035
Diluted adjusted eamings per ordinary share and from continuing operations 17.0p 163p

Diluted adjusted loss per ordinary share from discontinued operations

Details of the adjustments to eamings are as follows:

A. Exceptional items {net of tax) £149 million (2015: £95 million)
Calculated as total exceptional items of £164 million (2015: £103 million) net of related tax credit of £15 miltion
(2015: £8 million). See note 2.2 for the detailed compaosition of exceptional items of £164 miillion.

B. Amortisation and impairment of acquired intangible assets of £66 million 2015: £54 million)

Calculated as total amortisation and impairment of £89 million (2015: £67 milllon), less amortisation of software
licences and development of £12 million (2015: £9 million), net of related tax credit of £20 mitlion {2015: £13 million).
This is then adjusted to recognise a £9 million cash tax benefit arising from goodwill on US acquisitions, which for
tax purposes is amortised over a 15-year period (2015: £9 million).

C. Adjustments to net financing costs £19 million (2015: £15 million)

Net financing costs are adjusted for mark-to-market movements on derivative instruments, foreign exchange
and imputed pensicn interest charges of £25 million (2015: £18 millicn) net of related tax credit of £6 million
(2015: £3 million).
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25
Discontinued
operations

Keeping A discontinued operation is a distinct component of the business that has been oris
it simp[e in the process of being disposed. Accounting standards dictate that the loss from
discontinued operations is recognised outside of the Group's operating results.

Management agreed to sell UTV Ireland Limited to Virgin Media o 11 July 2016

% for €10 million. The sale completed on 30 November 2076 and the assets and
liabilities ctassified as a disposal group held-for-sale have been disposed of. See
section 3.4 for further details.

Results of discontinued operations

2016 2015
£m £m
Revenue ) 1 -
Expenses 17 -
Operating loss . ® -
Taxation - -
lossaftertax {6) -
Gain on sale of discontinued operations 5 -
Tax on gain on sale of discontinued operations - -
Loss for the period n -
Earnings per share _ o
Basic loss per share L - -
Diluted loss per share - -
Cash flows from (usad in) discontinued operations
2016 2015
£m £m
Net cash usgaih_abéati?; activities {6) -
Net cash from investing activities 10 -
Net cash flow for the period 4 -
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Section 3: Operating Assets and Liabilities

In this This section shows the assets used to generate the Group's trading

section performance and the liabilities incurred as a result. On the following pages
there are notes covering working capital, non-current assets and liabilities,
acquisitions and disposals, provisions and pensions.

Liabilities relating to the Group's financing acttivities are addressed in section 4.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are shown in note 2.3.

31 Keeping Working capital represents the assets and liabilities the Group generates throughits
WOrking it simple trading activity. The Group therefore defines working capitat as distribution rights,
capital pregramime rights and production costs, trade and other receivables and trade and
other payables

% Careful management of working capital ensures that the Group can meet its trading
and financing abligations withir its ordinary operating cycle

Working capital is a driver of the profit to cash conversion ratic, a key performance
indicator for the Group. The Group's target profit to cash ratio on a rolting three-year
basisis at least S0%. Far those subsidiaries acquired during the year, working capital
at the date of acquisition is excluded from the profit to cash calculation sa that only
subsequent working capital movements in the period owned by ITV are reflected in
this metric.

in the fallowing section you will find further information regarding working capital
management and analysis of the elements of working capital.

3.1.1Programma rights, other inventory and commitments
Accounting policles
Rights are recognised when the Group controls the respective rights and the risks and rewards associated with them.

Programme rights and production costs not yet utilised are included in the statement of financial position at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. In assessing net reatisable value for programmes in production, judgement is required
when considering the contracted sales price and estimated costs to complete.

Broadcast programme rights

Acauired programme rights (which include films), and sports rights, are purchased for the primary purpose of broadcasting
on the ITV Family channels, induding VOD and SVOD platforms. These are recognised within current assets as payments
are made or when the rights are ready for broadcast. The Group generally expenses these rights through operating costs
over anumber of transmissions reflecting the pattermn and value in which the right is consumed.

Commissions, which primarily comprise programmes purchased based on editorial specification and over which
the Group has some control, are recognised in current assets as payments are made and are generally expensed
to operating costs in full on first transmission. Where a commission is repeated on any platform, incremental costs
associated with the broadcast are included in operating costs.

In assessing net realisable value for acquired and comimissioned rights, the net realisable value assessment is based on
estimated airtime value, with consideration given to whether the number of transmissions purchased can be efficiently
played out over the licence period.

The Broadcast programme rights and other inventory at the year end are shown in the table below:

06 2015

£Em £m

Acquired programme rights 157 m
Commissions 69 61
Sports rights 27 30
253 202
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Broadcast programme commitments

These are operating commitments in respect of programming entered into in the ordinary course of business with
programme suppliers, sports organisations and film distributors in respect of rights to broadcast on the [TV network
Cornmitments in respect of these purchases, which are not reflected in the statement of financial position, are due
for payment as follows:

2016 2015

E£m £m

Within one year 454 451
Later than one year and not more than five years 789 633
More than five years 112 141
1,355 1225

Studios production costs

Production inventory comprises the costs incurred by TV Studios in producing a prograrmrne, where the programme is
part way through the production process and not yet available for delivery to a broadcaster. They are recognised within
current assets at the production cost incurred, and are expensed in operating costs on delivery of episodes.

Also included here are dramas that that are typically more expensive to produce. The production cost of adramais
partly funded by the commissioning network licence fee and tax credits, if available. The remaining deficit is funded
by the Group and is recovered by future distribution sales. Once the production is cormplete the deficit is classified
as a Distributicn Right.

The Studios programme rights and other inventory at the year end are shown in the table below:

2016 2015

£m £rm
Production costs 153 171
3.1.2 Distribution rights
Accounting policies

Distribution rights are programime rights the Group buys from producers to derive future revenue, principally through
licensing to broadcasters. These are classified as non-current assets as these rights are used to derive long-term
economic benefit for the Group.

Distribution rights are recognised initially at cost and charged through operating costs in the income statement over
a period not exceeding five years, reflecting the value and pattern in which the right is consumed. Advances paid for
the acquisition of distribution rights are disclosed as distribution rights as soon as they are contracted. These advances
are not expensed until the programime is available for distribution. Up to that point they are assessed annually for
impairment through the reassessment of the future sales expected to be earned from that title.

The net book value of distribution rights at the year end are as follows:

2016 2015
£m £m
Distribution rights £l 29

The movement during the year comprises hew rights acquired of £40 million (2015: £43 mitlion) and amounts charged
to the income statement of £38 million (2015: £27 million).
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3.1.3 Trade and other receivables

Accounting policies

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the vatue of the invoice sent to the customer and subsequently at the
amounts considered recoverable (amortised cost). Where payments are not due for more than one year, they are
shown in the financial statements at their net present value to reflect the economic cost of delayed payment.
The Group provides goods and services to substantiatly all its customers on credit terms.

Estimates are used in determining the level of receivables that will not, in the opinion of the Directors, be collected.
These estimates include such factors as historical experience, the current state of the UK and overseas economies and
industry specific factors. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is sufficient evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due.

The carrying value of trade receivables is considered to approximate fair value. During the year £35 million of trade
receivable invoices were sold under a recelvables purchase agreerment (see note 4.2 for more details). Trade and other
receivables can be analysed as follows:

2016 2015
£m £m
Due within one year:

Trade receivables 35 328
Other receivables 39 37
Prepaid employment linked consideration (see note 3.4) n 55
Prepayments and accruedincome 151 111
526 531

Due after more than one year:
Trade receivables 12 8
Prepaid employment linked consideration (see note 3.4) - 18
Accrued income and other receivables 27 7
Total trade and other recelvables 565 564

Prepaid employment linked consideration totalling £21 million {2015: £55 million) relates to the acquisition of Talpa
Media in 2015 (see note 3.4 for details). This represents the portion of the initial consideration of €150 million that
is recoverable from the seller in the event he leaves within the initial two years following acquisition. This amount
is amortised over the two years to 31 March 2017 and recegnised as exceptional expense (see note 2.2).

£327 million (2015: £336 million) of total trade receivables that are not impaired are aged as follows:

2016 2015
£m £m

Current 299 308
Up to 30 days overdue 19 17
Between 30 and 90 days overdue 6 8
Over 90 days overdue 3 3
327 336

The balance above is stated net of a provision of £4 million (2015: £5 millicn) for impairment of trade receivables. Of the
provision total, £3 million relates to balances overdue by maore than 90 days (2015: £4 million) and £1 million relates to
current balances (2015: £1 mitlion).

Movements in the Group’s provision for impairment of trade receivables can be shown as follows:

206 2015

£m £m

At 1 January 5 7

Charged during the year 3 3
Unused amounts reversed {4) {5)

At 31 Decernber 4 5
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3.1.4 Trade and other payables due within one year
Accounting policies

Trade payables are recognised at the value of the invoice received from a supplier. The carrying value of current and
non-current trade payables is considered to approximate fair value. Trade and other payables due within one year

can be analysed as follows:

2016 2015

£m £m

Trade payables 71 65
VAT and social security 61 il
Other payables 291 V7
Accruals 332 289
Deferred income 205 184
960 786

Other payables indude £105 million (2015 £3 million) of acquisition related liabilities due in 2017, of which £72 million is
employrment inked contingent consideration and £33 mitlion is payable to sellers under put options agreed on acquisition,

3.1.5 Trade and other payables due after more than one year

Trade and other payables due after more than one year can be analysed as follows:

2016 2015

£m £m

Trade payables 57 48
Other payables 63 89
120 137

Trade payables primarily relate to film creditors for which payment is due after more than one year. Cther payables indude
the non-current portion of acquisition related liabilities of £53 mitlion (2015: £82 million), of which £38 million is employment
linked contingent consideration and £15 million is payable to sellers under put options agreed on acquisition.

3.1.6 Working capital management

Cash and working capital management continues to be a key focus. During the year the cash outflow from working

capital was £28 million (2015: outflow of £59 million) derived as follows:

206 015

£m £m

(Increase)/decrease in programme rights and other inventory and distribution rights {35) 4
{Increase) in receivables (56) (r4)]
Increase/(decrease) in payables 63 (42)
Working capital outflow {28) {59)

The working capital outflow for the year excludes the impact of balances acquired on the acquisition of subsidiaries

during the year (see note 3.4).
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3.2

Property,
plant and
equipment
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Accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Certain items

of property, plant and equipment that were revalued to fair value prior to 1 January 2004 (the date of transition to IFRS)

are measured on the basis of deemed cost, being the revalued amount less depreciation up to the date of transition. :

Leases
Finance leases are those which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

Determining whether a lease is a finance lease requires judgement as to whether substantially all of the risks and
benefits of ownership have been transferred to the Group. Estimates used by management in making this assessment
include the useful economic life of assets, the fair value of the asset and the discount rate applied to the total
payments required under the lease. Assets held under such leases are included within property, plant and equipment
and depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Outstanding finance lease obligations, which comprise the principal plus accrued interest, are included within
borrowings. The finance element of the agreements is charged to the income statement over the term of the lease
on an effective interest basis.

All other leases are operating leases, the rentals on which are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the lease term (see note 2.1 for further details of operating lease commitrments).

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment less estimated residual value, on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The annual depreciation charge is sensitive to the estimated useful
life of each asset and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The major categories of property, plant and
equipment are depreciated as follows:

Asset ctass Depreaation policy

Freehold land not depreciated

Freehold buildings up to 60 years

Leasehoid improvements shorter of residual lease term or estimated useful life
Vehicles, equipment and fittings * 3 to 20 years

* Equipment includes studio production and technology assets.
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Impairment of assets

Property, plant and equipment that is subject to depreciation is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Indicatars of impairment may include
changes in technology and business performance.

Proparty, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment can be analysed as follows:

Freeholdland  Improvemnents to leasehold Vehicles, equipment
and buildings land and buildings and fittings Total
- Finance
Long Short Owned leases
£m ] £m fm  Em £m
Cost -
At 1 January 2015 120 67 17 237 16 457
Additions = - 1 37 - 38
Disposats and retirements 31 (N - {10) - (42)
At 31 December 2015 89 66 18 264 16 453
Additions - 3 - 2 28 - 33
Foreignexchange - - - 6 - 6
Reclassifications - - - 3 & -
Disposals and retirements - - - 29) (3) {(42)
At 31 December 2016 92 66 20 272 - 450
lon - o
At 1 January 2015 w7 13 150 14 209
Charge for the year L 1 2 - 24 - 27
Dispaosals and retirements (12) (U] - (9) - (22)
At 31 December 2015 6 14 15 165 14 214
Chargefortheyear 1 2 1 27 - N
Foreign exchange . - - ~ 3 - 3
Reclassifications __ - - - oo =
Disposals and retirements - - - (29) (13) (42)
At 31 December 2016 7 16 16 167 - 206
Net book value
At 31 December 2016 85 50 4 105 - 244
At 31 December 2015 83 52 3 99 2 239

Additions in the year includes £4 million (2015: £6 million) relating to assets owned by subsidiaries acquired during
the year.

Included within property, plant and equipment are assets in the course of construction of £19 miltion (2015: £16 million).

In 2016, the Group retired £42 million of assets from use with a net book value of £nil. In 2015, the Group disposed of
the Quay Street site and related assets in Manchester for £23 million, representing a gain on sale of £5 million.

In 2013 the Group acquired the freehold for the London Television Centre for £58 million, although the Directors’ view
is that fair value of the property would be significantly higher than the carrying value.

Capital commitments
There are £4 millicn of capital commitments at 31 December 2016 (2015: £2 million).
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33 Keeping The following section shows the non-physicat assetsused by the Group to generate

lntangible it simple revenue and prefits.

assets These assets include formats and brands, custgmer contracts and relationships,
contractual arrangernents, ticences, software development, film libraries and

% goodwill The cost of these assets is the amount that the Group has paid or, where

there has been a business combination, the fair valuie of the specific intangible assets
that could be sold separately or which arise from legal rights. It the case of goodwill,
its cost is the amount the Group has paid in acquiring a business over and above the
fair value of the individual assets and liabilities acquired. The value of goodwill is
‘intangible’ value that cames from, for example, a uniguely strong market position
and the outstanding productivity of its emplayees.

The value of intangible assets, with the exception of goodwill, reduces over the
number of years the Group expects to use the asset, the useful economic life, via an
annual amortisation charge to the income statement. Where there has been

a technological change or decline in business performance the Directors review the
value of assets, inctuding goodwil, to ensure they have not fallen beiow their
amortised value. Should an asset's value fall below its amortised value an additional
cne-off impairment charge is made against profit

This section explains the accounting policies applied and the specific judgements and
estimates made by the Directors in arriving at the net book value of these assets.

Accounting policias

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits that arise from assets that are not capable of being individuatly
identified and separately recognised. The goodwill recognised by the Group has all arisen as a result of business
combinations. Goodwill is stated at its recoverable amount being cost less any accumutated impairment losses
and is allocated to the business to which it relates.

Due to changes in accounting standards goodwill has been calculated using three different methods depending on the
date the relevant business was purchased.

Method *: Al business combinations that have occurred since 1 January 2009 were accounted for using the acquisition
method. Under this methed, goodwill is measured as the fair value of the consideration transferred (including the
recognition of any part of the business not yet owned (non-cantrolling interests)}, less the fair value of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, all measured at the acquisition date. Any contingent consideration expected to
be transferred in the future will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date and recognised within other payables.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement. The determination of fair value is based on discounted cash
flows. The key assumptions take into consideration the probability of meeting each performance target and the
discount rate.

Where less than 100% of a subsidiary is acquired, and call and put options are granted over the remaining interest,

. a non-controlling interest is initlally recognised in equity at fair value, which is established based on the value of the put
option. A call option is recognised as a derivative financial instrument, carried at fair value. The put option is recognised
as a liability within other payables, carried at the present value of the put option exercise price, and a corresponding
charge is included in merger and other reserves. Any subsequent remeasurement of the put option liability is
recognised within finance income or cost

Subsequent adjustments to the falr value of net assets acquired can only be made within 12 months ¢f the acquisition
date, and only if fair values were determined provisionally at an earlier reporting date. These adjustments are
accounted for from the date of acquisition.

Acquisitions of non-controlling interests are accounted for as transactions with owners and therefore no goodwitl is
recognised as a result of such transactions. Transaction costs incurred in connection with those business combinations,
stich as legal fees, due diligence fees and other professional fees, are expensed as incurred.
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Method 2; All business combinations that occurred between 1 January 2004 and 31 December 2008 were accounted
for using the purchase method in accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations (2004}, Goodwill on those
combinations represents the difference between the cost of the acquisition and the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired and did not include the value of the non-controlling interest. Transaction costs incurred in connection
with those business combinations, such as legal fees, due diligence fees and other professional fees, were included in
the cost of acquisition.

Methad 3: For business combinations prior to 1January 2004, goodwill is included at its deemed cost, which represents
the amount recorded under UK GAAP at that time less accumulated amortisation up to 31 Decemnber 2003, The
classification and accounting treatment of business combinations occurring prior to 1 fanuary 2004, the date of
transition to IFRS, has not been reconsidered as permitted under IFRS 1.

Other intangible assets
Intangible assets other than goodwill are those that are distinct and can be sold separatety or whidh arise from legal rights.

Wwithin ITV there are two types of other intangible assets: those assets directly purchased by the Group for day-to-day
operational purposes (such as software licences and development) and intangible assets identified as part of an
acquisition of a business.

Intangible assets acquired directly by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. Those separately
identified intangible assets acquired as part of an acquisition or business combination are shown at fair value at the
date of acquisition less accumulated amortisation.

The main intangible assets the Group has valued are formats, brands, licences, contractual arrangements, customer
contracts and relationships and libraries.

Each class of intangible assets’ valuation method oninitial recognition, amortisation method and estimated useful life
is set out in the table below:

RIS (RjoUBULS |

Class of intangible Amortisation method Estimated useful life  Valuation method
asset
Brands Straight-line 8to 4 years Applying a royalty rate to the expected future revenue over
the life of the brand,
Formats Straight-line up to 8 years Expected future cash flows from those assets existing at the
Customer Straight-ineor  upto 6 years date of acquisition are estimated. If applicabte, a contributory
contracts reducing balance charge is deducted for the use of other assets needed to
as appropriate exploit the cash flow. The net cash flow is then discounted
Customer Straight-line 5to 10 years back to present value.
relationships e
Contractual Straight-line uptoDvyears  Expected future cash flows from those contracts
arrangements dependingon  existing at the date of acquisition are estimated. If applicable,
the contract a contributory charge is deducted for the use of other assets
terms needed to exploit the cash flow. The net cash flow is then
. (dscountedbacktopresentvalue. =
Licences Straight-line TMto29years  Start-up basis of expected future cash flows existing
dependingon  at the date of acquisition, If applicable, a contributory charge
term of licence  is deducted for the use of other assets needed to exploit the
cash flow. The net cash flow is then discounted back to
present value.
PSB licences are valued as a start-up business with only the
o L __ license in place. L
Libraries and sumofdigitsor upto20vyears  Initially at cost and subsequently at cost tess accumulated
other straight line as amortisation.
o appropriate B -
Software licences Straight-line 1to Syears Initially at cost and subsequently at cost less accumulated
and development amortisation.

Determining the fair value of intangible assets arising on acquisition requires judgement. The Directors make estimates
regarding the timing and amount of future cash flows detived from explaiting the assets being acquired. The Directors
then estimate an appropriate discount rate to apply to the forecast cash flows, Such estimates are based on current
budgets and forecasts, extrapolated for an appropriate petiod taking into account growth rates, operating costs and
the expected useful lives of assets. Judgements are also made regarding whether, and for how long, licences will be
renewed; this drives our amortisation policy for those assets.

The Directors estimate the appropriate discount rate using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the assets or businesses being acquired.
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Amortisation

Amortisation is charged to the income statement over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets unless such lives
are judged to be indefinite. indefinite life assets, such as goodwill, are not amortised but are tested for impairment at
each year end.

Impairment
Goodwill is not subject to amortisaticn and is tested annually for impairment and when circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired.

Other intangible assets are subject to amortisation and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
drcumstances indicate that the amount carried in the statement of financial position is Less than its recoverable amount.

Determining whether the carrying amount of intangible assets has any indication of impairment requires judgement.
Any impairment is recognised in the income statement.

An impairment test is performed by assessing the recoverable amount of each asset, or for goodwill, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) related to the goodwill. Total assets (which include goodwill) are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (‘cash-generating unit’ or CGU}.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The value in use is based
on the present value of the future cash flows expected to arise from the asset.

In testing for impairment, estimates are used in deriving cash flows and the discount rates. Such estimates reflect
current market assessments of the risks specific to the asset and the time value of money. The estimation process

is complex due to the inherent risks and uncertainties associated with long-term forecasting. if different estimates

of the projected future cash flows or a different selection of an appropriate discount rate or long-tetm growth rate were
made, these changes could materialty alter the projected value of the cash flows of the asset, and as a consequence materially
different amounts would be reported in the financial statements.

Impairment losses in respect of goodwill cannot be reversed. In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount Animpairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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Intangible assets
Intangible assets can be analysed as follows:

FURLSIES [Rul |

Customer

Formats contractsand  Contractual Libraries Software
Goodwill and brands relationships arrangements Licences andother  licerces and Total
€m £m £m £m £m £m development £m

Cost
At 1 January 2015 3627 201 385 10 121 97 89 4,530
Additions 102 273 23 - - 1 15 414
Foreign exchange 15 7 3 - - 1 - 26
At 31 December 2015 3,744 481 41 10 121 99 104 4970
Additions 44 3 - - 55 - 13 15
Foreign exchange 47 51 9 1 - 4 - 112
At 31 December 2016 3,835 535 420 11 176 103 117 5,197
Amortisation and
impairment
At 1 January 2015 2654 177 347 5 90 57 71 340
Charge for the year - 27 17 2 4 8 9 67
Foreign exchange - 1 1 — — - - 2
At 31 December 2015 2654 205 365 7 94 65 80 3470
Charge for the year - 44 16 2 6 9 12 89
Foreign exchange — 5 6 1 — 2 - 14
At 31 December 2016 2,654 254 387 10 100 76 92 3,573
Net book value
At 31 December 2016 1181 281 33 1 76 27 25 1,624
At 31 Decemnber 2015 1,090 276 46 3 27 34 24 1500

All intangible asset additions in the year, excluding software, are due to the acquisition of UTV Limited, as detailed in
note 3.4 (2015: four companies acquired).

Goodwill impairment tests
The carrying amount of Goodwill for each CGU is represented as follows:

2016 2015

£m £m

Broadcast & Online 386 342
SDN 76 76
ITV Studios 719 672
1,181 1,090

There has been no impairment charge for any CGU during the year (2015: £nil).

When assessing impairment, the recoverable amount of each CGU is based on value in use calculations, These calaulations
require the use of estimates, specifically: pre-tax cash flow projections; long-term growth rates; and a pre-tax matket
discount rate.

Cash flow projections are based on the Group's current five-year plan, Beyond the five-year plan these projections are
extrapolated using an estimated long-term growth rate of 2% (2015: 2%). The growth rate used is consistent with the
long-term average growth rates for both the industry and the countries in which they are located and is appropriate
because these are long-term businesses.

The discount rate has been revised for each CGU to reflect the latest market assumptions for the risk-free rate, the
equity risk premium and the net cost of debt. There is currently no reasonably possible change in discount rate that
would reduce the headroom in any CGU to zero,
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Broadcast & Online

The goodwill in this CGU arose as a result of the acquisition of broadcasting businesses since 1999, the largest of
which was the merger of Carlton and Granada in 2004 to form ITV ple, which was treated as an acquisition of Carlton
for accounting purposes. Broadcast & Online goodwill atso includes the goodwill arising on acquisition of UTV Limited
in February 2016,

The main assumptions on which the forecast cash flow projections for this CGU are based include: the share of the
television advertising market; share of commercial impacts; programme and other costs; and the pre-tax market
discount rate.

The key assumption in assessing the recoverable amount of Broadcast & Online goodwill is the size of the television
advertising market, In forming its assumptions about the television advertising market, the Group has used a
combination of long-term trends, industry forecasts and in-house estimates, which place greater emphasis on recent
experience. No impairment was identified. Also as part of the impairment review, a sensitivity of up to -10% was applied
to 2017 and -3% to 2078 with no subsequent recovery, again with no impairment identified. The Directors believe that
currently no reasonably possible change in these assumptions would reduce the headroom in this CGU to zero.

Animpainment charge of £2,309 million was recognised in the Broadcast & Online CGU in 2008, as a result of the
downturnin the short-term outlook for the advertising market. The advertising market has substantially improved
since then however the impairment cannot be reversed. The impairment review set out above results in significant
headrocom in excess of the 2008 impairrment amount.

A pre-tax market discount rate of 10.4% (2015: 9.7%) has been used in discounting the projected cash flows.

SDN

Goodwilt was recognised when the Group acquired SDN (the licence operator for OTT Multiplex A) in 2005. it represented
the wider strateqic benefits of the acquisition specific to the Group, principally the enhanced abllity to promote Freeview

as a platform, business relationships with the channels which are on Multiplex A and additional capacity available from 2010.

The main assumptions on which the forecast cash fiows are based are:income to be eamed from medium-term contracts;
the market price of available multiplex video streams; and the pre-tax market discount rate. These assumptions have been
determined by using a combination of current contract terms, recent market transactions and in-house estimates of
video stream availability and pricing. No impairment was identified.

As part of the impairment review, sensitivity was applied to the main assumptions with no impairment identified
(2017: -10% growth, 2018: 0% growth). The Directors believe that currently no reasonably possible change in the
income and availability assumptions would reduce the headroom in this CGU to zero.

A pre-tax market discount rate of 11.7% (2015: 11.5%) has been used in discounting the projected cash flows.

ITV Studios

The goodwill for ITV Studios has atisen as a result of the acquisition of production businesses since 1999. Significant
balances were created from the acquisition by Granada of United News and Media's production businesses in 2000 and
the merger of Granada and Carlton in 2004 to form ITV plc. ITV Studics goodwill also includes all of the goodwill arising
from recent acquisitions since 2012, with the largest acquisitions being Leftfield in 2014, followed by Talpa and Twofour
Group in 2015.

The key assumptions on which the forecast cash flows for the whole CGU were based include revenue (including
international revenue and the ITV Studios share of ITV output, growth in commissions and hours produced),
margins and the pre-tax market discount rate. These assumptions have been determined by using a combination
of extrapotation of historical trends within the business, industry estimates and in-house estimates of growth rates
in all rnarkets. No impairment was identified.

As part of the impairment review sensitivity was applied to the main assumptions with no impairment identified
(2017: -10% growth, 2018: D% growth). The Directors believe that currently no reasonably possible change in the
income and availability assumptions would reduce the headroom in this CGU to zero.

A pre-tax market discount rate of 11.6% {20115: 10.1%) has been used in discounting the projected cash flows.

There have been no changes to the [TV Studios CGU in the year and the Directors consider that a single TV Studios CGU
continues to remain appropriate.
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During the period, the Group completed the acquisition of UTV Limited, which has been included in the results of the

The fallowing sectieon cutlines what the Grouo has acquired in the year.

Maost of the deals are structured so that a large part of the payment made to the
sellers (‘consideration’) is determined based on future performance. This is done
so that the Group can both align incentives for growth, while reducing risk so that
total consideration reflects actual performance, not expected.

IFRS accounting standards require some of this consideration to be included in

the purchase price used in determining goodwill (‘contingent consideration’).
Examples of contingent consideration include top-up payments and recoupable
perforrmance adjustments. Any remaining consideration is required to be recognised
as aliability or expense outside of acquisition accounting (put option liabilities and
employment-linked contingent payments known as ‘earnout’ payments).

The Group considers the income statement impact of all consideration to be ¢ apital
in nature and therefore excludes it from adjusted profit. Therefore, for each
acquisition below, the distinction between the types of consideration has been
explained in detait.

Broadcast & Online operating segment. The business fits with the strategy of strengthening the Group's free-to-air
business and enables it to run a more efficient network. The following section provides a summary of the acquisition.

UTV Limited

On 29 February 20116 the Group acquired a 100% controlling interest in UTV Limited which, together with its 100%

subsidiary UTV Ireland Limited, owned the television assets of UTV Media plc. UTV is the market leading commercial

broadcaster in Northern Ireland, broadcasting ITV content alongside high-quality local programming. The strategic
rationate for the acquisition was to purchase the Northem Irish Channel 3 license.

UTV Limited iaunched a new dedicated channel for the Republic of Ireland in 2015 via its subsidiary UTV Ireland Limited.

Management concluded that the best prospect of detivering a strong and sustainable Irish broadcaster was to bring

UTV Ireland under common ownership with TV3. [TV therefore sold the company to Virgin Media, owner of TV3 on
30 Novernber 2016, for consideration of €10million. Further details are included in note 2.5.

Key terms:

The Group purchased the businesses for a cash consideration of £100 million.
UTV Limited acquisition accounting:

Intangibles, being the value placed on brands and licences of £58 milion were identified and goodwill was valued at

£4¢4 million. Goodwill represents the value placed on the opportunity to diversify and grow the business by the Group.
The goodwill arising on acquisition is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes. Other fair value adjustments have
been made to the opening balance sheet, though none of them are individually significant.

Acquisitions in 2015

In 2015 the Group made four acquisitions, all of which are included in the results of the [TV Studios operating segrment.

Talpa MediaB.V.

On 30 April 2015 the Group acquired a 100% controlling interest in Talpa Media B.V. and its subsidiaries.

Key terms:

Cash consideration of £362 million (€500 million) was paid at acquisition and the maximurm total consideration for
100% of the business, including the initial payment, was £796 million {€1,300 millicn, undiscounted). All future payments

are performance based.

The deal structure allows for a further £434 million (€600 million) payable after two, five and eight years, on the
achievement of stretching performance targets for the business in the years following acquisition. For these amounts
to be payable in the future, the deal requires the seller to remain with the business during the earnout period. Further,
if the seller leaves within the first two years following acquisition, €150 million of the initial consideration would be
refunded to ITV. While accounting standards determine that these payments are treated as an expense, even the

€150 million refundable, the Group considers these payments as capitalin nature, and therefore expenses in relation
to these payments are excluded from adjusted profits as exceptional items.
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Talpa Media B.V. acquisition accounting:

Intangibles, being the value placed on formats, brands, customer contracts, non-compete arrangements and libraries,
of £276 million (€382 million) were identified and goodwill was valued at £41 enillion (€57 miltion). Goodwll represents
the value placed on the opportunity to diversify and grow the content and formats produced by the Group. The goodwill
arising on acquisition is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes. Other fair value adjustments have been made

to the opening balance sheet, though none of them are individually significant.

Twofour Group
On 24 June 2015 the Group acquired Boom Supervisary Limited, the holding company of Twofour Group.

Key terms:

The Group purchased 100% of the Twofour Group for a cash consideration of £55 million. Subsequently the sellers
subscribed to 25% of the share capital of the acquiring company. Put and call options have been granted over this
25% in Twofour Group; these options both being exercisable over the next three to five years, The transaction has
been accounted for on an anticipated acquisition basis and a non-controlling interest has not been recognised. The
maximum total consideration, including the initial payment, is £280 million (undiscounted). These payments are
dependent on future performance of the business and linked to ongoing employment, therefore accounted for

as expense. The Group considers these payments as capital in nature, and therefore expenses in relaticn to these
payments are excluded from adjusted profits as exceptional items.

Twofour Group acquisition accounting:

Intangibles, being the value placed on formats, brands, customer contracts, non-compete arrangements and libraries,
of £18 million were identified and goodwill was valued at £50 million. Goodwill represents the value placed on the
opportunity to diversify and grow the content and formats produced by the Group. The goodwill arising on acquisition
is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes. Other fair value adjustrents have been made to the opening balance
sheet, though none of them are individually significant.

Other 2015 acquisitions

The Group made initial payments totalling £15 million for two smaller acquisitions, Cats on the Roof Media Ltd and
Mammoth Screen Ltd, with a view that these acquisitions will strengthen and complement ITV's existing position as

a producer for major television networks in the UK. The maximum additional consideration that the Group could pay is
£66 million (undiscounted). Goodwill totalling £11 million arising on these acquisitions is not expected to be deductible
for tax purposes.
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Effect of acquisition
The acquisitions noted above had the following impact on the Group assets and liabilities:

2016 2015
£m utv Total
Consideration transferred:

Initial consideration (net of cash acquired) (Note A) 97 406

Less: consideration classified as prepaid employment linked consideration (Note B) - (109)
Total consideration 97 297
Fair vatue of net assets acquired:

Property, plant and equipment 4 6

Intangible assets 58 297

Deferred tax liabilities (1) (eat)]

Trade and other receivables 5 gl

Trade and other payables @ (138)
Net assets held for sale 4 -
Fair value of net assets 53 195
Goodwill 44 102
Contributions to the Group’s performance:
From date of acquisition

Revenue 7 185

EBITA before exceptionals (Note C) 8 29
Proforma - January to December

Revenue 33 306

EBITA before exceptionals (Note ©) 9 49

Note A: Consideration for all acquisitions is net of cash acquired and estimated debt and working capital settlements, Cash acquired

during the year is £3 million (2015: £33 miilion).

Note B: In 2015 total consideration was net of employment linked consideration of £109 million (€150 million). IFRS requires the
employment linked consideration to be treated as remuneration. See note 3.1.4 for further detail of this prepayment.

Nate C: UTV profit for the ten months from date of acquisition is £8 million and £9 million for January to Decermnber 2016, both excluding

the effect of discontinued operations. This represents UTV's contribution to Group profits. On a consolidated basis the acquisition
resulted in a reduction in ITV Non-NAR revenues previously earmned from UTV, which on a Group basis is offset by the reduction in

UTV's costs.

145

SJUSWINS JRPUBUL] '




Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 3: Operating Assets and Liabilities continued

35 Keeping The Group holds non-cantrolling interests in a number of different entities.
Investments it simple Accounting for these investments, and the Group's share of any profits and losses,
depends on the level of control or influence the Group is granted via its interest.
The three principal types of non-consolidated investments are: joint arrangements
% {joint ventures or joint operaticns), asscciates and available for sale investments.

A joint venture is an investment where the Group has joint control, with one or more
third parties. An assaciate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence
{i.e. power to participate in the investee's financial and operating decisions). Any
other investment is an available for sale investment.

Accounting policies

For joint ventures and associates the Group applies equity accounting. Under this method, it recognises the investment
in the entity at cost and subsequently adjusts this for its share of profits or losses, which are recognised in the income
statement within non-operating items and included in adjusted profit. Where the Group has invested in associates by
acquiring preference shares or convertible debt instruments, the share of profit recognised is usually £nil as no equity
interest exists. Available for sale investments are held at fair value unless the investment is a start-up business, in which
case it is valued at cost and assessed forimpairment.

The carrying amourt of each category of our investments is represented as follows:

2016 2015

£m £m

Joint ventures 4 1
Associates 60 18
Available for sale investments 12 il
76 30

The increase in the year is due to Investment in New Form, a digital producer-broadcaster, and Increased investment
in [TV Tomorrow Studios, a scripted studic launched in 2014. Further smaller investments have been made in line with
Group's strategy to grow the international content business.

Please refer to page 184 for the list of principal investments held at 31 December 2016.
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36
Provisions

Keeping A provision is recognised by the Group where an obligation exists relating to events
it simple in the past and it is probable that cash will be paid to settle it.

A provision is made where the Group is not certain how much cash will be required to
% settle aliability, so an estimate is required. The main estimates relate to the cost of

hotding properties that are no longer in use by the Group, the likelihood of settling
legal claims and contracts the Group has entered into that are now unprofitable,

Accounting policies

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group has a present legal or constructive
abligation arising from past events, it is probable cash will be paid to settle it and the amount can be estimated
reliably. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows by a rate that reflects current

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised as a financing cost in the income statement. The value of the provision is determined based on assumptions

and estimates In reiation to the amount and timing of actual cash flows which are dependent on future avents.

Provislons
The movements in provisions during the year are as follows:

Contract Property Legal and Other

provisions provisions provisions Total

£m £m £m £m

At 1January 2016 6 2 25 33

Additions - 1 - 1
Utilised {6} - (4) (10)
Released - {1) - (1)

At 31 December 2016 — 2 21 23

Provisions of £19 million are classified as current liabilities (2015: £28 million). Unwind of the discount is £nil in 2016
and 2015.

Contract provisions comprised onerous commitments on transmission infrastructure that were expected to be utilised

over the remaining contract period and onerous technology services contracts which would not be utilised.

Legal and Other provisions totalling £21 million (2015: £25 million) primarily relate to potential liabilities that may
arise as a result of Boxclever having been placed into administrative recefvership, most of which relate to pension
arrangements. In 2011 the Determinations Panel of the Pensions Regulator determined that Financial Support
Directions (FSDs) should be issued against certain Group companies, which would require the Group to putin place

finandial support for the Boxclever Scheme. The Group is challenging this in the Upper Tribunal The process is ongoing

and aside from procedural issues there were no substantive case developments in the period. The Directors have
obtained leading counsel's opinion and extensive legal advice in connection with the proceedings and continue to
believe that the provision held is appropriate. The reduction in provisions during the year was due to settlement of
various other legal mattets,
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37 Keeping In this note we explain the accounting policies governing the Group's pension
Pensions it simple scheme, followed by analysis of the components of the net defined benefit pension
deficit, including assumptions made, and where the related movements have been
recagnised in the financial statements. in addition, we have placed text boxes to
% explain some of the technical terms used in the disclosure.

What are the Group's pension schemes?

There are two types of pension schemes. A ‘Defined Contribution” scheme that

is open to ITV employees. and a number of 'Defined Benefit' schemes that have been
closed to new members since 2006 and will ¢close to future accrual in 2017.in 2016
on acquisition of UTV Limited the Group took over the UTV Defined Benefit Scheme.

What is a Defined Contribution scheme?

The 'Defined Contribution’ scheme is where the Group makes fixed payments into
asepdarate fund on behalf of those employees that have elected to participate

in saving for their retirement. ITV has no further obligation to the participating
employee and the risks and rewards associated with this type of scheme arc
assumed by the members rather than the Group. It is the members' responsibility
to make investment decisions relating to their retirement benefits.

What is a Defined Benefit scheme?

In a 'Defined Benefit' scheme, members receive cash payments during retirement,
the value of which is dependent on factors such as salary and length of service.

The Group makes cantributians to the sciieme, a separate trustee-administered tund
that is not cansolidated in these financial statements, but is reflected on the defined
henefit pension deficit line on the consolidated statement of financial pasition

I is the responsibility of the Trustee to manage and invest the assets of the Scheme
and its funding position. The Trustee, appointed according to the terms of the
Scheme's documentation, is required to act in the best interest of the members

and is responsible for managing and investing the assets of the scheme and its
funding peosition.

in the event of poor returns the Group needs to address this through a combination
of increased levels of contribution or by making adjustments to the scheme.
Schemes can be funded, where regutar cash contributions are made by the employer
into a fund which is invested, or unfunded, where no reqular money or assets are
required ta be put aside to cover future payments,

Accounting policlas

Defined contribution scheme

Obiigations under the Group's defined contribution schermes are recognised as an operating cost in the income
staternent as incurred. For 2016, total contributions expensed were £16 mitlion (2015: £16 miltion).

Defined benefit scheme

The Group's obligation in respect of the Defined Benefit Scheme (the ‘Scheme’) is calculated by estimating the amount
of future retirement benefit that eligible employees (imembers) have earmed in return for their services. That benefit
payable in the future is discounted to today's value and then the fair value of scheme assets is deducted to measure
the defined benefit pension deficit.

The liabilities of the Scheme are measured by discounting the best estimate of future cash flows to be paid using the
‘projected unit' method. This methoed Is an accrued benefits valuation method that makes allowance for projected
earnings of members in the future up to retirement.
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These calculations are complex and are performed by a qualified actuary. There are many judgements and estimates
necessary to calculate the Group’s estimated liabilities, the main assumptions are set out later in this section.
Movements in assumptions during the year are called ‘actuarial gains and losses’ and these are recognised in

the period in which they arise through the statement of comprehensive income.

The latest, triennial valuation of the Scheme was undertaken as at 1January 2014 by an independent actuary appeinted
by the Trustee of the Scheme and agreed in early 2016. The next triennial valuation will be as at 1 January 2017 and is
expected to be agreed in late 2017 or early 2018. This will drive subsequent contribution rates.

An unfunded scheme in relation to four former Granada executives is accounted for under IAS 19 and the Group is
responsible for meeting the pension obligations as they fall due. The unfunded scheme has additional security
compared to the ITV main scheme, in the form of a charge over gilts held by the Group. The current Directors of [TV plc
recognise the legacy pension obligations should be honoured, but believe the additional security for the schemes
inappropriate compared to the security provided to the members of the ITV Pension Scheme. Following the Group’s
unsuccessful attempt to remove the charge, the £39 million securitised gilts have been classified as other pension
assets, rather than cash/cash equivaients, to more fairly reflect the Group’s net pension deficit.

In December 2016, following a member consultation, the Group decided to close the ITV Pension Scheme to future
benefit accrual with effect from 28 February 2017. Members’ benefits are no longer subject to a capped pensionable
salary, the benefits will be linked to statutory revaluation until retirement. This decision gave rise to a one off, non-cash
£19 million curtailment charge recognised in the year.

On 29 February 2016 the Group acquired 100% of the assets and liabilities of UTV Limited, including responsibility for

a defined benefit pension scheme. At acquisition the UTV Scheme had neither surplus nor deficit on an I1AS 19 basis, and
had a surplus of £1 million as of 31 Decermnber 2016. Due to the size of the surplus the Directors present the results and
position of the UTV Scheme together with the existing [TV Schemes. The next triennial valuation will be as at 30 June
2017 and is expected to be agreed in 2018.

Unless otherwise stated, references to ‘the Schemes' within this note refer to the ITV Pension Scheme, the unfunded
scheme and the UTV Scheme combined.

The defined benefit pension defidt
Net pension deficit of £328 million at 31 December 2016 (2015: £176 million) is stated after including the unfunded
scheme security asset of £39 million (2015: £nil).

The totals recognised in the current and previous years are:

2016 2015
£m £m
Total defined benefit scheme obligations {4,200) (3446)
Total defined benefit schemne assets 3,833 3.270
Defined benefit pension deficit (1AS 19) (367 {176)
Other pension asset 39 —
Net pension deficit {328) {176)

The remaining sections provide further detail of the value of the Scheme's assets and liabilities, how these are
accounted for and the impact on the income statement.
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Defined benefit scheme obligations

Keeping What cause movements in the defined benefit pension obligations?
it simp[e The areas that impact the defined benefit abligation {the pension scheme liabilities)
position at the year end are as follows:

« Current service cost — the cost to the Group of the future benefits earned
by members that relates to the members’ service in the current year. This is
charged to operating costs in the income statement.
Past service cost — is a change in present value of the benefits built up by the
members in the prior periods; can be positive or negative resulting from changes
to the existing plan as aresult of an agreement between ITV and employees or as
aresult of significant reduction by ITV in the number of employees covered by the
plan {curtailment).
Interest cost - the pension cbligations payable in the future are discounted to the
present value at year end. A discount factor is used te determine the current value
today of the tuture cost. The interest cost is the unwinding of one year's movement
inthe present value of the obligation. It is broadly determined by multiplying the
discount rate at the beginning of the period by the updated present value of the
abligation during the period. The discount rate is a key assumption explained later
in this section. This terest cost is recognised through net financing costs in the
income statement (see note 4.4).
Actuarial gains or losses — there are broadly two causcs of actuarial movements.
‘Experience’ adjustments, which arise when comparing assumptions made when
estimating the liabilities and what has actually occurred, and adjustments resulting
fram changes in actuarial assumptions e.g. movements in corporate bond yields.
#ey assumptions are explained in detail later in this section. Actuariat gains or losses
are recognised through other comprehensive income.

» Benefits paid - any cash benefits paid out by the Scheme will reduce the obligation.

» One-off events - for example the acquisition of UTV Limited set out abave

The movement in the present value of the Group's defined benefit obligation is analysed below:

2016 2015

£m fm

Defined benefit obligation at 1 January 3,446 3,687
Current service cost 7 8
Curtallment charge 19 -
Interest cost 131 126
Actuarial loss/{gain} 664 {217)
UTV acquisiticn o8 -
Benefits paid (165) (158)
Defined benefit obligation at 31 December 4,200 3446

Of the above total defined benefit obligation at 31 December 2016, £51 million relates to unfunded schemes
(2015: £46 million), including the scheme in relation to the four former Granada executives.
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Assumptions used to estimate the Scheme obligations

Keeping What are the main assumptions used to estimate the Scheme obligations?
it simple The main assumpticns are:

future salary levels
future pensionable salary levels

% an estimate of increasesin pension payments
the life expectancy of members

the effect of inflation on ail these factors
the discount rate used to estimate the present day fair value of these cbligations

How do we determine the appropriate assumptions?
The Group takes independent actuarial advice relating to the appropriateness of the
assumptions used.

IFRS requires that we estimate a discount rate by reference to high-quality
fixed income investments in the UK that match the estimated term of the
pension abligations.

The inflation assumption has been set by looking at the difference between the
yields on fixed and index-linked Government bands. The inflatian assumption is
used as a basis for the remaining financial assumptions, except where caps have
beenimplemented.

The discount rate has therefore been obtained using the yields available on AA rated
corparate bonds which match projected cash flows. The Group's estimate of the
weighted average term of the liabilities is 17 years (2015: 15 years).

The principal assurnptions used in the Scherme's valuations at the year end were:

2016 2015

Discount rate for:

Past service liabilities 2.60% 3.80%

Future service liabilities 2.70% 4.00%
Inflation assumption for:

Past service liabilities 3.25% 3.00%

Future setvice liabilities 320% 310%
Rate of pensicnabie salary increases

[TV Pension Schemes N/A 0.90%

UTV Pension Scherne 3.75% N/A
Rate of increase in pension payment (LPI' 5% pension increases) 3.15% 290%
Rate of increase to deferred pensions (CPi) 225% 200%

1. Limited Price Index.

The table below reflects published mortality investigation data in conjunction with the results of investigations into the
mortality experience of Scheme members. The assumed life expectations on retirement are:

2016 2016 2015 2015
Retiring today at age 60 65 60 65
Males 271 2.4 280 23.2
Females 293 245 306 257
Retiring in 20 years at age 60 65 60 65
Males 288 23.9 30.0 250
Females N0 26.1 326 27.6

During 2016 a review of the longevity of the Scheme pensioners was conducted and revealed lower life expectancy
than previously assumed. The net pension deficit is sensitive to changes in assumptions. Those are disclosed futther
in this section.
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Total defined benefit scheme assets

Keeping The Scheme holds assets across a number of different classes which are managed
it simple by the Trustee, who consults with the Group on changes taits investment policy.

What are the pension Scheme assets?

At 31 December 2016 the Scheme's assets were invested in a diversified portfolio
% that consisted primarily of equity and debt securities. The tables below set out the

magjor categories of assets.

Financial instruments are in place in order to pravide protection agamst changes
in market factars (interest rates and inflation) which could act to increase the defined
benefit pension deficit. These financial instruments are classified as Scheme assets.

One such instrument is the longevity swap which the Scheme transacted in 2011
to obtain protection against the effect of increases in the life expectation ot the
majortty of pensioner members at that date. Under the swap, the Trustee agreed
to make pre-determined paymentsinreturn for payments to meet the specified
pension obligations as they fall due, irrespective of how long the members and
their dependants live. The difference in the present values of these two streams
of paymentsis reflected in 1the Scheme assets. The swap had a il valuation at
inception and, using market-based assumptians, is subsequently adjusted for
changes in the market life expectancy and market discount rates, in line with

its fair value

How do we measure the pension Scheme assets?
Defined benefit scheme assets are measured at their fair value and can change due
Lo the following:

» Interest income an scheme assets - thisis determined by multiplying the
fair value of the Scheme assets by the discount rate, both taken as of the beginning
of the year. This is recognised through net tinancing costs in the income statement.
Return on assets arise from differences between the actual return and interest income
on Scheme assets and are recognised through other camprehensive income.
Employer's contributions are paid into the Scherme to be managed and invested.
Benefits and administrative expenses paid out by the Schemnes will lower the
fair value of the Scheme's assets.

The movement in the fair value of the defined benefit scheme’s assets is analysed below:

2016 2015
£m £m
Fair value of Scheme assets at T January 3270 3341
Interest income on Scheme assets 126 116
Return/{loss) on assets, exduding interest income 416 (126)
Employer contributions 93 102
UTV acquisition 98 -
Benefits paid (165) {158}
Administrative expenses paid ) (5)
Fair value of Scheme assets at 31 Decamber 3,833 3,270

The actual return on the Scheme's assets, being the sum of the interest income on Scheme assets and return on
Scheme assets, for the year ended 31 December 2016 was an increase of £542 milllon (2015: decrease of £10 miltion).
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How are the Scheme's assets invested?

At 31 December 2016 the Scheme’s assets were investad in a diversified portfolio that corsisted prirmarily of equity
and debt securities. The Trustee is responsible for deciding the investment strategy for the scheme’s assets, although
changes ininvestment policies require consultation with the Group. The assets are invested in different classes to
hedge against unfavourable movements in the funding obligation. When selecting the mix of assets to hold, and
considering their related risks and returns, the Trustee will weigh up the variability of retums against the target
long-term rate of return on the overall portfolio.

The fair value of the Scheme's assets are shown in the following table by major category:

Market vaiue Market value
2016 2015
£m £m
Liability hedging assets o L B
Fixed interest gilts ,‘,:, ) 678 532
Index-linked interest gilts 1135 914
Interest rate and inflation hedging derivatives (swaps and repos) 270 59
- - 2,083 54% 1505 46%
Other bonds 784 20% 733 -+ 22%
Retumn seeking investments
Quoted equities 633 653
Infrastructure a5 68
Property o - e 54
Hedge funds/alternatives 222 196
~ 1,012 2T% 971 30%
Other investments o
Cash and cash equivalents 183 86
Insurance policies 42 40
Longevity swap fair value 27 {65)
(46) (1%) 61 2%
Total Scheme assets 3,833 100% 3270 100%

Included in the above are overseas assets of £1,304 million {2015; £1,198 million), comprised of quoted equities
of £565 million (2015: £564 million) and bonds of £739 million 2015: £634 million).

The Trustee entered a longevity swap in 2011 which provides cash flow certainty by hedging the risk of increasing life
expectancy over the next 70 years for 11,700 of current pensioners covering £1.7bn of the pension cbligation. The fair
value of the longevity swap equals the discounted value of the projected net cash flows resulting from the contract
and has changed substantially over the year due to two key factors:

« Areview of the longevity of pensioners covered by the swap which revealed lower life expectancy than previcusly
expected. This reduced the asset vaiue by £127 million.

« Areduction in the yields used to value the swap as falling yields adversely impact the fair value. This reduced the
asset value by £79 million.
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Defined pension deficit sensitivities

Keeping Which assumptions have the biggest impact on the Scheme?
it simple itisimportant to note that comparatively small changes in the assumptions used may
have a significant effect on the consclidated income staterment and statement of
financial position. This ‘sensitivity’ to change is analysed below to dermonstrate how
% small changes in assumptions can have alarge impact on the estimation of the
defined benefit pension deficit.

The Trustee manages the investment, mortality and inflation risks to ensure the pension
obligations are met as they fall due. The investment strategyis aimed at the valuation
obligation rather than IAS19 defined pension deficit value. As such the effectiveress of the

risk hedging strategies on a valuation basis will not be the same as on an accounting basis.
Those hedging strategies have significant impact on the moverment in the net pension
deficit as assumptions change, offsetting the impacts on the obligation disclosed below,

In practice. changes in one assumption may be accompanied by offsetting changes in
another assumption talthough this is not always the case). Changesin the
assumptions may accur at the same tinie as changes in the market value of Scheme
assets, which may or may not offset the changes in assumptions.

Changes in assumptions have a different level of impact as the value of the net
pension deficit fluctuates, because the relationship between them is not linear.

The analysis below considers the impact of a singte change in principal assumpticns on the defined benefit obligation
while keeping the other assumptions unchanged and does not take into account any risk hedging strategies:

Assumption Change in assumption Impact on defined benefit obligation
Increase by 0.1% DecreasebyfeSmilion
Discount rate Decreaseby 0.1% Increase by £75 million
Increase by 0.1% . Increase by £15 million
Rate of inflation (Retail Price Index) Decrease by 0.1% Decrease by £15 million
Increase by 0.1% Increase by £10 million o
Rate of inflation (Consurner Price Index)  Decrease by 0.1% Decrease by £10 mitlion .
Life expectations Increase by one year Increase by £130 million

The sensitivity analysis has been determined by extrapolating the impact on the defined benefit obligation
at the year end with changes in key assumptions that might reasonably occur.

While the Scheme's risk hedging strategy is aimed at a valuation basis, the Directors estimate that on an accounting
basis it would significantly reduce the above impact on the defined benefit obligation.

In particutar, an increase in assumption of life expectations by one year would benefit from an estimated increase of
the value of the longevity swap by £100 million, reducing the net impact on the defined pension deficit to £30 million.

Further, the [TV Pension Scheme invests in UK Government bends and interest rate and inflation swap contracts
and therefore movements in the defined benefit obligation are typically offset, ta an extent, by asset movements.
This occurred during 2016 when both corporate and UK government bond yietds fell significantly and the market
expectation of future inflation rose. However, as corporate bond yields fell further than UK Government Bond yields,
the impact on the defined benefit obligation exceeded the impact on the assets.




ITV plc Anhuat Report and Accounts 2016

Keeping What was the impact of movements on the Scheme’s assets and liabilities?
it simple The sections above describe how the Scheme obligations and assets are comprised
and measured. The following section sets out the impact of various movernents and

expenses on the Scheme on the Group's financial statements.

&

Amounts recognised through the income statement
Amounts recognised through the income statement are as follows:

2016 2015
£m £m
Amount charged to operating costs:
Current service cost @) (8)
Scheme administration expenses (5) (5)
a2 - (3
Amount charged to net financing costs:

Net interest on defined benefit obligation 5) {10)
Amount charged to exceptional costs:

Curtailment cost {19) -
Total charged in the consolidated income statement (36) (23)
Amounts recognised through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
The amounts recognised through the consolidated staterment of comprehensive income/{cost) are:

2016 2015
£m £&m
Remeasurement gains / (losses):

{Loss)/Return on scheme assets excluding interest income 416 (126}

Actuarial gains / {losses) on liabilities arising from change in:

—inflation experience A 48

- financial assumptions {868) 169

- mortality assumptions 173 -

(664) 07
Total recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income (248) 91

The £664 million actuarial loss on the Scheme’s liabilities was principally due to a decrease in bond yields over the year,
which has resulted in an increase in the liabilities. The £416 million gain on the Scheme's assets primarily results from
increases in the market values of gilts and swaps, which has led to assets outperforming expectations.

155

SJUNLBIEIS [RPURUL] |




Financial Statemants

Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 3: Operating Assets and Liabilities continued

Addressing the defined benefit pension deficit

Keeping The Group works closely with the Trustee to agree appropriate levels of funding
it simple for the Scheme. This involves agreeing a Schedule of Contributions at each triennial
valuation, which specifies the contribution rates for the employer and scheme members
and the date these cantributions are due. A recovery plan setting cut the steps that will
% be taken to address a funding short fallis also agreed.

In the event that the Group's defined benefit scheme isin a net liability position, the
Birectors must take steps to manage the size of the deficit. Apart from the funding
agreements mentioned above, this could involve pledging additional assets to the
Scheme, as was the case in the SDN and London Television Centre (LTVC) pensicn
funding partnerships (explained below).

The levels of ongoing contributions tc the Scheme are based on the current service costs (as assessed by the Scheme
Trustee) and the expected future cash flows of the Scheme. Normatl emplayer contributions in 2017 for current service
(including administration expenses) are expected to be in the region of £6 million (2016: £12 million) and deficit funding
contributions in 2017 are expected to be £66 million {2016; £66 miillion), assurming current contribution rates continue
as agreed with the Trustee. The reduction in normal employer contributions for current service is as a result of the
closure of the [TV Pension Scheme to future benefit accrual

The Group has two asset-backed pension funding agreements with the Trustee and makes annual payments of
£11 million for 12 years from 2071 and £2.5 mitlion, increasing by 5% per annum until 2038. in 2017 a payment of
£14 million is expected as a result of those agreements.

IFRIC 14 clarifies how the asset ceiling shoutd be applied, and in particular, how local minimum funding rules work. The
Group has determined that it has an unconditional right to a refund of surpius assets if the Schemes are run off until
the last member dies, on which basis IFRIC 14 does not cause any change in the balance sheet disdosures before tax.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 4: Capital Structure and Financing Costs

In this
section

This section outlines how the Group manages its capital structure and related
financing costs, including its balance sheet liquidity and access to capital markets.

The Directors determine the appropriate capital structure of ITV, specifically,
how much is raised from shareholders (equity} and how much is borrowed from
financial institutions (debt) in order to finance the Group's activities both now
and in the future. Maintaining capital discipline and balance sheet efficiency
remains important to the Group, as seen through the issuance of a new
Eurobond during the year. Any potential courses of action will take into account
the Group's liquidity needs, flexibitity to invest in the business, pension deficit
initiatives and impact on credit ratings.

The Directors consider the Group's capital structure and dividend policy at least
twice a year ahead of announcing results and do so in the context of its ability
to continue as a going concern, to execute the strategy and to invest in
oppartunities to grow the business and enhance shareholder value.
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A Tax and Treasury committee acting under delegated authority from the
Board, approves certain financial transactions and monitors compliance with
the Group’s tax and treasury policies.

41 Keeping
Net debt it simple

Net cash/ (debt) is the Group's key measure used to evaluate total cash resources net
of the current outstanding debt.

Adjusted net debt is also monitored by the Group and more closely reflects how

we add our total undiscounted expected contingent payments on acquisitions, our

% credit agencies see the Group's gearing. Ta arrive at the adjusted net debt amount,

net pension deficit and cur undiscounted operating lease commitments. A full
analysis and discussion of adjusted net debt is included in the Financial and

Performance Review.

The tables below analyse movements in the components af net cash during the year:

Net cash flow Currency and

1January and non-cash 31 Deceinber

2016 acquisitions Reclassifications movements s

£m £m £m £m £m

Cash 238 304 - 7 549

Cash equivalents 56 (3] {39) 1 12

Total cash and cash equivalents 294 298 {39) 8 561
Loans and facilities due within one year (5) 5 - {161) {16T)
Finance leases due within one year 6 6 - (4) {4)
Loans and facilities due after one year {598) (525) - 88 {1,035)

Finance leases due after one year {4) - - 4 -
Total debt (613} (514) - 73) {1,200)

Currency component of swaps held against euro

denominated bonds - - - 2 2

Net cash/{debt) {319) {216} {39) (63) {637)
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Net cash flow Currency and
1 January and non-cash 31 December

2015 acquisitions movements 2015

£m £m £m £m

Cash o 234 3 1 238

Cash equivalents 63 {6} ) 56

Total cash and cash equivalents 297 3 - 294
Loans and facilities due within one year 78) 73 - 5)
~ Finance leases due within one year @ ) 7 {6) {6)
Loans and facilities due after one year (167) {433) {4) (598)
Finance leases due after one year (10} - 6 (A)
Total debt (256) {353) {4) (613)
Net cash/(debt) T 41 (356) @ (319

Cash and cash aquivalents

Included within cash equivalents is £4 million {2015: £10 miltion), the use of which is restricted to meeting finance lease
commitrments under programme sale and leasebacks (see note 4.2). During 2016 gilts of £39 million 2015: £39 million)
were rectassified to other pension assets. This was as a result of the outcome of legal action attempting to remove the
charging deed executed on these gilts in respect of the unfunded pension commitments of four former Granada
executives, Refer to note 3.7 for further details.

Loans and facilities due within one year

At various periods during the year the Group drew down on the Revolving Credit Facility (RCF) to meet short-term
funding requirements. All short-term drawings were repaid by the end of the year (2015: no outstanding short-term
funding). The maximum draw down of the RCF during the year was £500 million in May. The maximum draw down
on the RCF during 2015 was £362 million.

The Group also had an unsecured £161 mitlion Eurobond which matured in January 2017 and had a coupon of 6.125%.

Loans and loan notes dua after one year

The Group has two bilateral loan facdilities maturing in March 2017; both loans can be extended until 2018 at ITV's
option. The two facilities are a £100 million bitateral loan that is fully drawn down as of 31 December 2016, and

a £150 million bilateral loan with an unconditional right to set off with cash on deposit with the counterparty.
The £150 million arrangement is in a net £nil position,

In December 2016 the Group issued a seven-year €500 miltion Eurobond at a fixed coupon of 2.0% which will mature in
December 2023. The bond has been swapped back to sterling using a cross currency interest swap. The resulting fixed
rate payable is ¢. 3.5%. The proceeds of the bond were for general corporate purposes including the repayment of the
£161 million sterling bond which matured in January 2017 and settling the acquisiticn related liabilities due in 2017.

In September 2015 the Group issued a seven-year €600 millior Eurobond at a fixed coupon of 2.125% which will mature
in September 2022. The bond refinanced the 12-month bridge loan facility of €500 million used for the purchase of
Talpa Media in April 2015,
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42 Keeping The Group barrows money from financial institutions in the form of bonds, bank

Borrowings it simple fadilities and other financial instruments. The interest payable on these instruments

and finance is shawn in the net financing costs note in note 4.4.

leases There are Board-approved policies in place to manage the Group’s financial risks.
Macroecanomic market risks, which impact currency transactions and interest rates,

are discussed in note 4.3 Credit and liquidity risks are discussed below.

¢ Credit risk: the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty fails

to meet its contractual obligations and
Liuidity risk: the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial
obligaticns as they fall due

The Group is required to disclose the fair value ofits debt instruments. The fair value
is the amount the Group would pay a third party to transfer the liability. [tis
calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the reparting date. This calculation of
fair value is consistent with instruments valued under level 2 in note 4.5.

Accounting policies

Borrowings

Barrowings are recognised initially at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs, with subsequent
measurement at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Under the amortised cost method the
difference between the amount initially recognised and the redemption value is recorded in the income statement
over the period of the borrowing on an effective interest rate basis.

Finance leases

Historically, ITV has entered into sale and leaseback agreerments in relation to certain programme titles, Related
outstanding sale and leaseback obligations, which comprise the principal and accrued interest, are included within
borrowings. The finance related elernent of the agreement is charged to the income staternent over the term of

the lease on an effective interest basis. Sale and leaseback obligations are secured against an equivalent cash balance
held within cash and cash equivalents.

Managing cradit and liquidity risk

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of derivative financial assets
(see note 4.3), trade receivables (see note 3.1.3), and cash and cash equivalents {note 4.7).

Trade and other recelvables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The majority
of trade receivables relate to airtime sales contracts with advertising agencies and advertisers. Credit insurance has
been taken out agalnst these companies to minirmise the impact on the Group in the event of a possible default and

is also taken out for other significant receivables. In December 2016 the Group signed a new £100 miltion non-recourse
receivables purchase agreement to replace the £75 million invoice discount facility. In December 2016 £35 million
invoices were sold under the agreement (2015: £nll). The receivables in relation to those were derecognised and the
Group collected cash on behalf of the counterparty.

Cash

The Group operates investment guidelines with respect to surplus cash that emphasise preservation of capital The
guidelines set out procedures and limits on counterparty risk and maturity profile of cash placed. Counterparty limits
far cash deposits are largely based upon long-term ratings published by the major credit rating agencies and perceived
state support. Deposits longer than 12 months require the approval of the Board.
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Borrowings

ITV is rated as investment grade by Moody's and S&P. ITV's credit ratings, the cost of credit default swap hedging
and the absolute level of interest rates are key determinants in the cost of new borrowings for [TV,

Liquidity risk

The Group’s financing policy is to fund itself for the medium to long-term by using debt instruments with arange
of maturities and to ensure access to appropriate short-term borrowing facilities with a minimum of £250 million
of undrawn facilities available at all times.

Long-term funding comes from the UK and European Capital markets, while any short to medium-term debt
requirements are provided through bank credit facilities totalling £930 million (see below}. Management monitors
rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity reserve (comprising undrawn bank facilities and cash and cash equivalents)
on the basis of expected cash flows. This monitoring includes financial ratios to assess any possible future impact
on credit ratings and headroom and takes into account the accessibility of cash and cash equivalents.

The Group has £630 million available funds through a Revolving Credit Facility (RCF') with a group of relationship banks.
This £630 million facility was amended and extended in December 2016, matures in 2021 and is committed with
leverage and interest cover finandial covenants. In addition, the Group has £300 million of financial covenant free
financing which runs to 2021, Both of these fadlities were undrawn at 31 December 2016 (2015: no drawings),

Fair value versus book value
The tables below provide fair value information for the Group's borrowings:

Book value falr value
2016 2015 2016 2015
Maturity £m £m £m £m
Loans due within one year
Other short-term loans Various - 5 - 5
£161 million Eurobond Jan 2017 161 161 162 168
Loans due in more than one year
Bilateral loan facility Jun 2018 100 - 100 ~
€600 million Eurobond Sept 2022 508 437 529 445
€500 million Eurobond Dec 2023 437 - 431 -
1,196 603 1,222 618
Finance leases

The following table analyses when finance lease liabilities are due for payment:

Minlmum Minlnurm

Lease e lease 2015

payments Interest Principat payments Interest Principal

£m £m £m £m £m £€m

In one year or less 4 - 4 6 - 6
In more than one year but not

more than five years - - - 4 - 4

4 - 4 10 - 10

Finance leases principally comprise programmes under sale and leaseback arrangements. The net book value of
tangible assets held under finance leases at 31 December 2016 was £nil (2015: £1 million).

160




ITV ple Annual Report and Accounts 2016

4.3
Managing
market risks:
derivative
financial
instruments

Keeping
it simple

&

Accounting policies

What is a derivative?

A derivative is a type of financial instrument typically used to manage risk A derivative’s
value changes over time in response to underlying variables such as exchange rates or
interest rates and is enteredinte for a fixed period. Ahedge is where a derivative isused
to manage exposure in anunderlying variable.

The Group is exposed to certain market risks. In accordance with Board approved
policies, which are set out in this note, the Group manages these risks by using
derivative financial instruments to hedge the underlying exposures.

Why do we need them?
The key market risks facing the Group are:

* Currency risk arising from:

1. translation risk, that is, the risk in the period of adverse currency fluctuations in
the translation of foreign currency profits, assets and liabilities (‘balance sheet
risk’) and non-functional currency moenetary assets and liabilities (income
statement risk’; and

il. transactionrisk, that is, the risk that currency fluctuations will have a negative
effect on the value of the Group’s non-functional currency trading cash flows.
A non-functional currency transaction is a transaction in any currency other than
the repeorting currency of the subsidiary.

¢ Interest rate risk to the Group arises frem significant changes in interest rates an
borrowings issued at or swapped to flaating rates.

How do we use them?
The Group mainty employs four types of derivative financial instruments when
managing its currency and interest rate risk:

* Foreign exchange swap contracts are derivative instruments used to hedge income
statement translation risk arising from short term intercompany loans
denominated in a foreign currency:

Farward foreign exchange contracts are derivative instruments used 1o hedge
transaction risk so they enable the sale or purchase of foreign currency at a known
fixed rate on an agreed future date;

Interest rate swaps are derivative instruments that exchange a fixed ratc of
interest for a floating rate, or vice versa, or one type of flaating rate for another,
and are used to manage interest rate risk; and

Cross-currency interest rate swaps are derivative instruments used to exchange the
principal and interest coupons in a debt instrument from one currency to another.

Analysis of the derivatives used by the Group to hedge its exposure and the various
methads used to calculate their respective fair values are detailed in this section.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently remeasured at fair value with
the movement recorded in the income statement, except where derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting,
In this case, the effective portion of a cash flow hedge is recognised in other comprehensive income and presented

in the hedging reserve within equity, The cumulative gain or loss is later reclassified to the income statement in the
same period as the relevant hedged transaction is realised. Derivatives with positive fair values are recorded as assets
and negative fair values as liabilities.
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Datermining Fair Value

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined by using the difference between the contract
exchange rate and the quoted forward exchange rate at the reporting date. The fair value of interest rate swaps
is the estimated amount that the Group would receive or pay to terminate the swap at the reporting date, taking
into account current interest rates and our current creditworthiness, as well as that of our swap counterparties.

Third-party valuations are used to fair value the Group's interest rate derivatives. The valuation techniques use inputs
such as interest rate yield curves and currency prices/yields, volatilities of underlying instruments and correlations
between inputs.

How do We manage ol currency and interest rate risk?

Curvency risk

As the Group expands its international operations, the performance of the business becomes increasingly sensitive
to movements in foreign exchange rates, primarity with respect to the US dollar and the euro.

The Group’s foreign exchange palicy is to use forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge material non-functional
currency denominated costs or revenue at the time of commitment for up to five years forward, The Group also
hedges a proportion of highly probable non-functional currency denominated costs or revenue on a rolling 18-month
basis (see ‘Keeping it simple box’ for explanation of non-functional currency transactions).

The Group ensures that its net expasure to foreign currency denominated cash balances is kept to a minimal level by
using foreign currency swaps to exchange balances back into sterling or by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot
rates when necessary.

The Group also utilises foreign exchange swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps both to manage foreign
currency cash flow timing differences and 1o hedge foreign currency denominated monetary items.

The Group’s net investments in overseas subsidiaries may be hedged where the currency exposure is considered to be
material. In 2015 the Group designated a portion of its euro borrowings into a net investment hedge against its euro
denominated assets following the acquisition of Talpa Media.

The following table highlights the Group’s sensitivity to translation risk resulting from a 10% strengthening/weakening
in sterling against the US dollar and euro, assuming all other variables are held constant:

2016 - post- 2015 - post-
i . tax profit 2016 - equity tax profit 2015 - equity
US dolar £3milion E32milion £1W0million £63 million
Euro £10 million €11 million £8 million  £41 million

The Group’s sensitivity to translation risk for revenue and adjusted EBITA Is disciosed in the Financial and Performance
Review on page 44. The key difference between the foreign currency sensitivity for adjusted EBITA and profit after tax
is the impact on the US dollar and euro denominated exceptional cests, including acquisition related costs, acquired
intangible amortisation and net financing cost.

Interest rate risk
The Group's interest rate policy Is to allow fixed rate gross debt to vary between 20% and 100% of total gross debt to
accommodate ftoating rate borrowings under the revolving credit facility.

At 31 December 2016 the Group's fixed rate debt represented 92% of total gross debt (2015: 99%). Consequently a
1% movement in interest rates on floating rate debt would impact the 2016 post-tax profit for the year by £2 million
(2015: £nil).

For financial assets and liabilities classified at fair value through profit or loss, the movements in the year relating to
changes in fair value and interest are not separated.
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What Is the value of our derivative financlal instruments?
The following table shows the fair value of derivative financial instruments analysed by type of contract Interest rate
swap fair values exclude accrued interest.

Assets Liabilities
At 31 Dgcombar 2016 £m £m
Cumrent
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps - cash flow hedges 6 (W)
Fareign exchange forward contracts and swaps - fair value through profit or loss 2 @
Non-current
Cross currency interest swaps - cash flow hedges - (6)
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps - cash flow hedges 1 3)
9 "]
Assets Liabilities
At 31 Decemnber 2015 £m £m
Current
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps — cash flow hedges - (4}
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps — fair value through profit or loss 1 {1
Non-current
Interest rate swaps - fair value through profit or loss 8 6)
g (11}
Cash flow hedges

The Group applies hedge accounting for certain foreign currency firm commitments and highly probably cash flows
where the underlying cash flows are payable within the next two to seven years, In order to fix the sterling cash
outflows associated with the commitrnents and interest payments — which are mainly denominated in AUD or euros -
the Group has taken out forward foreign axchange contracts and cross currency interest swaps for the same foreign
currency amount and maturity date as the expected foreign currency outflow.

The amount recognised in other comprehensive income during the period all relates to the effective portion of the revaluation
loss assodated with these contracts, There was less than £1million {20715: £1 million) ineffectiveness taken to the income
staterment and £5 million cumulative gain (2015 £6 million loss) recycled to the income statement in the year.

On issuing the 2023 Eurobond, the Group entered into a portfolio of cross-currency interest rate swaps, which swapped the
euro principal and fixed rate coupons inte sterling. As a result the Group makes sterling interest payments at a fixed rate.

Net investment hedges

The Group uses euro denominated debt to partially hedge against the change in the sterling value of its euro
denominated net assets due to movements in foreign exchange rates. The fair value of debt in a net investment
hedge was £168 million (2015: £147 mitlion). A foreign exchange loss of £21 million (2015: £2 mitlion) relating to the net
investment hedges has been netted off within exchange differences on translation of foreign operations as presented
on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Interest rate swaps

On issuing the 2017 Eurobond, the Group entered into & portfolio of fixed to floating interest rate swaps and then
subsequently overtaid a portfolic of floating to fixed interest rate swaps with the result that interest was 100% fixed
on these borrowings. The timing of entering into these swaps locked in an interest benefit for the Group, resultingin a
net mark-to-market gain on the portfolio.
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Undiscounted financial liabilities

Keeping
it simple

The Group is required to disclose the expected timings of cash outflows for each of its
financial liabilities {(including derivatives). The amounts disclosed in the table are the

contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest), so will not always reconcile
with the amounts disclosed on the statement of financial position.

&

Carrying :nntr-:ﬁ Less than Between Between Over
value cash flows 1year 1and2years 2andSyears Syears
At 31 December 2016 Em £m £m £m £m £m
Non-derivative financial Uabilities
Borrowings (1,196)  (1,338) (194) {(119) (58) (967)
Trade and other payables (912) (912) (855) (48) (8} {1)
Cther payables - non-current (1) an - 8) Q) ]
Other payables - commitmentson
acquisitions {158) (328)* (122) {(56) {150) -
Derivative financial instruments
Foreign exchange forward contracts and
swaps - cash flow hedges
Inflow 7 n3 127 86 - -
Outflow {4} @10) (123) 87) - -
Cross currency swaps - cash flow hedges
Inflow - 497 10 10 30 447
Outflow {6) {542) a7 a7 £))] (457)
Foreign exchange forward contracts and
swaps — fair value through profit or loss
Inflow 263 263 258 5 - -
Outflow (263) @s3) (258) () - -
Interest rate swaps - fair value through profit
or loss
Inflow - 13 13 - - -
Outflow - {5) (6) - - -
(2280)  (2624) (1167) 237) 241 (679
Total
Cartying  contractual Less than Between Between Over
value cash flows 1year “1and2years 2and5years 5years
At 31 December 2015 £m £m £m £m £ £m
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings (613) {703) (30) (184) 28) (467
Trade and other payables (834) {834) (786) (34) (14) -
Other payables — non-current (4) (4) - {1} @ )]
Other payables - commitments on acquisitions (85) (303)* (12) {108) (183) -
Derivative financial instruments
Cash flow hedges
Inflow 66 66 49 17 - -
Outflow Z0) 70) (53) (7) - -
Foreign exchange forward contracts and
swaps
inflow 147 147 144 3 - -
Outflow (147) (147) (144) E)] - -
Interest rate swaps
inflow 8 22 9 13 - -
Outflow {5) {12) (6) (6) — -
(1538) {1,838) (829) (320) (227) {462

* Expected future payments depending on performance of acquisitions, the total maximum consideration is discussed in the Financial

and Perfcrmance Review.
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4.4
Net financing
costs

Keeping This section details the interest income generated on the Group’s cash and other
it simple financial assets and the interest expense incurred on borrowings and ather
financial liabilities.

% Inreporting ‘adjusted profit’, the Group adiusts net financing costs to exclude

unrealised mark-to-market movements on interest rate and foreign exchange
derivatives, gains/losses on bond buybacks, net pension interest, interest and fair
value movernents in acquisition-related liabilities and other financing costs.

Our rationale for adjustments made to financing costs is set out in the Financial and
Performance Review.

Accounting policies

Net financing costs comprise interest income on funds invested, gains/losses on the disposal of finandal instruments,

changes in the fair value of financial instrurnents, interest expense on borrowings and finance leases, unwinding
of the discount on provisions, unwinding cf the discount on liabilities to non-controlling interest, foreign exchange
gains/tosses, and imputed interest on pension assets and liabilities. Interest income and expense is recognised as it
accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest method.

Net financing costs

Net financing costs can be analysed as follows:

2016 2015
£m £m
Financing income:
Interest income 2 3
Change in fair value of instruments classified at fair value through profit or loss - 3
2 6
Financing costs:
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (25) {17)
Net pension interest (see note 3.7) (5) {10)
Change in fair value of instruments classified at fair value through profit or loss (U] -
Foreign exchange loss {B8) 2
Other finance expense (14) (8)
(53) 37)
Net financing costs {51) 31

Interest on financial liabilities relates to the interest incurred on the Group’s borrowings in the year.

COther finance expense includes the amortisation of facility commitment and upfront fees as well as movemnents
in the estimated value of acquisition-related contingent liabilities, which contributed to most of the 2016 expense.
This is where estimates of the future performance against stretch targetsis reassessed, resulting in adjustments
to the related put option liabilities.
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4.5
Fair value
hierarchy

166

Keeping
it simple

&

The financial instrumentsincluded on the ITV statement of financial position

are measured at either fair value or amortised cost. The measurement of this fair
value canin some cases be subjective, and can depend on the inputs used in the
calculations. ITY generally uses external valuations using market inputs or market
values (e.g. external share prices). The different valuation methods are called
‘hierarchies' and are described below,

Level1
Fair values are measured using quated prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or Liahilities,

Level 2
Fair values are measured using inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly.

Interest rate swaps and options are ac counted for at their fair value based upon

i 5. Forward fored change contracts are accounted for at the
difference between the contract exchange rate and the quoted forward exchange
rate at the reporting date.

Level 3
Fair values are measured using inputs for the asset ar liability that are net based on
observable market data

The tables below set out the financial instruments included on the ITV statement of financial position at “fair value’.

Fair value Level 1 Level2 Level 3
31 December 31 Dacember 31 December 31 Decembar
2018 2016 206 2016
£m £m Em £m
Assets measured at fair value
Available for sale financial instruments
Other pension assets — gilts (see note 3.7) 39 39 - -
Available for sale investrnents (see note 3.5) 12 - - 12
Finahcjal assets at fair value through profit or loss
Foreign exchange farward contracts and swaps 2 - 2 -
Financial {labilities at fair value through reserves
Cash flow hedges 7 - 7 -
60 39 9 12
Fair value Level Level2 Level 3
31 December 31 Deacember 31 Decamber 31 December
2016 2016 2016 2m6
£m £m £m £m
Liabilities measured at fair value
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Contingent consideration U] - - n
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps 3) - <) -
Financial liabilities at fair value through reserves
Cash flow hedges (9) - (9) -
(13) - (12) m




ITV plc Annual Repart and Accounts 2016

Fair value Level1 Level 2 Level3
31December 31December 31December 31becember
2015 2015 2015 2015
£m £m £m £m
Assets measured at fair value
Available for sate financial instruments
Available for sale gilts (see note 4.1) 38 38 - -
Available for sale investments (see note 3.5) 1 - - 1
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps 1 - 1 -
Interest rate swaps B - 8 -
58 38 9 1
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
31 Decembaer 31 December 31 December 31 December
2015 2015 2015 2015
£m £m £m £m
Liabilities measured at fair value
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Contingent consideration {3) - - (3)
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps (N - (n -
Interest rate swaps 6) - 6) -
Financial liabilities at fair value through reserves
Cash flow hedges {4) - (4} -
(14) - ) €]

Refer to note 4.3 for how we value interest rate swaps and forward fareign currency contracts. The available for sale

investments are valued at cost and assessed for impairment.
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Keeping This section explains material movements recorded in shareholders’ equity that are
it simple not explained elscwhere in the financiat staterments. The movements in equity and
the balance at 31 December 2016 are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

&

Accounting policies

Available for sale reserve

Available for sale assets are stated at fair value, with any gain or toss recognised directly in the available for sale reserve
in equity, unless the loss is a permanent impairment, when it is then reccrded in the income statement.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised through equity on the earlier of their approval by the Company's shareholders or their payment.
4.6.1 Share capital and share premium

The Group's share capital at 31 Decernber 2016 of £403 million (2015: £403 million} and share premium of £174 million

(2015: £174 miillion) is the same as that of [TV plc. Details of this are given in the ITV plc Company financial statements
section of this Annual Report.

4.62 Merger and other reserves
Merger and other reserves at 31 December 2016 include the following reserves:

2016 2015

£m £m

Mergerreserves - . 98 98
Capital reserves ) ) ) 112 M2
Capital redemption reserves - ] 36 36
Revaluation reserves ) 2 2
Put option labilities arising on acquisition of subsidiaries 27) 27
Total pry pry|

4.6.3 Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises:

» all foreign exchange differences arising on the transiation of the accounts of, and investments in, foreign operations;
and
= the gains or losses on the portion of cash flow hedges that have been deemed effective (see note 4.3).

4.6.4 Available for sale reserve
The available for sale reserve comprises all movements arising on the revaluation of gilts accounted for as available
for sale financial Instruments (see note 3.7).

4.6.5 Retained eamings

The retained earnings reserve comprises profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company of £448 million
(2015: £495 rnillion} and other iterms recognised directly through equity as presented in the consolidated statement

of changes in equity. Other iterns include the credit for the Group's share-based compensation schemes and the charge
for the purchase of [TV shares via the TV Employees’ Benefit Trust, which are described innote 4.7.

The distributable reserves of ITV plc are disdlosed in note viii to the [TV plc Company Financial Statements.
The Directors of ITV plc propose a final dividend of 7.2p per share and a special dividend of Sp per share.
See details on distributable reserves on page 182.
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16

4.7
Share-based
compensation

4.6.6 Non-controlling interests
The movement for the year comprises:

» the share of profits attributable to non-controlling interests of £4 million (2015: £7million); and
» the distributions made to non-controlling interests of £4 million (2015: £5 million).

Keeping
it simple

&

Accounting policies

The Group utilises share award schemes as part of its employee remuneration
packages, and therefore operates a number of share-based compensation schemes,
namely the Deferred Share Award (DSA), Performance Share Plan (PSP), Long Term
Incentive Plan (LTIP) and Save As You Earn (SAYE) schemes.

A transaction will be classed as share-hased compensation where the Group receives
services from employees and pays for these in shares or similar equity instruments, I
the Group incurs a liability based on the price or value of the Group’s shares then this
will aiso fall under a share-based transaction.

A description of each type of share-based payment arrangement that existed at any
time during the period are set out in the Annual Reruneration Report.

For each of the Group's share-based compensation schemes, the fair value of the equity instrument granted is
measured at grant date and spread over the vesting period via a charge to the income statement with a corresponding

increase in equity.

The fair value of the share options and awards is measured using either market price at grant date or, for the Save As
You Earn scheme (SAYE), a Black-Scholes model, taking into account the terms and conditions of the individual scheme,

Vesting conditions are limited to service conditions and performance conditions. For performance-based schemes,
the relevant Group performance measures are projected to the end of the performance period in order to determine
the number of options expected to vest. The estimate is then used to determine the option fair value, discounted

to present value. The Group revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest, including an
estimate of forfeitures at each reporting date. The impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, are recognised
in the income staterment, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Exercises of share aptions granted to employees can be satisfied by market purchase or issue of new shares. No new
shares may be issued to satisfy exercises under the terms of the DSA. During the year all exercises were satisfied by
using shares purchased in the market and held in the ITV Employees’ Benefit Trust.

Share-based compensation charges totalled £10 million in 2016 (2015: £14 million).
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Share options outstanding

The table below summarises the movements in the number of share options outstanding for the Group and their

weighted average exercise price:

2016

2015

Welghted Weighted

Number average Number average

of options exerciss price of options  exerdse price

{000) {pence) (000) [pence)

Qutstanding at 1.January 40,167 5563 51,933 3297
Granted during the year — nil priced 7351 - 6,744 -
Granted during the year — other 8,002 167.62 4,615 198.94
Forfeited during the year (255} 15117 (30) 143,65
Exercised during the year (12293) 2881 (19.477) 16.65
Expired during the year (6,439) 109.25 (3,618) 18.77
Qutstanding at 31 December 36,533 67.86 40167 55.63
Exercisable at 31 December 83 - 610 5317

The average share price during 2016 was 209.91 pence {2015: 254.24 pence).

Of the options still outstanding, the range of exercise prices and weighted average remaining contractual life of these

options can be analysed as follows:

2016

Weighted 2015

avarage Welghted

Welighted remaining Welghted average

average Number contractual average Number remaining

exercise price of options Ufe exercise price ofopticns contractual life

Range of exerclse prices (pence) {pence) (oo0) (years) (pence) {oo0) {years)

Nil - 531 1.89 - 25910 179

2000 - 4959 - - - - - -

50.00 - 69.99 67.71 505 0.9 6724 991 0.98

70.00-9999 - - - 7358 301 0.92

100.00 - 109.99 10259 185 192 10259 1,672 174

110.00 - 119.99 - - - - - -

120.00 - 149.99 13144 193 216 131.44 1,175 152

150.00 - 199.99 167.37 13251 187 17258 8,089 222

200.00 - 24999 206.83 891 147 206.83 2,054 252
Assumptions

DSA, LTIP and PSP opticns are valued directly by reference to the share price at date of grant.

The options for the SAYE scheme, an HMRC approved SAYE scheme, are valued using the Black-Scholes model, using

the assumptions below:
Share price Expected Gross dividend Risk-free

atgrant  Exercise price volatiity  Expected life yield rate Fair value
Scheme name Date of grant {pence} {pence} % (years) % % (pence}
3 Year 2 April 2015 251.00 19252 26.00 325 227 074 65.85
5 Year 2 April 2015 251.00 192.52 3200 525 227 114 80.81
3Year 16 Sept 2015 249,60 206.83 2500 325 228 0.97 5571
S Year 16 Sept 2015 24960 206.83 30.00 525 228 138 7202
3 Year 29 March 2016 24330 187.79 2500 325 300 0.41 56.64
5 Year 2% March 2016 24330 187.79 29.00 525 3.00 0.73 £5.94
3 Year 16 Sept 2016 195.40 157.46 30.00 325 3.00 0.41 46.97
5 Year 16 Sept 2016 195.40 157.46 31.00 5.25 3.00 0.73 5215

170




ITV plc Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 5: Other Notes

Employees’ Benefit Trust

The Group has investments in its own shares as a result of shares purchased by the ITV Employees’ Benefit Trust (EBT).
Transactions with the Group-sponsored EBT are included in these financial statements and primarily consist of the
EBT's purchases of shares in [TV plc, which are accounted for as a reduction to retained earnings.

The table below shows the number of [TV plg shares held in the EBT at 31 December 2016 and the purchases/{releases}
from the EBT made in the year to satisfy awards under the Group’s share schemes:

Number of shares Nominal value
Scheme Shares held at (released)/purchased £
1 January 2016 16,949,851 1,694,985
DSA releases (2:889,078)
PSP releases (6,200,608)
SAYE releases (3,003,419)
Shares purchased 9,553,378
31 December 2016 14,410,124 1,438,557

5.1
Related
party

transactions

The total number of shares held by the EBT at 31 December 2016 represents 0.36% (2015: 0.42%} of [TV's issued share
capital. The market value of own shares held at 31 December 2016 is £30 million (2015: £47 million).

The shares will be held in the EBT until such time as they may be transferred to participants of the various Group share
schemes. Rights to dividends have been waived by the EBT in respect of shares held which do not relate to restricted
shares under the DSA. In accerdance with the Trust Deed, the Trustees of the EBT have the power to exercise all voting
rights in relation to any investment {including shares) hetd within that trust.

Keeping The related parties identified by the Directors include joint ventures, associated
it simpl.e undertakings, fixed asset investments and key management perscnnel.

To enable users of ocur financial statements tc form a view about the effects

of related party relationships on the Group, we disclase the Group’s transactions with
those related parties during the year and any associated year end trading balances.

Transactions with joint ventures and associated undertakings
Transactions with joint ventures and associated undertakings during the year were:

2016 2015

£m £m

Sales to joint ventures 8 9
Sales to associated undertakings 10 13
Purchases from joint ventures 26 24
Purchases from assocfated undertakings 70 65

The transactions with joint ventures primarily relate to sales and purchases of digital multiplex services with
Digital 384 Limited.

Purchases from associated undertakings primarily relate to the purchase of news services from ITN.

All transactions with associated undertakings and joint ventures arise in the normal course of business on an arm's
length basis. None of the balances are secured.

™m
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 5;: Other Notes continued

The amounts owed by and to these related parties at the year end were:

2016 2015

£m £m

Amounts owed by joint ventures - 3
Amounts owed by associated undertakings 57 66
Amounts owed to joint ventures - 2
Amounts owed to associated undertakings - 5

Balances owed by associated undertakings largely relate to loan notes and production funding advanced to Tomorrow
ITV Studios for US scripted investment,

Amounts paid to the Group's retirement benefit plans are set cutinnote 3.7.

Transactions with key management parsonnel
Key management consists of ITV plc Executive and Non-executive Directors and the ITV Management Board.
Key management personnel compensation is as follows:

2018 2015

£m £m

Short-term employee banefits 8 9
Share-based compensation 2 6
10 15

52 Keeping A cantingent liability is a liability that is not sufficiently certain to qualify for
Contingent it simple recognition as a provision where uncertainty may exist regarding the outcome of
liabilities future events
There are contingent labilities in respect of certain litigation and guarantees, broadcasting issues, and in respect of
warranties given in connection with certain disposals of businesses. None of these items are expected to have a
material effect on the Group’s results or financial position.
5.3 Keeping Where the Group receives informaticn in the period between 31 Becember 2016
subsequent it simple and the date of this report about cenditions related to certain events that existed at
events 31December 2016, we update our disclosures that relate to those conditions in light
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of the new information. Such events can be categerised as adjusting or non-adjusting
% depending on whether the condition existed at 31 Decermber 2016, If nan-adjusting
events are material, non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions that

users make cn the basis of the financial statements. Accordingly, for each material
category of non-adjusting event after the reporting period we disclose in this section
the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect, or a statement that
such an estimate cannot be made.

Eurobond repayment

0On 5 January 2017 the £161 Eurobond matured and the Group repaid the capital amount. The related interest rate swap
contracts were settled at the same time. The repayment was financed using the €500 miliion Eurobond issued

in December 2016.

Exercise of Gurney Productions LLC catl option
On 6 February 2017, the Group exercised the call option to acquire the remaining 38.5% membership interest of Gurney
Productions LLC.

The Group has initiated legal proceedings against the sellers for alleged breaches of contracts and their fiduciary duties,
as well as self-dealing and fraudulent concealment. The sellers dispute the allegations, the exercise and the value of the
call option, and they have counter-claimed for unspecified damages of at least $100 million, which the Directors believe
is completely without merit.
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London Property Strategy
On 21 February 20117, the Directors announced the outcorme of an extensive review of the Group's London property
requirerments, The Group intends to seek planning permission to redevelop its South Bank site and build a new London home.

The teams currently located in the South Bank site will be relocated to various sites in London during the
redevelopment period.

As a result of the review of the Group's London property needs, the Directors are proposing 1o close The London
Studios (TLS) business and use studio capacity in the external market to meet our future business needs. The Group has
begun a period of consultation with the employees affected by this closure.

Acquisition of Tetra Media Studios SAS

On 28 February 2017, the Group announced the acquisition of 65.05% of the capital of the French production business
Tetra Media Studios SAS. The transaction is on a cash free / debt free basis, with put/catl options to acquire the
remaining interest depending on future performance of the business. The acquisition was financed through the Group’s
existing cash and debt facilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Section 5; Other Notes continued

5.4 Keeping
Subsidiaries it simple
exempt

from audit

&

Certain subsiciaries of the Group can take an exemption from having an audit. Strict
criteria must be met for this exemption to be taken, and it must be agreed to by the
Directors of that subsidiary entity.

Listed below are subsidiaries controlled and consolidated by the Group, where the Directors have taken the exemption
from having an audit of its finandial statements. This exemption is taken in accordance with Companies Act s479A,

Company Number Comnpany Name Company Number Company Name

10058419 Back Producticns Limited 10171346 BGSS Limited

104044593 Big Talk Bliss Limited 10496857 Big Talk Cold Feet Limited

10528766 Big Talk Diana Limited 10528592 Big Talk Living the Drearn Limited

1891539 Broad Street Films Limited 2285229 Campania Limited

5078683 Carbon Media Limited 4159249 Carlton Content Holdings Limited

301188 Carlton Film Distributors Limited 1692483 Carlton Finance Limited

3984450 Carlton Food Network Limited 3307790 Caritonco 103

3210452 Carlton Sareen Advertising (Holdings) 3053908 Carlton Programmes Development
Limited Limited

2625225 Carltonco Forty Investments 3210363 Carltonco Ninety-Six

2852812 Cosgrove Hall Films Limited 3209058 DTV Limited

290076 Granada Group Limited 3962410 Granada Lirnited

3106798 Granada Media Limited 5344772 Granada Screen (2005) Limited

733063 Granada Television Overseas Limited 6914987 TV HO) Limited

10384774 ITV Bancroft Limited 4206924 TV Beowulf Limited

1127149 ITV Breathless Limited 4209918 ITV Cilla Limited

4206900 ITV Cradle Limited 4159210 TV Holdings Limited

4207680 TV Home Fires Limited 4206912 TV J&H Limited

4206871 ITV Jericho Limited 4206927 ITV JR Limited

8723446 ITV Lewis Limited 10031419 [TV Little Boy Blue Limited

10058180 TV Loch Ness Limited 8534385 TV Lucan Limited

4206935 ITV Moorside Limited 4033106 ITV Mr Selfridge Limited

3916436 ITV News Channet Limited 8554937 ITV Shetland Limited

4206897 ITV Spirit Limited 10528702 ITV Studios Newco 1 Limited

10031818 ITV T&B Limited 9499040 TV Tennison Limited

9498177 ITV Top Class Limited 858621 ITV Thunderbirds Limited

9499012 ITV Tut Limited 10384819 TV Trauma Limited

5518785 Juice Music UK Limited 10058008 ITV Wagstaffe Limited

10528827 Mammoth Screen (ENDS) Limited 10528851 Mammoth Screen (City) Limited

10031005 Mammath Screen (Pol3) Limited 1049117 Mammoth Screen (NOK) Limited

9646520 Mammoth Screen (QV} Limited 10528763 Mammoth Screen (Pol4) Limited

420477 Morning TV Limited 10043079 Mammoth Screen (WFTP) Limited

4206913 SOM (ITV) Limited
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ITV plc Company Financial Statements

Company Balance Sheet

2016 2016 2015 2015
As at 31 December Note £m £m £m £m
Non-current assets
Investrments in subsidiary undertakings iii 1,861 1861
Derivative financial instruments vi 4 9
Deferred tax asset 2 2
1,867 1872
Current assets
Amocunts owed by subsidiary undertakings 4,066 3864
Derivative financial instruments vi 10 6
Other receivables 19 16
Cash and cash equivalents 438 126
4,533 4,012
Current liabilities
Borrowings v {161 -
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings {2,856) (3,760}
Accruals and deferred income (22) [P4)]
Derivative finandal instruments vi {10) (6)
(3.049) (3787)
Net current assets/(liabilities) 1484 225
Total assets less current liabilities 3351 2097
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings v {1,035) {598)
Derivative financial instruments vi {9) (3]
(1,044) (604)
Net assets 2,307 1493
Capital and reserves
Share capital vii 403 403
Share premium viii 174 174
Other reserves viii 28 36
Retained eamings viii 1,702 880
Total equity 2,307 1,493

The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 1 March 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

lan Griffiths
Director
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ITV plc Company Financial Statements continued

Company Statement of Changes in Equity

Share Share

Other Retained

Capital Premium Reserves Earnings Total

Note £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2016 403 174 36 880 1493
Total comprehensive income for the year )
Profit ) - - - 1,475 1475
Net loss on cash flow hedges - - 8} - (8)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (8) 1475 1,467
Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity o
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Equity dividends - - - _ (863} (663)
Movements due to share based compensation - - - 10 10
Total contributions by and distributions to owners - - - (653) (653)
Total transactions with owners - - - {653) (653)
Balance at 31 December 2016 vilAvill 403 174 28 1,702 2,307

Share Share Other Retained
Capital Premium Reserves Earnings Total

Note £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2015 403 174 36 654 1267
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit - - - 671 671
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 671 671
Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity _
Contributions by and distributions to owners o
Equity dividends - - - {459) (458)
Movements due to share based compensaticn - - - 14 14
Total contributions by and distributions to owners - - - {445) (445)
Total transactions with owners - - - {445) (445)
Balance at 31 December 2015 viitviii 403 174 36 880 1,493
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Notes to the ITV plc Company Financial Statements

Note i In this This section sets out the notes to the ITV plc Company only financial statements.
Arcol mting section Those statements form the basis of the dividend decisions made by the Directors,
policies as explained in detall in nate vill below.

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework,

Basis of preparation
The Company is a qualifying entity as it is a member of the ITV plc Group where ITV plc, the ultimate parent prepares
publicly available consolidated financial statements.

Exemptions Applied
The Company is taking advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS101.

» Presentation of a Statement of Cash Flows

Disclosure of key management personnel compensation

Disclosure of related party transactions between wholly-owned subsidiaries and parents within a group .

+ Disclosures required under [FRS 2 Share Based Payments in respect of group settied share based payments
Disctosures required by IFRS 7 Financial instrument: Disclosure

Certain disclosures required under IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

Disclosure of information in relation to new standards not yet applied

As permitted by section 408 (3) of the Companies Act 2006, a separate incorme staterment dealing with the results
of the parent company has not been presented.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities that are directly or indirectly controlled by the Company. Control exists where the Company
has the power ta govern the financial and operating policies of the entity so as to abtain benefits from its activities.
The investment in the Cormpany’s subsidiaries is recorded at cost.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the
transaction. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date are translated into stetling
at the rate of exchange ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the

profit and loss account. Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost are translated into sterling at

the rate of exchange on the date of the transaction.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value including directly attributable transaction costs, with subsequent
measurerment at amortised cost using the effective interest rate methed. The difference between initial fair value
and the redernption value is recorded in the profit and loss account over the peried of the liability on an effective

interest basis.
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Notes to the ITV plc Company Financial Statements

continued
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Derivatives and other financial instruments
The Cornpany uses a imited number of derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to fluctuations in interest
and other foreign exchange rates, The Company does not hold or issue derivative instruments for speculative purpases.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently remeasured at fair value with
the movement recorded in the profit and loss account within net financing costs, except where derivatives qualify

for cash flow hedge accounting. In this case, the effective portion of cash flow hedge is recognised in retained profits
within equity. The cumulative gain or loss is later reclassified to the profit and loss account in the same pericd as the
relevant hedged transaction is realised. Derivatives with positive fair values are recorded as assets and negative fair
values as liabilities.

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts is determined by using the difference between the contract
exchange rate and the quoted forward exchange rate at the balance sheet date,

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the Company would receive or pay to terminate
the swap at the balance sheet date, taking into account current interest rates and the current creditworthiness of
swap counterparties,

Third-party valuations are used to fair value the Company’s derivatives. The valuation techniques use inputs such as
interest rate yield curves and currency prices/yields, volatilities of underlying instrurments and correlations between
inputs. For financial assets and liabilities classified at fair value through profit or loss the fair value change and interest
income/expense are not separated.

Defarred tax
The tax charge for the period is recognised in the income statement or directly in equity according to the accounting
treatment of the related transaction.

Deferred tax arises due to certain temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and those for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities. A deferred tax asset is
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to utilise the temporary
difference. Recognition of deferred tax assets, therefare involves judgement regarding timing and level of future
taxable income,

Share-based compensation

The Company utilises share award schemes as part of its employee remuneration packages, and therefare operates
a number of share-based compensation schemes, namely the Deferred Share Award (DSA), Performance Share Plan
(PSP), Long Term incentive Plan (LTIP} and Save As You Earn (SAYE) schemes.

A transaction will be classed as share-based compensation where the Company receives services from employees and
pays for these in shares or similar equity instruments. If the Company incurs a liability based on the price or value of the
shares then this will also fall under a share-based transaction. The Company recognises the retained earnings impact of
the share-based compensation for the Group as awards are settled in [TV plc shares. The cost of providing those awards
is recharged to subsidiaries that receive the service from employees.

The fair value of the equity instrument granted is measured at grant date and spread over the vesting period via a
charge to the income statement with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value of the share options and awards
is measured using either market ptice at grant date or, for the Save As You Earn scheme (SAYE), a Black-Scholes model,
taking into account the terms and conditions of the individual scherme.

Vesting conditions are limited to service conditions and performance conditions. For performance-based schemes, the
relevant performance measures are projected to the end of the performance period in order to determine the number
of options expected to vest. The estimate is then used to determine the option fair value, discounted to present value.
The Company revises its estimates of the number of opticns that are expected ta vest, including an estimate of
forfeitures at each reporting date. The impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, are recognised in the income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Exercises of share options granted to employees can be satisfied by market purchase or issue of new shares. No new
shares may be issued to satisfy exercises under the terms of the DSA. During the year all exercises were satisfied by
using shares purchased in the market and held in the ITV Employees’ Benefit Trust.

Dividends
Dividencds are recognised through equity on the earlier of their approval by the Company’s shareholders or their payrment.
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Note ii
Employees
and share
based
payments

Note iii

Investments
in subsidiary
undertakings

Note iv
Amounts
owed
(to)/from
subsidiary
undertakings

Note v
Borrowings

Two (2015: two) Directors of ITV plc were employees of the Company during the year, both of whom remain at the year
end. The costs relating to these Directors are disclosed in the Remuneration Report.

Share based payments

The weighted average share price of share options exercised during the year was 5533p (2015: 16.65p). The options
outstanding at the year end have an exercise price in the range of nil to 206.83p (20115: nil to 206.83p) and a weighted
average contractual life of one year (2015: one year) for all the Schemes in place for the Group.

The principal subsidiary undertakings are listed on page 184. The carrying value at 31 December 2016 was £1,861 million
(2015: £1,861 million).

In 2015, the Company increased investment in subsidiaries by £156 million.

The Company operates an intra-group cash pool policy with certain 100% owned UK subsidiaries. The pool applies
to bank accounts where there is an unconditional right of set off and involves the daily closing cash position for
participating subsidiaries whether positive or negative, being cleared to £nit via daily bank transfers to/from MV ple.
These daily transactions create a corresponding intercompany creditor or debtor which can result in significant
movements in amounts owed to and from subsidiary undertakings in the Company balance sheet.

Keeping The Directors manage the Group's capital structure as disclosed in Section 4

it simple to the consolidated financial statements. Borrowings, cash and derivative
financial instruments are mainly held by ITV ple and disclosed in these
Company financial statements.

&

Loans and facilities due within one year

At various periods during the year the Group drew down an the Revolving Credit Facility (RCF) to meet short-term
funding requirements. All short-term drawings were repaid by the end of the year (2015: no outstanding short-term
funding). The maximum draw down of the RCF during the year was £500 million in May.

The Group also had an unsecured £161 million Eurobond which matured in January 2017 and had a coupon of 6.125%.
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Notes to the ITV plc Company Financial Statements
continued

Loans and loan notes due after one year

The Group has two bilateral loan facilities maturing in March 2017; both loans can be extended until 2018 at ITV's
option. The two facilities are a £100 million bilateral loan that is fully drawn down as of 31 December 2016, and

a £150 million bilateral loan with an unconditional right to set off with cash on deposit with the counterparty.
The £150 million arrangement is in a net £nit position.

In December 2016 the Group issued a seven-year €500 million Eurobond at a fixed coupon of 20% which will mature
in December 2023, The bond has been swapped back to sterling using a cross currency interest swap. The resulting
fixed rate payable is c. 3.5%. The proceeds of the bond were for general corporate purposes including the repayment
of the £161 million sterling bond which matured in January 2017,

In September 2015 the Group issued a seven-year €600 million Eurcbond at a fixed coupon of 2.125% which will mature
in September 2022. The bond refinanced the 12-month bridge lean facility of €500 million used for the purchase of
Talpa Media in April 2015.

What is the value of our derivative finandal instruments?

Note vi Assets Lisbilities
. 06 2015
Managing Current
ma':ket_r'SkS: Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps — cash flow hedges 7 'n)
derivative Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps — fair value through profit o loss - -
financial Non-current ) - L o
instruments Cross currency interest swaps - cash flow hedges L o - {6)
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps — cash flow hedges 4 {3)
14 (19)
Assets Liabllities
2015 2015
Current
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps — cash flow hedges 3 (4)
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps — fair value through profit or {oss 3 [vi)
Non-current
Interest Rate Swaps ~ fair value through profit or loss 9 (6)
15 {12
The Company mainly employs three types of derivative financial instruments when managing its currency and interest
rate risk:

= Foreign exchange swap contracts are derivative instruments used to hedge income statement translation risk
arising from short-term intercompany loans denominated in a foreign currency.

« Forward foreign exchange contracts are derivative instruments used to hedge transaction risk so they enable the
sale or purchase of foreign currency at a known fixed rate on an agreed future date.

Interest rate swaps are derivative instruments that exchange a fixed rate of interest for a floating rate or vice-versa
or one type of floating interest rate for another and are used to manage interest rate risk.

» Cross-currency interest rate swaps are derivative instruments used to exchange the principal and interest coupons
in a debt instrument frorm cne currency to another.

Cash flow hedges

The Group applies hedge accounting for certain foreign currency firm commitments and highly probably cash flows
whetre the underlying cash flows are payable within the next two to seven years. In arder to fix the sterling cash inflows
and outflows associated with the commitments and interest payments — which are mainly denominated in AUD or
euros - the Group has taken out forward forelgn exchange contracts and cross currency interest swaps for the same
foreign currency amount and maturity date as the expected foreign currency outflow.

On issuing the 2023 Eurobond, the Group entered into a portfolio of aoss-aurrency interest rate swaps, which swapped the
euro principal and fixed rate coupons into sterling. in result the Group makes sterling interest payments at a fixed rate,

The amount recognised in other comprehensive income during the period all relates to the effective portion of the
revaluation toss assodated with these contracts. There was less than £1million (2015 £1million) ineffectiveness taken to
the income statement and £2 million curnulative gain 2015: £6 million loss) recyded to the income statement in the year.
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Interest rate swaps

On issuing the 2017 Euroband, the Company entered into a portfolio of fixed to floating interest rate swaps and then
subsequently overlaid a portfolio of floating to fixed interest rate swaps with the result that interest was 100% fixed
on these barrowings. The timing of entering into these swaps locked in an interest benefit for the Company, resulting
in a net mark-to-market gain on the portfolio.

Undiscounted financial liabilities

The Company is required to disclose the expected timings of cash outflows for each of its derivative financial liabilities.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest), so will not always
reconcile with the amounts disclosed on the statement of financial position.

Carrying canmm Less than Between Between
value cash flows Tyear 1and 2 years 2 and 5 years Over 5 years
At 31 Decamber 2016 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Non-current and current
Foreign exchange forward contracts
and swaps — cash flow hedges
Inflow 1 393 237 156 - -
Outflow (10) (392) 37 (155) - -
Cross currency swaps — cash flow
hedges
Inflow - 497 %0 10 30 447
Outflow (6} (542) 7 a7 Ell] (457)
Foreign exchange forward contracts
and swaps - fair value through profit
orloss
Inflow 412 412 402 10 - -
Qutflow {412) (412) {402) {10} - -
Interest Rate Swaps ~ fair value
through profit or loss
Inflow - 3 13 - - -
Outflow - (6) (6) - - -
(5 37 - 6) 21 (o)
Total
Carrying Contractual Less than Between Between
value cash flows 1year land2years  2and5years Qver 5 years
At 31 December 2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Non-current and current
Foreign exchange forward contracts
and swaps — cash flow hedges
Inflow 3 136 102 34 - -
Outflow {4) (136) (102) (34) - -
Foreign exchange forward contracts
and swaps - fair value through profit
orloss
Inflow 3 253 248 5 - -
Outflow ] (252) (247 (3 - -
Interest Rate Swaps - fair value
through profit or ioss
Inflow 9 2 9 13 - -
Outflow (6) (12 (3] {6) - -
3 11 4§ 7 - -
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Allotted, issued
s Authorised  and fully paid
Note vii . 201682015 2016& 2p§15
Share capital £m £m
Authorised ordinary shares of 10 pence each 8,000,000,000 800
Allotted, issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 10 pence each £,025,409,194 403
Total 800 403
The Company's ordinary shares give shareholders equal rights ta vote, receive dividends and to the repayment
of capital
Note viii Keeping ITV plc is a non-trading investment holding company and derives its profits from
Equity and it simple dividends paid by subsidiary companies.

diVidEﬂdS The Directors consider the Group's capital structure and dividend policy at least twice
a year ahead of announcing results and do so in the context of its ability to continue
% as agoing concern, to execute the strategy and to invest in opportunities to grow the
business and enhance shareholder value.

The dividend policy isinfluenced by a number of the principat risks as identified on

pages 50 to 56 that could have anegative impact on the performance of the Group

In determining the levet of dividend in any year the Directors follow the dividend
policy and also consider a number of other factors that influence the proposed
dividend, including:

The level of retained distributable reserves in ITV plc the Company,

Availability of cash resources (as disclosed in note 4.1to the consolidated financial
staterments},

Future cash commitments and investment plans, in line with Group’s strategic plan.

Equity

The retained earnings reserve includes profit after tax for the year of £1,475 million (2015: £671 million profit)

which includes dividends of £1,500 million from subsidiaries in 2016 (2015: £700 million). Other reserves of £28 million
(2015: £36 million) relate to share-buy backs in prior periods and foreign currency translation net of cashflow hedging.

Dividends
The Directors of the Company propose a final dividend of 7.2p per share and a special dividend of 5p per share,
Distributabls reserves
The distributable reserves of ITV plc approximate to the balance of the retained earnings reserve of £1,702 million
as at 31 December 2016.
Note ix Keeping A contingent liability is a liability that is not sufficiently certain to qualify
conﬁngent it simp[e for recognition as a provision whers uncertainty may exist reqarding the

outcome of future events.

liabilities

2

Under a Group registration, the Company is jointly and severally liable for VAT at 31 December 2016 of £47 million
{31 December 2015: £59 million). The Company has guaranteed certain finance and operating lease obligations of
subsidiary undertakings.

There are contingent liabilities in respect of certain litigation and quarantees, broadcasting issues, and in respect
of warranties given in connection with certain disposals of businesses. None of these items are expected to have
a material effect on the Company’s results or financial position.

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies
within its Group, the Company considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as stich. In this
respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability unti! such time as it becomes probable
that the Company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee.
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"""""""""""""""""" There are no capital commitments at 31 December 2016 (2015: none).
Note x
Capital and
other
commitments
Note xi Keeping The related parties identified by the Directors include solely key management,
Related pal’ty it simple as ITV plcis a holding company with no commercial activity.
transactions To enabie the users of the financial statements to form a view about the effects of
related party relationships on the Company, we disclose the Company's transactions
with those during the year.
Transactions with key management personnel
Key management consists of ITV plc Executive Directors.
Key management personnel compensation, on an accounting basis, is as follows:
2016 2015
£m £m
Short-term employee benefits - I
Share-based compensation 2 3
5 6
Total emoluments and gains on share options received by key management personnel in the year were:
2016 2015
£m £m
Emoluments 3 3
Gains on exercise of share options 2 3
Gains on release of restricted share awards 2 3
7 9
Note xii Keeping Where the Group receives infarmation in the period between 31 Decermber 2016
Subsequent it simple and the date ot this report about conditions related to certain events that existed at
events 31 December 2016, we update cur disclosures that relate to those conditions in light
of the new information. Such events can be cateqorised as adjusting or nan-adiusting

% depending on whether the condition existed at 31 December 2076. If non-adjusting

events are material, non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions that users
make on the basis of the financial statements. Accordingty, for each material cateqory
of non-adjusting event after the reporting period we disclose in this section the
nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect, or a statement that

such an estimate cannot be made.

On 5 January 2017 the £161 Eurobond matured and the Group repaid the capital amount. The related interest rate swap
contracts were settled at the same time. The bond was refinanced earlier in December 2016,
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Subsidiary undertakings and investments

Principal subsidiary undertakings

The principal subsidiary undertakings of the Company at 31 December 2016, all of which are wholly owned (directly or indirectly) and

incorporated and registered where stated.

Company Name Country Principal Business Actlvity % Holding
Carlton Communications Limited* (1)a)({d) UK Holding company 100
ITV Broadcasting Limited {T}{z) UK Broadcast of television programmes 100
ITV Consumer Limited (1)) UK Development of platforms, broadband, transactional and mabile services 100
ITv Digital Channels Limited (1)(@) UK QOperation of digital television channels 100
ITV Global Entertainment Limitad {(1)(a) UK Rights ownership and distribution of television programmes and films 100
ITV Network Limited {1{) UK Scheduling and commissioning of television programmes 100
ITV Rights Limited (Tx) [174 Rights ownhership W0
ITV Services Limited (1)(a)(e} UK Provislon of services for other companies within the Group 100
1TV Studios Limlited (1){a) UK Production of television programmes 100
ITV2 Limited (1)(3) UK Operation of digital television channels 100
SDN Limited {1)¢a) UK Operation of Freeview Multiplex A 100
Talpa Media B V. {93){a) Netherlands Production of television programmes 100
TV Studios, Inc. (704)) USA Production of televislon programmes 100
Leftfield Entertainment, LLC (63)(h) LUSA Production of televislon programmes 100
Subsidiary undertakings
Company Name Country % Company Name Country %
Halding Holding
12 Yard (North) Productions Limited {1)(a} UK 100 Cat's on the Roof Media Limited (1){a) UK 100
12 Yard Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Central Television Limited (1)(a) UK 100
12 Yard Productions {investments) Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Channei Television HoldIngs Limited (1)(@) UK 100
12 Yard Praductions Limited (1)(@) UK 100 Cosgrove Hall Films Limited (1)(a) UK 100
ALC.E.(1988) Limited (1)(a) UK 00 Denipurna Limited (1}(a) UK 100
Action Time Holdings (1){a) UK 100 DTV Limited (1)(a) UK 100
Anglla Tetevision Graup (1){a) UK 100 Electronic Rentals Group (1)) UK 100
Anglia Television Limited (D{a) UK 100 EQ Pictures Limited (1)@} UK 100
Back Productions Limited (7)(a) UK 100 GIL Limited (1)(a) UK 100
BG5S Limited (Tia) UK 100 Granada AV Solutions Limited (1){a) UK 100
Big Talk Bliss Lirnited {(T)a) UK 100 Granada Film (1){a) UK 100
Big Talk Cold Feet Limited {1)(a) UK 100 Granada Fllm Productions Limited (1)(a) UK 00
Big Talk Investments Limited (1)(@) UK 100 Granada Group Limited (1)(a) UK 100
Big Talk JL Linited {1)a) UK 100 Granada Limited (1{3) UK 100
Big Talk Pictures Limited (1){) UK 100 Granada Media Group Limited {1)a) UK 100
Big Talk Productions Limited {1)(a} UK 100 Granada Medla Limited (1){a)()) UK 100
Broad Street Fitms Limited (1)) UK 100 Granada Productions Limited {1)(a) UK 100
Campania Limited (@M UK 100 Granada Properties {1)(a) UK 100
Carbon Media Limited (1)) UK 100 Granada Screen (2005) Limited (1)(a) UK 100
Carlton Actlve Limited {1)(a) UK 100 Granada Television International (1)() UK 100
Carlton Cinerna Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Granada Television Limited(T)(s) UK 100
Carlton Content Holdings Limited (14a) UK 100 Granada Television Overseas Limited (1)(a) UK 100
CarltonEntertainment (13) UK 100 Granada Television Productions Limited {1){a) UK 100
Cariton Film Distributors Limited {1)(a} UK 100 Granada UK Rental and Retall Limited (1)(a)(e} UK 100
Carlton Fllms Limited (1}(a) UK 00 Interactive Telephony Limited (1)(3) UK 100
Carlton Finance Limited(1}(a} UK 100 International Televislon Enterprises Londen Limited (1)(a)id) UK 160
Carlton Food Network Limited (1){a) UK 100 ITC Distribution {1)a) UK 100
Carlton Productions Limited (T)a) UK 100 ITC Entertainment Group Limited {1)a} UK 100
Carlton Programmes Development Limited (1)(a) UK 100 ITC Entertalnment Holdings Limited (1xa) UK 100
Carlton Screen Advertising (Holdings) Limited (1)@) UK 100 ITV {(HC) Limited* (1)a) UK 100
Carltonco 103 (1)(@) UK 100 ITV {Scotland) Limited {3C)a) UK 100
Carltonco 99 Limited {12} UK 100 ITV Bancroft Limited {1)(a} UK 100
Carltonco Eighty-One Limited (1) a)(b) UK 100 ITV Beowulf Limited {1){a) UK 100
Carltonco Fifty Limited {1a)(k) UK 100 {TV Border Limited {1)a} UK 100
Carltonco Forty Investrnen.s (T)a) UK 100 ITV Breakfast Broadcasting Limited (1)) UK 100
Carltonco Forty-Five Limited (1)(a) UK 100 ITV Breakfast Lirnited (1){3) Uk 100
Carltonco Ninety-Sux {1){a)}f) UK 100 ITV Breathless Limited (T)(a) UK 100
Carltonco Seventeen Limited (Y)(a) UK 100 ITV Central Limited (1){a) UK 100
Castlefield Properties Limited (1)(a) UK 100 ITV Channels Limited (1)(2) UK 100
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Company Name Country % Company Name Country %
Holding Holding
ITV CillaLimrted (H(a) UK 100 Mammoth Screen {Bouquet) Limited (1)(z) UK 160
ITV Cradle Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Mammoth Screen {(BW) Limited (26)(a) UK 0o
ITV DC Trustee Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Mammoth Screen (End) Ltd (1)(a) UK 100
ITV Digital Holdings Limited (1)(@) UK 100 Mammaoth Screen (End2) Limited (T¥@) UK 100
ITV Enterprises Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Mammeoth Screen (Falcon) Limited (1)) UK 00
ITV Global Content Limited (T)a} UK 100 Mammoth Screen (Fearless) Limited {1){a) UK 100
ITV Holdings Limited (T){a) UK 100 Mammoth Screen (Monroe) Limited {1)(@) UK 100
{TV Home Fires Limited {1){a} UK 100 Mammoth Screen (NE) Limited (1)(a) UK 100
1TV International Channels {Asia) Limited (1)(a} UK 100 Mammoth Screen (NI Limited {35)(3) UK 100
ITV Investments Limited™* (1){a) UK 100 Mammoth Screen (NW) Limited (1){a) UK 100
ITV J&H Limited {1)(a) UK 100 Mammoth Screen (PE) Limited (1)(a) UK 100
TV Jerlcho Limited (T} UK 100 Mammath Screen (Pol2) Limited (1)) UK 100
ITV IR Limited (14a) UK 100 Mammoth Screen (Peol3) Limited (1)) UK 100
ITV Lewns Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Mammeoth Screen {Poldark) Limited (1)(a) UK 100
ITV Little Boy Blue Limited {T){a} UK 100 Mammoth Screen {QV) Limited (1)(a) UK 100
1TV Loch Ness Limlted {1){a) UK 100 Mammath Screen (RM) Limited (1)(a) UK 100
ITV LTVC {Scotiand) Limited (30)(a) UK 100 Mammoth Screen (WFTP) Limited {1)(a) UK 100
ITV Lucan Limited (1){a) UK 160 Mammoth Screen (WH) Limited (1)(a) UK 100
ITV Meridian Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Mammoth Screen Ltd (1)(a) UK 100
ITV Moorside Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Millbank Studios (1)@) UK 100
ITV Mr Setfridge Limited {1)(a) UK 100 Morning TV Limited (143} UK 100
ITV News Channel Limited (1)(a)(k) UK 100 Moving Plcture Company Fllms Limited (1)(a) UK 100
ITV NP Limited (1{a) UK 100 New Providence Productions Limited (1)a} UK 100
ITV Pension Scheme Limited (1)@)(0) UK 100 Partridge Holdings (1) UK 100
1TV Play Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Pickwick Packaging Limited (T13) uK 100
ITV Productions Limited {1){a) UK 100 Planet 24 (T){a) UK 100
[TV Properties (Developments) Limited (1)) UK 100 Pro-Vision Facilities Limited {1){a) UK 100
ItV Shetland Limited {1)(a) UK 100 Sightseers Film Limited (1)) Uk co
ITV Spirtt Limited (1)(@) UK 100 Slgnpost Limited {1)(a} UK 100
ITV Sport Channel Limited (1)(3)} UK 100 SOM(ITV) Limited (1a) UK 100
ITV Studios {Israel) Limited (1a) UK 100 So Television Developments Limited (T)@) UK 100
TV Studios Newco 1 Limited (1)(3) UK 100 50 Television Limited (1)(a} UK 100
ITV Studios Newco 2 Limited (1) UK 100 Talpa Media UK Ltd {T)(s) UK 100
ITV Studios Newco 3 Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Television Music Limited (T)(a} UK 100
1TV Studlos Newco & Limited (14a) UK 100 The CITV Channel Limited (1)(a} UK 100
ITV Studios Newco 5 Limited (1)(a) UK 100 The Garden Productions Limited (1)(3} UK 100
ITV Studios Newco 6 Limited (1)) UK 100 The London Studios Limited (T)(a) UK 100
ITV Supplementary Penslon Scheme UK 100 Tyne Tees Television Holdings (T){a) UK 100
Limited (1)(a) Tyne Tees Television Limited (14a) UK 100
ITV T&B Limited (1)(a) UK 100 United Broadcasting & Entertainment UK 100
ITV Tennison Limited {1){a) UK 100 Limited (1)(a}
ITV Text Santa Limited (1)(a) UK 100 United Broadcasting Holdings (1)(a) UK 100
TV Thunderbirds Limited (1}{a} UK 100 UTV Limited (34){a) UK 100
ITV Top Class Limited {1)(a) UK 100 VOD Member (ITVA} Limited (1)(2) UK 100
ITY Trauma Limited (1)) UK 100 VOD Member (ITVB) Limited (1)(a) UK 100
ITV Tut Limited ((a) UK 100 Westcountry Television Limited (1)(a) UK 190
ITV Ventures Limited (T)(a) UK 100 Yorkshire Television Limited {Tya) UK 100
ITV Wagstaffe Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Yorkshire-Tyne Tees Television Enterprises Limited {T)(a) UK 100
ITV Wales & West Group Limited (1{a) UK 100 Yorkshire-Tyne Tees Productions Limited (1)(=) UK 100
ITV Wales & West Limited (1)) UK 100 Zebedee Productions Limited (t)(a) UK 100
1TV3 Limited (1)(2) UK 100 Artist Services Cable Pty Ltd (36){3) Australia 100
ITV4 Limited (1)(3) UK 100 Artist Services Investments Pty Limited (36)(a) Australia 100
Juice Music UK Umited {1)(a) UK 100 Artist Services Productions Pty Ltd {(36){@) Australia oo
Leftfield (UK) Limited {21)(a) UK 100 Granada Media International (Australia) Pty Ltd {36)(z) Australia 100
Link Electronics Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Granada Media Investments (Australia) Pty Ltd {36)(a) Australia 100
London News Network (1)(a) UK 100
London Weekend Television Limited {1}a) UK 100 Granada Productions Pty Ltd (36)(a) Australia 100
LWT {Holdings) Limited (Tia)ic) UK 100 ITV Services Pty Ltd (35)(a) Australia 100
LWT Productions Lirmited {1)(a) UK 100 ITV Studlos Australia Pty Ltd (35)a) Australia 100
Mammoth Screen {AR) Limited {1)(a) UK 100 Leftfield Australia Pty Ltd (37)(@) Australia 100
Mammoth Screen (ATTWN) Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Totally Full Frontal Productions Pty Limited (36)(3) Rustralla 100
LTP Productions Inc.(Z5)(j) Canada 100
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CompanyName Country % Company Name Country %
Holding Holding
Granada December Eight Limited (38)(a) Cayman 100 ITV Entertainment Senaces Inc.(63)(j) usa 100
Istands ITV Global Entertainment Inc. (63)(} USA 100
Granada December Nine Limited {38)(a) ;?::';:n 100 ITV Gritty Holding Inc.(63)() UsA 100
ITV Holdings {Cayman) Limited (33)(a) Iif:r:::n 100 :Rf S:r::rd?:gl?:f(:;(j?m) :JJ:: :gg
Talpa Chile SpA (37)(3) Chile 100 TV International Corporation (63)()) USA 100
United Productions AS (42)() Denmmark 100 m;ﬁ;ﬂ:::f;i:;gﬁ’m 355: 1:2
ITV studios Fintand Oy (43)(@) Finland 100 TV Popca Holding Ine ©3)(0) oA 00
;rf: Stucdiios :rance g-:;ldi :)g(s)) SAS (38)(a) ltran ce 100 TV SVOD Holding ne. 63 Uea e
Studios France SAS (44)(a) rance 100 >
ITV Studios Germany GmbH (46)(a) Germany 100 :x :::';:::’::;:":::"(:;;;’m 3:: ::gg
:V Smd,bzﬁe:: ;l;’o';(o; dings GmbH (46)ia) Zermany :gg TV US Holdings Inc. (63)(1)' UsA 100
E'Wtﬂpla Ml a) ermany -
Talpa Germany Fiction GmbH (99)(2) Germany 100 {TVUS Praductions Inc. (63)(]) USA 100
Talna Germany Gmbh & Ca KG (47)() Germany 00 JB Entertainment Holding Company inc. (63} UsA 10C
Talpa Germary Verwaltungs GmbH (47)(a} Germany 100 Kirkstall Road Ente;priseslnc. &30 ush 190
Elecrent Insurance Limited (31)(a) Guernsey 00 LL:::: :::E:: Zf :I T:Cll::l;.:s)s(})uc 630 32: :gg
ITV Global Entertainment (Hong Kong) Limited (9)(a) HongKong 100 ——
Talpa China Limited @8}z HongKong 100 Leftfield Ventures, LLC (63)(j) UsA 100
Catiton Home Entertainment Ireland Limited (50)(a) ireland 100 LWT Enterprises Inc (S3)0) USA 700
Channel Television Limited (32 Jersey 00 Over the Pt:nEd tProductIons Inc. (63)()) USA 100
ITV London Properties Lirmited (33)a) Jersey 360 g::‘;::"ee P:‘o::t:“ﬁs'"ifz::)m 32’: :gg
[TV Properties (lersey) Limited (33)) Jersey 100 50 Televijon Usinc (70)E]) USA 100
Brandcams International BV, {52)(3) Netherliands 100 .
Giobal Music & Talent Agency BN, (93)a) Netherlands 100 ;al”a ::L::i:":; ‘9""”' - ﬂ:: :gz
TV (Europe) Holdings BV (55)(a) Netherlands 100 m':'z:rpmdmms Lfg:::»‘:j‘;‘( 30 T oo
ITV Enterprises BV. {55)(3) Netherlands 100 e
ITV Finance (Eurape) BV. (55){z) Netherlands 100
MasMedia BY. (56)a) Netherlands 100 Joint ventures and Investments
Talpa Content 81,{57)(a) Netherlands 100 Company Name Comty %
Talpa Fictle BV (57)(2) Netherlands 100 Holding
Talpa Germany Holding BV.(93)(a) Netherlands 100 Absolutely Rights Limited (6)(a) UK 20
Talpa Global BV.(53)(a) Netherlands 100 That Mitchell and Webb Company Limited (7){a) UK 20
Talpa Non-Spot BM.(57){a) Netherlands 100 DTV Services Limited (17)a) UK 20
Talpa Producties BV.{57)a) Netherlands 100 Route 24 Limited (24)(a} UK 248
Utopia BV.{57)(@) Nethertands 100 Monumental Television Limited (79)a) UK 2492
Voist Media BV. {102)(a) Netherlands 100 Channel Mum Limited (12)(a) UK 25
Wardour Street Films BV. {59)(a} Netherlands 100 Clearcast Limited {14)(a) UK 25
ITV Studios Norway AS [76)(a) Norway 100 ISAN UK Limited (25)(a) UK 25
ITV Studios Nordic AB(7 7)(a) Sweden 100 Cirkus International Limited {13)(a) LUK 28
Talpa Asia Pte. Ltd. (96)(a) Singapore 100 Thinkbox TV Limited (23)(a) UK 2858
ITV Studios Germany GmbH, Kbln, Zweigniederlassung Switzerland 100 Cirkus Limited {13)(3) UK 5
Zitrich (78}m) Malacara Limited (2a) UK 3675
12 argdHoldings, Inc. (70)(J) UsA 100 Harlequin Agency Limited (5)(a) UK 375
Pink Rose Bud Limited {2){a) UK 375
Anglia Television Inc. (70)G) usa 100 Mainstreet Arlington Productions Limited (4)(a) UK 3825
Astrum Productions, LLC {34)() UsA 100 Mainstreet Pictures Limited (€)a) UK 38.25
Cardinal Productions of Chio Inc. {(63)() USA 100 Unforgotten2 Limited (4) (a) UK 3825
Carlton Media Company Inc. (63)]) uUsA 100 Bait Studio Limited (5§a) UK 55
Electric Farm Entertalnment Holdings Inc. (63)()) usa 100 Clath Cat Anlmatien Limited (5)(a) UK 4125
Granada Cracker US Praductions (70)(j) USA 100 Cloth Cat LBB Limited (5)(a) UK 4125
Granada Television international Inc. (63)() usA 100 Independent Television News Limited (20)(3} UK 40
Hamdon Entertainment Inc.(63)()) uUsa 100 Thud Media Lirted (5) @) UK £1.25
TC Distribution, LLC {63)() USA 100 Bone Kickers Limited (1)) UK 50
ITC Entertainment Graup Inc (63)() UsA 100 BoxClever Technology Limited (B)(a) UK 50
ITC Films, LLC (631D usA 100 British Fitm-Makers Limited ()(a) oK 50
TTC Productions, LLC (63)()) UsA 100 Digital 3 and 4 Limited (16)(a) UK 50
TV America inc(63)() UsA 100 Freesat (UK) Limited (18)(3) UK 50
ITV Belleve Holding inc. (63)() usA 100 Gameface Productions Limited (1)(a) UK 50
ITV Diga Holding Inc. {63)()) UsA 100 Noho Film and Television Limited (28)(a) UK 50
Standard Music Limited (29)(z) UK 50
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Company Name Country % Company Name Country %
Holding Holding
Television Medla Marketing Limited (1)(3) UK 50 Rangers Productions SRL (83)(a) Mexico 65
Possessed Limited (1)(a) UK 51 Identity Mansion BV, (95)(a) Netherlands 25
OSF (Wales) Limited {5)(a) UK 46.27 Pomper & Linders BV (101)(a) Netherlands 20
Oxford Scientific Fitms Limited (5)(a) UK 46.27 Talpa Arabia Holding Ltd {B4){a) UAE [0
Second Act Productions Limited (14(a) UK 7407 Maximum Media Production FZ-LLC (84)(z) UAE a0
Age Before Beauty Limited {4){a) UK 75 Talpa Middle East FZ-LLC (B4)(a) UAE S0
Aim Films Limited (3)(a) UK 75 Eight Bells Productions, LLC (63)(h} USA 60
Boom Cymru TV Ltd (5)a) UK 75 What's the Business, LLC {(85)th) USA &0
Boom Pictures Limited (1)) UK 75 FT Productions, LLC (53)(h) USA 515
Cynhyrchiadau Boomerang Cyf (2)(a) UK 75 Shirina, LLC {63){h) USA 63.25
Double Double Limited (1){a) UK 75 Crew Ready Everywhere, LLC (63)(h) USA 65
Gorilla TV Group Limited (5)(a) UK 75 Hatfietd and McCoy Productions, LEC (63)(h) usa 65
Gorilla TV Limited (5)(a) UK 75 Highball Music Group, LLC (63)(h) USA 65
Indus Films Limited (2)(a) UK 75 LG Films, LLC {63)(h) UsA 65
ITV TFG Heldings Limited {1){a) UK 75 Marriage Boot Camp Reality Stars, LLC (63)(h) USA &5
Him Productians Limited (&}(a) UK 75 MDQuartet, LLC (63)(h) USA 65
TwoFour Group Limited pogd UK 75 Signal Post Facilities, LLC {63)(h) USA 65
TwoFour Broadcast Limited (xx)(x) UK 75 Sound and Stage Studios, LLC (63)(h) USA 65
Twofour Group Holdings Limited (1(a) UK 75 Texas Rangers, LLC (63)(h} USA 65
3sixtymedia Limited {T}{a) UK 80O Thinkfactory Media, LLC (87)(h) USA 65
GC Fitms Pty Limited {36)(a) Australia 49 Woeb Legal, LLC {63)(h} USA 65
Think Factory Productions Canada Ltd (80)(j) Canada 65 Westside Film Partners, LLC (63)(h) usa 65
Talpa Nordic ApS (41)(a) Denmark 51 Loud Television, LLC (63)(h) usa 75
Imago TV Film und Fernsehproduktion GmbH{45)(a) Germany 80 Next Steps Productions, LLC (63)(h) USA 75
The Lab Television 2013 Limited Partnership (87)() Israel 50 Outpost Entertainment, LLC {63)(h) usa 75
Talpa Italia srl {(82)(a) Italy 50 Tomorrow ITV Studios, LLC (63)(k} USA 25
Memberships, Partnerships and Companies Limited by Guarantee
Company Name Country % Holding Company Name Country % Holding ‘
ITV LTVC Scottish Limited Partnership {30)(h) UK 100 High Noon West, LLC {71)(h) USA 60
ITV Scottish Limited Partnership (30)(h) UK 100 Feeding Time Productions, LLC (B9)(h) USA 615
DT Multiplex Operators Limited (17)(7) UK 25 Hollywood Camera and Lighting, LLC (90)(h) UsA 615
Digital Production Partnership Limited (1){i) UK 50 Gurney Productions, LLC (70)(h) USA 615
Producers Rights Agency Limited {25)() UK 50 RICMA, LLC (65)(h) USA 615
ITV Netherlands Co-operatief W.A*(55)(h) Netherlands 100 Yukon RAFT Productions, LLC (97)(h) usa 615
Chad Alan Productions, LLC (62)(h} USA 100 Brat Brigade, LLC (73)(h) LSA 63.25
Double Down Fitms Holdings, LLC (63)(h) UsA 100 Deep Gothamn Post, LLC (73)(h) USA 63.25
Double Down Films, LLC (63)(h) USA 100 DGK 5,LLC {63){h) usa 6325
Electric Farm Entertainment, LLC (63){(h) USA 100 Diga Holdings, LLC {63)(h) USA 63.25
Moving Pictures Services Inc. (63)(h} USA 100 Diga Production Studios, LLC (63)(H) usa 63.25
Oakiawn Paclfic Properties, LLC (66)(h) USA 100 Diga, LLC (63)(h) UsA 63.25
Sirens Media, LLC {63)(h) UsA 100 Film Productions Rentats, LLC (70)(h) USA 65
Sirens Project 1203, LLC (63)(h) USA 100 Roasters, LLC (63)(h) UsA 65
Sirens Project 1223, LLC (63)(h) UsA 100 Thinkfactory Group, LLC (63){h) UsA 65
Sirens Project 1226, LLC (63)h) UsA 100 1016 Productions, LLC (60}h) USA 75
Sirens Project 1227,LLC (63)(h) ysa 100 6565 Productions Studios, LLC (6)(h) UsA 75
Sirens Project 1301, LLC {63)(h) UsA 100 6565 Productions Studios 2, LLC (60}h) UsA 75
Sirens Project 1303, LLC (63)(h) USA 100 6565 Productlons Studios 3,LLC (60} UsA 75
Sirens Prolect 1309, LLC (63)(h) UsA 100 6565 Productions Studios 4, LLC (60)(h) USA 75
Sirens Project 1316, LLC {(63)(h) USA 100 Allin Past, LLC {60)(h) USA 75
Sirens Project 1326, LLC {63)(h} usa 09 Cheese String Studios, LLC (72)(h) usa 75
Sirens Project 1408, LLC(63)(h) Usa 100 In Reality Praductions, LLC (72){h) usa 75
Slrens Project 1410, LLC (83)(h) UsA 100 Gritty Productions, LLC (63)(h) USA 100
Sirens Television Development, LLC (63)(h) USA 100 East Ollve Productions, LLC (60)(h) UsA 75
Sunshine Productions Holdings, LLC (63)(h} USA 100 BE Rights, LLC (63)(h} UsA 50
Work Shop of NY, LLC (63)h) LsA 100 Britbox, LLC (92)(h) usa 40.5
Jaffe/Braunsteln Entertainment, LLC {59}(h) USA 100 Twafour America, LLC (70)(h) usa 75
High Noon East, LLC (7)) UsA 60 Twofour Broadcast Media, LLC (70)h) USA 75
High Noan Group, LLC (71(h) USA 60
High Noon Productions, LLC (71)(h) usA 60
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Address key

() TheLlondon Television Centre, Upper Ground, London, SE19LT, UK

(2) 278 Penarth Road, Cardiff, CF11 8NN, UK

(3) Twofour Studios, Estover, Plymouth, Devon, PLE 7RG, UK

(&) Kingsbourne House, 229-231High Holborn, London, WC1V 7DA, UK

(5) Gloworks, Porth Teigr Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF10 4GA, UK

(6) 18 Glasshouse Studios, Fryern Court Rd, Fordingbridge, Hampshire, SP6 ING, UK

(7} 26Nassau Street, London, WIW 7AQ, UK

(8) 5New Street Square, London, EC4A 3TW, UK

(9) 20 Cathedral Road, Cardiff, CF119LJ, UK

{10} S Mansfield Street, London, WM SFH, UK

(1) 20 Qrange Street, 3rd Floor, London, WC2H 7EF, UK

{12) 21Hatton Gardens {Room 9}, London ECIN 9BA, UK

(13) The Met Bullding, 22 Percy Street, London, WAT 2BU, UK

(14) 4 Roger Street, 2nd Floor, London, WCIX 2JX, UK

{15) ¢foCreative Skillset, 1-3 Grosvenor Place, Fifth floor (Suite SB), London, SWX 7HJ, UK

{16) 124 Horseferry Road, London, SW1P 2TX, UK

(17} 27 Mortimer Street, London, W1T 3JF UK

{18) 23-24 Newman Street, London, WAT 1PJ, UK

(19) Unit B AcornProduction Centre, R/O 105 Blundelt Street, London, N7 9BN, UK

(20) 200 Gray's Inn Road, London, WC1X 8HF, UK

{21) ClayBarmn, Ipsley Court, Berrington Close, Redditch, Worcestershire, B98 0TD, UK

{22) 10 Lower Thames Street, (Third Floar), London, EC3R 6YT, UK

(23} Manning House, 22 Carlisle Place, London, SW1P LA, UK

(24) York House, Emplre Way, Wembley, Middlesex, HAS OFQ, UK

{25) Fitzrovia House, (3rd Floor), 153157 Cleveland Street, London, W1T 6QW, LK

{26) Round Foundry Media Centre, Foundry Street, Leeds, LST1 5QP, UK

(27} c¢lo Archery Pictures, 3 Archery Close, London, W2 2BE, UK

{28} 59 Charlotte Street, (Third Floor), London, W1T 4PE, UK

{29} Roundhouse, 212 Regent’s Park Road, London, NW18AW, UK

(30) Quartermile One, 15 Lauriston Place, Edinburgh, EH3 SEP, Scotland

(31 PO Box 308, 5t Peter Port House, Linion Street, 5t. Peter Port, GY13TA, Guernsey

(32) Le Capelain House, Castle Quay, St Helier, JE2 3EH, jersey

(33) Ogier House, The Esplanade, St. Heller, JE4 9WG, Jersey

(34) Ormeau Road, Belfast, BT7 1EB, Narthernireland

(35) 5Cromac Avenue, The Gasworks, Belfast, BT7 2JA, Northern Ireland

(36) Building 61, Fox Studios Australia, 38 Driver Avenue, Moore Park NSW 2021, Australia

{37} cfo Addisons, Level 12, 60 Carrington Street, Sydney NSW 2000, Australla

(38) Appleby Corporate Services (Cayman) Limited, Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO,
Box 190 GT, Georgetown, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands

(39} c/oAppleby Trust {Cayman) Limited, Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O.Box 1350,
Georgetown, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman islands

40y Ugland House, PO, Box 309, South Church Street, Georgetown, Grand Cayman,
Caymanislands

{41) Mosedalvej 14, 2500, Valby, Copenhagen, Denmark

(42) Finsensve] 6E, 2000, Frederiksberg, Denmark

(43) Elimaenkatu 9 A, Helsinki, 00510, Finland

(44} 23 Rue Montorgueil, 75001, Paris, France

(45) Keplerstrasse 4-6,10589, Berlin, Germany

(46) Am Coloneum 6,50829, Cologne, Germany

(47) Jenfelder Allee 80, 22039, Harmburg, Germany

{48} Room 1902,19F Lee Garden One, 33 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

{49) Gloucester Tower {8th Flaor), The Landmark, 11 Pedder Street, Central, Hong Kong

(50Q) One Spencer Dock, North Wall Quay, Dublin 1, Ireland

{51} Mayor Street Upper, Dublin, DUBLIN 1, Iretand

{52) Burgemeester Stramanweg 97,c, 1191EA, Ouderkerk aan de Amistel, Methertands

{53) Surnatralaan 45,1217 GP, Hilversum, Netherlands

(54) Heemraadssinget 180,3021DL, Rotterdam, Netherlands

Interest key

{a) Ordinary (hy Membership/Partnership
(b) Deferred () Guarantee

© Specialdeferved (i} Common

¢d) Redeemable preference (k) Preference

(¢) Cumulative preference () Partpreference

{f) Cumulativeredeemable preference {rm) Branch
(@ Convertible preference * Direct subsidiary
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{55) Hoogoorddreef15, T101BA, Amsterdam, Netherlands

{56) Noorderweq 8,1221 AA, Hilversurm, Netherlands

{57} Zevenend 45,1251RL, Laren, North Holland, Netherlands

{58) Voorstraat 61,4797 8E, Willemstad, Netherlands

{59) Herikerbergweg 238, 1101 CM, Amsterdam Zuidoost, Netherands

(60) 121West Lexington Driva, Suite 401, Glendale CA 91203, USA

(61 1633 Bayshore Highway, Suite 320, Burlingame CA 94010, USA

{62) 3867 Plaza Tower, 1st Floor, Baton Rouge, Los Angeles CA 70816, USA

(63) The Corporation Trust Cornpany, Corporate Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street,
Wilmington, Newcastle, DE 19801, USA

(64) Corporation Service Company, 2711 Centreville Road (Suite 400), Wilmingtorn,
Newcastle DE 19808, USA

{65) 8929 South Sepulveda Boulevard, Suite 510, Los Angeles, CA 90045, USA

{66) The Corporation Trust Company, 311Scuth Division Street,
Carston City NV 89703, USA

(67) 450 North Roxbury Drive, Bth Floor, Beverly Hills CA 90210, USA

(68) United Corporate Services, Inc., 874 Walker Road (Suite C), Dover, Kent, DE 19204, USA

(69) 321Souther Beverly Drive, Suite M, Beverly Hills, CA 90212, USA

(70} CT Corporation System, 818 West Seventh Street, Suite 930, Los Angeles,
CAS0017,USA

(71) The HodsonLaw Firm, 1129, East 17th Avenue, Denver, CO BOD14, USA

(72) 24855 Paalfic Coast Highway, Suite C302, Malibu, CA 90265, USA

(73) CT Corporation System, 111 Elghth Avenue, 13th Floor, New York, NY 10011, USA

(74) 21Holbom Viaduct, London, ECT1A 20Y, UK

(75) 120 West 3rd Avenue #201, Vancouver, BC VSY 1EG, Canada

(76) Starvhusgaten 2A,Bergen, Nurway

(77) Soder Malarstrand 65, 11825, Stockholm, Sweden

(78) Scharenmoosstrasse 105, 8052, Zurich, Switzertand

(79) 95t.Peters Street, London, N1 81D, UK

(80) Bueehil Goldstein LLP, 99 Atlantic Avenue, Suite 214, Toronto, M6K 3)8, Canada

(81) 23 Habarzel Street, Tel Aviv, 69710, Israel

{82) ViaEnrico, Tazzoli 6, Rome, italy

(83} Gonzales Carille, SC Abogadoes, Montes Urales no 632, Piso 3, Lomas de Chapaltpec,
DF 11000, Mexico

{84) Building 2, Dubai Media City, Dubia, UAE

(85} 3035 South Parker Road, Suite 500, Denver, CO BOO14, USA

(86) eResident Agent Inc, 12121 Wilshire Boulevard -1201, Los Angeles, CA 90025, USA

(87) 1640 South Sepulveda Boulevard, Suite 300, Los Angeles, CA 90025, USA

{88) CT Corporatlon Systern, 306 Main Street, Suite 512, Frankfort, KY 40601, USA

{89) CT Corporation Systern, 5615 Corporate Boulevard, Sulte 4D0B, Baton Rouge, CA
70808, Los Angeles, USA

(90) 24955 Pacific Coast Highway, Sulte €302, Maltbu, CA 50265, USA

{91) Incorp Services Ine, 101 E. 9th Avenue, Suite 12-B, Anchorage, AK99501-3651, USA

{92) 1120 Avenue of Americas, 5thFloor, New York, NY10036, USA

(83) Familie de Moltaan 1,1217 ZB Hilversum, Netherlands

(84) 15000 Ventura Blvd, Suite 202, Sherman Oaks, CA 91403, USA

(95) Westersingel 108, 3015 LD Rotterdam, Nethettands

(96) 198A Telok Ayer Street, Singapore 068637

(97) calle Cerre El Plorno 5855, oficina 1605, comuna de Las Condes,
Region Metropolitana, Chile

(98) 3rue Taylor, C5 20004, 74010, Paris, France

(99) Gethiner Strasse 5,10785, Berlin, Germany

(100} August-Bebel Strasse 58, 15711, Konigs Wusterhausen, Germany

(101) Keizersgracht 149a, 1015CL, Amsterdam, Netherlands

(102) Hollandse Kade 34,1391JM, Abcoude, Netherlands
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Shareholder Information

Shareholder profile

Holders Shares held
Information as at 31 December 2016 Number % Millions %
Type of holder:
insurance companies 5 0.01 0 )
Banks and nominee companies 3,015 552 3,887 96.58
Individuals 51,260 9387 123 3.06
Others 333 060 15 0.36
Totals 54,613 100 4,025 100

Holders

Number % Shares held %
Size of holding:
1-100 8781 16.07 306,634 0.01
101 -200 764 131 1,076,804 0.03
201-500 13,605 2491 4,421,055 011
501-1,000 8,758 16.03 6,431,692 016
1,001 - 2,000 6,809 1247 9,895,045 0.25
2,001-5,000 5188 a5 16,306,370 0.41
5.001-10,000 1,863 341 13187431 0.33
10,001 - 50,000 1,392 255 28,193,018 0.70
50,001 - 100,000 2N 041 15,752,927 0.39
100,001 - 500,000 363 067 90,071,530 2,24
500,001 -1,000,000 19 .22 88194,950 219
1,000,001 - 5,000,000 223 041 540614448 13.43
5,000,001 -10,000,000 53 01 368,562,661 916
10,000,001 - 50,000,000 60 oM M77107,879 29.24
50,000,001 and above 14 0.03 1,665,286,750 41.37
Totals 54,613 100 4,025,409,194 100
Company website Registrars and transfer office

Investor and shareholder-related information, including the current
price of ITV plc shares, can be found on the Company website at:

(R) www.itvplic.com

Financial calendar

Ex-dividend date for the Final and Special dividend 27 April 2017
Record date for the Final and Special dividend 28 April 2017
Annual General Meeting 10 May 2017
Interim Management Statement 10 May 2017
Payment date for the Final and Special Dividend 25 May 2017
Half year results announcement 26 July 2017
Registered office

The London Television Centre

Upper Ground

London

SE19LT

(@ 02071573000

Company registration number 4967001

All administrative enquiries relating to shareholdings and requests
to receive corparate documents should be directed to Capita Asset
Services, The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, BR3 4TU.
They can be contacted by telephane on

@ 0871664 0300 from the UK (calls cost 12 pence per minute plus network
charges) and

+44 371 664 0300 from outside the UK {calls UK willbe charged at the
applicable international rate).

Lines are open Monday to Friday 9.00 a.m.to 5.30 p.m.

Alternatively you could email them at:

@ shareholderenquiries@capita.co.uk

Annual General Meating

The Annual General Meeting will be held on Wednesday 10th May
2017 at 1.00 a.m. at the Queen Elizabeth Il Conference Centre, Broad
Sanctuary, Westminster, London SW1P 3EE. The Notice of the AGM
contains an explanation of special business to be considered at the
meeting and a copy of this is available on the Company website.

@ www.itvplc.com/finvestors/shareholder-information/agm
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Additional Information P Glossary

Glossary

Broadcasters’ Audience Research
Board (BARB) - organisation owned by
broadcasters and advertisers providing
data on linear and online televisicn
viewing statistics by UK households

Catch up viewing - non-live viewing

of recently broadcast television programmes,
either via a recording device (often called a
PVR or DTR} such as Sky+ or through a Video
on Demand setvice such as the ITV Hub, BBC
iPlayer, All 4 or My5

Channel 3 licences - the 16 regional licences
and one national licence awarded to transmit
Channel 3 across the UK. All are owned by ITV
with the exception of two of the regional
licences which are owned by STV

Contract Rights Renewal (CRR) - the
remedy agreed by Cariton and Granada in
2003 as a pre-condition of the merger, which
governs the way inwhich ITV airtime is sold
by ITV te its advertising customers

Free-to-Air (FTA) television - viewing

of television through devices not requiring
a subscription such as the Freeview or
Freesat services

High Definition (HD) - channels or services
broadcast in substantially higher resolution
than standard, providing improved

picture quality

Impact or Commercial Impact - one
Commercial Impactis defined as one
viewer watching one 30-second
television commercial

ITV Family - the ITV family of channels
whichincludes ITV,ITV2,ITV3, ITV4, ITVBe,
ITV Encore, CITV, ITV Breakfast, CITV
Breakfast and all assaciated +1and HD
equivalents. Viewing figures include the
whole of the ITV network. Revenue figures
include onty ITV plc operated regions

Linear television — television service
where the viewer has to watch a scheduled
TV program at the particular time it's
offered, and on the particular channel

it's presented on
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Long-form video requests - video requests
are a measure of the total number of videos
requested across all ptatforms (such asitv.
com, Virgin and mobile devices) and includes
simulcast. A long-form video is a programme
that has been broadcast on television and is
available to watch online and on demandin
its entirety

Long-form online viewing {(consumption)
— total number of hours of ITV VOD content
viewed on advertiser funded platforms (such
as mobiles, itv.com, connected TVs)

Media sales commission - commission
earned by ITV plc on sales of airtime on
behalf of the non-consolidated licensees
(STV and UTV until acquisiticn in Feb 2016)

Net Advertising Revenue (NAR) - the
amount of money received by abroadcaster
as payment for television spot advertising
net of any commission paid to agencies

Total Schedule Costs/Total Network
Programme Budget (NPB) - the budget
spent on programring broadcast on the
ITV family of channels, including spend on
regional programming and ITV Breakfast

Non-consolidated licensees - the

two regional channel 3 licences which ITV
does not own. These licences are owned
by 5TV and revenues received from these
licences for [TV programming content are
referred to as minority revenues

Non-NAR revenue - non-NAR revenue
includes all ITV revenue, bothinternat and
external, except net advertising revenue
{NAR). This includes inter-segment revenue
from the sale of 1TV Studios shows to the
ITV Network

Ofcom - independent regulator and
competition authority for the UK
cornmunications industries

Over-the-top content (OTT) - delivery
of audio, video, and other media over
the Internet, this includes content

from providers such as Netflix, Amazon
and Hulu and also our own on demand
service, the ITVHub

SDN - multiplex operator owned by [TV
which operates one of the eight nationat
multiplex licences in the UK on Freeview

Share of Broadcast (SOB) - ITV’s share
of UK television advertising revenue (NAR),
ameasure of market share

Share of Commercial Impacts (SOCI) -

the term used to define the share of total

UK television commerdial impacts whichis
delivered by one channel or group of
channels. This measure excludes viewing

of BBC channels as they do not generate
commercial impacts. Unless stated otherwise,
SOCI figures cited throughout this report

are based on BARB data and are based on

the universe of Adults (16+)

Share of Viewing (SOV) - the share of

the total viewing audience during a defined
period gained by a programme or channel.
This measure includes viewing of BBC
channels. Unless stated otherwise, SOV
figures cited throughout this report are
based on BARB data and are based on the
universe of individuals

Spot advertising - Linear television
advertising occupying a short break during
or between programmes

Subscription Video on Demand (SVOD) - a
paid for service where a subscriber has access
to wide range of content whenever they
request it

Video on Demand (VOD) - the ability
to deliver video content to a customer’s
television set, computer or device when
the customer requests it

YouView — a joint venture (with the BBC,
Channel 4, Channel 5, BT, TalkTalk, and Argiva)
to operate and promote a hybrid television
platform combining Freeview channels with
catch up and on demand services
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The London Television Centre
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London
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@ www.itv.com

Investors:
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